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PART |

Item 1. Business.
Overview

Nucor Corporation, a Delaware corporation incorporated in 1958, and its affiliates (“Nucor,” the
“Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”) manufacture steel and steel products. The Company also produces and
procures ferrous and non-ferrous materials primarily for use in its steel manufacturing business. Most of
the Company’s operating facilities and customers are located in North America. The Company’s
operations include international trading and sales companies that buy and sell steel and steel products

manufactured by the Company and others.

Nucor is North America’s largest recycler, using scrap steel as the primary raw material in producing
steel and steel products. In 2023, we recycled approximately 18.4 million gross tons of scrap steel.

Segments, Principal Products Produced, and Markets and Marketing

Nucor reports its results in three segments: steel mills, steel products and raw materials. The steel
mills segment is Nucor’s largest segment, representing 58% of the Company’s sales to external
customers in the year ended December 31, 2023.

We market products from the steel mills and steel products segments mainly through in-house sales
forces. We also utilize our internal distribution and trading companies to market our products abroad. The
markets for these products are largely tied to end-use markets such as nonresidential construction,
durable goods and capital spending that are affected by changes in general economic conditions.

We are a leading domestic provider for most of the products we supply, and, in many cases (e.g.,
structural steel, merchant bar steel, steel joist and deck, pre-engineered metal buildings, steel piling, cold
finish bar steel, steel electrical conduit pipe and insulated metal panels), we are the leading supplier.

In recent years we have embarked on a strategy to advance Nucor’s capabilities and further its
value creation, as summarized in our Mission Statement: Grow the Core, Expand Beyond and Live Our
Culture.

We have examined and prioritized growth opportunities across our core steelmaking, steel products
and raw materials operations, and we have identified and executed on several acquisitions and
investments to expand the products and services we offer beyond our traditional capabilities. We believe
that the Expand Beyond growth opportunities we are pursuing leverage our core competency as a highly
efficient, industrial manufacturer working primarily with steel and steel products, while positioning us to
generate attractive profit margins and returns on our invested capital selling products into growing end-
use markets.

Steel mills segment

In the steel mills segment, Nucor produces sheet steel (hot-rolled, cold-rolled and galvanized), plate
steel, structural steel (wide-flange beams, beam blanks, H-piling and sheet piling) and bar steel (blooms,
billets, concrete reinforcing bar, merchant bar and engineered special bar quality (“SBQ”)). Nucor
manufactures steel principally from scrap steel and scrap steel substitutes using electric arc furnaces
(“EAFs”) along with continuous casting and automated rolling mills. The steel mills segment also includes
Nucor’s equity method investment in NuMit LLC (“NuMit”) (see “Steel joint ventures’- below), as well as
international trading and distribution companies that buy and sell steel manufactured by the Company
and other steel producers.

The steel mills segment sells its products primarily to steel service centers, fabricators and
manufacturers located throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico. The steel mills segment sold



approximately 18,552,000 tons to outside customers in 2023. In 2023, 80% of the shipments made by our
steel mills segment were to external customers. The remaining 20% of the steel mills segment’s
shipments went to our steel products segment.

Bar mills - Nucor has 15 bar mills located across the United States that manufacture a broad
range of products, including concrete reinforcing bars, hot-rolled bars, rounds, light shapes,
structural angles, channels, wire rod and highway products in carbon and alloy steels. Four of
the bar mills have a significant focus on manufacturing SBQ and wire rod products.

Steel produced by our bar mills has a wide usage serving end markets, including the
agricultural, automotive, construction, energy, furniture, machinery, metal building, railroad,
recreational equipment, shipbuilding, heavy truck and trailer market segments. Considering
Nucor’s production capabilities and the mix of bar products generally produced and marketed,
the capacity of the bar mills is estimated at approximately 9,560,000 tons per year.

Reinforcing and merchant bar steel are sold in standard sizes and grades, which allows us to
maintain inventory levels of these products to meet our customers’ expected orders. Our SBQ
products are hot-rolled to exacting specifications primarily servicing the automotive, energy,
agricultural, heavy equipment and transportation sectors.

In April 2022, Nucor announced that it will build a new rebar micro mill, with spooling
capabilities, in Lexington, North Carolina. The new micro mill is currently under construction.

In February 2024, Nucor announced that the Board of Directors approved $860 million to
construct a rebar micro mill in the Pacific Northwest. Nucor is evaluating potential locations,
and the project is expected to take two years to construct, subject to regulatory approvals.

Sheet mills - Nucor operates six sheet mills that produce flat-rolled steel for automotive,
appliance, construction, pipe and tube and many other industrial and consumer applications.
Included in our six sheet mills is California Steel Industries, Inc., in which Nucor has a 51%
controlling ownership position. Considering Nucor’s production capabilities and the mix of flat-
rolled products generally produced and marketed, the capacity of the sheet mills is estimated
at approximately 14,600,000 tons per year. All of our sheet mills are equipped with galvanizing
lines and four of them are equipped with cold rolling mills for further processing of hot-rolled
sheet steel.

Nucor produces hot-rolled, cold-rolled and galvanized sheet steel to customers’ specifications.
Contract sales within the steel mills segment are most notable in our sheet operations, as it is
common for contract sales to account for the majority of sheet sales in a given year. We
estimate that greater than 80% of our sheet steel sales in 2023 were to contract customers.
These sheet sales contracts are noncancellable agreements that generally incorporate
monthly or quarterly price adjustments reflecting changes in the current market-based indices
and/or raw material cost, and typically have terms ranging from six to 12 months. The balance
of our sheet steel sales were made in the spot market at prevailing prices at the time of sale.
The number of tons sold to contract customers at any given time depends on a variety of
factors, including our consideration of current and future market conditions, our strategy to
appropriately balance spot and contract tons in a manner to meet our customers’ requirements
while considering the expected profitability, our desire to sustain a diversified customer base,
and our end-use customers’ perceptions about future market conditions.

Nucor owns a 51% controlling economic and voting interest in Nucor-JFE Steel Mexico, S. de
R.L. de C.V. ("NJSM"). NJSM is a joint venture with JFE Steel Corporation (*JFE”) of Japan
that operates a galvanized sheet steel plant in central Mexico with an annual capacity of
approximately 400,000 tons, that is expected to supply the country’s automotive market.

In January 2022, Nucor announced it had selected Mason County, West Virginia as the site for
its new 3-million-ton state-of-the-art sheet mill. When operational, the new mill will be equipped
to produce 84-inch sheet products, and among other features, will include a 76-inch tandem
cold mill and two galvanizing lines capable of producing advanced high-end automotive and
construction grades.



. Structural mills - Nucor operates two structural mills that produce wide-flange steel beams,
pilings and heavy structural steel products for fabricators, construction companies,
manufacturers and steel service centers. Nucor owns a 51% interest in Nucor-Yamato Steel
Company (Limited Partnership) (“Nucor-Yamato”) located in Blytheville, Arkansas. Nucor-
Yamato is the only North American producer of high-strength, low-alloy beams. Common
applications for the high-strength, low-alloy beams include gravity columns for high-rise
buildings, long-span trusses for stadiums and convention centers, and for use in all projects
where seismic design is a critical factor. The benefits of high-strength, low-alloy beams are
increasingly recognized by Nucor’s customers in the construction sector. These include
savings in terms of construction time, weight, space, and overall environmental impact. Nucor
sells its high-strength, low-alloy beams under the trade name AEOS™.

Nucor also owns a steel beam mill in Berkeley County, South Carolina. Considering Nucor’s
production capabilities and the mix of structural products generally produced and marketed,
the capacity of the two structural mills is estimated at approximately 3,250,000 tons per year. .

Structural steel products come in standard sizes and grades, which allows us to maintain
inventory levels of these products to meet our customers’ expected orders.

. Plate mills - Nucor operates three plate mills that produce plate for manufacturers of barges,
bridges, heavy equipment, rail cars, refinery tanks, ships, wind towers and other items. Our
products are further used in the pipe and tube, pressure vessel, transportation and
construction industries. Considering Nucor’s production capabilities and the mix of plate
products generally produced and marketed, the capacity of the plate mills is estimated at
approximately 4,000,000 tons per year.

Plate steel products come in standard sizes and grades, which allows us to maintain inventory
levels of these products to meet our customers’ expected orders.

o Steel joint venture - Nucor owns a 50% economic and voting interest in NuMit, a company that
owns 100% of the equity interest in Steel Technologies LLC (“Steel Technologies”), an
operator of 30 strategically located sheet processing facilities in the United States, Canada
and Mexico. Steel Technologies transforms flat-rolled steel into products that meet exacting
specifications for customers in a wide range of industries, including the automotive, agricultural
and consumer goods markets.

Steel products segment

In the steel products segment, Nucor produces steel joists and joist girders, steel deck, galvanized
torque tubes used in solar arrays, hollow structural section (“HSS”) steel tubing, electrical conduit,
fabricated concrete reinforcing steel, cold finished steel, steel fasteners, steel grating and expanded
metal, wire and wire mesh, metal building systems, insulated metal panels, steel racking, overhead doors,
and utility towers and structures for communications and energy transmission. The steel products
segment also includes our piling distributor.

Our capabilities in insulated metal panels, steel racking, overhead doors and towers and structures
have all been acquired over the past several years as part of our Expand Beyond strategy, which we
believe can enhance our profit margins, return on invested capital and free cash flow generation and,
over time, accelerate our overall growth while reducing the volatility of our earnings. A value driver in
each of these businesses is to readily leverage our core competencies as a highly efficient manufacturer
of steel products, as well as our inclusive, safety-focused, performance-oriented culture.

Except for our overhead doors business, which at present is focused primarily on the garage door
repair and replacement market, our steel products businesses primarily serve the nonresidential
construction and infrastructure markets.

. Vulcraft/Verco — The Vulcraft/\VVerco group is the nation’s leading producer of open-web steel
joists, joist girders and steel decking, which are used primarily for nonresidential building



construction. Steel joists and joist girders are produced and marketed throughout the United
States by seven domestic Vulcraft facilities. The Vulcraft/Verco group’s steel decking is
produced and marketed throughout the United States by nine domestic plants. Six of these
plants are adjacent to Vulcraft joist facilities. The Vulcraft/Verco group also has two plants in
Canada—one in Eastern Canada and one in Western Canada—that produce both joist and
deck. The annual joist production capacity is approximately 745,000 tons and the annual deck
production capacity is approximately 560,000 tons.

Sales of steel joists, joist girders and steel decking are dependent on the nonresidential
building construction market. The majority of steel joists, joist girders and steel decking are
used extensively as part of the roof and floor structural support systems in warehouses, data
centers, manufacturing buildings, retail stores, shopping centers, schools, hospitals, and, to a
lesser extent, in multi-story buildings and apartments. We make these products to our
customers’ specifications and typically deliver them directly to a construction site according to
a prearranged schedule and sequence. The majority of these contracts are firm, fixed-price
contracts that are, in most cases, competitively bid against other suppliers.

Our Vulcraft/Verco group also manufactures and fabricates steel bar grating products at four of
its facilities and serves the new construction and maintenance-related markets. The annual
production capacity for our grating business is approximately 49,000 tons.

Tubular products — The Nucor Tubular Products (“NTP”) group has eight tubular facilities that
are located in close proximity to Nucor’s sheet mills. The NTP group produces HSS steel
tubing, mechanical steel tubing, galvanized solar torque tube, piling, sprinkler pipe, heat-
treated tubing and electrical conduit. HSS steel tubing, mechanical steel tubing and sprinkler
pipe are used in structural and mechanical applications, including nonresidential construction,
infrastructure, agricultural, automotive and construction equipment end-use markets. Heat-
treated tubing and electrical conduit are primarily used to protect and route electrical wiring in
various nonresidential structures such as hospitals, schools, office buildings, hotels, stadiums
and shopping malls. Solar torque tube is an essential component for ground-mount solar
systems.

Rebar fabrication — Nucor Rebar Fabrication fabricates, installs and distributes rebar for a wide
variety of construction work classified as infrastructure (e.g., highways, bridges, reservoirs,
utilities and airports) and various building projects, including manufacturing facilities,
warehouses, data centers, hospitals, schools, stadiums, commercial office buildings and multi-
tenant residential construction. We sell and install fabricated reinforcing products primarily on
a construction contract bid basis.

Reinforcing products are essential to concrete construction. They supply tensile strength, as
well as additional compressive strength, and protect concrete from cracking. In many markets,
Nucor Rebar Fabrication sells reinforcing products on an installed basis (i.e., Nucor Rebar
Fabrication fabricates the reinforcing products for a specific application and performs the
installation). Nucor Rebar Fabrication operates nearly 70 fabrication facilities across the United
States and Canada, with each facility serving a local market. Total annual rebar fabrication
capacity is approximately 1,736,000 tons.

Piling products - Skyline Steel LLC and its subsidiaries (“Skyline”) are primarily steel
foundation distributors serving the North American market. Skyline distributes products to
service marine construction, bridge and highway construction, heavy civil construction, flood
protection, underground commercial parking and environmental containment projects in the
infrastructure and construction industries. Skyline also manufactures a complete line of
geostructural foundation solutions, including threaded bar, micropile, strand anchors and
hollow bar. It also processes and fabricates spiral weld pipe piling, rolled and welded pipe
piling, and cold-formed sheet piling.



Cold finish - Nucor Cold Finish (“NCF”) is the largest and most diversified producer of cold
finished bar products for a wide range of industrial markets in North America, with assets in
Canada, Mexico and throughout the United States. The total capacity of the Nucor cold
finished bar and wire facilities is approximately 1,069,000 tons per year.

Nucor’s cold finished facilities produce cold finished bars for demanding applications. NCF
obtains most of its steel from the Nucor bar mills, ensuring consistent quality and supply
through all market conditions. These facilities produce cold-drawn, turned, ground and
polished steel bars that are used extensively for shafting and other precision machined
applications. NCF produces rounds, hexagons, flats and squares in carbon, alloy and leaded
steels. These bars are purchased by the appliance, automotive, construction equipment,
electric motor, farm machinery and fluid power industries, as well as by service centers. NCF
bars are used in tens of thousands of products. A few examples include anchor bolts,
hydraulic cylinders and shafting for air conditioner compressors, ceiling fan motors, garage
door openers, electric motors and lawn mowers.

Nucor owns a fully integrated precision castings company, Corporacion POK, S.A. de C.V.
(“POK”), with a facility in Guadalajara, Mexico. POK produces complex castings and precision
machined products used by the oil and gas, mining and sugar processing industries. POK
produces a wide array of precision castings using steel, bronze, iron and specialty alloys. POK
complements NCF’s businesses and Nucor’s cold finish facility in Monterrey, Mexico.

Steel mesh and fasteners — Nucor manufactures wire products and industrial fasteners.

Nucor produces mesh at Nucor Steel Connecticut, Inc. and Nucor Wire Products Utah. Nucor
also produces mesh in Canada at the Harris Steel Group, Inc. ("Harris") operations of Laurel
Steel.

Nucor Fastener’s bolt-making facility in Indiana produces carbon and alloy steel hex head cap
screws, hex bolts, structural bolts, nuts and washers, finished hex nuts and custom-
engineered fasteners. Nucor fasteners are used in a broad range of markets, including
automotive, machine tool, farm implement, construction and military applications.

Buildings group — The Nucor Buildings group is the nation’s leading supplier of pre-engineered
metal buildings. Nucor produces metal buildings and components throughout the United
States under the following brands: Nucor Building Systems, American Buildings Company and
Kirby Building Systems.

The sizes of the buildings that can be produced range from less than 1,000 square feet to
more than 1,000,000 square feet. Complete metal building packages can be customized and
combined with other materials such as glass, wood and masonry to produce cost-effective,
energy efficient, aesthetically pleasing buildings designed to the customers’ special
requirements. The buildings are sold primarily through independent builder distribution
networks in order to provide fast-track, customized solutions for building owners. The primary
markets served are commercial, industrial and institutional buildings, including distribution
centers, data centers, automobile dealerships, retail centers, schools and manufacturing
facilities.

Insulated metal panels (“IMP”) — We believe the Nucor Insulated Panels Group, which includes
industry leading brands, CENTRIA and Metl-Span, broadens the value-added solutions that
the Nucor Buildings group can provide to targeted end markets such as warehousing,
distribution and data centers. We expect these end-use markets to continue to grow in the
coming years. IMPs facilitate cost-effective climate control in the built environment and reduce
energy usage and overall operations related greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions for owners
and lessees.

Warehouse Systems — Nucor Warehouse Systems (“NWS”) produces and installs custom
designed steel racking systems for a variety of applications, including data centers and
warehouses.



Overhead doors — In June 2022, Nucor acquired C.H.l. Overhead Doors, LLC (“CHI"), a
leading manufacturer of overhead doors for residential and commercial markets in the United
States and Canada. We believe that by leveraging Nucor’s existing sales channels into the
broader nonresidential construction market we can facilitate CHI's continuing growth. CHI has
two manufacturing locations.

Towers & Structures — In August 2022, Nucor acquired Summit Utility Structures LLC and a
related company, Sovereign Steel Manufacturing LLC. These companies form Nucor Towers
& Structures (“NTS”). NTS produces metal poles and other steel structures for utility
infrastructure and highway signage.

In 2023, Nucor announced it will build two new manufacturing locations to expand NTS
adjacent to Nucor's existing steel mills in Decatur, Alabama and Crawfordsville, Indiana.

Raw materials segment

In the raw materials segment, Nucor produces DRI and, through our DJJ subsidiary, brokers ferrous
and nonferrous metals, pig iron, HBI and DRI; supplies ferro-alloys; and processes ferrous and
nonferrous scrap metal. The raw materials segment also includes our natural gas production operations
and our industrial gas business, Universal Industrial Gases. Nucor’s raw materials investments are
focused on creating an advantage for its steelmaking operations, through a global information network
and a multi-pronged and flexible approach to raw materials supply.

Scrap recycling and brokerage operations - DJJ operates six regional scrap recycling
companies across the United States that together have shredders capable of processing
approximately 5,878,000 tons of ferrous scrap annually. DJJ’s scrap recycling operations use
expertise and technology to maximize metal recovery and minimize waste.

DJJ is the leading broker of ferrous scrap in North America and is a global trader of scrap
metal, pig iron and other metallics. In addition to sourcing steel scrap for Nucor’'s mills, DJJ is
a global trader of ferro-alloys and nonferrous metals. DJJ’s logistics team owns and operates
one of the largest independent fleets of railcars in the United States dedicated to the
movement of scrap and steel and also offers railcar leasing and railcar fleet management
services. These activities have value to Nucor as the leading and most diversified North
American steel producer.

Our primary external customers for ferrous scrap are EAF steel mills and foundries that use
ferrous scrap as a raw material in their manufacturing process. External customers purchasing
nonferrous scrap metal include aluminum can producers, secondary aluminum smelters, steel
mills, and other processors and consumers of various nonferrous metals. We market scrap
metal products and related services to our external customers through in-house sales forces.
In 2023, approximately 8% of the ferrous and nonferrous metals and scrap substitute tons we
brokered and processed were sold to external customers. We consumed the balance in our
steel mills.

Direct reduced iron operations - DRI is a substitute material for high-quality grades of scrap
and pig iron. Nucor operates two DRI plants which supplied approximately 3,350,000 metric
tons of material with world-class metallization rates and carbon content to our steel mills in
2023. Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nu-lron Unlimited, is located in Trinidad and benefits
from a low-cost supply of natural gas and favorable logistics for inbound iron ore and shipment
of DRI to the United States. Nucor’s second DRI plant in Louisiana also benefits from
favorable logistics and proximity to its steel mill customers.

Nucor’s DRI production and brokering capabilities provide our steel mills flexibility to quickly
adjust their metallic input mix to changing market conditions, enabling them to maintain
competitiveness in the often-volatile ferrous scrap market. With the potential for high-quality
scrap to become scarcer, coupled with the risk of third-party supplier disruptions, Nucor’s DRI
facilities provide a greater degree of certainty over metallics supply to its steel mills.



. Natural gas production programs - Nucor owns operating wells and leasehold interests in
natural gas properties in the South Piceance Basin in the Western Slope of Colorado.

Nucor’s access to a long-term, low-cost supply of natural gas is a component in the execution
of Nucor’'s raw material strategy. Natural gas produced by Nucor’s production operations is
sold to third parties to partially offset our exposure to changes in the price of natural gas
consumed by our DRI plant in Louisiana and our steel mills in the United States.

o Process Gases — Universal Industrial Gases ("UIG") provides the capability to build and
operate our own air separation units to serve our steel mills, providing us with an alternative to
long term service contracts with outside providers. Where economies of scale and regional
market conditions warrant, we can also sell excess output from these plants on a merchant
basis. As of December 31, 2023, Nucor had six industrial gas plants operating, and eight
others at various stages of commissioning, construction, or planning.

Customers and Markets

We have a diverse customer base and are not dependent on any single customer. Our largest
single customer in 2023 represented approximately 5% of sales and consistently pays within terms. Our
steel mills use a significant portion of the products of the raw materials segment while our steel products
segment uses approximately 20% of our steel mills' output.

We believe that nonresidential construction is the largest end-use market that we serve. Products
from our steel mills and steel products segments are used in a variety of nonresidential construction
applications (e.g., commercial, industrial and infrastructure).

In recent years, we have come to see our EAF-based steelmaking method, with its lower GHG
intensity when compared with blast furnace technology that is reliant on mined or extracted virgin iron ore
and coking coal, as a competitive advantage for reasons beyond its flexible, highly variable cost base.
Customers are expressing greater concern for the GHG emissions in their supply chains and are
prioritizing sourcing their steel requirements from EAF-based steelmakers for incorporation into their
projects and products.

We have developed branded product lines to leverage this, and other advantages conferred by our
specialized capabilities:

o Our AEOS™ line of high-strength, low-alloy steel beams is one such example. AEOS™'’s
benefits are increasingly recognized by Nucor’s customers in the construction sector. These
include savings in terms of construction time, weight, space and overall environmental impact.

. Our ECONIQ™ line of net zero carbon steel is another example. We launched ECONIQ™
during 2021 and have found interest from customers in both the automotive and construction
end-use markets. These are the two largest end-use markets for steel in the United States.

. Our Elcyon™ line of sustainable heavy gauge steel plate product will be made specifically for
America’s wind energy producers. We launched Elcyon™ in January 2023 and plan to
manufacture this product at our new plate mill in Brandenburg, Kentucky.

We have also invested in people and processes to organize more of our commercial activities
around large customers and end-use markets (e.g., automotive, construction, wind energy and solar
energy). We have developed dedicated teams tasked with developing relationships and educating
decision makers in these sectors.

General Development of Qur Business in Recent Years

Consistent with our strategy to Grow the Core, Expand Beyond and Live our Culture, Nucor has
invested significant capital in recent years to expand our product portfolio to include more value-added



steel mill products and capabilities, improve our cost structure, enhance our operational flexibility and
increase our exposure to markets with attractive growth prospects, such as data centers and renewable
energy. These investments totaled approximately $10.92 billion over the last three years, with
approximately 54% going to capital expenditures and the remainder going to acquisitions. We believe that
these investments will help us deliver higher returns on invested capital and long-term growth. Further,
we believe shifting our product mix to a greater proportion of value-added products will make our overall
business less volatile.

In our steel mills segment, Nucor has initiated several new capital projects and an acquisition of a
majority ownership position of a steel mill to support our expansion of value-added product offerings and
cost-reduction strategies.

Nucor has completed construction of its approximately $650 million investment to modernize
and expand the production capability at its Gallatin flat-rolled sheet mill located in Ghent,
Kentucky. The project increased the production capability of the mill from approximately
1,600,000 tons to approximately 2,800,000 tons annually. This enables the Gallatin mill to cast
new, thicker slabs and wider coils, expanding our product capabilities so that we can serve
new markets, such as API (American Petroleum Institute) grade pipelines and new
opportunities in the heavy equipment sector.

Nucor has completed construction of its approximately $1.70 billion state-of-the-art plate mill in
Brandenburg, Kentucky on the Ohio River. The new plate mill rolled its first plate in December
2022 and completed final commissioning and began shipping tons to customers in the first
quarter of 2023. Nucor Steel Brandenburg is still in its ramp-up phase and we estimate that the
mill will ship approximately 500,000 tons in 2024. We expect the mill to be capable of
producing approximately 1,200,000 tons per year of steel plate products. With the capability to
manufacture nearly all the different types of plate products consumed in the United States, we
believe this mill will position Nucor as the supplier of choice in the domestic plate market. We
expect domestic demand for steel plate to grow in the coming years as wind farms are
permitted and developed with increasing frequency. Steel plate is essential to constructing
onshore and offshore wind towers, as is steel rebar.

In January 2022, Nucor announced that its new state-of-the-art sheet mill will be located in
Mason County, West Virginia. The project is estimated at a net cost of $3.1 billion, which is net
of $275 million in cash proceeds received from the State of West Virginia for costs related to
the site location. Construction of the new sheet mill began in the third quarter of 2023 after
receiving all the necessary permits, and is expected to take two to three years to complete.

Nucor Steel West Virginia (“NSWV”) is expected to have an annual production capacity of
approximately 3,000,000 tons. The new mill will be equipped to produce 84-inch sheet
products, and among other features, will include a 76-inch tandem cold mill and two
galvanizing lines. Galvanizing capabilities will include an advanced high-end automotive line
with full inspection capabilities as well as a construction-grade line. In addition to its advanced
capabilities and strategic location, the new greenfield mill’'s product mix is anticipated to have a
significantly lower GHG intensity than blast furnace based competitors who have historically
supplied the region.

In February 2022, Nucor completed its acquisition of a majority ownership position in California
Steel Industries, Inc. (“CSI”) by purchasing a 50% equity ownership interest from a subsidiary
of Vale S.A. (Vale) for a cash purchase price of $400 million, adjusted for net debt and working
capital at closing, as well as a 1% equity ownership stake from JFE. CSl is a flat-rolled steel
converter based in Fontana, California.

Our acquisition of CSI expanded the reach of Nucor’s sheet mill group to the west coast of the
United States and increased our exposure to more value-added sheet steel. CSl’'s product
capabilities include hot rolled, pickled and oiled, cold rolled and galvanized sheet steels, as
well as electric resistance welded pipe. Its annual capacity is approximately 2,000,000 tons.



. In April 2022, Nucor announced that it will build its new rebar micro mill, with spooling
capabilities, in Lexington, North Carolina. This will be Nucor's third rebar micro mill, joining its
existing micro mills in Missouri and Florida. We expect this $350 million investment to have an
annual capacity of approximately 430,000 tons and we expect it to be in operation in 2024.

These mills are referred to as micro mills because they have a smaller operational footprint
than our traditional rebar mills, as well as less productive capacity — typically about 400,000
tons per year. This makes them suitable for regional markets and enables us to serve these
markets with a logistics cost advantage relative to competitors operating from further away.
Micro mills also have a lower environmental footprint due to their smaller size and the fact that
their plant design does not typically include a natural gas fired reheat furnace that is common
in many steel mills.

Nucor has made strategic acquisitions in the steel products segment over the last three years.
These were largely to further the Expand Beyond component of our strategy.

) In August 2021, Nucor acquired the assets of the IMP business of Cornerstone for a cash
purchase price of approximately $1.0 billion. The acquired IMP business is comprised of two
industry leading brands, CENTRIA and Metl-Span. The brands are now part of the Nucor
Insulated Panel group, which also includes the Company's initial IMP business, TrueCore.

We believe this acquisition has broadened the value-added solutions that the Nucor Buildings
group provides to targeted end markets such as warehousing, distribution and data centers.
We expect these end-use markets to continue to grow in the coming years and that the use of
IMP products within them will also increase. IMPs facilitate cost-effective climate control in the
built environment and reduce energy usage and overall operations-related GHG emissions for
owners and lessees.

. In August 2021, Nucor acquired Hannibal, now known as Nucor Warehouse Systems, for $370
million. Hannibal was a leading national provider of racking solutions to warehouses and
serves the e-commerce, industrial, food storage and retail segments. Hannibal has
manufacturing facilities in Los Angeles and Houston, as well as three distribution centers. It
utilizes sheet and bar steel, as well as steel decking, wire deck and fasteners to produce its
racking solutions, providing potential supply chain efficiencies with other Nucor businesses. In
addition to manufacturing racking solutions, Hannibal works closely with customers during the
construction and design phases of a warehouse build-out by offering turn-key services such as
installation, procurement and facility integration. Hannibal also provides retrofit services to
support customers’ efforts to modernize and/or repurpose existing facilities.

In April 2022, Nucor expanded its steel racking capabilities by acquiring Elite Storage
Solutions for $75 million. This acquisition combined with Nucor’s initial steel racking business,
Hannibal, form the NWS group.

. In June 2022, Nucor completed the largest acquisition in its history with the purchase of CHI
for approximately $3 billion. CHI is a leading manufacturer of overhead doors for residential
and commercial markets in the United States and Canada. Commercial overhead doors are
used in warehousing and retail, areas that Nucor has focused its attention on recently through
other value-added products such as insulated metal panels and steel racking solutions. It is
expected that the CHI acquisition also will benefit from supply chain efficiencies due to Nucor’s
paint line investments at its Hickman, Arkansas and Crawfordsville, Indiana sheet mills.

CHI has approximately 800 teammates across two manufacturing plants in Arthur, lllinois, and
Terre Haute, Indiana, and regional warehouses located in California, Colorado, New
Hampshire and New Jersey. With a highly diversified national customer network of
professional garage door dealers, CHI is able to maintain minimal inventory levels and realize
industry-leading fulfillment times, while providing direct delivery to customers.



Capital Allocation Strateqy

Our highest capital allocation priority is to invest in our business for profitable long-term growth
through our multi-pronged strategy of optimizing existing operations, greenfield expansions and
acquisitions.

Our second priority is to return capital to our stockholders through cash dividends and share
repurchases. Nucor has paid $1.53 billion in dividends to its stockholders during the past three years.
That dividend payout represents 7% of cash flows from operations during that three-year period. The
Company repurchased $1.55 billion of its common stock in 2023 ($2.76 billion in 2022 and $3.28 billion in
2021).

We intend to return at least 40% of our net income to stockholders over time via a combination of
both cash dividends and share repurchases. Over the past three years, we have returned approximately
48% of our net income in this manner. At December 31, 2023, the Company had approximately $3.32
billion available for share repurchases under the currently authorized share repurchase program.

We intend to execute on our capital allocation strategy while maintaining a strong balance sheet,
with relatively low financial leverage, as measured in terms of debt to total capital, as well as ample
liquidity. At year-end 2023, our debt to total capital was approximately 24% and we had cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents on hand of $7.13 billion. At
the end of 2023, Nucor had the strongest credit ratings in the North American steel sector (A-/A-/Baa1)
with stable outlooks at Standard & Poor’s, Fitch Ratings and Moody’s.

Competition

We compete in a variety of steel and metal markets, including markets for finished steel products,
unfinished steel products and raw materials. These markets are highly competitive with many domestic
and foreign firms participating, and, as a result of this highly competitive environment, we find that we
primarily compete on price and service.

In our steel mills segment, our EAF steel mills face many different forms of competition, including
domestic integrated steel producers (who use iron ore converted into liquid form in a blast furnace as their
basic raw material instead of scrap steel), other domestic EAF steel mills, steel imports and alternative
materials. Large domestic integrated steel producers have the ability to manufacture a variety of products
but face significantly higher energy costs and are often burdened with higher capital and fixed operating
costs. EAF-based steel producers, such as Nucor, are sensitive to increases in scrap prices but tend to
have lower capital and fixed operating costs compared with large integrated steel producers. EAF-based
steel producers also typically emit fewer GHGs per ton of steel produced than integrated steel producers.

Global steel production overcapacity continues to be an ongoing risk to Nucor and the entire steel
industry. The Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development ( the “OECD”) estimated that
global steel production overcapacity would grow from approximately 556.1 million metric tons in 2022 to
approximately 610.8 million tons in 2023, with additional global capacity coming online and economic
uncertainty in some parts of the world, particularly China, impacting steel demand. An OECD report states
that in Asia, 75 percent of the new capacity coming online between 2024 and 2026 will utilize blast
furnace technology. Other regions of the world are not expected to see new blast furnace projects in
those years. Adding additional blast furnace capacity will increase carbon emissions. See 'ltem 1A. Risk
Factors- Industry Specific Risk Factors" for further discussion of overcapacity risks.

China continues to be the largest steel producing country. In 2023, despite much slower
economic growth and a continuing downturn in its property market, China still produced more than one
billion tons of steel, near its all-time record, accounting for approximately 54% of all steel produced
globally.

10



Circumvention of trade duties also continues to pose a risk. Besides producing over a billion tons of
steel in its own country, China is investing heavily in steel production in other countries which is one way
it tries to avoid being subject to trade duties on exports to the U.S. market. According to the OECD,
Chinese steel companies will account for 65% of cross-border investments or joint venture investments in
2023 or later and will account for more than 80% of the investment in new steelmaking capacity in
southeast Asian countries.

The Section 232 steel tariffs enacted in 2018 and successful trade cases have been effective in
keeping unfairly traded imports out of the U.S. market. The U.S. government has reached agreements
with several allied countries to replace applicable Section 232 tariffs on steel with quota systems or other
trade agreements.

The U.S. and European Union are also negotiating the world’s first carbon-based sectoral
arrangement, the Global Arrangement on Sustainable Steel and Aluminum, that will restrict access to
their markets for higher-emitting steel imports and countries that dump cheap imports. Other countries will
be able to join if they meet criteria for restoring market orientation and reducing trade in high-carbon steel
and aluminum products. At the end of 2023, the U.S. and EU agreed to extend both the negotiations and
existing tariff rate quotas into 2025.

During 2023, sunset review hearings by the U.S. International Trade Commission kept in place
antidumping (AD) and countervailing duties (CVD) orders on cut-to-length steel plate from several
countries. Trade remedy orders such as these play a key role in allowing the American steel industry to
compete on a level playing field against unfairly traded imports, and recent sunset reviews have left the
orders almost entirely in place. Sunset reviews are typically held with respect to specific exporters and
products every five years.

In December of 2022, the World Trade Organization (WTO) ruled that the Section 232 tariffs
violated U.S. WTO commitments. The U.S. government has appealed the ruling. Imports of finished steel
in 2023 were down approximately 14% from 2022 levels and finished steel imports accounted for
approximately 21% of U.S. market share.

We also experience competition from other materials. Depending on our customers’ end use of our
products, there are often other materials, such as concrete, aluminum, plastics, composites and wood
that compete with our steel products. When the price of steel relative to other raw materials rises, these
alternatives can become more attractive to our customers.

In our steel products segment we manufacture a wide range of products that primarily have
construction applications. In each of our product lines, we face competition from well capitalized domestic
and international providers offering similar products and services. We compete on price, service (e.g.,
consulting on engineering requirements, facilitating logistics, and timeliness of order fulfillment) and
quality (e.g., reliably producing to exacting custom specifications). We believe we have established a
reputation as a market leader who can consistently meet customer needs for these products in a timely
manner due to our nationwide footprint of modern production facilities and entrepreneurial, performance
driven culture.

Competition in our scrap and raw materials business is also vigorous. The scrap metals market
consists of many firms and is highly fragmented. Firms typically compete on price and geographic
proximity to the sources of scrap metal.

Backlog

In the steel mills segment, Nucor’s backlog of orders was approximately $3.27 billion and $2.33
billion at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Order backlog for the steel mills segment includes
only orders from external customers and excludes orders from other Nucor businesses. Nucor’s backlog
of orders in the steel products segment was approximately $4.97 billion and $6.65 billion at December 31,
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2023 and 2022, respectively. The majority of these orders are expected to be filled within one year. Order
backlog within our raw materials segment is not meaningful because the vast majority of the raw materials
that segment produces are used internally.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

An ample supply of high-quality scrap and scrap substitutes is critical to support Nucor’s ability to
produce high-quality steel. The goal of Nucor’s raw materials segment is to safely produce, source, trade
and transport steelmaking raw materials. Nucor’'s raw materials investments are focused on creating an
advantage for our steelmaking operations, through a global information network and flexible approach to
metallics supply.

Scrap and scrap substitutes are the most significant element in the total cost of steel production.
The average cost of scrap and scrap substitutes used in our steel mills segment decreased approximately
14% from $492 per gross ton used in 2022 to $421 per gross ton used in 2023. On average, it takes
approximately 1.1 tons of scrap and scrap substitutes to produce one ton of steel. We employ variable
steel pricing mechanisms so that we are better able to maintain operating margins and meet our
customer commitments as scrap and scrap substitute costs fluctuate.

Nucor remains focused on securing reliable access to low-cost raw material inputs as they are the
Company’s largest expense. We believe Nucor’s broad, balanced supply chain is an important strength
which allows us to reduce the cost of our steelmaking operations, create a shorter supply chain and have
greater control over our metallic inputs. Our investment in DRI production facilities and scrap yards, as
well as our access to international raw materials markets, provides Nucor with significant flexibility in
optimizing our raw material mix. Additionally, having a significant portion of our raw materials supply
under our control minimizes risk associated with the global sourcing of raw materials, particularly since a
good deal of scrap substitutes comes from regions of the world that have historically experienced greater
political turmoil, such as Ukraine, Russia and Brazil. We believe the continued successful implementation
of our raw material strategy, including key investments in DRI production, as well as in the scrap
brokerage and processing services performed by our team at DJJ, gives us greater control over our
metallic inputs and thus helps us navigate significant fluctuations in the availability and costs of critical
inputs.

DJJ acquires ferrous scrap from numerous sources, including manufacturers of products made from
steel, industrial plants, scrap dealers, peddlers, auto wreckers and demolition firms. In recent years, we
have developed closed loop recycling programs with some of our larger customers, through which we are
able to reliably source more high purity prime scrap while reducing the waste inherent in our customers’
operations.

We purchase pig iron as needed primarily from overseas sources. We received over 1,600,000
gross tons of pig iron in 2023. Our DRI plants in Trinidad and Louisiana supplied approximately 3,350,000
metric tons of DRI to our steel mills in 2023. The primary raw material for our DRI facilities is pelletized
iron ore, which we purchase from various international suppliers.

The primary raw material for our steel products segment is steel produced by Nucor’s steel mills.

Energy Consumption and Costs

Steel manufacturing is considered an energy-intensive, trade exposed industry. As a result, we
continuously strive to make our operations in all three of our business segments more energy efficient. In
addition, we proactively engage with suppliers, regulators and other energy industry participants to
ensure the continued domestic availability of reliable, low-cost sources of energy in various forms.

Our steelmaking operations utilize EAFs for 100% of their production. The total energy consumed
by Nucor includes electricity, natural gas, oxygen and carbon raw material inputs. For the scrap melting
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process, electricity is the primary energy source, with natural gas combustion serving as the fuel for
reheat furnaces and other pre-heating operations. Our DRI facilities in Trinidad and Louisiana are also
large consumers of natural gas.

The availability and prices of electricity and natural gas are influenced by many factors, including
changes in supply and demand, the regulatory environment and pipeline/transmission infrastructure.

We use a variety of strategies to manage our exposure to price risk of natural gas, including
financial hedges and physical hedges resulting from our owned natural gas drilling operations. In addition
to the currently producing wells in the Piceance Basin, Nucor owns leasehold interests in natural gas
properties in the South Piceance Basin, in the Western Slope of Colorado. To support Nucor’s operating
wells and potential future well developments on these properties, Nucor has entered into long-term
agreements directly with third-party gathering and processing service providers. Natural gas produced by
Nucor’s drilling operations is sold to partially offset our exposure to changes in the price of natural gas
consumed by our DRI plant in Louisiana, and by our steel mills in the United States. Nucor has full
discretion on its participation in all future drilling capital investments, however, in the fourth quarter of
2022 we decided that it is unlikely that we will develop the remaining portions of our unproved oil and
natural gas properties.

We closely monitor developments in public policy relating to energy production and consumption.
We engage with policymakers to provide technical information that can inform policy decisions and avoid
unintended adverse consequences of legislative and regulatory actions. We believe that a thoughtful
approach to domestic energy policy can help ensure that steel and steel products manufactured in the
United States remain competitive in the global marketplace.

Reducing Greenhouse Gas Emissions

While steel is widely understood to be essential in any modern economy, and is increasingly seen
as a critical material for addressing challenges associated with climate change, the sector also has
received increased attention for its GHG emissions and their potential contribution to climate change.

As the leading U.S. supplier of numerous essential steel products using primarily recycled ferrous
scrap metal, we believe we are in a competitively advantageous position. Our circular production process
has one third the greenhouse gas emissions intensity of the average traditional extractive steelmaking
process using a blast furnace.

We are committed to further reducing our GHG footprint over time. In November 2023, we
announced net-zero, science-based greenhouse gas (GHG) targets for 2050 and established a new
interim emissions reduction target for 2030. These new GHG intensity targets are defined by the Global
Steel Climate Council’'s (GSCC) “Steel Climate Standard”, an ambitious standard that is aligned with both
the Paris Climate Agreement’s emission reduction goals for the steel sector by 2050, and the
International Energy Agency’s “Net Zero by 2050: A Roadmap for the Global Energy System” glidepath.

Nucor’s net-zero 2050 and interim 2030 targets include scopes 1, 2, and 3 emissions from the
production of hot rolled steel as defined by the GSCC, making Nucor the first diversified steelmaker in the
U.S. to set GHG reduction targets encompassing all three scopes.

We plan to achieve our goals by increasing the use of clean electricity, deploying carbon capture
and sequestration where practical and developing near zero GHG ironmaking technologies, as well as
through the development and deployment of technologies enabling us to reduce our consumption of
injection and charge carbon and natural gas.
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Clean Electricity Initiatives

GHG emissions associated with our consumption of electrical power constitute approximately 21%
of our current footprint.

We have invested in two companies developing next generation nuclear power technology, and we
are exploring ways in which we can work with these companies and with our electric utility partners to
accelerate deployment of these technologies on the regional power grids serving our operations, as they
mature and become scalable.

Currently, we are a party to two Power Purchase Agreements (“PPAs”). Under these PPAs, we
have agreed to purchase for a fixed price output from one solar and one wind project in the United States.
The PPAs are structured for monthly financial settlement. We have undertaken these initiatives to support
the ongoing transition of the U.S. power grid to a greater reliance on renewable power. As part of these
arrangements, we will also receive Renewable Energy Credits (“RECs”) commensurate with the
renewable power we purchase. These RECs can be applied against a portion of our GHG emissions,
enabling us to receive credit for reducing them. The pay-fixed, receive-floating nature of this arrangement
also offsets a portion of our exposure to higher prices for electricity over the life of the contract. We
continue to evaluate and consider similar additional transactions, as well as opportunities to deploy
renewable power generation and storage assets on site at our facilities.

Carbon Capture and Sequestration (CCS) Activity

In 2023, we signed an agreement with Exxon Mobil to capture, transport, and store carbon from our
DRI plant in Convent, Louisiana. ExxonMobil will capture between 600,000 and 800,000 metric tons per
year of CO, from our DRI plant and store the CO, at an ExxonMobil-owned facility in Louisiana. We
expect start-up in 2026. ExxonMobil will receive the related tax credits and pay us a fee for each ton of
CO, we supply.

Near Zero Ironmaking

We have invested in Electra, a company that is working to develop and scale a process to produce
carbon-free iron that can be used to make steel. Electra’s technology relies on intermittent, clean energy
to refine low-grade iron ores through electrochemical and hydrometallurgical processes. Electra’s process
operates at 60°C and removes critical impurities from low-grade ores to produce high purity iron that can
be charged directly into EAF steelmaking. Electra’s technology is unproven at scale at this stage.

We have entered into a partnership with Tata Steel to explore the possibility of scaling and
commercializing Hlsarna, a technology that enables the production of iron from low grade iron ore fines
without using coke ovens. Coke ovens consume bituminous coal at high temperature to make coke, an
essential ingredient for producing iron in a blast furnace. Both coke ovens and blast furnaces are GHG
emissions intensive. While the Hlsarna process produces GHG emissions, its CO, rich waste gas stream
can be more readily captured and sequestered. HISarna also produces a slag co-product that has high
value for use in the cement industry.
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Government Regulations

Our business operations are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations, the
most significant of which are intended to protect our teammates and the environment. Due to the nature
of the steel industry, we are subject to substantial regulations related to safety in the workplace. In
addition to the requirements of the state and local governments of the communities in which we operate,
we must comply with federal health and safety regulations and environmental regulations, the most
significant of which are enforced by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) and the
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"). Safety and environmental stewardship are important values to
Nucor. We expect that capital expenditures we will direct toward our efforts in these areas will total
approximately $280 million in 2024.

Nucor operates a robust and sustainable environmental program that incorporates the concept of
each individual teammate, as well as management, being responsible for environmental performance. All
steel mills that have been owned and operated by Nucor for over five years are ISO 14001 certified.
Achieving ISO 14001 certification requires Nucor’s steel mills to implement an environmental
management system with measurable targets and objectives, such as reducing the use of oil and grease
and minimizing electricity use.

The principal federal environmental laws that regulate our business include the Clean Air Act (the
“CAA”), which regulates air emissions; the Clean Water Act (the “CWA”), which regulates water
withdrawals and discharges; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (the “RCRA”), which
addresses solid and hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal; and the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (the “CERCLA”), which governs releases of
hazardous substances, and remediation of contaminated sites. Our operations are also subject to state
and local environmental laws and regulations.

As it relates to air emission rates, EAFs are the most efficient and cleanest steel making process
commercially available today. In comparison to blast furnaces, EAF emissions of sulfur oxides, particulate
matter and GHGs per ton of steel are significantly less than integrated steelmaking operations utilizing
blast furnaces. Operating EAFs instead of blast furnaces is a proven air quality improvement strategy. In
addition, each of our steel mills operates air pollution control devices (baghouses) to collect and capture
particulate emissions (“EAF dust”) from the steelmaking process.

The primary raw material of Nucor’s steelmaking operations is scrap metal. The process of recycling
scrap metal generates particulate matter emissions that includes contaminants such as paint, zinc, lead,
chrome and other metals. Initially, the particulate matter captured and collected is classified as a listed
hazardous waste under the RCRA. However, because these contaminants contain valuable metals, the
EAF dust is recycled to recover these metals. Nucor sends all but a small fraction of the EAF dust it
collects to recycling facilities that recover the zinc, lead, chrome and other valuable metals from this dust.

In addition to recycling EAF dust, Nucor mills beneficially reuse steel slag in road materials as a
granular base, embankments, engineered fill, highway shoulders, and hot mix asphalt pavement. The
physical, chemical, mechanical and thermal properties of steel slag provide a vital resource for
construction companies and activities. We take considerable pride in our recycling efforts.

Not only does the RCRA establish standards for the management of solid and hazardous wastes,
the RCRA also addresses the environmental impact of contamination from waste disposal activities and
from recycling and storage of most wastes. Periodically, past waste disposal activities that were legal
when conducted that may now pose a contamination threat are discovered. When the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency determines these off-site properties are contaminated, Nucor quickly evaluates such
claims and, if Nucor is determined to be responsible, we do our part to remediate our share of such
issues. Nucor believes all identified liabilities under the RCRA are either currently being resolved or have
been fully resolved.
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Nucor is also not presently considered a major contributor to any major cleanups under the
CERCLA for which Nucor has been named a potentially responsible party. Nucor regularly evaluates
these types of potential liabilities and, if appropriate, maintains reserves appropriate to remediate the
identified liabilities. Under the RCRA, private citizens may also bring an action against the operator of a
regulated facility for potential damages and payment of cleanup costs. Nucor believes that its system of
internal evaluation and due diligence provides reasonable assurance as to these types of potential
liabilities so that compliance with these regulations will not have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations, cash flows or financial condition beyond that already reflected in the reserves established
for them.

To protect water resources, the CWA regulates water withdrawals and discharges. When
applicable, Nucor maintains water withdrawal and discharge permits at its facilities under the national
pollutant discharge elimination system program of the CWA and conducts its operations in compliance
with those permits. Nucor also maintains permits from local governments if the facility discharges into
publicly owned treatment works.

Capital expenditures at our existing facilities that are associated with environmental regulation
compliance for 2023 and 2024 are estimated to be less than $100 million per year.
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Human Capital Resources

Culture, Organization and Compensation

We consider our teammates the most important part of Nucor and believe that our culture—and the
encouragement that we provide to our teammates to “grow the core; expand beyond; and live our culture”
—provides us with a competitive advantage.

While our business strategy shapes "what we do", our culture shapes "how" we go about doing it.
We believe adherence to the key tenets of our culture — safety, integrity, trust, innovation, open
communication, teamwork, inclusion, courage, can-do attitude and ownership — is a powerful
differentiator for Nucor and positions the Company favorably to deliver ongoing stockholder value to our
investors.

THE NUCOR WAY

SAFETY

INTEGRITY

TRUST

INNOVATION

OPEN COMMUNICATION
TEAMWORK

INCLUSION

COURAGE

CAN-DO ATTITUDE

OWNERSHIP

Nucor has a streamlined organizational structure that allows our teammates to make quick
decisions and innovate. Our organization is also highly decentralized, with most day-to-day operating
decisions made by our division general managers and their teams. With approximately 32,000
teammates, fewer than 200 work in our principal executive offices in Charlotte, North Carolina. By
empowering our teammates, our goal is to foster an entrepreneurial mindset, along with a strong sense of
personal responsibility and a culture of accountability and belonging. This empowerment is reinforced by
our compensation policies (see discussion on “Pay for Performance” in Our Teammates - Compensation,
Training & Development section below) to drive results and contribute to our success.

Teammate input is essential for us to maintain our culture of empowered teammates enabling
efficient operational decisions. Aside from our practice of everyday open communication, we periodically
ask our teammates to formally provide feedback. Since 1986, we have asked our teammates to complete
a comprehensive survey in order to gather feedback on a range of topics, including matters relating to the
effectiveness of our culture. We view the survey as an important tool in continually improving our
company and ensuring our teammates remain engaged and satisfied. This survey is conducted every
three years, the last of which was conducted in 2022. In the most recent survey, 89% of the responses
were favorable in the category of “Satisfaction & Commitment.” The overall percentage of negative
responses in the most recent survey has dropped by 25 percentage points since the survey began in
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1986. The next survey will be conducted in the summer of 2025. Teammates of certain previously
acquired businesses — which accounted for approximately 15% of our workforce as of December 31,
2023 — complete a comparable survey that has also shown an improving trend over time.

Safety, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

One of Nucor’s core values is our teammates’ well-being and safety, and it is our goal to become
the safest steel company in the world. Our foremost responsibility is to work safely, which requires our
teammates to identify unsafe conditions and activities and mitigate these hazards. We will continue
working to eliminate exposures that can lead to injury and encourage our teammates to share their ideas
for safety improvement. Two key metrics Nucor uses to measure safety are: the Injury/lliness Rate and
Days Away, Restricted and Transfer (‘DART”) Case Rate.

Nucor calculates the annual Injury/lliness Rate by dividing the number of work-related injuries and
illnesses by the total number of hours worked by all Nucor teammates in a given year, and then
multiplying the resulting percentage by 200,000, the equivalent of 100 full-time employees working 40
hours per week, 50 weeks per year. In 2023, we achieved an annual Injury/lliness Rate of 0.79, which
marks the fifth consecutive year of a reduced rate. This marks an improvement over our annual
Injury/lliness Rate of 0.95 in 2022.

Nucor uses the DART Case Rate to assess and manage the risk of serious injury in the workplace.
Nucor calculates the annual DART Case Rate by dividing the number of cases resulting in days away
from work, restricted work activity and/or job transfers by the total number of hours worked by all Nucor
teammates in a given year, and then multiplying the resulting percentage by 200,000, the equivalent of
100 full-time employees working 40 hours per week, 50 weeks per year. In 2023, we achieved an annual
DART Case Rate of 0.36 (0.43 in 2022).

Since 1998, Nucor has used the President’s Safety Award to recognize divisions that achieve strong
records of safety performance based on objective metrics. The President’s Safety Award has the
following three levels: Platinum, which is awarded to divisions with zero recordable illnesses or injuries;
Gold, which is awarded to divisions that have an lliness/Injury Rate below 0.6 and a DART Case Rate
below one-third of the national average for their NAICS code; and Silver, which is awarded to divisions
that achieve one-third the national average on lliness/Injury Rate and DART Case Rate. In 2023, 31
divisions achieved the Platinum level award, 17 divisions achieved the Gold level award and 24 divisions
achieved the Silver level award. Nucor also has 24 OSHA Voluntary Protection Program Sites, OSHA’s
highest level of recognition.

In 2020, the Company introduced the Nucor President’s Safety Cup as a way to foster more safety
benchmarking throughout the Company. The President’s Safety Cup is an additional annual award that is
presented to the region that has the best safety record across all of Nucor. Not only does this reward a
facility for exceeding their individual safety goals, but it encourages our teams to innovate and to share
ideas and improve safety as a group. The President’s Safety Cup trophy travels among the mills and
divisions that make up the winning region.

We believe, however, that safety is about more than just avoiding injuries. At Nucor, safety means
making sure our teammates feel safe, welcome and valued when they come to work each day. We are
accelerating our diversity, equity and inclusion efforts with the objective of ensuring that each teammate
feels a sense of belonging at Nucor. By creating an inclusive workplace, we believe we will attract top
talent, foster innovation, increase a sense of empowerment and make Nucor a stronger company. Over
the past two years, approximately 31% of Nucor teammates hired or promoted to the Manager or General
Manager level were diverse.

Some of the initiatives focused on inclusion, equity and diversity we have launched include:

. Conducting focused discussion groups to share experiences of the workplace and the effects
of race and gender;
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. Taking feedback onboard to enhance training and development;
. Webcasts by diverse senior leaders sharing their career progression and life experiences
. Increasing focus and intensity of engagement with supportive external partners, such as:
o National Society of Black Engineers;
Society of Women Engineers;
National Society of Hispanic Professional Engineers;
INROADS (non-profit focused on addressing the lack of diversity in corporate America)

Tuskegee University; and

0O O O o o

Purdue University’s Women in Engineering Program and Minorities in Engineering
Program.

Our Teammates - Compensation, Training & Development

Nucor had approximately 32,000 teammates as of December 31, 2023. The vast majority of our
teammates are located in the United States, with only a small number of teammates located outside of
North America. Our operations are highly automated, allowing us to improve safety outcomes and take
advantage of lower employment costs while still providing our teammates with compensation that we
believe is highly competitive as compared to businesses in our industry. At Nucor, we believe in “Pay-for-
Performance.” Nucor teammates typically earn a significant part of their compensation based on their
productivity. Production teammates work under group incentives that provide increased earnings for
increased production. This additional incentive compensation is paid weekly in most cases. Nucor has
also historically contributed 10% of earnings before federal taxes to a profit sharing plan for the majority
of teammates below the officer level. We believe such compensation practices incentivize our workforce
and reinforce our culture.

While Nucor seeks to hire qualified and talented individuals as new teammates, we also believe in
developing the skills of our existing team by providing educational and on-the-job training, in addition to
safety training. Further, Nucor believes it is important for senior management to also be familiar with, and
have had direct experience running, Nucor’s mills and other operational divisions. The vast majority of our
teammates are not represented by labor unions and we believe our teammate turnover is low.

At Nucor, we believe that a diversity of perspectives and background helps to facilitate the “Nucor
Way” as we work to “grow the core; expand beyond; and live our culture.” We also believe that recruiting
and hiring the best talent available will continue to provide us with the best opportunity for continued
future success.

Policies

Nucor has a long history of conducting our businesses in a manner consistent with high standards
of social responsibility. We have adopted a comprehensive Human Rights Policy, which operates in
conjunction with many other Nucor policies related to ethical conduct and human rights, including our
Standards of Business Conduct and Ethics, Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Professionals, Supplier
Code of Conduct and Policy on Eliminating Forced Labor from our Supply Chain.

More information about our social strategies, including our most recent Equal Employment
Opportunity EEO-1 report, can be found at www.nucor.com/esg.
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Available Information

Nucor’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-
K, and any amendments to these reports, as well as proxy statements and other information, are
available on our website at www.nucor.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after Nucor files these
documents electronically with, or furnishes them to, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”).

We use the investor relations portion of our website, www.nucor.com/investors, to distribute
information, including as a means of disclosing material, non-public information and for complying with
our disclosure obligations under Regulation FD. We routinely post and make accessible financial and
other information regarding the Company on our website. Accordingly, investors should monitor the
investor relations portion of our website, in addition to our press releases, SEC filings and other public
communications. Except as otherwise expressly stated in these documents, the information contained on
our website or available by hyperlink from our website is not a part of this report and is not incorporated
into this report or any other documents we file with, or furnish to, the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Many of the factors that affect our business and operations involve risk and uncertainty. The factors
described below are some of the risks that could materially negatively affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Industry Specific Risk Factors

Overcapacity in the global steel industry could increase the level of steel imports, which may
negatively affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Global steel production overcapacity continues to be an ongoing risk to Nucor and the entire steel
industry. The OECD estimated that global steel production overcapacity would grow from approximately
556.1 million metric tons in 2022 to more than 600 million metric tons 2023, with additional capacity
expected to come online over the next few years. China continues to be a significant contributor to excess
steelmaking capacity, producing more than one billion tons of steel in each of the past four years, despite
slower economic growth. China is also investing in new steelmaking capacity in several countries in
southeast Asia and Africa.

During periods of global economic weakness, the effects of this overcapacity are amplified because
of weaker global demand for steel and steel products. Steel manufacturers in non-market economies tend
not to adjust their production levels in line with regional demand and instead export significant amounts of
steel and steel products at prices that can be at or below their costs of production. In countries with non-
market economies, the steel industry is often subsidized or owned in whole or in part by the government,
which can provide these producers with cost advantages or cause their production decisions to be driven
by political or social factors rather than price and demand signals. Surplus output from steel producers in
these countries can flow into the U.S. market. These imports to the U.S., which are also affected by
demand in the U.S. domestic market, international currency conversion rates, and domestic and
international government actions, can result in downward pressure on realized steel prices for Nucor,
which can materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.

In March 2018, the Trump Administration imposed a 25% tariff or quota limits on all imported steel
products for an indefinite period of time under Section 232 of the Trade Expansion Act. Since then both
the Trump and Biden Administrations have negotiated tariff rate quotas with several countries allowing
them to export a set amount of steel to the U.S. market without being subject to these Section 232 tariffs.
In December of 2022, the World Trade Organization (WTO) ruled that the Section 232 tariffs violated U.S.
WTO commitments. The U.S. government strongly disagrees with the ruling and is appealing. When the
Section 232 or other import tariffs, quotas or duties expire or if others are further relaxed or repealed, or if
relatively higher U.S. steel prices make it attractive for foreign steelmakers to export their steel products
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to the U.S., despite the presence of import tariffs, quotas or duties, the resurgence of substantial imports
of foreign steel could create downward pressure on U.S. steel prices.

Our business requires substantial capital investment and maintenance expenditures, and our capital
resources may not be adequate to provide for all of our cash requirements.

Our business requires substantial expenditures for routine maintenance and to remain competitive.
For the three-year period ended December 31, 2023, our total capital expenditures were approximately
$5.87 billion. We have also recently announced substantial capital projects that we expect will increase
production capacity, increase the efficiency of our operations and enhance our product offerings.
Although we expect requirements for our business needs, including the funding of capital expenditures,
debt service for financings and any contingencies, will be financed by internally generated funds, short-
term commercial paper issuances, offerings of our debt securities or from borrowings under our $1.75
billion unsecured revolving credit facility, we cannot guarantee that this will be the case. Additional
acquisitions, increases in interest rates or unforeseen events could require financing from additional
sources.

Changes in the availability and cost of electricity and natural gas are subject to volatile market
conditions that could adversely affect our business.

Our steel mills are large consumers of electricity and natural gas. In addition, our DRI facilities are
also large consumers of natural gas. We rely upon third parties for our supply of energy resources
consumed in the manufacture of our products. The prices for and availability of electricity and natural gas
can be volatile. They are often affected by weather, political, regulatory and economic factors beyond our
control, and we may be unable to raise the price of our products to offset increased energy costs.
Disruptions, including physical or information systems related issues, that impact the supply of our energy
resources could temporarily impair our ability to manufacture our products for our customers. Increases in
our energy costs that are not similarly applicable to our competitors' operations could materially adversely
affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Competition from other steel producers, imports or alternative materials may adversely affect our
business.

We face ongoing competition from other steel producers and imports that compete with our products
on price, quality and service. The markets for our products are highly competitive and a number of firms,
domestic and foreign, participate in the steel, steel products and raw materials markets. Depending on a
variety of factors, including the cost and availability of raw materials, energy, technology, labor,
transportation and capital costs, currency exchange rates, government subsidies of foreign steel
producers and other global political and economic factors, our business may be materially adversely
affected by more intense competitive forces.

In many applications, steel competes with other materials, such as concrete, aluminum, plastics,
composites and wood. Increased use or availability of these materials in substitution for steel products
could have a material adverse effect on prices and demand for our steel products.

Our industry is cyclical and both recessions and prolonged periods of slow economic growth could
have an adverse effect on our business.

Demand for most of our products is cyclical in nature and sensitive to general economic conditions.
Our business supports cyclical industries, such as the construction, energy, metals service centers,
appliance and automotive industries. As a result, downturns in the U.S. economy or any of these
industries could materially adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
The U.S. economy has experienced a strong recovery from the conditions experienced at the onset of the
COVID-19 pandemic, but related labor shortages and supply chain disruptions, new or proposed
legislation related to governmental spending, inflation and increases in interest rates have impacted, and
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will continue to impact, economic growth. Even with this economic recovery, challenges from global
production overcapacity in the steel industry and ongoing uncertainties, both in the United States and in
other regions of the world, remain.

We are unable to predict the duration of current economic conditions or the magnitude or timing of
changes in economic activity. Future economic downturns, prolonged slow growth or stagnation in the
economy, a sector-specific slowdown in one of our key end-use markets, such as nonresidential
construction, or changes in inflation could materially adversely affect our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows, especially in light of the capital-intensive nature of our business.

The results of our operations are sensitive to volatility in steel prices and the cost and availability of
raw materials, particularly scrap steel.

We rely to an extent on outside vendors to supply us with key consumables such as graphite
electrodes, alloys and other raw materials, including both scrap and scrap substitutes (e.g., prime scrap,
pig iron and DRI) that are critical to the manufacture of our steel products. The raw material required to
produce DRI is pelletized iron ore. Although we have vertically integrated our business by constructing
our DRI facilities in Trinidad and Louisiana and also by acquiring our scrap processing and brokerage
operations (“DJJ”) in 2008, we still must purchase most of our primary raw material, steel scrap, from
numerous other sources located throughout the United States and internationally. Although we believe
that the supply of scrap and scrap substitutes will remain adequate to operate our facilities, prices of
these critical raw materials are volatile and are influenced by changes in scrap exports in response to
changes in the scrap, scrap substitutes and iron ore demands of our global competitors, as well as
volatility in currency rates and political conditions.

At any given time, we may be unable to obtain an adequate supply of these critical raw materials
with price and other terms acceptable to us. The availability and prices of raw materials may also be
negatively affected by new laws and regulations, allocation by suppliers, interruptions in production,
accidents or natural disasters, war and other forms of armed conflict or political instability, changes in
exchange rates, worldwide price fluctuations, including due to global political and economic factors,
changes in governmental, business and consumer spending, inflation, increases in interest rates, labor
shortages, and the availability and cost of transportation. Many countries that export steel into our
markets restrict the export of scrap, protecting the supply chain of some foreign competitors. This trade
practice creates an artificial competitive advantage for foreign producers that could limit our ability to
compete in the U.S. market.

If our suppliers increase the prices of our critical raw materials, we may not have alternative sources
of supply. In addition, to the extent that we have quoted prices to our customers and accepted customer
orders for our products prior to purchasing necessary raw materials, we may be unable to raise the price
of our products to cover all or part of the increased cost of the raw materials or pass along increased
transportation costs. Also, if we are unable to obtain adequate, cost-effective and timely deliveries of our
required raw materials, we may be unable to timely manufacture sufficient quantities of our products. This
could cause us to lose sales, incur additional costs, experience margin compressions or suffer harm to
our reputation and customer relationships.

Our steelmaking processes, our DRI processes, and the manufacturing processes of many of our
suppliers, customers and competitors are energy intensive and generate carbon dioxide and other GHGs.
The regulation of these GHGs could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

Our operations are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the
protection of the environment, and, accordingly, we make provision in our financial statements for the
estimated costs of compliance. There are inherent uncertainties in these estimates. Most notably, the
uncertainty of policies, enforcement priorities, legislation and regulations related to climate change
mitigation strategies pose the greatest risk.
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As a carbon steel producer, Nucor could be increasingly affected both directly and indirectly by new
or changing carbon policy decisions and mandates. Carbon is an essential raw material in Nucor’s steel
production processes. Furthermore, Nucor steel mills use significant amounts of electricity as all of its
mills utilize EAFs for 100% of their steel melting operations and the decarbonization of electricity
generation may lead to high power costs and decreased reliability. Significant changes to the regional
power grids serving our steel mills and/or new rulemaking or legislation affecting the operation of these
power grids could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows.

Environmental regulation compliance and remediation could result in substantially increased costs
and materially adversely impact our competitive position.

We incur significant costs to achieve and maintain compliance with environmental regulations and
remediation obligations. The principal federal environmental laws include the CAA, which regulates air
emissions; the CWA which regulates water withdrawals and discharges; the RCRA, which addresses
solid and hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal; and the CERCLA, which governs releases of
hazardous substances, and remediation of contaminated sites. Our operations are also subject to state
and local environmental laws and regulations.

In addition to the above mentioned statutes, revisions to National Ambient Air Quality Standards,
including the implementation actions/decisions of environmental agencies, could make it significantly
more difficult to obtain construction permits and permits to expand existing operations. Resulting
cancellations, delays or unanticipated costs to these projects could negatively impact our ability to
generate expected returns on our investments. These regulations can also increase our cost of energy,
primarily electricity, which we use extensively in the steelmaking process. We may in the future incur
substantially increased costs complying with such regulations, particularly if federal regulatory agencies
were to change their enforcement posture with respect to such regulations.

Emerging customer preferences for greater product transparency and less GHG intensive materials
may put us at a competitive disadvantage or reduce demand for our products.

The federal government and numerous states are considering establishing, or have already
established, requirements for Environmental Product Declarations (“EPDs”) so that consumers may more
readily evaluate the environmental impacts of products. California has enacted the “Buy Clean California
Act” and California has also established Global Warming Potential benchmarks through EPDs for certain
materials, including certain steel products. EPD legislation has caused Nucor to incur additional costs and
has the potential to put Nucor and its customers at a disadvantage to foreign competitors unless
standardized mechanisms are used to fully evaluate products produced by foreign producers.

General Risk Factors

We are subject to information technology and cyber-security threats which could have an adverse
effect on our business and results of operations.

We utilize various information technology systems to efficiently address business functions ranging
from the operation of our production equipment to administrative computation to the storage of data such
as intellectual property and proprietary business information. We also utilize third-party service providers
for certain information technology services that are important to our operations. We continuously evaluate
our cyber-security systems and practices, assess potential threats, and improve our information
technology networks, policies and procedures to address potential vulnerabilities. Despite efforts to
assure secure and uninterrupted operations, threats from increasingly sophisticated cyber-attacks or
system failures could result in materially adverse operational disruptions or security breaches of our
systems or those of our third-party service providers. These risks could result in disclosure or destruction
of key proprietary information or personal data or reputational damage, theft of assets or trade secrets, or
could adversely affect our ability to physically produce or transport steel, resulting in lost revenues, as
well as delays in reporting our financial results. We also could be required to spend significant financial

23



and other resources to remedy the damage caused by a cyber-security breach, including to repair or
replace networks and information technology systems. We may also contend with potential liability for
stolen information, increased cyber-security protection costs, litigation expense and increased insurance
premiums.

Our operations are subject to business interruptions and casualty losses.

The steelmaking business is subject to numerous inherent risks, particularly unplanned events such
as explosions, fires, other accidents, natural disasters such as floods, hurricanes or earthquakes, critical
equipment failures, acts of terrorism, inclement weather and transportation interruptions. Nucor maintains
property insurance for these types of losses but self-insures a significant portion of the program.
Therefore, while our insurance coverage could offset a portion of the losses relating to some of those
types of events, our results of operations and cash flows could be adversely impacted to the extent that
any such losses are not covered by our insurance, or that there are significant delays in resolving our
claims with our insurance providers.

We acquire businesses and enter into joint ventures from time to time and we may encounter
difficulties in integrating businesses we acquire.

We plan to continue to seek attractive opportunities to acquire businesses, enter into joint ventures
and make other investments that strengthen Nucor. Realizing the anticipated benefits of acquisitions or
other transactions will depend on our ability to operate these businesses and integrate them with our
operations, effectively identify and manage risks, and cooperate with our strategic partners. Our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could be materially adversely affected if we are
unable to successfully integrate these businesses or otherwise fail to realize the anticipated benefits of
acquisitions or other transactions.

Risks associated with operating in international markets could adversely affect our business,
financial position and results of operations.

Certain of our businesses and investments are located outside of the United States, in Canada,
Mexico and in emerging markets. There are a number of risks inherent in doing business in or sourcing
raw materials from such markets. These risks include, but are not limited to: unfavorable political or
economic factors; local labor and social issues; changes in regulatory requirements; fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and inflation; and complex foreign laws, treaties including
tax laws, and the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977. These risks could restrict our ability to operate
our international businesses profitably and therefore have a negative impact on our financial position and
results of operations. In addition, our reported results of operations and financial position could also be
negatively affected by exchange rates when the activities and balances of our foreign operations are
translated into U.S. dollars for financial reporting purposes.

Pandemics, epidemics and other public health emergencies in the future, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our operations expose us to risks associated with pandemics, epidemics and other public health
emergencies. The COVID-19 pandemic had and any future similar events may have negative impacts on
our operations, supply chain, transportation networks and customers, which may compress our margins
or impact demand for our steel products, including as a result of preventative and precautionary
measures that we, other businesses and governments have taken or may take in the future.

In addition, the ability of our teammates and our suppliers’ and customers’ teammates to work may
be significantly impacted by these types of public health emergencies. Our customers may be directly
impacted by business interruptions or weak market conditions and may not be willing or able to fulfill their
contractual obligations. Furthermore, the progression of and global response to these types of public
health emergencies, as was the case with the COVID-19 pandemic, can cause and increase the risk of
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delays in construction activities and equipment deliveries related to our capital projects, including
potential delays in obtaining permits from government agencies, as well as changes in the prices and
availability of labor and equipment for capital projects.

The accounting treatment of equity method investments, goodwill and other long-lived assets could
result in future asset impairments, which would reduce our earnings.

We periodically test our equity method investments, goodwill and other long-lived assets to
determine whether their estimated fair value is less than their value recorded on our balance sheet. The
results of this testing for potential impairment may be adversely affected by uncertain market conditions
for the global steel industry, as well as changes in interest rates, commodity prices and general economic
conditions. If we determine that the fair value of any of these assets is less than the value recorded on
our balance sheet, and, in the case of equity method investments the decline is other than temporary, we
would likely incur a non-cash impairment loss that would negatively impact our results of operations.

Tax increases and changes in tax laws and regulations or exposure to additional tax liabilities could
adversely affect our financial results.

The steel industry and our business are sensitive to changes in taxes. As a company based in the
United States, Nucor is more exposed to the effects of changes in U.S. tax laws than some of our major
competitors. Our provision for income taxes and cash tax liability in the future could be adversely affected
by changes in U.S. tax laws.

Nucor recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are believed to be more
likely than not of being sustained. We cannot predict whether taxing authorities will conduct an audit
challenging any of our tax positions and there can be no assurance as to the outcome of any challenges.
If we are unsuccessful in any of these matters, we may be required to pay taxes for prior periods, interest,
fines or penalties.

We are subject to legal proceedings and legal compliance risks.

We spend substantial resources ensuring that we comply with domestic and foreign regulations,
contractual obligations and other legal standards. Notwithstanding this, we are subject to a variety of legal
proceedings and legal compliance risks in respect of various issues, including regulatory, safety,
environmental, employment, transportation, intellectual property, contractual, import/export, international
trade and governmental matters that arise in the course of our business and in our industry. For
information regarding our current significant legal proceedings, see “ltem 3. Legal Proceedings.” A
negative outcome in an unusual or significant legal proceeding or compliance investigation could
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. While we believe that we have adopted
appropriate risk management and compliance programs, the nature of our operations means that legal
compliance risks will continue to exist and additional legal proceedings and other contingencies, the
outcome of which cannot be predicted with certainty, will arise from time to time.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 1C. Cybersecurity

Nucor recognizes the importance of developing, implementing, and maintaining effective
cybersecurity measures designed to protect our information systems and the confidentiality, integrity, and
availability of our data. We face a number of information technology and cybersecurity threats which
could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.
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Notwithstanding the Company’s cybersecurity framework and preventative strategies, we may not
be successful in preventing or mitigating a cybersecurity incident that could have a material adverse
effect on us. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors” for a discussion of cybersecurity risks.

Risk Management and Strateqy

Overview

We have developed and implemented a cybersecurity risk management program that is intended
to enable us to assess, identify, and manage risk associated with cybersecurity threats. Our program is
based on the Cybersecurity Framework promulgated by the National Institute of Standards and
Technology and other applicable industry standards, and includes the following key elements:

. identification and assessment of cybersecurity threats based on internal and external
assessments and monitoring, information from internal stakeholders, and external publications
and resources such as those made available by the United States Cybersecurity and
Infrastructure Security Agency;

. technical and organizational safeguards designed to protect against identified threats,
including documented policies and procedures, technical controls, and employee education
and awareness;

. processes to detect the occurrence of cybersecurity events, and maintenance and regular
testing of incident response and recovery and business continuity plans and processes; and

. a third-party risk management process to manage cybersecurity risks associated with our
service providers, suppliers, and vendors.

The program is designed to foster a culture of cybersecurity risk management across the
Company.

Integrated Overall Risk Management

Assessing, identifying, and managing cybersecurity-related risks is integrated into our overall risk
management framework. The Company conducts an annual cybersecurity risk assessment and reports
the most significant risks and associated planned mitigation strategies to the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors. The annual risk assessment is carried out under the supervision of the President of
Nucor Business Technology, the Company’s Cybersecurity Director, and the Company’s Vice President
and Corporate Controller. See “Governance” below. The Board also regularly receives focused
presentations regarding cybersecurity risks from the Company’s Cybersecurity Director.

Third-Party Engagement

Due to the complexity and ever-changing nature of cybersecurity threats, Nucor engages a range
of external experts to assist in its assessment, identification, and management of risks from cybersecurity
threats. These include cybersecurity assessors, forensic and incident response experts, and auditors to
review the Company’s cybersecurity posture and responsive efforts. Our relationships with these external
partners enable us to leverage their expertise with the goal of maintaining best practices.

Oversight of Third-Party Risks

Our third-party service providers, suppliers, and vendors face their own risks from cybersecurity
threats that could impact Nucor in certain circumstances. In response, we have implemented processes
for overseeing and managing these risks. Those processes include limiting the exposure of our
information systems to external systems to the least practicable amount, assessing the third parties’
information security practices before allowing them to access our information systems or data, requiring
the third parties to implement appropriate cybersecurity controls in our agreements with them, and
conducting ongoing monitoring of their compliance with those requirements. We also utilize third-party risk
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and compliance monitoring services to monitor our service providers, suppliers, and vendors and to
augment the effectiveness of our risk mitigation efforts in this area.

Risks from Cybersecurity Threats

As of the date of this report, no risks from cybersecurity threats, including as a result of
cybersecurity incidents we have experienced in the past, have materially affected or are reasonably likely
to materially affect the Company, including its business strategy, results of operations, or financial
condition.

Governance

The Company seeks to ensure effective governance in managing risks associated with
cybersecurity threats, as more thoroughly described below.

Board of Directors Oversight

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for the oversight of risks from
cybersecurity threats. The Audit Committee is composed of directors with a wide range of experience,
including risk management and controls, and technology. See “Integrated Overall Risk Management”
above.

Management’s Role in Cybersecurity Risk Management

A division of the Company known as Nucor Business Technology, or NBT, is responsible for the
Company’s information technology needs, including cybersecurity risk assessment and management.
NBT’s cybersecurity function is led by the Cybersecurity Director, who reports to the President of NBT,
who in turn reports to the Company’s Chair, President, and Chief Executive Officer. The current
Cybersecurity Director has twenty years of experience in the cybersecurity field and has broad expertise
in cybersecurity threat assessments and detection, mitigation technologies, cybersecurity training, and
incident response.

The Company also has a Risk Committee composed of the following members of the Company’s
management:
o Executive Vice President, Business Services & General Counsel
. President, Nucor Business Technology
. Vice President and Corporate Controller
. Vice President and General Manager, Corporate Legal Affairs
. General Manager of Internal Audit
. Cybersecurity Director
. Manager of External Reporting
The Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s response to cybersecurity

incidents. The Risk Committee and the Chair, President, and Chief Executive Officer inform the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors on cybersecurity risks.

Monitoring of Cybersecurity Incidents

The Cybersecurity Director implements and oversees our processes for regularly monitoring our
information systems. This includes security measures and regular audits to identify potential issues. In the
event of a cybersecurity incident, we have an established incident response plan that requires prompt
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notification of the Cybersecurity Director or their designee, who in turn oversees our assessment of and
response to the incident. The Cybersecurity Director is also responsible for informing the Risk Committee
of cybersecurity incidents, which in turn has a detailed process for assessing the impacts of incidents and
monitoring the Company’s mitigation and remediation efforts. Depending on the nature of the incident,
this process also provides for escalating notification to senior executives, including the Chair, President,
and Chief Executive Officer and to the Board of Directors.
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Item 2. Properties

We own most of our principal operating facilities. These facilities, by segment, are as follows:

Approximate
square footage

Location of facilities Principal products
Steel mills:
Fontana, California 4,020,000 Flat-rolled steel
Hickman, Arkansas 2,740,000 Flat-rolled steel
Blytheville, Arkansas 2,700,000 Structural steel, sheet steel
Berkeley County, South Carolina 2,430,000 Flat-rolled steel, structural steel
Decatur, Alabama 2,000,000 Flat-rolled steel
Crawfordsville, Indiana 1,890,000 Flat-rolled steel
Norfolk, Nebraska 1,540,000 Steel shapes
Hertford County, North Carolina 1,350,000 Steel plate
Plymouth, Utah 1,290,000 Steel shapes
Ghent, Kentucky 1,260,000 Flat-rolled steel
Jewett, Texas 1,170,000 Steel shapes
Darlington, South Carolina 980,000 Steel shapes
Kankakee, lllinois 850,000 Steel shapes
Memphis, Tennessee 700,000 Steel shapes
Silao, Guanajuato, Mexico 680,000 Flat-rolled steel
Seattle, Washington 660,000 Steel shapes
Tuscaloosa, Alabama 610,000 Steel plate
Auburn, New York 510,000 Steel shapes
Jackson, Mississippi 490,000 Steel shapes
Brandenburg, Kentucky 490,000 Steel plate
Sedalia, Missouri 470,000 Steel shapes
Marion, Ohio 430,000 Steel shapes
Kingman, Arizona 380,000 Steel shapes
Frostproof, Florida 350,000 Steel shapes
Birmingham, Alabama 310,000 Steel shapes
Wallingford, Connecticut 240,000 Steel shapes
Steel products:
Norfolk, Nebraska 1,150,000 Joists, deck, cold finished bar
Arthur, lllinois 1,070,000 Overhead doors
St. Joe, Indiana 1,010,000 Joists, deck, fastener
Brigham City, Utah 1,000,000 Joists, cold finished bar, building systems
Grapeland, Texas 810,000 Joists, deck
Chemung, New York 560,000 Joists, deck
Marseilles, lllinois 550,000 Steel tube
Florence, South Carolina 540,000 Joists, deck
Birmingham, Alabama 480,000 Steel tube
Fort Payne, Alabama 470,000 Joists, deck
Decatur, Alabama 470,000 Steel tube
Louisville, Kentucky 440,000 Steel tube
Trinity, Alabama 380,000 Steel tube
Eufaula, Alabama 360,000 Building systems
Chicago, lllinois 350,000 Steel tube
Waterloo, Indiana 350,000 Building systems
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In the steel products segment, we have 92 operating facilities, excluding the locations listed above,
in 39 states with 29 operating facilities in Canada and two in Mexico. Nucor Rebar Fabrication also
operates multiple sales offices in Canada and certain other foreign locations. The steel products segment
also includes Skyline Steel, LLC, our steel foundation distributor. NWS has leased square footage of
approximately 630,000 square feet in Los Angeles, California, and has leased square footage of
approximately 420,000 square feet in Houston, Texas.

In the raw materials segment, we have 93 operating facilities in 19 states with one operating facility
in Point Lisas, Trinidad. For our DRI facilities in Trinidad and Louisiana, a significant portion of the
production process occurs outdoors. The Trinidad site, including leased land, is approximately 1.9 million
square feet. The Louisiana site has approximately 174.2 million square feet of owned land with buildings
that total approximately 72,500 square feet. DJJ has 85 operating facilities in 18 states along with multiple
brokerage offices in the United States and certain other foreign locations.

The average utilization rates of all operating facilities in the steel mills, steel products and raw
materials segments in 2023 were approximately 78%, 64% and 71% of production capacity, respectively.

We also own our principal executive offices in Charlotte, North Carolina.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Nucor is from time to time a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that
arise in the ordinary course of business. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, we
record reserves when it is probable a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated. We do not believe that any of these proceedings, individually or in the aggregate,
would be expected to have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or
cash flows. Nucor maintains liability insurance with self-insurance limits for certain risks.

During 2022, Nucor Steel Louisiana, our DRI facility located in St. James Parish, Louisiana,
received allegations of violations of the Clean Air Act from the United States Environmental Protection
Agency. A combined settlement is currently being negotiated with the United States Department of
Justice, United States Environmental Protection Agency and the Louisiana Department of Environmental
Quality. We do not believe that any aggregate settlement for these allegations will be material to Nucor.

There were no other proceedings that were pending or contemplated under federal, state or local
environmental laws that the Company reasonably believes may result in monetary sanctions of at least
$1.0 million (the threshold chosen by Nucor as permitted by Item 103 of Regulation S-K promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the "Exchange Act"), and which Nucor believes
is reasonably designed to result in disclosure of any such proceeding that is material to its business or
financial condition).

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Information About Our Executive Officers

The following is a description of the names and ages of the executive officers of the Company,
indicating all positions and offices with the Company held by each such person and each person’s
principal occupation or employment during the past five years. Each executive officer of Nucor is elected
by the Board of Directors and holds office from the date of election until removed by the Board.

Allen C. Behr (50), Executive Vice President of Plate and Structural Products, was named EVP in

May 2020. Mr. Behr began his career with Nucor in 1996 as Design Engineer at Nucor Building Systems-
Indiana and joined the start-up team at Nucor Building Systems-Texas in 1999. In 2001, he became the
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Engineering Manager at Nucor Building Systems-South Carolina and was promoted to General Manager
in 2008. Mr. Behr became the General Manager of Vulcraft-South Carolina in 2011 and was promoted to
Vice President in 2012. He was promoted to President of the Vulcraft/Verco group in 2014 and he served
as General Manager of Nucor Steel-Texas from 2017 to 2019.

Brad Ford (45), Executive Vice President of Fabricated Construction Products, became EVP in May
2023. Mr. Ford began his career at The David J. Joseph Company (DJJ) in 2001 as a Brokerage
Representative and subsequently served as District Manager and International Trading Manager. In
2013, Mr. Ford became Commercial Vice President at DJJ's subsidiary, Trademark Metals Recycling LLC
(TMR), and then served as President of TMR from 2015 to 2020. Mr. Ford became General Manager of
Vulcraft-Indiana in 2020. He was promoted to Vice President of Nucor in 2022 and most recently served
as Vice President and General Manager of Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC.

Noah Hanners (44), Executive Vice President of Raw Materials, became EVP in January 2023. Mr.
Hanners began his career with Nucor in 2011 as Melt Shop Engineer at Nucor Steel South Carolina. He
next served as Shift Supervisor and was then promoted to Melt Shop Manager at Nucor Steel Auburn,
Inc. Mr. Hanners later served as General Manager of Nucor Tubular Products and General Manager of
Nucor Steel Kankakee, Inc. and was promoted to Vice President in 2019. He served as the Vice
President and General Manager of The David J. Joseph Company from 2019 to 2022.

John Hollatz (48), Executive Vice President of Bar, Engineered Bar, and Rebar Fabrication
Products, was named EVP in May 2022. Mr. Hollatz began his career at Nucor in 1999 as Design
Engineer at Vulcraft Indiana and then served as Sales Engineer and Sales Manager at Vulcraft Nebraska.
Mr. Hollatz later served as General Manager of Nucor Building Systems South Carolina, General
Manager of Vulcraft Indiana, and President of the Vulcraft/Verco group. He was promoted to Vice
President and General Manager of Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC in 2016.

Douglas J. Jellison (65), Executive Vice President of Strategy, was named EVP in January 2021.
Mr. Jellison began his Nucor career in 1990 as Materials Manager at Nucor Bearing Products and has
worked in various positions and businesses in his more than 30 years with Nucor, including several
controller and business development roles. Mr. Jellison was promoted to Vice President in 2004 and
served as General Manager of Nucor Bearing Products, Nucor Steel Seattle, Inc. and Nucor-Yamato. He
then served as President of Nucor Tubular Products and most recently as President of Nucor’s steel
piling subsidiary, Skyline Steel LLC.

Stephen D. Laxton (53), Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, and Executive Vice President, became
CFO in March 2022. Mr. Laxton began his career at Nucor in 2003 as General Manager of Business
Development and was promoted to Vice President in 2014. Prior to joining Nucor, Mr. Laxton worked for
Cinergy Corp., holding various positions including Director of Asset Management and Manager of
Corporate Development. Prior to Cinergy, he held various financial roles with Ashland, Inc., North
American Stainless and National City Bank.

Gregory J. Murphy (60), Executive Vice President of Business Services and General Counsel, was
named EVP in January 2021. Mr. Murphy began his Nucor career in 2015 as Vice President and General
Counsel. In 2020, he assumed additional responsibilities and was named General Counsel and Vice
President of Legal, Environmental and Public Affairs. Prior to joining Nucor, Mr. Murphy was a Partner
with the law firm of Moore & Van Allen PLLC, where he was the team leader of the Litigation Practice
Group and served for a decade on the firm’s Executive Committee.
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Daniel R. Needham (58), Executive Vice President of Commercial, was named EVP in May 2022.
Mr. Needham began his career with Nucor in 2000 as Controller at Nucor Steel Hertford County. He
subsequently served as Controller of Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC and Nucor Steel Utah. In 2011, Mr.
Needham became General Manager of Nucor Steel Connecticut, Inc. He later served as General
Manager of Nucor Steel Utah and was elected Vice President in 2016. In 2019, Mr. Needham was
promoted to Vice President and General Manager of Nucor Steel Indiana. He served as the Executive
Vice President of Bar, Engineered Bar and Rebar Fabrication Products from February 2021 to May 2022.

K. Rex Query (58), Executive Vice President of Sheet Products and Talent Resources, was named
EVP in January 2021. Mr. Query joined Nucor in 1990 as a financial analyst in the Corporate Office and
subsequently served as Controller at Vulcraft South Carolina, Nucor Steel Berkeley and Nucor Steel
Hertford. After serving as General Manager and Corporate Controller, Mr. Query was elected to Vice
President in 2002 and served as General Manager at Nucor Steel Auburn, Inc., Nucor Steel Decatur,
LLC, Nucor Steel South Carolina and NCF as well as President of Nucor Europe. Most recently, Mr.
Query served as President of Nucor’s Vulcraft/VVerco group. Mr. Query is married to the sister of Mr.
Topalian’s wife.

David A. Sumoski (57), was named Chief Operating Officer, in January 2021. He previously served
as Executive Vice President from 2014 to 2020, most recently as EVP of Merchant and Rebar Products.
He also served as General Manager of Nucor Steel Memphis, Inc. from 2012 to 2014 and as General
Manager of Nucor Steel Marion, Inc. from 2008 to 2012. Mr. Sumoski was named Vice President in 2010.
He began his career with Nucor as an electrical supervisor at Nucor Steel-Berkeley in 1995, later serving
as Maintenance Manager.

Leon J. Topalian (55), has served as President and Chief Executive Officer since January 2020 and
as Chair of the Board of Directors since September 2022. He previously served as President and Chief
Operating Officer from September 2019 to December 2019, as Executive Vice President of Beam and
Plate Products from 2017 to 2019 and as Vice President of Nucor from 2013 to 2017. He began his Nucor
career at Nucor Steel-Berkeley in 1996, serving as a project engineer and then as cold mill production
supervisor. Mr. Topalian was promoted to Operations Manager for Nucor’s former joint venture in
Australia and later served as Melting and Casting Manager at Nucor Steel-South Carolina. He then
served as General Manager of Nucor Steel Kankakee, Inc. from 2011 to 2014 and as General Manager of
Nucor-Yamato from 2014 to 2017. Mr. Topalian is married to the sister of Mr. Query’s wife.

D. Chad Utermark (55), Executive Vice President of New Markets and Innovation, was named EVP
in 2014. He previously served as General Manager of Nucor-Yamato from 2011 to 2014 and as General
Manager of Nucor Steel-Texas from 2008 to 2011. He was named Vice President of Nucor in 2009. Mr.
Utermark began his Nucor career as a utility operator at Nucor Steel-Arkansas in 1992, subsequently
serving as shift supervisor and Hot Mill Manager at that division as well as Roll Mill Manager at Nucor
Steel-Texas.
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PART II

Item 5.
Purchases of Equity Securities

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Our common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “NUE.”
As of January 31, 2024, there were approximately 11,000 stockholders of record of our common stock.

Our share repurchase program activity for each of the three months and the quarter ended

December 31, 2023 was as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Approximate

Total Number Dollar Value
of Shares of Shares
Purchased that May
as Part of Yet Be
Total Publicly Purchased
Number Average Announced Under the
of Shares Price Paid Plans or Plans or
Purchased per Share (1) Programs (2) Programs (2)
October 1, 2023—October 28, 2023 — - — $3,499,941
October 29, 2023—November 25, 2023 — 3 - —  $3,499,941
November 26, 2023—December 31, 2023 1,000 $ 177.18 1,000 $3,322,765
For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2023 1,000 1,000

(1) Includes commissions of $0.02 per share.

(2) On May 11, 2023, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had approved a share
repurchase program under which the Company is authorized to repurchase up to $4.00 billion of the
Company’s common stock and terminated all previously authorized share repurchase programs. The
share repurchase authorization is discretionary and has no expiration date.

Nucor has increased its base cash dividend every year since the Company began paying dividends
in 1973. Nucor paid a total dividend of $2.04 per share in 2023 compared with $2.00 per share in 2022. In
December 2023, the Board of Directors increased the base quarterly cash dividend on Nucor’'s common
stock to $0.54 per share from $0.51 per share. In February 2024, the Board of Directors declared Nucor’s
204" consecutive quarterly cash dividend of $0.54 per share payable on May 10, 2024 to stockholders of
record on March 28, 2024.

See Note 16 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for a discussion regarding
securities authorized for issuance under the Company’s stock-based compensation plans.

The stock performance graph required by Item 201(e) of Regulation S-K is incorporated into this
report by reference from the Company's annual report to stockholders for the year ended December 31,
2023, which will be posted to the Company's website and furnished to the SEC subsequent to the date of
this report. The stock performance graph shall not be deemed to be "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of
the Exchange Act, nor shall it be deemed to be "soliciting material" subject to Regulation 14A or
incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act, except as
shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing.

Item 6. [Reserved].
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations of Nucor Corporation should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
of the Company and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included
in this report discusses our financial condition and results of operations as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022. Information concerning the year ended December 31, 2022 and a
comparison of the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 may be found under “ltem 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on
February 28, 2023.

Overview

The U.S. economy grew at a faster rate in 2023 — 2.5 percent — compared to 1.9 percent the prior
year. Steel market demand in 2023 remained strong across many of the end markets we serve,
particularly nonresidential construction. Operating rates at our steel mills for the full year 2023 increased
slightly to 78% as compared to 77% for the full year 2022.

Legislation passed by Congress is providing more than $1.5 trillion to rebuild traditional
infrastructure, build-out clean energy infrastructure and re-shore semiconductor chip manufacturing back
to the United States. These steel-intensive projects are expected to create an estimated 5 to 8 million
tons of additional annual steel demand in the coming years. Funding from the Infrastructure Investment &
Jobs Act (IIJA) is starting to impact the steel market and that impact is expected to last several years. The
CHIPS Act has already generated announcements for dozens of new semiconductor ecosystem projects
in the U.S. representing more than $200 billion in private investments. Strong Buy America requirements
in the IIJA and the Inflation Reduction Act will promote domestically produced steel being used to rebuild
U.S. infrastructure and build-out new clean energy infrastructure. More than half of Nucor products are
shipped into the construction market, and Nucor’s lower carbon footprint is expected to provide an
additional advantage as states and localities look to rebuild infrastructure in a sustainable manner.

Our Challenges and Risks

Global steel production overcapacity continues to be an ongoing risk to Nucor and the entire steel
industry, with the OECD estimating that global steel production overcapacity would grow from
approximately 550 million metric tons in 2022 to more than 600 million tons in 2023. However, additional
capacity continues to come online and China’s steel production, the largest steel producing country, is still
near record levels. In 2023, China’s steel production was more than 1 billion tons for the fourth
consecutive year. Circumvention of trade duties also continues to pose a risk, as countries route products
through third-party countries to evade duties. Increasingly, China is seeking to evade trade duties by
building new steelmaking capacity in other countries with a focus on neighboring countries in southeast
Asia, as well as Africa.

An uncertainty we continue to face in our business is the price of our principal raw material, ferrous
scrap, which is volatile and often increases or decreases rapidly in response to changes in domestic
demand, unanticipated events that affect the flow of scrap into scrap yards, the availability of scrap
substitutes, currency fluctuations and changes in foreign demand for scrap. In periods of rapidly
increasing raw material prices in the industry, which are often also associated with periods of stronger or
rapidly improving steel market conditions, being able to increase our prices for the products we sell
quickly enough to offset increases in the prices we pay for ferrous scrap is challenging but critical to
maintaining our profitability. We attempt to mitigate the scrap price risk by managing scrap inventory
levels at the steel mills to match the anticipated demand over the next several weeks. Certain scrap
substitutes, including pig iron, have longer lead times for delivery than scrap, which can make this
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inventory management strategy difficult to achieve. Continued successful implementation of our raw
material strategy, including key investments in DRI production, coupled with the scrap brokerage and
processing services performed by our team at DJJ, give us greater control over our metallic inputs and
thus also helps us to mitigate this risk. See "ltem 1A. Risk Factors- Industry Specific Risk Factors" for
further discussion of raw material risks.

During periods of stronger or rapidly improving steel market conditions, we are more likely to be
able to pass through to our customers, relatively quickly, the increased costs of ferrous scrap and scrap
substitutes, protecting our gross margins from significant erosion. During periods of weaker or rapidly
deteriorating steel market conditions, weak steel demand, low industry utilization rates and the impact of
imports create an even more intensified competitive environment and increased pricing pressure. All of
those factors, to some degree, impact pricing, which increases the likelihood that Nucor will experience
lower gross margins.

Although the majority of our steel sales are to spot market customers in North America who place
their orders each month based on their business needs and our pricing competitiveness compared to
both domestic and global producers and trading companies, we also sell contract tons, most notably in
our sheet operations. Approximately 80% of our sheet sales were to contract customers in 2023
(approximately 85% in 2022), with the balance being sold in the spot market at the prevailing prices at the
time of sale. Steel contract sales outside of our sheet operations are not significant. The amount of tons
sold to contract customers at any given time depends on the overall market conditions at the time, how
the end-use customers see the market moving forward and the strategy that Nucor management believes
is appropriate to the upcoming period.

Nucor management considerations include maintaining an appropriate balance of spot and contract
tons based on market projections and appropriately supporting our diversified customer base. The
percentage of tons that is placed under contract also depends on the overall market dynamics and
customer negotiations. In years of strengthening demand, we typically see an increase in the percentage
of sheet sales sold under contract as our customers have an expectation that transaction prices will
rapidly rise, and available capacity will quickly be sold out. To mitigate this risk, customers prefer to enter
into contracts in order to obtain committed volumes of supply from the mills. The vast majority of our
contracts include a method of adjusting prices on a periodic basis to reflect changes in the market pricing
for steel and/or scrap. Market indices for steel generally trend with scrap pricing changes, but, during
periods of steel market weakness, the more intensified competitive steel market environment can cause
the sales price indices to decrease resulting in reduced gross margins and profitability. Furthermore,
since the selling price adjustments are not immediate, there will always be a timing difference between
changes in the prices we pay for raw materials and the adjustments we make to our contract selling
prices. Contract sales typically have terms ranging from six to 12 months.

Our Strengths and Opportunities

We are North America’s most diversified steel producer. As a result, our short-term performance is
not tied to any one market. We have numerous, large, strategic capital projects at various stages of
progress that we believe will help us further diversify our product offerings and expand the markets that
we serve. We expect these investments to grow our long-term earnings power by increasing our channels
to market, expanding our product portfolio into higher value-added offerings, improving our cost structure
and further building upon our market leadership positions.

We believe that Nucor’s raw material supply chain is another important strength. Our investment in
DRI production facilities and scrap brokerage and processing businesses provides Nucor with significant
flexibility in optimizing our raw materials costs. Additionally, having a portion of our raw materials supply
under our control reduces risk associated with the global sourcing of raw materials.

Our highly variable, low-cost structure, combined with our financial strength and liquidity, have

allowed us to successfully navigate cyclical steel industry market conditions in the past. In such times, our
incentive-based pay system reduces our payroll costs, both hourly and salary, which helps to offset lower

35



selling prices. Our pay-for-performance system that is closely tied to our levels of production also allows
us to keep our highly experienced workforce intact and to continue operating our facilities when some of
our competitors with greater fixed costs are forced to shut down some of their facilities. Because we use
EAFs to produce our steel, we can easily vary our production levels to match short-term changes in
demand.

Evaluating Our Operating Performance

We report our results of operations in three segments: steel mills, steel products and raw materials.
Most of the steel we produce in our mills is sold to outside customers (80% in 2023 and 78% in 2022), but
a significant percentage is used internally by many of the facilities in our steel products segment (20% in
2023 and 22% in 2022).

We begin measuring our performance by comparing our net sales, both in total and by individual
segment, during a reporting period with our net sales in the corresponding period in the prior year. In
doing so, we focus on changes in and the reasons for such changes in the two key variables that have
the greatest influence on our net sales: average sales price per ton during the period and total tons
shipped to outside customers.

We also focus on both dollar and percentage changes in gross margins, which are key drivers of our
profitability, and the reasons for such changes. There are many factors from period to period that can
affect our gross margins. One consistent area of focus for us is changes in “metal margins,” which is the
difference between the selling price of steel and the cost of scrap and scrap substitutes. Increases or
decreases in the cost of scrap and scrap substitutes that are not offset by changes in the selling price of
steel can quickly compress or expand our margins and reduce or increase our profitability.

Changes in marketing, administrative and other expenses, particularly profit sharing and other
variable incentive-based payment costs, can have a material effect on our results of operations for a
reporting period as well. These costs vary significantly from period to period as they are based upon
changes in our pre-tax earnings and other profitability metrics that are a reflection of our pay-for-
performance system that is closely tied to our levels of production.

Evaluating Our Financial Condition

We evaluate our financial condition each reporting period by focusing primarily on the amounts of
and reasons for changes in cash provided by operating activities, our current ratio, the turnover rate of
our accounts receivable and inventories, the amounts of and reasons for changes in cash used in or
provided by investing activities (including projected capital expenditures) and financing activities and our
cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments position at period end. We believe that our
conservative financial practices have served us well in the past and are serving us well today. As a result,
we believe our financial position remains strong.

Comparison of 2023 to 2022

Results of Operations

Nucor reported consolidated net earnings of $4.52 billion, or $18.00 per diluted share, in 2023,
which decreased compared to $7.61 billion, or $28.79 per diluted share, in 2022, the latter of which was
the most profitable year in the Company’s history. Though decreased from the prior year, 2023
represented the third most profitable year in Nucor’s history.

The primary driver for the decrease in earnings in 2023 as compared to 2022 was the decreased
profitability of the steel mills segment. Metal margin in the steel mills segment decreased significantly in
2023 as compared to 2022, as decreases in average selling prices outpaced decreases in scrap and
substitute costs. All product groups within the steel mills segment had lower metal margin in 2023 as
compared to 2022, with the largest decrease at our sheet mills.
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Earnings of the steel products segment decreased in 2023 following a record-setting year for
profitability in 2022. Average selling prices and volumes both decreased for the steel products segment
in 2023 as compared to 2022. The primary driver for the decreased earnings of the steel products
segment in 2023 was the reduced profitability of the joist and deck businesses, both of which had very
strong earnings in 2022. Partially offsetting these decreases were increases in profitability at the
segment's rebar fabrication, garage doors, insulated metal panels and tubular products businesses in
2023 as compared to 2022. The Company's rebar fabrication business set a new record for profitability in
2023.

Earnings in the raw materials segment decreased in 2023 as compared to 2022 primarily due to
decreased earnings at our DRI facilities and scrap processing operations. Included in the earnings of the
raw materials segment in 2022 was the $96.0 million write-off of our leasehold interest in unproved oil and
gas properties after the Company’s management determined that it was unlikely to develop the leasehold
interests in the future.

The following discussion will provide greater quantitative and qualitative analysis of Nucor’'s
performance in 2023 as compared to 2022.

Net Sales

Net sales to external customers by segment for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were
as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 % Change
Steel mills $ 20,092,662 $ 24,189,858 -17%
Steel products 12,758,939 15,060,328 -15%
Raw materials 1,861,900 2,262,281 -18%
Total net sales to external customers $ 34,713,501 $ 41,512,467 -16%

Net sales for 2023 decreased 16% from the prior year. Average sales price per ton decreased 15%
from $1,626 in 2022 to $1,377 in 2023. Total tons shipped to outside customers decreased 1% from
25,524,000 tons in 2022 to 25,205,000 tons in 2023.

In the steel mills segment, sales tons for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 % Change
Outside steel shipments 18,552 18,200 2%
Inside steel shipments 4,721 5,041 -6%
Total steel shipments 23,273 23,241 -
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Net sales for the steel mills segment decreased 17% in 2023 compared to the prior year due to an
18% decrease in the average sales price per ton, from $1,324 in 2022 to $1,084 in 2023, partially offset
by a 2% increase in tons sold to outside customers. Average selling prices for our sheet, bar, structural,
and plate mills decreased in 2023 as compared to 2022.

Outside sales tonnage for the steel products segment for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022 was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 % Change
Joist sales 510 671 -24%
Deck sales 401 515 -22%
Cold finished sales 428 467 -8%
Rebar fabrication sales 1,169 1,282 -9%
Piling products sales 433 443 -2%
Tubular products sales 949 950 -
Other steel products sales 596 687 -13%
Total steel products sales 4,486 5,015 -11%

Net sales for the steel products segment decreased 15% in 2023 from the prior year due to a 5%
decrease in the average sales price per ton, from $3,003 in 2022 to $2,845 in 2023, as well as an 11%
decrease in volumes.

Net sales for the raw materials segment decreased 18% in 2023 from the prior year, primarily due to
decreased volumes and average sales prices at DJJ’s brokerage and scrap processing operations. In
2023, approximately 92% of outside sales for the raw materials segment were from the brokerage
operations of DJJ, and approximately 4% of outside sales were from the scrap processing operations of
DJJ (91% and 3%, respectively, in 2022).

Gross Margins

In 2023, Nucor recorded gross margins of $7.81 billion (23%), which was a decrease from $12.50
billion (30%) in 2022:

The primary driver for the decrease in gross margins in 2023 as compared to 2022 was the
decrease in metal margins in the steel mills, primarily due to lower metal margins per ton and
decreases in average selling prices outpacing decreases in scrap costs.

The average scrap and scrap substitute cost per gross ton used decreased 14% from $492 in
2022 to $421 in 2023. Scrap prices are driven by the global supply and demand for scrap and
other iron-based raw materials used to make steel. Scrap prices are stable as we begin 2024.

Pre-operating and start-up costs of new facilities increased to approximately $400 million in
2023 as compared to approximately $247 million in 2022. Pre-operating and start-up costs in
2023 primarily related to the plate mill built in Kentucky, the sheet mill being built in West
Virginia, and the micro mill being built in North Carolina. Pre-operating and start-up costs in
2022 primarily related to the plate mill then being built in Kentucky, the sheet mill expansion in
Kentucky, and the galvanizing line at our sheet mill in Arkansas. Nucor defines pre-operating
and start-up costs, all of which are expensed, as the losses attributable to facilities or major
projects that are either under construction or in the early stages of operation. Once these
facilities or projects have attained a utilization rate that is consistent with our similar operating
facilities, they are no longer considered by Nucor to be in start-up.

Gross margins in the steel products segment decreased in 2023 as compared to 2022
primarily due to moderating prices and margin compression at our joist and deck facilities.

Gross margins in the raw materials segment decreased significantly in 2023 as compared to
2022 due to the decreased profitability of our scrap brokerage and recycling operations.

38



Marketing, Administrative and Other Expenses

A major component of marketing, administrative and other expenses is profit sharing and other
incentive compensation costs. These costs, which are based upon and fluctuate with Nucor’s financial
performance, decreased from 2022 to 2023 due to the decreased profitability of the Company. In 2023,
profit sharing costs consisted of $611.1 million, including the Company’s matching contribution, made to
the Company’s Profit Sharing and Retirement Savings Plan for qualified employees ($994.2 million in
2022). Other employee bonus costs also fluctuate based on Nucor’s achievement of certain financial
performance goals, including achieving record earnings, and comparisons of Nucor’s financial
performance to peers in the steel industry and other companies. Stock-based compensation included in
marketing, administrative and other expenses decreased by 8% to $54.1 million in 2023 compared with
$58.8 million in 2022 and includes expenses associated with vesting of stock awards granted in prior
years.

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates was $12.8 million in 2023 and $10.7 million in 2022.
The increase in equity method investment earnings from 2022 to 2023 was primarily due to decreased
losses at NJSM. In October 2023, Nucor purchased an additional 1% interest in NJSM, bringing our
investment in NJSM to a 51% controlling interest. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2023, Nucor has
accounted for NJSM on a consolidated basis.

Losses and Impairments of Assets

During 2022, Nucor recorded a non-cash loss on assets of $96.0 million related to our leasehold
interest in unproved oil and natural gas properties in the raw materials segment and an impairment
charge of $5.8 million related to machinery and equipment in the steel products segment.

Interest Expense (Income)

Net interest expense (income) for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 was as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022
Interest expense $ 245954 $ 218,911
Interest income (275,586) (48,695)
Interest expense, net $ (29,632) $ 170,216

Interest expense increased in 2023 compared to 2022 due to higher average interest rates on debt
and an increase in average debt outstanding. Interest income increased in 2023 compared to 2022 due to
an increase in average interest rates on investments and higher average investments.

Earnings Before Income Taxes and Noncontrolling Interests

The following table presents earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling interests by segment
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 (in thousands). The changes between periods were
driven by the quantitative and qualitative factors previously discussed.

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022
Steel mills $ 3,712470 $ 7,199,087
Steel products 3,443,950 4,093,105
Raw materials 253,506 496,823
Corporate/eliminations (1,137,169) (1,544,171)
Earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling interests $ 6,272,757 $ 10,244,844
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Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests represent the income attributable to the noncontrolling partners of Nucor’'s
joint ventures, NYS, CSI and NJSM. Nucor owns a 51% controlling interest in each of NYS, CSl and
NJSM. The decrease in earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests in 2023 as compared to 2022 was
due to the decreased earnings of NYS and CSI. Furthermore, the decrease in earnings attributable to
noncontrolling interests is due to the losses of NJSM, for which results were consolidated beginning in the
fourth quarter of 2023 following Nucor's purchase of an additional 1% interest in NJSM to bring the total
investment to a 51% controlling interest.

Provision for Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate in 2023 was 21.68% compared with 21.13% in 2022. The 2023
effective tax rate includes an increased impact, when compared to 2022, related to federal tax credits and
the change in relative proportions of net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests to total pre-tax
earnings between the periods. The 2022 effective tax rate included a net tax benefit of $76.4 million (-
0.75%) for state tax credits, and a net tax benefit of $88.0 million (-0.86%) related to a change in the
valuation allowance of a state deferred tax asset.

The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) is currently examining Nucor’s 2015, 2019, and 2020 federal
income tax returns. Nucor has concluded U.S. federal income tax matters for tax years through 2014, and
for the tax years 2016 and 2018. The tax years 2017, 2021, and 2022 remain open to examination by the
IRS. The 2015 through 2021 Canadian income tax returns for Harris and certain related affiliates are
currently under examination by the Canada Revenue Agency. The tax years 2016 through 2022 remain
open to examination by other major taxing jurisdictions to which Nucor is subject (primarily Canada,
Trinidad & Tobago, and other state and local jurisdictions).

Net Earnings and Return on Equity

Nucor reported net earnings of $4.52 billion, or $18.00 per diluted share, in 2023, compared to net
earnings of $7.61 billion, or $28.79 per diluted share, in 2022. Net earnings attributable to Nucor
stockholders as a percentage of net sales were 13.0% and 18.3% in 2023 and 2022, respectively. Return
on average stockholders’ equity was 23.0% and 46.9% in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We believe our financial strength is a key strategic advantage, particularly during recessionary
business cycles. We carry the highest credit ratings of any steel producer headquartered in North
America, with an A- long-term rating from Standard and Poor’s, a Baa1 long-term rating from Moody’s
and an A- long-term rating from Fitch. Our credit ratings are dependent, however, on many factors, both
qualitative and quantitative, and are subject to change at any time. The disclosure of our credit ratings is
made to enhance investors’ understanding of our sources of liquidity and the impact of our credit ratings
on our cost of funds.

Nucor’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and restricted cash and cash
equivalents position remained strong at $7.13 billion as of December 31, 2023, compared with $4.94
billion as of December 31, 2022. Approximately $1.05 billion and $1.04 billion of the cash and cash
equivalents position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, was held by our majority-owned
joint ventures. Cash flows provided by operating activities provide us with a significant source of liquidity.
When needed, we have external short-term financing sources available, including the issuance of
commercial paper and borrowings under our bank credit facilities.

We also issue long-term debt securities from time-to-time. On March 11, 2022, Nucor completed the
issuance and sale of $550.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 3.125% Notes due 2032 (the “2032

40



Notes”) and $550.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 3.850% Notes due 2052 (the “2052 Notes”
and, together with the 2032 Notes, the “2032/2052 Notes”). The net proceeds from the issuance and sale
of the 2032/2052 Notes were used along with cash on hand to redeem all of the outstanding $600.0
million aggregate principal amount of our 4.125% Notes due 2022 (the “2022 Notes”) and $500.0 million
aggregate principal amount of our 4.000% Notes due 2023 (the “2023 Notes”) pursuant to the terms of
the indenture governing the 2022 Notes and the 2023 Notes.

On April 25, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $500.0 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of the
2023 Notes using a portion of the net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052 Notes. On
August 15, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $600.0 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of the 2022
Notes using the remaining portion of the net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052
Notes.

On May 23, 2022, Nucor completed the issuance and sale of $500.0 million aggregate principal
amount of its 3.950% Notes due 2025 (the “2025 Notes”) and $500.0 million aggregate principal amount
of its 4.300% Notes due 2027 (the “2027 Notes”).

We expect to continue to have adequate access to the capital markets at a reasonable cost of funds
for liquidity purposes when needed.

Selected Measures of Liquidity and Capital Resources

(Dollars in thousands)
December 31,

2023 2022
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,383,298 $ 4,280,852
Short-term investments 747,479 576,946
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,494 80,368
Working capital 11,791,349 10,361,940
Current ratio 3.6 34

The current ratio, which is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was 3.6 at year-
end 2023 compared with 3.4 at year-end 2022. The current ratio was impacted by higher cash and cash
equivalents at December 31, 2023.

In 2023, total accounts receivable turned approximately every five weeks and inventories turned
approximately every 11 weeks. These ratios compare with accounts receivable turnover of approximately
every five weeks and inventory turnover of approximately every 10 weeks for 2022.

Funds provided by operations, cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, restricted cash
and cash equivalents and new borrowings under existing credit facilities are expected to be adequate to
meet future capital expenditures, current debt maturities and working capital requirements for existing
operations for at least the next 24 months. We also believe we have adequate access to capital markets
for liquidity purposes.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have a simple capital structure with no off-balance sheet arrangements or relationships with
unconsolidated special purpose entities that we believe could have a material impact on our financial
condition or liquidity.

Capital Allocation Strategy

We believe that our conservative financial practices have served us well in the past and are serving
us well today. Nucor’s financial strength allows for a consistent, balanced approach to capital allocation
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throughout the business cycle. Nucor’s highest capital allocation priority is to invest in our business for
profitable growth over the long term. We have historically done this by investing to optimize our existing
operations, initiate greenfield expansions and make acquisitions. Our second priority is to return capital to
our stockholders through cash dividends and share repurchases. We intend to return a minimum of 40%
of our net earnings to our stockholders through dividends and share repurchases, while maintaining a
debt-to-capital ratio that supports a strong investment grade credit rating. Nucor returned approximately
$2.07 billion in capital to its stockholders in the form of base dividends and share repurchases in 2023.

Our cash flows for each period were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)
December 31,

2023 2022

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 7,111,931 $ 10,072,054
Net cash used in investing activities (2,496,431) (5,702,709)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,592,811) (2,510,863)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 2,883 (5,920)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and

cash equivalents $ 2025572 $ 1,852,562
Operating Activities

For 2023 compared to 2022, the $3.0 billion decrease in cash provided by operating activities
was primarily driven by a decrease in net earnings and changes in operating assets and liabilities. Net
earnings decreased $3.2 billion over the prior year, which included $101.8 million of non-cash losses and
impairments of assets in 2022 (none in 2023). The changes in operating assets and liabilities resulted in a
net inflow of $858.4 million and $692.7 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The changes in working
capital were primarily due to a decrease in accounts receivable and increase in inventories from year-end
2022 to year-end 2023. Accounts receivable at the end of 2023 decreased from the prior year-end
resulting in a cash inflow of $663.8 million due to a decrease in the sales volumes and price per ton
compared to the same prior year period. From year-end 2022 to year-end 2023, inventories increased
resulting in an outflow of $75.0 million due to a 10% increase in inventory tons. This compares to
inventories at year-end 2022 decreasing from year-end 2021 and resulting in a $962.4 million cash inflow.
Salaries, wages and related accruals decreased due to lower current year profit sharing accrual. The
decrease in federal income taxes receivable is mainly a function of the timing of federal tax payments.
Accounts payable increased due to the increases in inventory mentioned previously.

Investing Activities

Our business is capital intensive; therefore, cash used in investing activities primarily represents
capital expenditures for the construction of new facilities, the expansion and upgrading of existing
facilities and the acquisition of other companies. The $3.2 billion decrease in cash used in investing
activities was primarily due to $70.8 million used in 2023 to fund acquisitions compared to $3.55 billion
used to fund acquisitions in 2022, including, primarily the purchase of CHI in June 2022 and the purchase
of a 51% controlling ownership in CSl in February 2022. Cash used for capital expenditures increased by
$266.3 million to $2.2 billion in 2023 as compared to $1.95 billion in 2022. The increase in capital
expenditures is primarily due to the plate mill in Kentucky, the sheet mill expansion in Indiana and the
sheet mill under construction in West Virginia. Capital expenditures for 2024 are estimated to be
approximately $3.5 billion as compared to actual expenditures of approximately $2.2 billion in 2023. The
projects that we anticipate will have the largest capital expenditures in 2024 are the sheet mill expansion
in Indiana, the sheet mill under construction in West Virginia, the rebar micro mill under construction in
North Carolina and the construction of two manufacturing locations to expand NTS.
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Financing Activities

The primary uses of cash were: (i) stock repurchases of $1.6 billion in 2023 as compared to $2.76
billion in 2022, a decrease of $1.2 billion; (ii) repayments of long-term debt of $10 million in 2023 as
compared to $1.11 billion in 2022; and (iii) distributions to noncontrolling interests of $435.0 million in
2023 as compared to $332.3 million in 2022, an increase of $102.8 million. The primary source of cash
offsetting these uses of cash was proceeds from long-term debt, net of discount to the public, of $2.09
billion in 2022 (none in 2023). In 2022, Nucor issued $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of the
2025 Notes, $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 2027 Notes, $550.0 million aggregate
principal amount of the 2032 Notes and $550.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 2052 Notes. On
April 25, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $500.0 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of the 2023
Notes. On August 15, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $600.0 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of
the 2022 Notes.

Our $1.75 billion revolving credit facility is undrawn and has a maturity date of November 5, 2026.
The revolving credit facility includes only one financial covenant, which is a limit of 60% on the ratio of
funded debt to total capital. In addition, the undrawn revolving credit facility contains customary non-
financial covenants, including a limit on Nucor’s ability to pledge the Company’s assets and a limit on
consolidations, mergers and sales of assets. As of December 31, 2023, Nucor’s funded debt to total
capital ratio was 24%, and Nucor was in compliance with all covenants under the credit facility.

Market Risk

Nucor’s largest exposure to market risk is in our steel mills and steel products segments. Our
utilization rates for the steel mills and steel products facilities for the fourth quarter of 2023 were 74% and
58%, respectively. A significant portion of our steel mills and steel products segments’ sales are into the
commercial, industrial and municipal construction markets. Our largest single customer in 2023
represented approximately 5% of sales and consistently pays within terms. In the raw materials segment,
we are exposed to price fluctuations related to the purchase of scrap steel, pig iron and iron ore. Our
exposure to market risk is mitigated by the fact that our steel mills use a significant portion of the products
of this segment and the prices we receive for our steel and steel products tend to be correlated with the
prices we pay for these materials.

Nucor’s tax-exempt industrial development revenue bonds (“IDRBs”) have variable interest rates
that are typically adjusted weekly. These IDRBs represented 20% of Nucor’s long-term debt outstanding
at December 31, 2023. The remaining 80% of Nucor’s long-term debt is at fixed rates. Future changes in
interest rates are not expected to significantly impact earnings. From time to time, Nucor makes use of
interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk. As of December 31, 2023, there were no such contracts
outstanding. Nucor’s investment practice is to invest in securities that are highly liquid with short
maturities. As a result, we do not expect changes in interest rates to have a significant impact on the
value of our investment securities recorded as short-term investments.

Nucor also uses derivative financial instruments from time to time to partially manage its exposure
to price risk related to purchases of natural gas used in the production process, as well as scrap, copper
and aluminum purchased for resale to its customers. In addition, Nucor uses forward foreign exchange
contracts from time to time to hedge cash flows associated with certain assets and liabilities, firm
commitments and anticipated transactions. Nucor generally does not enter into derivative instruments for
any purpose other than hedging the cash flows associated with specific volumes of commodities that will
be purchased, processed or sold in future periods or hedging the exposures related to changes in the fair
value of outstanding fixed-rate debt instruments and foreign currency transactions. Nucor recognizes all
derivative instruments in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through its operations in Canada, Europe
and Mexico. We periodically use derivative contracts to mitigate the risk of currency fluctuations.
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Dividends

Nucor has increased its base cash dividend every year since it began paying dividends in 1973.
Nucor paid aggregate dividends of $2.04 per share in 2023, compared with aggregate dividends of $2.00
per share in 2022. In December 2023, the Board of Directors increased the regular quarterly cash
dividend on Nucor’s common stock to $0.54 per share. Nucor returned approximately $2.06 billion in
capital to its stockholders in the form of base dividends and share repurchases in 2023. In February 2024,
the Board of Directors declared Nucor's 204t consecutive quarterly cash dividend of $0.54 per share
payable on May 10, 2024 to stockholders of record as of March 28, 2024.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of
December 31, 2023 for the periods presented (in thousands):

Payments Due By Period

2029 and

Contractual Obligations Total 2024 2025-2026 2027-2028 thereafter
Long-term debt $ 6,737,725 $ 60,000 $ 1,071,500 $ 1,078,000 $ 4,528,225
Estimated interest on
long-term

debt (1) 3,782,754 265,449 475,190 407,985 2,634,130
Finance leases 266,677 23,466 42,562 39,952 160,697
Operating leases 142,263 32,987 45,406 28,272 35,598
Raw material purchase

commitments (2) 3,632,400 1,232,322 1,103,586 847,428 449,064
Utility purchase
commitments (2) 1,188,652 381,330 371,063 325,906 110,353
Other unconditional
purchase

obligations (3) 2,306,944 1,701,792 599,733 3,453 1,966
Other long-term
obligations (4) 797,819 482,827 95,339 10,821 208,832
Total contractual
obligations $ 18,855,234 $ 4,180,173 $ 3,804,379 $ 2,741,817 $ 8,128,865

(1) Interest is estimated using applicable rates at December 31, 2023 for Nucor’s outstanding fixed-rate and
variable-rate debt.

(2)  Nucor enters into contracts for the purchase of scrap and scrap substitutes, iron ore, electricity, natural
gas, and other raw materials and related services. These contracts include multi-year commitments and
minimum annual purchase requirements and are valued at prices in effect on December 31, 2023, or
according to the contract language. These contracts are part of normal operations and are reflected in
historical operating cash flow trends. We do not believe such commitments will adversely affect our
liquidity position.

(3) Purchase obligations include commitments for capital expenditures on operating machinery and
equipment.

(4) Other long-term obligations include amounts associated with Nucor’s early-retiree medical benefits,
management compensation and guarantees.

Note: In addition to the amounts shown in the table above, $188.3 million of unrecognized tax benefits
have been recorded as liabilities, and we are uncertain as to if or when such amounts may be settled.
Related to these unrecognized tax benefits, we have also recorded a liability for potential penalties and
interest of $37.4 million at December 31, 2023.
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Outlook

We expect earnings in the first quarter of 2024 to increase compared to the fourth quarter of 2023.
Profitability in the steel mills segment is expected to increase in the first quarter of 2024 as compared to
the fourth quarter of 2023 due to higher average prices and volumes, particularly at our sheet mills.

Earnings in the steel products segment are expected to decrease in the first quarter of 2024 due to
lower average selling prices.

We expect increased earnings in the raw materials segment in the first quarter of 2024, due to
increased profitability at our DRI facilities and scrap processing and brokerage operations.

Capital deployment is expected to increase in 2024 with planned capital expenditures of
approximately $3.5 billion, continued evaluation of acquisitions, and share repurchases expected to
outpace 2023. As we have in the past, we intend to allocate capital to investments that advance our
strategy to grow the core and expand beyond, with the goal of keeping Nucor in a position of strength well
into the future.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America. The preparation of these consolidated financial
statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at year end and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the year. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates,
including those related to the valuation allowances for receivables, the carrying value of non-current
assets and reserves for environmental obligations and income taxes. Our estimates are based on
historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Accordingly, actual costs could
differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We believe the following
critical accounting policies affect our significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The Company records any amount
required to reduce the carrying value of inventory to net realizable value as a charge to cost of products
sold. Scrap and scrap substitute costs are a very significant component of the raw material, semi-finished
and finished product inventory balances. The vast majority of the Company’s inventory is recorded on the
first-in, first-out method. Production costs are applied to semi-finished and finished product inventory from
the approximate period in which they are produced.

Long-Lived Asset Impairments

We evaluate our property, plant and equipment and finite-lived intangible assets for potential
impairment on an individual asset basis or at the lowest level asset grouping for which cash flows can be
independently identified. Asset impairments are assessed whenever circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts of those productive assets could exceed their projected undiscounted cash flows. In
developing estimated values for assets that we currently use in our operations, we utilize judgments and
assumptions of future undiscounted cash flows that the assets will produce. When it is determined that an
impairment exists, the related assets are written down to estimated fair market value. Management
determined that no long-lived asset impairment testing was required in 2023 and 2022.
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Raw Materials Segment Asset Impairments

In the second quarter of 2021, Nucor decided that it would not develop a portion of its unproved oil
and natural gas properties (“Portion A”) within the contractually specified time period related to Portion A.
As a result of this decision, the Company forfeited its leasehold rights for Portion A. The Company
recorded a charge of $42.0 million to write off the value of Portion A that is included in losses and
impairments of assets in the consolidated statement of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2021.
The decision not to develop Portion A was heavily influenced by the approaching deadline to commence
development combined with Portion A’s expected near-term profitability not achieving management’s
desired returns relative to the cost of development. A significant portion of the Company’s remaining
leasehold interest in unproved oil and natural gas properties are held by production. In the fourth quarter
of 2022, the Company's management determined that it was unlikely to develop the leasehold interest in
unproved oil and gas properties. The carrying value of the remaining portions of unproved oil and natural
gas properties of $96.0 million was written off and is included in losses and impairments of assets in the
consolidated statement of earnings for the year ended at December 31, 2022.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and whenever events or circumstances change that
would make it more likely than not that an impairment may have occurred. We perform our annual
impairment analysis as of the first day of the fourth quarter each year. The evaluation of impairment
involves comparing the current estimated fair value of each reporting unit to the recorded value, including
goodwill.

When appropriate, Nucor performs a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely
than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. For certain reporting units, it
is necessary to perform a quantitative analysis. In these instances, a discounted cash flow model is used
to determine the current estimated fair value of these reporting units. Significant assumptions used to
determine the fair value of each reporting unit as part of our annual testing (and any required interim
testing) include: (i) expected cash flow for the five-year period following the testing date (including market
share, sales volumes and prices, raw materials and other costs to produce and estimated capital needs);
(i) an estimated terminal value using a terminal year growth rate determined based on the growth
prospects of the reporting unit; (iii) a discount rate based on management’s best estimate of the after-tax
weighted-average cost of capital; and (iv) a probability-weighted scenario approach by which varying
cash flows are assigned to certain scenarios based on the likelihood of occurrence. Management
considers historical and anticipated future results, general economic and market conditions, the impact of
planned business and operational strategies and all available information at the time the fair values of its
reporting units are estimated. Those estimates and judgments may or may not ultimately prove
appropriate.

Our fourth quarter 2023 annual goodwill impairment analysis did not result in an impairment charge.
Management does not believe that future impairment of these reporting units is probable. However, the
performance of certain businesses that comprise our reporting units requires continued improvement. An
increase of approximately 50 basis points in the discount rate, a critical assumption in which a minor
change can have a significant impact on the estimated fair value, would not result in an impairment
charge. See Note 8 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the
results of the Company’s 2023 annual goodwill impairment analysis.
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Nucor will continue to monitor operating results within all reporting units throughout 2024 in an effort
to determine if events and circumstances require further interim impairment testing. Otherwise, all
reporting units will again be subject to the required annual qualitative and/or quantitative impairment test
during our fourth quarter of 2024. Changes in the judgments and estimates underlying our analysis of
goodwill for possible impairment, including expected future operating cash flows and discount rate, could
decrease the estimated fair value of our reporting units in the future and could result in an impairment of
goodwill.

Equity Method Investments

Investments in joint ventures in which Nucor shares control over the financial and operating
decisions but in which Nucor is not the primary beneficiary are accounted for under the equity method.
Each of the Company’s equity method investments is subject to a review for impairment if, and when,
circumstances indicate that a decline in value below its carrying amount may have occurred. Examples of
such circumstances include, but are not limited to, a significant deterioration in the earnings performance
or business prospects of the investee; missed financial projections; a significant adverse change in the
regulatory, tax, economic or technological environment of the investee; a significant adverse change in
the general market condition of either the geographic area or the industry in which the investee operates;
and recurring negative cash flows from operations. When management considers the decline to be other
than temporary, the Company would write down the related investment to its estimated fair market value.
An other-than-temporary decline in carrying value is determined to have occurred when, in management’s
judgment, a decline in fair value below carrying value is of such length of time and/or severity that it is
considered long-term.

In the event that an impairment review is necessary, we calculate the estimated fair value of our
equity method investments using a probability-weighted multiple-scenario income approach.
Management’s analysis includes three discounted cash flow scenarios (best case, base case and
recessionary case), which contain forecasted near-term cash flows under each scenario. Generally, (i) the
best case scenario contains estimates of future results ranging from slightly higher than recent operating
performance to levels that are consistent with historical operating and financial performance; (ii) the base
case scenario contains estimates of future results ranging from generally in line with recent operating
performance to levels that are more conservative than historical operating and financial performance; and
(iii) the recessionary case scenario contains estimates of future results which include limited growth
resulting only from operational cost improvements and limited benefits of new higher-value product
offerings. Management determines the probability that each cash flow scenario will come to fruition based
on the specific facts and circumstances of each of the preceding scenarios, with the base case typically
receiving the majority of the weighting.

Key assumptions used to determine the fair value of our equity method investments include: (i)
expected cash flow for the five-year period following the testing date (including market share, sales
volumes and prices, raw materials and other costs to produce and estimated capital needs); (ii) an
estimated terminal value using a terminal year growth rate determined based on the growth prospects of
the investment; (iii) a discount rate based on management’s best estimate of the after-tax weighted-
average cost of capital; and (iv) a probability-weighted scenario approach by which varying cash flows are
assigned to certain scenarios based on the likelihood of occurrence. Management considers historical
and anticipated future results, general economic and market conditions, the impact of planned business
and operational strategies and all available information at the time the fair values of its investments are
estimated. Those estimates and judgments may or may not ultimately prove appropriate.

Nucor reviews its equity method investments for impairment if and when circumstances indicate that

a decline in fair value below their carrying amounts may have occurred. There were no triggering events
that caused management to pursue additional testing of our equity method investments in 2023.
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Income Taxes

We utilize the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, deferred
taxes are determined based on the temporary differences between the financial statement and tax basis
of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect during the years in which the basis
differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is more likely than not that some of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. We recognize the effect of income tax positions only if those
positions are more likely than not of being sustained. Potential accrued interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits within operations are recognized as a component of interest expense and other
expenses.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements made in this report, or in other public filings, press releases, or other written or
oral communications made by Nucor, which are not historical facts are forward-looking statements subject
to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-
looking statements involve risks and uncertainties which we expect will or may occur in the future and
may impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. The words “anticipate,” “believe,”
“‘expect,” “i 7 7 ” “will,” “should,” “could” and similar expressions are intended to identify

intend,” “project,” “may,” “will,
those forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements reflect the Company’s best
judgment based on current information, and, although we base these statements on circumstances that
we believe to be reasonable when made, there can be no assurance that future events will not affect the
accuracy of such forward-looking information. As such, the forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance, and actual results may vary materially from the projected results and
expectations discussed in this report. Factors that might cause the Company’s actual results to differ
materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: (1)
competitive pressure on sales and pricing, including pressure from imports and substitute materials; (2)
U.S. and foreign trade policies affecting steel imports or exports; (3) the sensitivity of the results of our
operations to general market conditions, and in particular, prevailing market steel prices and changes in
the supply and cost of raw materials, including pig iron, iron ore and scrap steel; (4) the availability and
cost of electricity and natural gas which could negatively affect our cost of steel production or result in a
delay or cancellation of existing or future drilling within our natural gas drilling programs; (5) critical
equipment failures and business interruptions; (6) market demand for steel products, which, in the case of
many of our products, is driven by the level of nonresidential construction activity in the United States; (7)
impairment in the recorded value of inventory, equity investments, fixed assets, goodwill or other long-
lived assets; (8) uncertainties and volatility surrounding the global economy, including excess world
capacity for steel production, inflation and interest rate changes; (9) fluctuations in currency conversion
rates; (10) significant changes in laws or government regulations affecting environmental compliance,
including legislation and regulations that result in greater regulation of greenhouse gas emissions that
could increase our energy costs, capital expenditures and operating costs or cause one or more of our
permits to be revoked or make it more difficult to obtain permit modifications; (11) the cyclical nature of
the steel industry; (12) capital investments and their impact on our performance; (13) our safety
performance; (14) our ability to integrate businesses we acquire; (15) the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, any variants of the virus, and any other similar pandemic or public health situation; and (16)
the risks discussed in “ltem 1A. Risk Factors” of this report.

Caution should be taken not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements included in
this report. We assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements except as may be
required by law. In evaluating forward-looking statements, these risks and uncertainties should be
considered, together with the other risks described from time to time in our reports and other filings with
the SEC.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

In the ordinary course of business, Nucor is exposed to a variety of market risks. We continually
monitor these risks and develop strategies to manage them.

Interest Rate Risk — Nucor manages interest rate risk by using a combination of variable-rate and
fixed-rate debt. At December 31, 2023, approximately 20% of Nucor’s long-term debt was in industrial
revenue bonds that have variable interest rates that are adjusted weekly. The remaining 80% of Nucor’s
long-term debt was at fixed rates. Future changes in interest rates are not expected to significantly impact
earnings. Nucor also occasionally makes use of interest rate swaps to manage net exposure to interest
rate changes. As of December 31, 2023, there were no such contracts outstanding. Nucor’s investment
practice is to invest in securities that are highly liquid with short maturities. As a result, we do not expect
changes in interest rates to have a significant impact on the value of our investment securities recorded
as short-term investments.

Commodity Price Risk — In the ordinary course of business, Nucor is exposed to market risk for
price fluctuations of raw materials and energy, principally scrap steel, other ferrous and nonferrous
metals, alloys and natural gas. We attempt to negotiate the best prices for our raw materials and energy
requirements and to obtain prices for our steel products that match market price movements in response
to supply and demand. In periods of strong or stable demand for our products, we are more likely to be
able to effectively reduce the normal time lag in passing through higher raw material costs so that we can
maintain our gross margins. When demand for our products is weaker, this becomes more challenging.
Our DRI facilities in Trinidad and Louisiana provide us with flexibility in managing our input costs. DRI is
particularly important for operational flexibility when demand for prime scrap increases due to increased
domestic steel production.

Natural gas produced by Nucor’s production operations is being sold to third parties to partially
offset our exposure to changes in the price of natural gas consumed by our Louisiana DRI facility and our
steel mills in the United States.

Nucor also periodically uses derivative financial instruments to hedge a portion of our exposure to
price risk related to natural gas purchases used in the production process and to hedge a portion of our
scrap, aluminum and copper purchases and sales. Gains and losses from derivatives designated as
hedges are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes on the consolidated
balance sheets and recognized in net earnings in the same period as the underlying physical transaction.
At December 31, 2023, accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes included $13.9
million in unrealized net-of-tax losses for the fair value of these derivative instruments. Changes in the fair
values of derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized in net earnings each period. The following
table presents the negative effect on pre-tax earnings of a hypothetical change in the fair value of the
derivative instruments outstanding at December 31, 2023, due to an assumed 10% and 25% change in
the market price of each of the indicated commaodities (in thousands):

Commodity

Derivative 10% Change 25% Change
Natural gas $ 12,270 $ 30,670
Aluminum 6,818 17,079
Copper 2,871 7,190

Any resulting changes in fair value would be recorded as adjustments to accumulated other
comprehensive loss, net of income taxes or recognized in net earnings, as appropriate. These
hypothetical losses would be partially offset by the benefit of lower prices paid or higher prices received
for the physical commaodities.

Foreign Currency Risk — Nucor is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through its operations in
Canada, Europe and Mexico. We periodically use derivative contracts to mitigate the risk of currency
fluctuations. Open foreign currency derivative contracts at December 31, 2023 and 2022 were
insignificant.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Nucor’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Nucor’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2023. In making this assessment, management used criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013).

Based on its assessment, management concluded that Nucor’s internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2023. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, has audited the effectiveness of Nucor’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2023 as stated in their report which is included herein.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Nucor Corporation
Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Nucor Corporation and its
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated
statements of earnings, of comprehensive income, of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023, including the related notes (collectively referred
to as the “consolidated financial statements”). We also have audited the Company's internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COS0).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basis for Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting appearing under Item 8. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on
our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal
control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
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external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the
consolidated financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit
committee and that (i) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial
statements and (ii) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing
a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Goodwill Impairment Assessments — Certain Reporting Units in the Steel Products Segment

As described in Notes 2 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company’s consolidated
goodwill balance was $3,969 million as of December 31, 2023, and the goodwill associated with the Steel
Products segment was $2,514 million. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, on the first day of the
fourth quarter, and whenever events or circumstances change that would make it more likely than not that
an impairment may have occurred. The evaluation of impairment involves comparing the current
estimated fair value of each reporting unit to the recorded value, including goodwill. For certain reporting
units, it is necessary to perform a quantitative analysis. In these instances, a discounted cash flow model
is used to determine the current estimated fair value of these reporting units. As disclosed by
management, significant assumptions used to determine the fair value of each reporting unit include (i)
expected cash flow for the five-year period following the testing date (including market share, sales
volumes and prices, raw material costs and other costs to produce and estimated capital needs); (ii) an
estimated terminal value using a terminal year growth rate determined based on the growth prospects of
the reporting unit; (iii) a discount rate based on management’s best estimate of the after-tax weighted-
average cost of capital; and (iv) a probability-weighted scenario approach by which varying cash flows are
assigned to certain scenarios based on the likelihood of occurrence.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the goodwill
impairment assessments for certain reporting units in the Steel Products segment is a critical audit matter
are (i) the significant judgment by management when developing the fair value estimates of certain
reporting units in the Steel Products segment; (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and
effort in performing procedures and evaluating management’s significant assumptions related to sales
prices, raw material costs, and discount rate for a certain reporting unit in the Steel Products segment;
sales prices, sales volumes, raw material costs, and discount rate for a certain reporting unit in the Steel
Products segment; and sales prices, sales volumes, and raw material costs for a certain reporting unit in
the Steel Products segment; and (iii) the audit effort involved the use of professionals with specialized
skill and knowledge.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with
forming our overall opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing
the effectiveness of controls relating to management’s goodwill impairment assessments, including
controls over the valuation of certain reporting units in the Steel Products segment. These procedures
also included, among others, (i) testing management’s process for developing the fair value estimates of
certain reporting units in the Steel Products segment; (ii) evaluating the appropriateness of the discounted
cash flow models; (iii) testing the completeness and accuracy of underlying data used in the discounted
cash flow models; and (iv) evaluating the reasonableness of the significant assumptions used by
management related to sales prices, sales volumes, raw material costs, and discount rates for certain
reporting units in the Steel Products segment. Evaluating management’s assumptions related to sales
prices, sales volumes, and raw material costs involved evaluating whether the assumptions used by
management were reasonable considering (i) the current and past performance of the reporting units; (ii)
the consistency with external market and industry data; and (iii) whether the assumptions were consistent
with evidence obtained in other areas of the audit. Professionals with specialized skill and knowledge
were used to assist in evaluating (i) the appropriateness of the discounted cash flow models and (ii) the
reasonableness of the discount rate assumptions.

/s! PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC
Charlotte, North Carolina
February 27, 2024

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1989.
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ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investments

Accounts receivable, net

Inventories, net

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Goodwill

Other intangible assets, net

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt and finance lease obligations
Accounts payable
Salaries, wages and related accruals

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands)

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt and finance lease obligations due after one year
Deferred credits and other liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

Equity

Nucor stockholders’ equity:
Common stock (800,000 shares authorized; 380,154 and 380,154
shares issued, respectively)
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes
Treasury stock (135,252 and 126,661 shares, respectively)
Total Nucor stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2023 2022
$ 6383298 $ 4,280,852
747,479 576,946
2,953,311 3,591,030
5,577,758 5,453,531
724,012 789,325
16,385,858 14,691,684
11,049,767 9,616,920
3,494 80,368
3,968,847 3,920,060
3,108,015 3,322,265
824,518 847,913
$ 35340,499 $ 32,479,210
$ 119211 $ 49,081
74,102 28,582
2,020,289 1,649,523
1,326,390 1,654,210
1,054,517 948,348
4,594,509 4,329,744
6,648,873 6,613,687
1,973,363 1,965,873
13,216,745 12,909,304
152,061 152,061
2,176,243 2,143,520
28,762,045 24,754,873
(162,072) (137,517)
(9,987,643) (8,498,243)
20,940,634 18,414,694
1,183,120 1,155,212
22,123,754 19,569,906
$ 35340,499 $ 32,479,210




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
Net sales $ 34,713,501 $ 41,512,467 $ 36,483,939
Costs, expenses and other:
Cost of products sold 26,899,107 29,009,187 25,458,525
Marketing, administrative and other expenses 1,584,052 1,997,178 1,706,609
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates (12,783) (10,714) (103,068)
Losses and impairments of assets — 101,756 62,161
Interest (income) expense, net (29,632) 170,216 158,854

28,440,744 31,267,623 27,283,081

Earnings before income taxes and

noncontrolling interests 6,272,757 10,244,844 9,200,858
Provision for income taxes 1,359,966 2,165,204 2,078,488
Net earnings before noncontrolling interests 4,912,791 8,079,640 7,122,370
Earnings attributable to noncontrolling

interests 387,990 472,303 294,909
Net earnings attributable to Nucor

stockholders $ 4524801 $§ 7,607,337 $§ 6,827,461
Net earnings per share:

Basic $ 18.05 $ 28.88 $ 23.23
Diluted $ 18.00 $ 2879 $ 23.16

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 2021

Net earnings before noncontrolling interests $ 4,912,791 §$ 8,079,640 $ 7,122,370
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net unrealized (loss) gain on hedging derivatives,
net of income taxes of ($16,500), $24,300, and $5,000
for 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively (52,077) 76,542 15,112
Reclassification adjustment for gain (loss) on
settlement of hedging derivatives included in net
earnings, net of income taxes of $3,800, ($16,400), and

($3,100)

for 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively 12,077 (51,554) (9,300)
Foreign currency translation (loss) gain, net of income

taxes of $0 for 2023, 2022 and 2021 21,041 (55,348) (4,041)

Adjustment to early retiree medical plan, net of income

taxes of ($1,538), $1,997, and $659 for 2023, 2022 and

2021, respectively (4,787) 6,328 1,875
Reclassification adjustment for (gain) loss on early

retiree medical plan included in net earnings, net of

income taxes of ($255), $671 and ($10) for 2023,

2022 and 2021, respectively (809) 1,797 (67)
(24,555) (22,235) 3,579
Comprehensive income 4,888,236 8,057,405 7,125,949
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling
interests 387,990 472,303 294,909
Comprehensive income attributable to Nucor
stockholders $ 4,500,246 $ 7,585,102 $ 6,831,040

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Operating activities:
Net earnings before noncontrolling interests
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Amortization
Stock-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
Distributions from affiliates
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Losses and impairments of assets
Changes in assets and liabilities (exclusive of acquisitions and
dispositions):
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Accounts payable
Federal income taxes
Salaries, wages and related accruals
Other operating activities
Cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Investment in and advances to affiliates
Sale of business
Disposition of plant and equipment
Acquisitions (net of cash acquired)
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from the sale of investments
Other investing activities
Cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Net change in short-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of discount
Repayment of long-term debt
Bond issuance costs
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Payment of tax withholdings on certain stock-based compensation
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Cash dividends
Acquisition of treasury stock
Proceeds from government incentives
Other financing activities
Cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash
equivalents - beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash
equivalents - end of year
Non-cash investing activity:
Change in accrued plant and equipment purchases

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
$ 4,912,791 $ 8,079,640 $ 7,122,370
930,585 826,692 735,406
237,730 234,942 129,157
130,162 136,834 135,775
21,419 (46,849) 11,665
33,621 57,071 200
(12,783) (10,714)  (103,068)
— 101,756 62,161
663,825 501,225  (1,392,084)
(75,042) 962,424  (2,307,336)
361,146 (496,234) 383,428
188,344 (337,359) 313,679
(290,859) 155,005 997,034
10,992 (92,379) 142,389
7,111,931 10,072,054 _ 6,230,776
(2,214,157)  (1,947,897)  (1,621,989)
(35,137) (258) (237)
— 99,681 —
14,907 32,277 19,401
(70,824)  (3,553,191)  (1,426,424)
(1,471,528)  (913,898)  (493,889)
1,317,308 590,173 648,887
(37,000) (9,596) 399
(2,496,431)  (5,702,709) _ (2,873,852)
(24,870) (58,642) 49,817
— 2,091,934 196,990
(10,000)  (1,111,000) —
— (13,138) —
11,731 22,852 145,255
(49,318) (64,079) (73,260)
(435,047)  (332,293)  (150,700)
(514,534)  (533,589)  (483,469)
(1,553,933)  (2,762,568) (3,276,088)
— 275,000 —
(16,840) (25,340) (11,424)
(2,592,811) _(2,510,863) _ (3,602,879)
2,883 (5,920) (316)
2,025,572 1,852,562 (246,271)
4,361,220 2,508,658 2,754,929
$ 6,386,792 $ 4,361,220 $ 2,508,658
$ 1053 $ 4568 $ 78375




NUCOR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, 2022 AND 2021

1. Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Nature of Operations

Nucor is principally a manufacturer of steel and steel products, as well as a scrap broker and
processor, with operating facilities and customers primarily located in North America.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include Nucor and its controlled subsidiaries, including Nucor-
Yamato Steel Company (Limited Partnership) (“Nucor-Yamato”), of which Nucor owns 51%; California
Steel Industries, Inc. (“CSI”), of which Nucor owns 51%; and Nucor-JFE Steel Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.
("NJSM"), of which Nucor owns 51%. All intercompany transactions are eliminated.

Distributions are made to noncontrolling interest partners in Nucor-Yamato in accordance with the
limited partnership agreement by mutual agreement of the general partners. At a minimum, sufficient
cash is distributed so that each partner may pay its U.S. federal and state income taxes.

Distributions are made to noncontrolling interest partners in CSl in accordance with the shareholder
agreement.

Distributions are made to the noncontrolling interest partner in NJSM in accordance with the joint
venture agreement.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are recorded at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value, and
have original maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. Cash and cash equivalents are
maintained primarily with a few high-credit quality financial institutions.

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments are recorded at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as available-for-sale are recorded as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Management determines the appropriate
classification of its investments at the time of purchase and re-evaluates such determination at each
balance sheet date.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The Company records any amount
required to reduce the carrying value of inventory to net realizable value as a charge to cost of products
sold. Scrap and scrap substitute costs are a very significant component of the raw material, semi-finished
and finished product inventory balances. The vast majority of the Company’s inventory is recorded on the
first-in, first-out method. Production costs are applied to semi-finished and finished product inventory from
the approximate period in which they are produced.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, except for property, plant and equipment acquired
through acquisitions which is recorded at acquisition date fair value. With the exception of our natural gas
wells, depreciation primarily is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Depletion of all capitalized costs associated with our natural gas producing properties is expensed
on a unit-of-production basis by individual field as the gas from the proved developed reserves is
produced. The costs of acquiring unproved natural gas leasehold acreage are capitalized. When proved
reserves are found on unproved properties, the associated leasehold cost is transferred to proved
properties. Unproved leases are reviewed periodically for any impairment triggering event, and a
valuation allowance is provided for any estimated decline in value. The costs of planned major
maintenance activities are capitalized as part of other current assets and amortized over the period until
the next scheduled major maintenance activity. All other repairs and maintenance activities are expensed
when incurred.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill is the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill is
not amortized but is tested annually for impairment and whenever events or circumstances change that
would make it more likely than not that an impairment may have occurred. We perform our annual
impairment analysis as of the first day of the fourth quarter each year. The evaluation of impairment
involves comparing the current estimated fair value of each reporting unit, which is a level below the
reportable segment, to the recorded value, including goodwill. When appropriate, Nucor performs a
qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit
is less than its carrying amount. For certain reporting units, it is necessary to perform a quantitative
analysis. In these instances, a discounted cash flow model is used to determine the current estimated fair
value of these reporting units. A number of significant assumptions and estimates are involved in the
application of the discounted cash flow model to forecast operating cash flows, which could include
market growth and market share, sales volumes and prices, raw materials and other costs to produce,
discount rate and estimated capital needs. Management considers historical experience and all available
information at the time the fair values of its reporting units are estimated. Assumptions in estimating future
cash flows are subject to a high degree of judgment and complexity. Changes in assumptions and
estimates may affect the fair value of goodwill and could result in impairment charges in future periods.

Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line or
accelerated basis.

Long-Lived Asset Impairments

We evaluate our property, plant and equipment and finite-lived intangible assets for potential
impairment on an individual asset basis or at the lowest level asset grouping for which independent cash
flows can be separately identified. Asset impairments are assessed whenever circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts of those productive assets could exceed their projected undiscounted cash flows.
When it is determined that impairment exists, the related assets are written down to their estimated fair
market value.

Equity Method Investments

Investments in joint ventures in which Nucor shares control over the financial and operating
decisions but in which Nucor is not the primary beneficiary are accounted for under the equity method.
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Each of the Company’s equity method investments is subject to a review for impairment if, and when,
circumstances indicate that a decline in fair value below its carrying amount may have occurred.
Examples of such circumstances include, but are not limited to, a significant deterioration in the earnings
performance or business prospects of the investee; missed financial projections; a significant adverse
change in the regulatory, tax, economic or technological environment of the investee; a significant
adverse change in the general market condition of either the geographic area or the industry in which the
investee operates; and recurring negative cash flows from operations. If management considers the
decline to be other than temporary, the Company would write down the related investment to its
estimated fair market value.

Revenue Recognition

Nucor recognizes revenue when obligations under the terms of contracts with our customers are
satisfied and collection is reasonably assured; generally, obligations under the terms of contracts are
satisfied upon shipment or when control is transferred. Revenue is measured as the amount of
consideration expected to be received in exchange for transferring the goods. In addition, revenue is
deferred when cash payments are received or due in advance of performance. See Note 23 for further
information.

Income Taxes

Nucor utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method,
deferred taxes are determined based on the temporary differences between the financial statement and
tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect during the years in which the
basis differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is more likely than not that some of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Nucor recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of
being sustained. Potential accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are
recognized as a component of interest expense and other expenses.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes the cost of stock-based compensation as an expense using fair value
measurement methods. The assumptions used to calculate the fair value of stock-based compensation
granted are evaluated and revised for new grants, as necessary, to reflect market conditions and
experience.

Foreign Currency Translation

For Nucor’s operations where the functional currency is other than the U.S. dollar, assets and
liabilities have been translated at year-end exchange rates, and income and expenses have been
translated using average exchange rates for the respective periods. Adjustments resulting from the
process of translating an entity’s financial statements into the U.S. dollar have been recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and are included in net earnings only upon sale or
liquidation of the underlying investments. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in
net earnings in the period they occur.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2023, new accounting guidance was issued that updates reportable segment
disclosure requirements by requiring disclosures of significant reportable segment expenses that are
regularly provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and included within each reported
measure of a segment's profit or loss. This new guidance also requires disclosure of the title and position
of the individual identified as the CODM and an explanation of how the CODM uses the reported
measures of a segment’s profit or loss in assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate
resources. The new guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2023, and
interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The new guidance is required to

62



be applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. Early adoption is also
permitted. This new guidance will likely result in additional required disclosures when adopted. The
Company is evaluating the impact that the adoption of this new guidance will have on its consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2023, new accounting guidance was issued related to income tax disclosures. The
new guidance requires disaggregated information about a reporting entity’s effective tax rate
reconciliation as well as additional information on income taxes paid. The new guidance is effective on a
prospective basis for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is also permitted
for annual financial statements that have not yet been issued or made available for issuance. This new
guidance will likely result in additional required disclosures when adopted. The Company is evaluating the
impact that the adoption of this new guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements.

3. Short-term Investments

Nucor held $747.5 million of short-term investments as of December 31, 2023 ($576.9 million as of
December 31, 2022). The investments held as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 consisted
mainly of several certificates of deposit (“CD’s”), commercial paper and corporate bonds, which were
classified as available-for-sale. Interest income on the CD’s and corporate bonds was recorded as
earned.

No realized or unrealized gains or losses were incurred in 2023, 2022 or 2021.

4. Accounts Receivable

An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained for estimated losses resulting from the inability of
our customers to make required payments. Accounts receivable are stated net of the allowance for
doubtful accounts of $127.2 million at December 31, 2023 ($200.2 million at December 31, 2022 and
$95.4 million at December 31, 2021).

5. Inventories

Inventories consisted of approximately 37% raw materials and supplies and 63% finished and semi-
finished products at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022. Nucor’s manufacturing process
consists of a continuous, vertically integrated process from which products are sold to customers at
various stages throughout the process. Since most steel products can be classified as either finished or
semi-finished products, these two categories of inventory are combined.

6. Leases

We lease certain equipment, office space and land. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less
are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheet.

Most leases include one or more options to renew, with renewal terms that can extend the lease
term from one to five years or sometimes more. The exercise of lease renewal options is at our sole
discretion and we consider these options in determining the lease term used to establish our right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities. Certain leases also include options to purchase the leased property. The
depreciable life of assets and leasehold improvements is limited by the expected lease term, unless there
is a transfer of title or a purchase option reasonably certain of exercise.

We determine that a contract contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. In evaluating whether we have the
right to control the use of an identified asset, we assess whether or not we have the right to control the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefit from the use of the
identified asset.
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As most of our leases do not provide an implicit rate, we use our incremental borrowing rate based
on the information available at the commencement date in determining the present value of lease
payments.

Certain of our lease agreements include payments that adjust periodically for consumption of goods
provided by the right-of-use asset in excess of contractually determined minimum amounts and for
inflation. These variable lease payments are not significant. Our lease agreements do not contain any
material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

Supplemental statement of earnings information related to our leases is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

Statement of Earnings Classification 2023 2022 2021
Operating lease cost Cost of products sold $ 26,750 $ 23666 $ 21,503
Operating lease cost Marketing, administrative and
other expenses 3,199 3,239 2,989

Total operating
lease cost $ 29949 $ 26,905 $ 24,492
Finance lease cost:
Amortization of leased Cost of products sold

assets $ 19171 $ 19113 $ 13,513
Interest on lease Interest expense, net
liabilities 11,964 12,229 10,670
Total finance lease
cost $ 31135 § 31,342 $§ 24,183
Total lease cost $ 61084 $ 58247 $ 48,675
Supplemental cash flow information related to our leases is as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 2021
Cash paid for amounts included in measurement of lease
liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 30230 $ 26,518 $ 27,310
Operating cash flows from finance leases $ 11,964 $ 12,229 $ 10,670
Financing cash flows from finance leases $ 16,840 $ 16,008 $ 11,425
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Additions to right-of-use assets obtained from
Operating lease liabilities $ 26,955 §$ 33,924 §$ 19,711
Finance lease liabilities $ 16,473 $ 27,030 $ 99,535
Supplemental balance sheet information related to our leases is as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
Balance Sheet Classification 2023 2022
Assets:
Operating lease Other assets $ 102,878 $ 101,499
Finance lease Property, plant and equipment, net 166,780 169,076
Total leased $ 269,658 $ 270,575
Liabilities:
Current operating Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities $ 25405 $ 23,621
Current finance Current portion of long-term debt and
finance lease obligations 14,102 18,582
Non-current operating Deferred credits and other liabilities 81,673 81,455
Non-current finance Long-term debt and finance lease
obligations due after one year 174,787 169,804
Total leased $ 295967 $ 293,462
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Weighted-average remaining lease term and discount rate for our leases are as follows:

December 31, 2023

Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating leases 7.7 Years
Weighted-average remaining lease term - finance leases 14.3 Years
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 4.0%
Weighted-average discount rate - finance leases 11.7%

The reason for the substantial weighted-average discount rate — finance leases, of 11.7%, is due to
Nucor’s past accounting for the respective finance leases under the former accounting guidance for
capital leases. Pursuant to the former lease accounting guidance, the recognition of a capital lease asset
and associated capital lease liability could not exceed the fair market value of the leased asset at the
lease commencement. Accordingly, the incremental borrowing rate was adjusted upward so that the
present value of the minimum lease payments would equal the fair value of the asset.

Maturities of lease liabilities by year for our leases were as follows as of December 31, 2023 (in
thousands):

Operating Leases Finance Leases
Maturities of lease liabilities, year ending December 31,
2024 $ 29,014 $ 24,890
2025 22,032 22,391
2026 18,240 20,456
2027 13,569 19,860
2028 11,334 20,059
Thereafter 33,717 160,729
Total lease payments $ 127,906 $ 268,385
Less imputed interest (20,828) (79,496)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 107,078 $ 188,889

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Net
Property, Plant and Equipment by major asset class consisted of the following at December 31, 2023 (in
thousands):

December 31,

2023 2022

Land and improvements, net $ 1,183,173 $ 905,598
Buildings and improvements 2,550,959 2,230,672
Machinery and equipment 16,328,126 15,125,653
Proved oil and gas properties 558,703 558,486
Leasehold interest in unproved oil and gas properties 96,000 96,000
Construction in process and equipment deposits 2,121,788 1,815,638

22,838,749 20,732,047
Less accumulated depreciation (11,788,982) (11,115,127)

$ 11,049,767 $ 9,616,920

The estimated useful lives primarily range from five to 25 years for land improvements, four to 40
years for buildings and improvements and two to 15 years for machinery and equipment. The useful life
for proved oil and gas properties is based on the unit-of-production method and varies by well.
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Raw Materials Segment Asset Impairments

In the second quarter of 2021, Nucor decided that it would not develop a portion of its unproved oil
and natural gas properties (“Portion A”) within the contractually specified time period related to Portion A.
As a result of this decision, the Company forfeited its leasehold rights for Portion A. The Company
recorded a charge of $42.0 million to write off the value of Portion A that is included in losses and
impairments of assets in the consolidated statement of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2021.
The decision not to develop Portion A was heavily influenced by the approaching deadline to commence
development combined with Portion A’s expected near-term profitability not achieving management’s
desired returns relative to the cost of development. A significant portion of the Company’s remaining
leasehold interest in unproved oil and natural gas properties are held by production. The carrying value of
the remaining portions of unproved oil and natural gas properties was $96.0 million at December 31,
2021.

In the fourth quarter of 2022, Nucor decided that it is unlikely to develop the remaining portions of its
unproved oil and natural gas properties. As a result of this decision, Nucor recorded a $96.0 million
impairment charge for the entire balance of those assets, which are included in the raw materials
segment. The impairment charge is included in losses and impairments of assets in the consolidated
statement of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2022. We retain ownership of our leasehold
interest in unproved oil and natural gas properties. The carrying value of the leasehold interest in
unproved oil and gas properties was zero at December 31, 2022.

Financial Assistance Related to Sheet Mill in West Virginia

Nucor received $275.0 million of financial assistance in 2022 from the West Virginia Department of
Economic Development in connection with Nucor’s planned construction of Nucor Steel West Virginia
(NSWV), a sheet mill in Mason County, West Virginia. Nucor will earn the financial assistance if, by the
Completion Date (defined in the agreement as on or before December 31, 2026), Nucor meets certain
capital investment, full-time jobs creation and total annual payroll criteria. Nucor believes that it is
probable we will meet these conditions. Nucor spent $179.7 million in 2022 and $95.3 million in 2023 in
qualifying expenditures for the construction of NSWV, and that amount is included as a contra-asset in
construction in process and equipment deposits that are a part of property, plant and equipment, net on
the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2023. When the NSWYV assets are placed into service,
the effect of depreciating the assets constructed with the financial assistance will decrease depreciation
expense in the statement of earnings.

8. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The change in the net carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022 by segment is as follows:

(in thousands)

Steel Steel Raw

Mills Products Materials Total
Balance, December 31, 2021 $ 613,175 $ 1,439,874 $ 774295 $ 2,827,344
Acquisitions 62,011 1,087,906 — 1,149,917
Divestitures — — (39,466) (39,466)
Translation — (17,735) — (17,735)
Balance, December 31, 2022 675,186 2,510,045 734,829 3,920,060
Acquisitions — (2,120) 44,660 42,540
Translation — 6,247 — 6,247

Balance, December 31, 2023 $ 675,186 $ 2,514,172 § 779,489 § 3,968,847

The majority of goodwill is not tax deductible.
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Intangible assets with estimated useful lives of five to 25 years are amortized on a straight-line or
accelerated basis and are comprised of the following:

(in thousands)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Customer relationships $ 4,190,156 $ 1,295,778 $ 4,174,724 $ 1,087,834
Trademarks and trade names 372,153 168,363 364,106 142,363
Other 109,747 99,900 109,746 96,114

$ 4672056 % 1,564,041 $ 4,648,576 § 1,326,311

Intangible asset amortization expense was $237.7 million in 2023 ($234.9 million in 2022 and
$129.2 million in 2021). Annual amortization expense is estimated to be $235.1 million in 2024, $234.1
million in 2025, $231.1 million in 2026, $227.9 million in 2027 and $204.6 million in 2028.

The Company completed its annual goodwill impairment testing as of the first day of the fourth
quarter for each of 2023, 2022 and 2021 and concluded that as of each such date there was no
impairment of goodwill for any of its reporting units.

There are no significant historical accumulated impairment charges, by segment or in the
aggregate, related to goodwill.

9. Equity Investments

The carrying value of our equity investments in domestic and foreign companies was $479.5 million
at December 31, 2023 ($562.3 million at December 31, 2022), and is recorded in other assets in the
consolidated balance sheets.

NuMit

Nucor owns a 50% economic and voting interest in NuMit LLC (“NuMit”). NuMit owns 100% of the
equity interest in Steel Technologies LLC, an operator of 32 sheet processing facilities located throughout
the United States, Canada and Mexico. Nucor accounts for its investment in NuMit (on a one-month lag
basis) under the equity method, as control and risk of loss are shared equally between the members of
NuMit. Nucor’s investment in NuMit was $431.9 million at December 31, 2023 ($423.9 million at
December 31, 2022). Nucor received distributions of $32.9 million, $55.6 million, and $0.2 million from
NuMit during 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Nucor-JFE Steel Mexico

Nucor previously owned a 50% economic and voting interest in Nucor-JFE Steel Mexico, S. de R.L.
de C.V. (“NJSM”), a 50-50 joint venture with JFE Steel Corporation (“JFE”) of Japan. In October 2023,
Nucor purchased an additional 1% interest in NJSM to bring the total investment to a 51% controlling
interest. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2023, Nucor has accounted for NJSM on a consolidated basis.
See Note 25 for purchase price allocation information related to the step acquisition. Nucor’s investment
in NJSM was $91.8 million at December 31, 2022.

All Equity Investments

Nucor reviews its equity investments for impairment if and when circumstances indicate that a
decline in fair value below their carrying amounts may have occurred. There were no triggering events
that caused management to pursue additional testing of our equity method investments in 2023.
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10. Current Liabilities

Book overdrafts, included in accounts payable in the consolidated balance sheets, were $159.0
million at December 31, 2023 ($163.6 million at December 31, 2022). Dividends payable, included in
accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, were $133.6 million at
December 31, 2023 ($130.5 million at December 31, 2022).

11. Debt and Other Financing Arrangements

December 31,

(in thousands) 2023 2022
Industrial revenue bonds due from 2025 to 2061 () $ 1,349,230 $ 1,349,230
NJSM notes due from 2024 to 2026 @ 80,000 —
Notes, 2.000%, due 2025 500,000 500,000
Notes, 3.950%, due 2025 500,000 500,000
Notes, 4.300%, due 2027 500,000 500,000
Term notes, 2.950%, due 2027 ©® 58,040 67,866
Notes, 3.950%, due 2028 500,000 500,000
Notes, 2.700%, due 2030 500,000 500,000
Notes, 3.125%, due 2032 550,000 550,000
Notes, 6.400%, due 2037 543,331 543,331
Notes, 5.200%, due 2043 338,133 338,133
Notes, 4.400%, due 2048 329,219 329,219
Notes, 3.850%, due 2052 550,000 550,000
Notes, 2.979%, due 2055 439,312 439,312
Finance lease obligations 188,889 188,386
Total long-term debt and finance lease obligations 6,926,154 6,855,477
Less premium on debt exchange 171,162 169,737
Less debt issuance costs 32,017 43,471
Total amounts outstanding 6,722,975 6,642,269
Less current maturities of long-term debt @ (3) 60,000 10,000
Less current portion of finance lease obligations 14,102 18,582

Total long-term debt and finance lease obligations due after

one year $ 6,648,873 $ 6,613,687

(1) The industrial revenue bonds had variable rates ranging from 4.20% to 5.10% at December 31, 2023 and 3.65%
to 4.28% at December 31, 2022.

(2) The NJSM notes relate to borrowings of NJSM under its General Financing Agreement and Promissory Note (the
“NJSM Facility”). The maximum amount NJSM could borrow under the NJSM facility was $80.0 million at
December 31, 2023. The NJSM facility is uncommitted. Borrowings under the NJSM facility had variable rates
ranging from 2.46% to 6.78% at December 31, 2023.

(3) The term notes were assumed in conjunction with the acquisition of 51% ownership of CSI on February 1, 2022.
The original principal amount of the notes was $101.0 million, with a fixed rate of 2.95% until September 30,
2026 when they will convert to a floating rate. Payments of $2.5 million are due quarterly along with accrued
interest. The term notes mature on March 31, 2027. (See Note 25.)

Annual aggregate long-term debt maturities are: $60.0 million in 2024, $1.01 billion in 2025, $61.5
million in 2026, $528.0 million in 2027, $549.5 million in 2028 and $4.53 billion thereafter.

Nucor's $1.75 billion revolving credit facility remains undrawn and has a maturity date of November
5, 2026. Costs associated with the amendment were immaterial. The unsecured revolving credit facility
provides up to $1.75 billion in revolving loans and allows up to $500.0 million in additional commitments
at Nucor’s election in accordance with the terms set forth in the credit agreement. Up to $100.0 million of
the credit facility is available for the issuance of letters of credit and up to $500.0 million is available for
the issuance of revolving loans for Nucor subsidiaries in accordance with the terms set forth in the credit
agreement. The credit facility provides for a pricing grid based upon the credit rating of Nucor’s senior
unsecured long-term debt and, alternatively, interest rates quoted by lenders in connection with
competitive bidding. The credit facility includes customary financial and other covenants, including a limit
on the ratio of funded debt to total capital of 60%, a limit on Nucor’s ability to pledge the Company’s
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assets and a limit on consolidations, mergers and sales of assets. As of December 31, 2023, Nucor’s
funded debt to total capital ratio was 24%, and Nucor was in compliance with all covenants under the
credit facility. No borrowings were outstanding under the credit facility as of December 31, 2023 and
2022.

On March 11, 2022, Nucor completed the issuance and sale of $550.0 million aggregate principal
amount of its 3.125% Notes due 2032 (the “2032 Notes”) and $550.0 million aggregate principal amount
of its 3.850% Notes due 2052 (the “2052 Notes” and, together with the 2032 Notes, the “2032/2052
Notes”). The net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052 Notes were used along with cash
on hand to redeem all of the outstanding $600.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 4.125% Notes
due 2022 (the “2022 Notes”) and $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 4.000% Notes due
2023 (the “2023 Notes”) pursuant to the terms of the indenture governing the 2022 Notes and the 2023
Notes. The net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052 Notes were $1.09 billion, after
expenses and the underwriting discount. Costs of $15.3 million associated with the issuance and sale of
the 2032/2052 Notes have been capitalized and will be amortized over the life of the March 2022 Notes.

On April 25, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $500.0 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of the
2023 Notes using a portion of the net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052 Notes. On
August 15, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $600.0 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of the 2022
Notes using the remaining portion of the net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052
Notes.

On May 23, 2022, Nucor completed the issuance and sale of $500.0 million aggregate principal
amount of its 3.950% Notes due 2025 (the “2025 Notes”) and $500.0 million aggregate principal amount
of its 4.300% Notes due 2027 (the “2027 Notes” and, together with the 2025 Notes, the “2025/2027
Notes”). The net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2025/2027 Notes were used for general
corporate purposes and to pay a portion of the purchase price for the acquisition of C.H.l. The net
proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2025/2027 Notes were $991.9 million, after expenses and the
underwriting discount. Costs of $5.9 million associated with the issuance and sale of the 2025/2027 Notes
have been capitalized and will be amortized over the life of the 2025/2027 Notes.

Harris Steel has credit facilities totaling approximately $18.7 million, with no outstanding borrowings
at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

The business of Nucor Trading S.A. is financed by uncommitted trade credit arrangements with a
number of European banking institutions. As of December 31, 2023, Nucor Trading S.A. had outstanding
borrowings of $24.2 million ($49.1 million as of December 31, 2022). NJSM maintains an uncommitted
trade credit agreement with three banking institutions. As of December 31, 2023, NJSM had outstanding
borrowings of $95.0 million under the trade credit agreement. Nucor Trading S.A. and NJSM's credit
arrangements are presented in short-term debt in the consolidated balance sheet .

Letters of credit totaling $57.7 million were outstanding as of December 31, 2023 ($43.5 million as
of December 31, 2022), related to certain obligations, including workers’ compensation, utilities deposits
and credit arrangements by Nucor Trading S.A. for commitments to purchase inventories.

12. Capital Stock

The par value of Nucor's common stock is $0.40 per share and there are 800 million shares
authorized. In addition, 250,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $4.00 per share, are authorized, with
preferences, rights and restrictions as may be fixed by the Board of Directors. There are no shares of
preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Dividends declared per share were $2.070 in 2023 ($2.010 in 2022 and $1.715 per share in 2021).

The Company repurchased approximately $1.55 billion of its common stock in 2023 (approximately
$2.76 billion in 2022 and $3.28 billion in 2021).
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On May 11, 2023, the Company announced that the Board of Directors had approved a share
repurchase program under which the Company is authorized to repurchase up to $4.00 billion of the
Company’s common stock and terminated all previously authorized share repurchase programs. Share
repurchases are made from time to time in the open market at prevailing market prices or through private
transactions or block trades. The timing and amount of repurchases will depend on market conditions,
share price, applicable legal requirements and other factors. The share repurchase authorization is
discretionary and has no expiration date. At December 31, 2023, the Company had approximately $3.32
billion available for share repurchases under the program authorized by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

13. Derivative Financial Instruments

The following tables summarize information regarding Nucor’s derivative financial instruments (in
thousands):

Fair Value at
December 31,

Fair Value of Derivative Financial
Instruments Consolidated Balance Sheet Location 2023 2022

Asset derivatives designated
as hedging instruments:

Commaodity contracts Other current assets $ — $ 17,200
Commodity contracts Other assets — 17,200
Total asset derivatives $ — $ 34400

Liability derivatives designated
as hedging instruments:
Commodity contracts Accrued expenses and other current liabilities  $ (14,700) $ —
Commodity contracts Deferred credits and other liabilities (3,600) —

Total liability derivatives
designated as hedging
instruments (18,300) —
Liability derivatives not designated
as hedging instruments:
Commodity contracts Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (4,382) (501)
Foreign exchange contracts Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (529) (869)
Total liability derivatives not
designated as hedging
instruments (4,911) (1,370)
Total liability derivatives $ (23211) $ (1,370)

The Effect of Derivative Financial Instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments for the Year Ended December 31, (in thousands)

Amount of Gain or
(Loss), Net of Tax,

Amount of Gain or (Loss), Reclassified from Amount of Gain or (Loss),
Statement of Net of Tax, Recognized Accumulated OCI into Net of Tax, Recognized
Derivatives in Cash Flow Earnings in OCI on Derivatives Earnings on Derivatives in Earnings on Derivatives
Hedging Relationships Location (Effective Portion) (Effective Portion) (Ineffective Portion)
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021
Commodity contracts Gy praeliziz
sold $ (52,077) $76542 $15112 $ (12,077) $51554 $9300 $ — $ — §$§ —
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Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments for the Year Ended December 31, (in thousands)

Amount of Gain or (Loss)

Derivatives Not Designated Statement of Earnings Recognized in Earnings on

as Hedging Instruments Location Derivatives

2023 2022 2021
Commodity contracts Cost of products sold $ 3300 $ 3311 $ (27,777)
Foreign exchange contracts Cost of products sold (856) 11,641 8,114
Total $ 2444 $ 14952 $§ (19,663)

At December 31, 2023, natural gas swaps covering approximately 44.0 million MMBTUs (extending
through December 2026) were outstanding.

14. Fair Value Measurements

The following table summarizes information regarding Nucor’s financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value. Nucor does not have any non-financial assets or liabilities that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis.

(in thousands)
Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Carrying Markets for Other Significant
Amount in Identical Observable Unobservable
Consolidated Assets Inputs Inputs
Description Balance Sheets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
As of December 31, 2023
Assets:
Cash equivalents $ 5,724,549 5,724,549 — —
Short-term investments 747,479 747,479 — —
Derivative contracts — — — —
Restricted cash and cash
equivalents 3,494 3,494 — —
Other assets 47,020 4,245 — 42,775
Total assets $ 6,522,542 6,479,767 —  $ 42,775
Liabilities:
Derivative contracts $ (23,211) — (23,211) $ —
As of December 31, 2022
Assets:
Cash equivalents $ 3,182,631 3,182,631 — % —
Short-term investments 576,946 576,946 — —
Derivative contracts 34,400 — 34,400 —
Restricted cash and cash
equivalents 80,368 80,368 — —
Total assets $ 3,874,345 3,839,945 34,400 $ —
Liabilities:
Derivative contracts $ (1,370) — (1,370) $ —
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Fair value measurements for Nucor’s cash equivalents, short-term investments and restricted cash
and cash equivalents and an investment in a publicly traded nuclear power equipment manufacturer are
classified under Level 1 because such measurements are based on quoted market prices in active
markets for identical assets. Fair value measurements for Nucor’s derivatives, which are typically
commodity or foreign exchange contracts, are classified under Level 2 because such measurements are
based on published market prices for similar assets or are estimated based on observable inputs such as
interest rates, yield curves, credit risks, spot and future commaodity prices, and spot and future exchange
rates. Fair value measurements of Nucor's investments in privately held companies, most of which is in a
nuclear fusion technology company, are classified under Level 3 because such measurements are based
on unobservable inputs that indicate a change in fair value, including the transaction price in the event of
a change in ownership of the investee (e.g. the sale of other investors' interest in the company) or the
transaction price in the event of additional equity issuances of the investee. There were no transfers
between levels in the fair value hierarchy for the periods presented.

The fair value of short-term and long-term debt, including current maturities, was approximately
$6.22 billion at December 31, 2023 (approximately $5.93 billion at December 31, 2022). The debt fair
value estimates are classified under Level 2 because such estimates are based on readily available
market prices of our debt at December 31, 2023 and 2022, or similar debt with the same maturities,
ratings and interest rates.

15. Contingencies

We are from time to time a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in
the ordinary course of business. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, we record
reserves when it is probable a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably
estimated. We do not believe that any of these proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, would be
expected to have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
Nucor maintains liability insurance with self-insurance limits for certain risks.

16. Stock-Based Compensation

Overview

The Company maintains the Nucor Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (the
“Omnibus Plan”) under which the Company may award stock-based compensation to key employees,
officers and non-employee directors. The Company’s stockholders approved an amendment and
restatement of the Omnibus Plan on May 14, 2020. The Company also amended the Omnibus Plan on
September 14, 2023. The Omnibus Plan, as amended and restated, permits the award of stock options,
restricted stock units, restricted shares and other stock-based awards for up to 19.0 million shares of the
Company’s common stock. As of December 31, 2023, 4.3 million shares remained available for award
under the Omnibus Plan.

The Company also maintains a number of inactive plans under which stock-based awards remain
outstanding but no further awards may be made. As of December 31, 2023, 0.1 million shares were
reserved for issuance upon the future settlement of outstanding awards under such inactive plans.

Stock Options

Stock options may be granted to Nucor’s key employees, officers and non-employee directors with
exercise prices at 100% of the market value on the date of the grant. The stock options granted are
generally exercisable at the end of three years and have a term of 10 years.
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A summary of activity under Nucor’s stock option plans is as follows (shares in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Number of shares under stock options:
Outstanding at beginning of year 837 $ 66.76 1,186 $ 55.58 3,916 $ 50.03
Granted 91 $133.03 98 $130.71 138 $110.74
Exercised (210) $ 55.85 (447) $ 51.14 (2,868) $ 50.65
Canceled — 3 — — $ — — $ —
Outstanding at end of year 718 $ 78.33 837 $ 66.76 1,186 $ 55.58
Stock options exercisable at end of year 433 $ 48.33 313 $ 59.60 523 $ 54.71

The total intrinsic value of stock options (the amount by which the stock price exceeded the exercise
price of the stock option on the date of exercise) that were exercised during 2023 was $24.5 million
($32.2 million in 2022 and $67.8 million in 2021).

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2023
(shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average  Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$40.00 - $60.00 379 6.3years $§ 43.06 379 $ 43.06
$60.01 - $75.00 33 44years $§ 65.80 33 $§ 65.80
$75.01 - $100.00 — O0.Oyears $ — — 9 —
$100.01 - $120.00 122 7.4 vyears $ 110.74 15 § 110.74
$120.01 - $133.03 184 89years $ 131.86 6 $ 130.71
$40.00 - $133.03 718 7.1years $ 78.33 433 $ 48.33

As of December 31, 2023, the total aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and stock
options exercisable was $68.7 million and $54.5 million, respectively.

The grant date fair value of stock options granted was $49.62 per share in 2023 ($45.27 per share
in 2022 and $32.30 per share in 2021). The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes options
pricing model with the following assumptions:

2023 2022 2021
Exercise price $ 13303 $ 13071 $ 110.74
Expected dividend yield 1.53% 1.53% 1.46%
Expected stock price volatility 37.55% 35.77% 32.86%
Risk-free interest rate 3.66% 2.98% 1.28%
Expected life (years) 6.5 6.5 6.5
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Stock options granted to employees who are eligible for retirement on the date of the grant are
expensed immediately since these awards vest upon retirement from the Company. Retirement, for
purposes of vesting in these stock options, means termination of employment after satisfying age and
years of service requirements. Similarly, stock options granted to employees who will become retirement-
eligible prior to the end of the vesting term are expensed over the period through which the employee will
become retirement-eligible. Compensation expense for stock options granted to employees who will not
become retirement-eligible prior to the end of the vesting term is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period. Compensation expense for stock options was $4.7 million in 2023 ($5.4 million in 2022
and $3.8 million in 2021). As of December 31, 2023, unrecognized compensation expense related to
stock options was $2.0 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.9
years.

Restricted Stock Units

Nucor annually grants restricted stock units (“‘RSUs”) to key employees, officers and non-employee
directors. The RSUs granted to key employees and officers vest and are converted to common stock in
three equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date, provided that a portion
of the RSUs awarded to an officer prior to 2018 vest only upon the officer’s retirement. Retirement, for
purposes of vesting in these RSUs only, means termination of employment with approval of the
Compensation and Executive Development Committee of the Board of Directors after satisfying age and
years of service requirements. RSUs granted to a non-employee director are fully vested on the grant
date and are payable to the non-employee director in the form of common stock after the termination of
the director’s service on the Board of Directors.

RSUs granted to employees who are eligible for retirement on the date of the grant are expensed
immediately, and RSUs granted to employees who will become retirement-eligible prior to the end of the
vesting term are expensed over the period through which the employee will become retirement-eligible
since these awards vest upon retirement from the Company. Compensation expense for RSUs granted to
employees who will not become retirement-eligible prior to the end of the vesting term is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period.

Cash dividend equivalents are paid to holders of RSUs each quarter. Dividend equivalents paid on
RSUs expected to vest are recognized as a reduction in retained earnings.

The fair value of an RSU is determined based on the closing price of Nucor’'s common stock on the
date of the grant.

A summary of Nucor’'s RSU activity is as follows (shares in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Restricted stock units:
Unvested at beginning of year 1,003 $ 98.66 1,167 $ 60.45 1,830 $ 47.33

Granted 831 $ 133.03 774 $ 130.71 397 $ 110.74
Vested (873) $ 102.79 (916) $  77.21 (997) $ 57.09
Canceled (14) $ 106.76 (22) $ 93.73 (63) $ 49.54
Unvested at end of year 947 $ 124.89 1,003 $ 98.66 1,167 $ 6045

Compensation expense for RSUs was $88.1 million in 2023 ($80.4 million in 2022 and $52.1 million
in 2021). The total fair value of shares vested during 2023 was $120.7 million ($120.0 million in 2022 and
$109.5 million in 2021). As of December 31, 2023, unrecognized compensation expense related to
unvested RSUs was $83.9 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
1.3 years.
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Restricted Stock Awards

Prior to their expiration effective December 31, 2017, the Nucor Corporation Senior Officers Long-
Term Incentive Plan and the Nucor Corporation Senior Officers Annual Incentive Plan authorized the
award of shares of common stock to officers subject to certain conditions and restrictions. Effective
January 1, 2018, the Company adopted supplements to the Omnibus Plan with terms that permit the
award of shares of common stock to officers subject to the conditions and restrictions described below,
which are substantially similar to those of the expired Senior Officers Long-Term Incentive Plan and
Senior Officers Annual Incentive Plan. The expired Senior Officers Long-Term Incentive Plan, together
with the applicable supplement, is referred to below as the “LTIP,” and the expired Senior Officers Annual
Incentive Plan, together with the applicable supplement, is referred to below as the “AlP.”

The LTIP provides for the award of shares of restricted common stock at the end of each LTIP
performance measurement period at no cost to officers if certain financial performance goals are met
during the period. One-third of the LTIP restricted stock award vests upon each of the first three
anniversaries of the award date or, if earlier, upon the officer’s attainment of age 55 while employed by
Nucor. Although participants are entitled to cash dividends and may vote such awarded shares, the sale
or transfer of such shares is limited during the restricted period.

The AIP provides for the payment of annual cash incentive awards. An AIP participant may elect,
however, to defer payment of up to one-half of an AIP award. In such event, the deferred AIP award is
converted into common stock units and credited with a deferral incentive, in the form of additional
common stock units, equal to 25% of the number of common stock units attributable to the deferred AIP
award. Common stock units attributable to deferred AIP awards are fully vested. Common stock units
credited as a deferral incentive vest upon the AIP participant’s attainment of age 55 while employed by
Nucor. Vested common stock units are paid to AIP participants in the form of shares of common stock
following their termination of employment with Nucor.

A summary of Nucor’s restricted stock activity under the AIP and the LTIP is as follows (shares in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 2021
Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Restricted stock units and restricted
stock awards:

Unvested at beginning of year 209 $ 108.55 107 $ 57.17 127 $ 49.94
Granted 414 $ 171.38 465 $ 128.62 262 $ 65.61
Vested (406) $ 152.68 (356) $ 119.29 (273) $ 62.17
Canceled (7) $ 154.05 (7) $ 113.86 (9) $ 4875
Unvested at end of year 210 $ 145.55 209 $ 108.55 107 $ 57.17

Compensation expense for common stock and common stock units awarded under the AIP and the
LTIP is recorded over the performance measurement and vesting periods based on the anticipated
number and market value of shares of common stock and common stock units to be awarded.
Compensation expense for anticipated awards based upon Nucor’s financial performance, exclusive of
amounts payable in cash, was $37.8 million in 2023 ($51.0 million in 2022 and $79.9 million in 2021). The
total fair value of shares vested during 2023 was $68.8 million ($45.9 million in 2022 and $19.6 million in
2021). As of December 31, 2023, unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested restricted
stock awards was $7.5 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.6
years.

17. Employee Benefit Plans

Nucor makes contributions to a Profit Sharing and Retirement Savings Plan for qualified employees
based on the profitability of the Company. Nucor’s expense for these benefits totaled $611.1 million in
2023 ($994.2 million in 2022 and $869.9 million in 2021). The related liability for these benefits is included
in salaries, wages and related accruals in the consolidated balance sheets.
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Nucor also has a medical plan covering certain eligible early retirees. The unfunded obligation,
included in deferred credits and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, totaled $33.2 million at
December 31, 2023 ($25.6 million at December 31, 2022). The expense associated with this early retiree
medical plan totaled $0.3 million in 2023 ($2.3 million in 2022 and $1.8 million in 2021). The discount rate
used by Nucor in determining its benefit obligation was 5.01% in 2023 (5.24% in 2022 and 2.81% in
2021). The health care cost increase trend rate used was 6.8% in 2023 (6.3% in 2022 and 5.3% in 2021).
The health care cost increase trend rate is projected to decline gradually to 4.0% by 2049.

18. Interest (Income) Expense

The components of net interest (income) expense are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
Interest expense $ 245954 $ 218,911 $ 163,121
Interest income (275,586) (48,695) (4,267)
Interest expense, net $ (29,632) $§ 170,216 $ 158,854

Interest paid was $257.1 million in 2023 ($229.5 million in 2022 and $170.7 million in 2021).

19. Income Taxes

Components of earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling interests are as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
United States $ 6,203,409 $ 10,212,850 $ 9,076,921
Foreign 69,348 31,994 123,937

$ 6,272,757 $ 10,244,844 $ 9,200,858

The provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
Current:
Federal $ 1,127,369 $ 1,804,848 $ 1,753,376
State 194,186 304,323 293,752
Foreign 16,992 12,882 19,695
Total current 1,338,547 2,212,053 2,066,823
Deferred:
Federal 20,621 77,961 10,916
State (18,738)  (120,440) (3,042)
Foreign 19,536 (4,370) 3,791
Total deferred 21,419 (46,849) 11,665
Total provision for income taxes $ 1,359,966 $ 2,165,204 $ 2,078,488
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A reconciliation of the federal statutory tax rate (21%) to the total provision is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021

Taxes computed at statutory rate 21.00% 21.00% 21.00%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 2.14% 1.41% 2.49%
Federal research credit -0.51% -0.10% -0.07%
Equity in losses of foreign joint venture 0.17% 0.11% —

Foreign rate differential 0.10% — -0.03%
Noncontrolling interests -1.27% -0.85% -0.67%
Other, net 0.05% -0.44% -0.13%
Provision for income taxes 21.68% 21.13% 22.59%

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the effective tax rate on continuing operations was 21.68%
compared to 21.13% for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The 2023 effective tax rate includes an increased impact, when compared to 2022, from the Federal
research credit and Noncontrolling interests lines. The 2022 effective tax rate included a net tax benefit of
$76.4 million (-0.75%) for state tax credits, and a net tax benefit of $88.0 million (-0.86%) related to a
change in the valuation allowance of a state deferred tax asset. Both items are included in the State
income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit line.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities resulted from the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2023 2022
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued liabilities and reserves $ 252,794 $ 236,132
Allowance for doubtful accounts 39,102 55,160
Inventory 141,460 143,384
Research and development expenditures 133,935 42,109
Post-retirement benefits 8,571 7,997
Hedges 5,146 —
Net operating loss carryforward 93,794 30,295
Tax credit carryforwards 215,630 162,498
Other deferred tax assets 12,016 10,894
Valuation allowance (210,084) (77,510)
Total deferred tax assets 692,364 610,959
Deferred tax liabilities:
Holdbacks and amounts not due under contracts (15,714) (16,016)
Hedges — (7,426)
Intangibles (706,174) (724,450)
Property, plant and equipment (1,170,080) (1,050,579)
Other deferred tax liabilities (48,579) (51,726)
Book/Tax differences on debt modifications (43,869) (45,458)
Total deferred tax liabilities (1,984,416) (1,895,655)
Total net deferred tax liabilities $ (1,292,052) $ (1,284,696)

Non-current deferred tax assets included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets were
$40.7 million at December 31, 2023 ($19.3 million at December 31, 2022). Non-current deferred tax
liabilities included in deferred credits and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets were $1.33
billion at December 31, 2023 ( $1.30 billion at December 31, 2022). Current federal and state income
taxes receivable included in other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets were $346.1 million
at December 31, 2023 ($564.7 million at December 31, 2022). Nucor paid $1.06 billion in net federal,
state and foreign income taxes in 2023 ($2.63 billion and $1.68 billion in 2022 and 2021, respectively).

Nucor has not recognized deferred tax liabilities on its investment in foreign subsidiaries with
undistributed earnings that satisfy the permanent reinvestment requirements (the deferred tax liabilities

77



on the investments not permanently reinvested are immaterial). While Nucor considers future earnings to
be permanently reinvested, it is expected that potential future distributions will likely be nontaxable. If this
assertion of permanent reinvestment were to change, there may be deferred tax liabilities related to the
withholding tax impacts on the actual distribution of certain cumulative undistributed foreign earnings, but
the Company believes this amount to be immaterial.

State NOL carryforwards were $185.1 million at December 31, 2023 ($285.4 million at December
31, 2022). If unused, they will expire between 2024 and 2043. Foreign NOL carryforwards were $325.6
million at December 31, 2023 ($79.4 million at December 31, 2022). If unused, the foreign NOL
carryforwards will expire between 2026 and 2042.

At December 31, 2023, Nucor had approximately $188.3 million of unrecognized tax benefits, of
which $187.6 million would affect Nucor's effective tax rate, if recognized. At December 31, 2022, Nucor
had approximately $141.7 million of unrecognized tax benefits, of which $141.1 million would affect
Nucor's effective tax rate, if recognized.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits recorded in
deferred credits and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets is as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2023 2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year $ 141692 $ 95,136 $ 47,965
Additions based on tax positions related to current year 44,113 54,438 52,853
Reductions based on tax positions related to
current year — — —
Additions based on tax positions related to prior years 9,886 13,473 2,405
Reductions based on tax positions related to
prior years (496) (9,275) (3,060)
Reductions due to settlements with taxing authorities — — —
Reductions due to statute of limitations lapse (6,941) (12,080) (5,027)
Balance at end of year $ 188,254 $ 141,692 $ 95,136

We estimate that in the next 12 months, our gross uncertain tax positions, exclusive of interest,
could decrease by as much as $5.6 million, as a result of the expiration of the applicable statute of
limitations.

During 2023, Nucor recognized $10.4 million of expense in interest and penalties ($9.4 million of
expense in 2022 and $5.5 million of expense in 2021). The interest and penalties are included in interest
expense, net and marketing, administrative and other expenses, respectively, in the consolidated
statements of earnings. As of December 31, 2023, Nucor had approximately $37.4 million of accrued
interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions (approximately $26.9 million at December 31,
2022). The accrued interest and penalties are included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities
and deferred credits and other liabilities, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheets.

The IRS is currently examining Nucor’'s 2015, 2019, and 2020 federal income tax returns. Nucor has
concluded U.S. federal income tax matters for tax years through 2014, and for the tax years 2016 and
2018. The tax years 2017, 2021, and 2022 remain open to examination by the IRS. The 2015 through
2021 Canadian income tax returns for Harris and certain related affiliates are currently under examination
by the Canada Revenue Agency. The tax years 2016 through 2022 remain open to examination by other
major taxing jurisdictions to which Nucor is subject (primarily Canada, Trinidad & Tobago, and other state
and local jurisdictions).
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20. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following tables reflect the changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) by
component (in thousands):

Gains and Foreign Adjustment
(Losses) on Currency to Early
Hedging Gains Retiree
Derivatives (Losses) Medical Plan Total
December 31, 2022 $ 26,100 $ (180,216) $ 16,599 $ (137,517)
Other comprehensive income
(loss) before reclassifications (52,077) 21,041 (4,787) (35,823)
Amounts reclassified from
accumulated other
comprehensive income
(loss) into earnings 12,077 — (809) 11,268
Net current-period other
comprehensive income (loss) (40,000) 21,041 (5,596) (24,555)
December 31, 2023 $ (13,900) $ (159,175) $ 11,003 $ (162,072)

(1) Includes $12,077 and $(809) net-of-tax impact of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
reclassifications into cost of products sold for net gains on commodity contracts and adjustment to early retiree
medical plan, respectively. The tax impacts of these reclassifications were $3,800 and $(255), respectively.

Gains and Foreign Adjustment
(Losses) on Currency to Early
Hedging Gains Retiree
Derivatives (Losses) Medical Plan Total
December 31, 2021 $ 1,112 $ (124,868) $ 8,474 $ (115,282)
Other comprehensive income
(loss) before reclassifications 76,542 (55,348) 6,328 27,522
Amounts reclassified from
accumulated other
comprehensive income
(loss) into earnings @ (51,554) — 1,797 (49,757)
Net current-period other
comprehensive income (loss) 24,988 (55,348) 8,125 (22,235)
December 31, 2022 $ 26,100 $ (180,216) $ 16,599 $ (137,517)

(2) Includes $(51,554) and $1,797 net-of-tax impact of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
reclassifications into cost of products sold for net gains on commodity contracts and adjustment to early retiree
medical plan, respectively. The tax impacts of these reclassifications were $(16,400) and $671, respectively.
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21. Earnings Per Share

The computations of basic and diluted net earnings per share are as follows (in thousands, except
per share data):

Year Ended December 31, 2023 2022 2021
Basic net earnings per share:
Basic net earnings $ 4,524,801 $ 7,607,337 $ 6,827,461
Earnings allocated to participating securities (16,946) (31,172) (32,311)
Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 4,507,855 $ 7,576,165 $ 6,795,150
Basic average shares outstanding 249,773 262,348 292,491
Basic net earnings per share $ 18.05 $ 28.88 $ 23.23
Diluted net earnings per share:
Diluted net earnings $ 4524801 $ 7,607,337 $ 6,827,461
Earnings allocated to participating securities (16,897) (31,057) (32,190)
Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 4,507,904 $ 7,576,280 $ 6,795,271
Diluted average shares outstanding:
Basic average shares outstanding 249,773 262,348 292,491
Dilutive effect of stock options and other 639 828 899
250,412 263,176 293,390
Diluted net earnings per share $ 18.00 $ 28.79 $ 23.16

The following stock options were excluded from the computation of diluted net earnings per share
because their effect would have been anti-dilutive (shares in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2023 2022 2021
Anti-dilutive stock options:
Weighted-average shares - 25 145
Weighted-average exercise price $ - $ 130.71 % 91.06

22. Segments

Nucor reports its results in the following segments: steel mills, steel products and raw materials. The
steel mills segment includes carbon and alloy steel in sheet, bars, structural and plate; steel trading
businesses; rebar distribution businesses; and Nucor’s equity method investments in NuMit and NJSM
(the latter of which Nucor acquired an additional 1% interest in the fourth quarter of 2023, bringing our
total equity ownership to a 51% controlling interest). The steel products segment includes steel joists and
joist girders, steel deck, fabricated concrete reinforcing steel, cold finished steel, precision castings, steel
fasteners, metal building systems, insulated metal panels, steel grating, tubular products businesses,
steel racking, piling products business, wire and wire mesh, overhead doors, and utility towers and
structures. The raw materials segment includes The David J. Joseph Company and its affiliates (“DJJ”),
primarily a scrap broker and processor; Nu-lron Unlimited and Nucor Steel Louisiana LLC, two facilities
that produce direct reduced iron used by the steel mills; and our natural gas production operations.

Corporate/eliminations include items such as net interest expense on long-term debt, charges and
credits associated with changes in allowances to eliminate intercompany profit in inventory, profit sharing
expense and stock-based compensation. Corporate assets primarily include cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments, restricted cash and cash equivalents, allowances to eliminate intercompany profit
in inventory, deferred income tax assets, federal and state income taxes receivable and investments in
and advances to affiliates.
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Nucor’s results by segment were as follows (in thousands):

Net sales to external customers:
Steel mills
Steel products
Raw materials

Intercompany sales:
Steel mills
Steel products
Raw materials
Corporate/eliminations

Depreciation expense:
Steel mills
Steel products
Raw materials
Corporate

Amortization expense:
Steel mills
Steel products
Raw materials

Earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling
interests:
Steel mills
Steel products
Raw materials
Corporate/eliminations

Segment assets:
Steel mills
Steel products
Raw materials
Corporate/eliminations

Capital expenditures:
Steel mills
Steel products
Raw materials
Corporate
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Year Ended December 31,

2023

2022

2021

$ 20,092,662 $ 24,189,858 $ 24,145,396
12,758,939 15,060,328 9,727,943
1,861,900 2,262,281 2,610,600

$ 34713501 $ 41512467 $ 36,483,939

$ 4812479 $ 5859367 $ 6,297,688

455,816 547,219 360,063
12,363,577 13,715,176 15,762,685
(17,631,872)  (20,121,762)  (22,420,436)

$ — — —

$ 610510 $ 529,005 $ 465,733

131,189 115,501 99,248

173,657 171,060 159,886

15,229 11,126 10,539

$ 930,585 $ 826692 $ 735406

$ 7,829 $ 7,829 $ 7,829

202,129 199,379 93,160

27,772 27,734 28,168

$ 237,730 $ 234942 §$ 129,157

$ 3712470 $ 7,199,087 $ 9,735,020
3,443,950 4,093,105 1,291,450

253,506 496,823 549,956
(1,137,169) (1,544,171) (2,375,568)

$ 6,272,757 10,244,844 $ 9,200,858

$ 15407266 $ 14,157,229 $ 13,235,463
10,914,870 12,087,145 7,845,010
3,546,759 3,383,114 3,870,806
5,471,604 2,851,722 871,793

$ 35340499 $ 32479210 $ 25,823,072

$ 1,440,478 $ 1453277 $ 1,336,276

367,170 267,128 187,152

352,642 181,680 128,765

54,920 50,380 48,171

$§ 2215210 $ 1952465 $ 1,700,364




Net sales by product were as follows (in thousands). Further product group breakdown is
impracticable.

Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022 2021
Net sales to external customers:
Sheet $ 9,146,676 $ 11,437,799 $ 12,675,679
Bar 5,993,751 7,031,798 6,039,187
Structural 2,429,211 2,928,072 2,597,768
Plate 2,523,024 2,792,188 2,832,762
Tubular Products 1,588,211 1,944,532 2,194,732
Rebar Fabrication 2,181,929 2,205,960 1,794,658
Joist 2,211,965 2,958,235 1,351,235
Deck 1,712,474 2,392,438 1,167,162
Other Steel Products 5,064,360 5,559,164 3,220,155
Raw Materials 1,861,900 2,262,281 2,610,601

$ 34713501 $ 41,512,467 $ 36,483,939

23. Revenue

Nucor recognizes revenue when obligations under the terms of contracts with our customers are
satisfied and collection is reasonably assured; generally, obligations under the terms of contracts are
satisfied upon shipment or when control is transferred. Revenue is measured as the amount of
consideration expected to be received in exchange for transferring the goods. In addition, revenue is
deferred when cash payments are received or due in advance of performance.

The durations of Nucor’s contracts with customers are generally one year or less. Customer
payment terms are generally 30 days.

Contract liabilities are primarily related to deferred revenue resulting from cash payments received
in advance from customers to protect against credit risk. Contract liabilities totaled $313.8 million as of
December 31, 2023 ($285.0 million as of December 31, 2022), and are included in accrued expenses and
other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The amount of revenue reclassified from the
December 31, 2022 contract liabilities balance during 2023 was approximately $191.8 million.

Nucor disaggregates its revenues by major source in the same manner as presented in the net
sales by product table in the segment footnote (see Note 22).

Steel Mills Segment

Sheet — For the majority of sheet products, we transfer control and recognize a sale when we ship
the product from the sheet mill to our customer. The amount of consideration we receive and revenue we
recognize for spot market sales are based upon prevailing prices at the time of sale. The amount of
consideration we receive and revenue we recognize for contract customers are based primarily on pricing
formulas that incorporate monthly or quarterly price adjustments which reflect changes in the current
market-based indices and/or raw material costs near the time of shipment.

The amount of tons sold to contract customers at any given time depends on a variety of factors,
including our consideration of current and future market conditions, our strategy to appropriately balance
spot and contract tons in a manner to meet our customers’ requirements while considering the expected
profitability, our desire to sustain a diversified customer base and our end-use customers’ perceptions
about future market conditions. These contracts are typically one year or less. Contract sales within the
steel mills segment are most notable in our sheet operations, as it is common for contract sales to
account for the majority of sheet sales in a given year.
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Bar, Structural and Plate — For the majority of bar, structural and plate products, we transfer control
and recognize a sale when we ship the product from the mill to our customer. The significant majority of
bar, structural and plate product sales are spot market sales, and the amount of consideration we receive
and revenue we recognize for those sales are based upon prevailing prices at the time of sale.

Steel Products Segment

Tubular Products — The tubular products businesses transfer control and recognize a sale when the
products are shipped from our operating locations to our customers. The majority of tubular product sales
are spot market sales, and the amount of consideration we receive and revenue we recognize for those
sales are based upon prevailing prices at the time of sale.

Rebar Fabrication — The majority of revenue is derived from contracts with customers for the supply
of fabricated rebar. As the majority of contracts with customers are fixed price contracts to complete a job,
control transfers over time and revenue is recognized (if collection is reasonably assured) over time using
an input method, based on the amount of rebar shipped from the Company’s operating locations relative
to the total expected amount of rebar required to complete the job.

For contracts to supply fabricated rebar and install it at the customer’s job site, there are two
performance obligations: (1) the supply of the fabricated rebar and (2) the installation of the supplied
rebar at the customer’s job site. For the supply of fabricated rebar performance obligation, the transaction
price allocated to this performance obligation is determined at the start of the contract, based on the
awarded contract price for the supplied fabricated rebar and revenue is recognized over time based on
the amount of rebar shipped from the Company’s operating locations relative to the total expected
amount of rebar required to complete the job. For the installation of supplied rebar performance
obligation, the transaction price allocated to this performance obligation is determined at the start of the
contract, based on the awarded contract price for the installation of fabricated rebar and revenue is
recognized over time based on the amount of rebar installed relative to the total expected amount of rebar
required to be installed to complete the job.

While a majority of the contracts with customers are fixed price contracts to complete a job, variable
consideration can occur from contract modifications relating to change orders and price escalations
caused by changes in underlying material costs. In these situations, the additional variable consideration
is recognized cumulatively in the period in which the contract modification is approved and collection is
reasonably assured unless the change order relates to additional distinct goods or services at standalone
selling prices in which case they are accounted for prospectively. Management reviews these situations
on a case-by-case basis and considers a variety of factors, including relevant experience with similar
types of performance obligations, the Company’s experience with the customer and collectability
considerations.

Other Steel Products — Other steel products include our joist, deck, cold finish, metal building
systems, insulated metal panels, piling, overhead doors, and the other remaining businesses that
comprise the steel products segment. Generally, for these businesses, we transfer control and recognize
a sale when we ship the product from our operating locations to our customers. The amount of
consideration we receive and revenue we recognize for those sales are agreed upon with the customers
before the product is shipped.

Included in the other steel products businesses is Nucor Warehouse Systems (“NWS”). The majority
of NWS’s revenues are related to supply and installation contracts. Revenue on NWS'’s supply and
installation contracts is primarily recognized over time, typically between three and six months, using the
cost-to-cost input measure (e.g., costs incurred to date relative to total estimated costs at completion) to
measure progress because it best depicts the transfer of assets to the customer which occurs as the
Company incurs costs on the contracts.
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Raw Materials Segment

The majority of the raw materials segment revenue from outside customers is generated by DJJ. We
transfer control and recognize a sale based on the terms of the agreement with the customer, which is
generally when the product has met the delivery requirements. The amount of consideration we receive
and revenue we recognize for those sales is based on the contract with the customer, which generally
reflects current market prices at the time the contract is entered into.

24. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of December 31, 2023, restricted cash and cash equivalents totaled $3.5 million ($80.4 million as
of December 31, 2022), and primarily consisted of net proceeds from the issuance of $197.0 million in
August 2021 and $162.6 million in July 2020 of 40-year variable-rate Green Bonds. The restricted cash
and cash equivalents related to the debt issuance are being held in a trust account and will be used to
partially fund the capital costs, in particular the expenditures associated with pollution prevention and
control (including waste recycling and waste reduction), of the construction of Nucor’s plate mill located in
Brandenburg, Kentucky. Funds will be disbursed from the trust account as qualified expenditures for the
construction of the Brandenburg facility are made ($78.9 million during 2023 and $64.2 million during
2022). Interest earned on funds held in the trust account is subject to the same usage requirements as
the bond proceeds principal. Since the restricted cash, interest and dividends must be used for the
construction of the Brandenburg facility and relate to a long-term liability, the entire balance has been
classified as a non-current asset.

25. Acquisitions
Acquisition of Additional Interest in NJSM

On October 27, 2023, Nucor used cash on hand to acquire an additional 1% equity interest in NJSM
bringing our total equity ownership to a 51% controlling interest. We believe this acquisition allows NJSM
to benefit from Nucor's galvanized sheet sales expertise in North America.

Prior to this transaction, we accounted for our 50% ownership in NJSM under the equity method. As
part of the purchase price allocation for this step acquisition, we remeasured our previously held interest
as of the acquisition date which resulted in a $21.0 million loss recorded in marketing, administrative and
other expenses. Neither our previously held equity interest in NJSM nor the loss on remeasuring the
equity interest are material to our financial statements.

We allocated the purchase price for NJSM to its individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
While the purchase price allocation is substantially complete, it is still preliminary and subject to change.
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The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of
NJSM, as well as the fair value of the 49% noncontrolling interest not acquired by Nucor, as of October
27, 2023, the date of acquisition (in thousands):

Cash $ 11,050
Accounts receivable 10,968
Inventory 44,661
Other current assets 18,053
Property, plant and equipment 257,537
Goodwill —
Other intangible assets —
Other assets 612

Total assets acquired 342,881
Short-term debt 95,000
Current portion of long-term debt 50,000
Other current liabilities 13,502
Long-term debt due after one year 30,000
Other liabilities 1,379

Total liabilities assumed 189,881
Net assets acquired at 100% 153,000
Less: fair value of Noncontrolling interest 74,970
Net assets acquired at 51% $ 78,030

The determination of the fair value of noncontrolling interest was calculated using the implied value
of 100% of the enterprise value as the purchase price included an immaterial implied control premium on
a per-share basis and the noncontrolling interest shareholder will benefit from the transaction and
participate in the economic benefits of NJSM after the acquisition.

The NJSM financial results were included as part of the steel mills segment (see Note 22) beginning
on October 27, 2023, the acquisition date. Pro-forma results of operations for the Company would not be
materially different as a result of the acquisition of NJSM and, therefore, this information is not presented.

Acquisition of C.H.].

On June 24, 2022, Nucor used cash on hand to acquire the assets of C.H.I. for a purchase price,
net of cash acquired, of approximately $3.00 billion. C.H.I. is a leading manufacturer of overhead doors
for residential and commercial markets in the United States and Canada. Commercial overhead doors are
used in warehousing and retail, areas that Nucor has focused its attention on recently through other
value-added products such as insulated metal panels (CENTRIA, Metl-Span and TrueCore brands) and
steel racking solutions (Nucor Warehouse Systems). It is expected that the C.H.I. acquisition also will
benefit from Nucor’s recent paint line investments at its Hickman, Arkansas and Crawfordsville, Indiana
sheet mills. The C.H.I. financial results are included as part of the steel products segment (see Note 22)
beginning on June 24, 2022, the date Nucor acquired it.

We allocated the purchase price for C.H.I. to its individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

85



The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of
C.H.l. as of June 24, 2022, the date of acquisition (in thousands):

Cash $ 159,066
Accounts receivable 77,530
Inventory 52,515
Other current assets 18,177
Property, plant and equipment 117,392
Goodwill 1,033,192
Other intangible assets 2,389,180
Other assets 9,559

Total assets acquired 3,856,611
Current liabilities 75,146
Deferred income taxes 578,019
Other liabilities 7,509

Total liabilities assumed 660,674
Net assets acquired $ 3,195,937

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation to the identifiable intangible assets of
C.H.1. as of June 24, 2022, the date of acquisition (in thousands, except years):

Weighted-
__Average Life
Customer relationships $ 2,242,000 25 years
Trademarks and trade names 147,000 13 years
Backlog 180 1 year

$ 2,389,180

The goodwill of $1.04 billion is calculated as the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and has been allocated to the steel products segment (see
Note 8). The goodwill is attributable to expected synergies within the steel products segment. Goodwill
recognized for tax purposes was $5.6 million, all of which is deductible for tax purposes. Pro-forma results
of operations for the Company would not be materially different as a result of the acquisition of C.H.I. and,
therefore, this information is not presented.

Acquisition of CSI

On February 1, 2022, Nucor used cash on hand to acquire a 51% controlling ownership position in
CSI by purchasing a 50% equity interest from a subsidiary of Vale S.A. for a cash purchase price of
approximately $400.0 million, adjusted for net debt and working capital at closing, as well as a 1% equity
interest from JFE Steel Corporation. CSl is a flat-rolled steel converter located in California with the
capability to produce more than two million tons of finished steel and steel products annually. The
company has five product lines, including hot rolled, pickled and oiled, cold rolled, galvanized and electric
resistance welded (“ERW”) pipe. Key end-use markets served by CSl include customers in the
construction, service center and energy industries. We believe this acquisition helps give Nucor a strong
presence in the Western region of the United States and grows our ability to produce a wide range of
value-added sheet products. The CSl financial results were included as part of the steel mills segment
(see Note 22) beginning on February 1, 2022, the date Nucor acquired its 51% controlling ownership
position.

We allocated the purchase price for CSl to its individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
The purchase price allocation is complete.
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The following table summarizes the fair values of 100% of the assets and liabilities of CSI, as well
as the fair value of the 49% noncontrolling interest not acquired by Nucor, as of February 1, 2022, the
date Nucor acquired its 51% controlling ownership position (in thousands):

Cash $ 98,537
Accounts receivable 159,257
Inventory 354,614
Other current assets 5,298
Property, plant and equipment 566,714
Goodwill 62,011
Other intangible assets —
Other assets 7,071

Total assets acquired 1,253,502
Current portion of long-term debt 9,826
Other current liabilities 162,808
Long-term debt due after one year 67,866
Other liabilities 139,947

Total liabilities assumed 380,447
Net assets acquired at 100% 873,055
Less: Fair value of noncontrolling interest 427,797
Net assets acquired at 51% $ 445,258

The determination of the fair value of the noncontrolling interest was calculated using the implied
value of 100% of the enterprise value of the business using the purchase price as the purchase price did
not include a control premium on a per-share basis and the noncontrolling interest shareholder will
participate equally in the economic benefits of CSI after the acquisition.

The goodwill of $62.0 million is calculated as the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and has been allocated to the steel mills segment (see Note
8). The goodwill is attributable to the assembled workforce acquired, expanding our Western United
States presence and CSI’'s value-added product capabilities. None of the goodwill is deductible for tax
purposes. Pro-forma results of operations for the Company would not be materially different as a result of
the acquisition of CSl and, therefore, this information is not presented.

Acaquisition of IMP Business of Cornerstone

On August 9, 2021, Nucor used cash on hand to acquire the assets of the insulated metal panels,
or, IMP, business of Cornerstone Building Brands, Inc. (“Cornerstone”) for a purchase price of
$1.00 billion. The Company believes this acquisition will broaden the value-added solutions that Nucor
Buildings group provides to targeted end markets such as warehousing, distribution and data centers. We
expect these end-use markets to continue to grow in the coming years and that the use of IMP products
within them will also increase. IMPs facilitate cost-effective climate control in the built environment and
reduce energy usage and overall operations-related GHG emissions for owners and lessees. The
acquired IMP business is comprised of two industry leading brands, CENTRIA and Metl-Span, and has
seven manufacturing facilities located throughout North America, complementing Nucor’s existing IMP
business, TrueCore, LLC. The IMP business financial results are included as part of the steel products
segment (see Note 22) beginning on August 9, 2021, the date Nucor acquired it.

We have allocated the purchase price for the IMP business to its individual assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.
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The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of the
IMP business as of August 9, 2021, the date of acquisition (in thousands):

Cash $ —
Accounts receivable 47,037
Inventory 73,000
Other current assets 4,478
Property, plant and equipment 102,966
Goodwill 480,167
Other intangible assets 364,000
Other assets 13,515

Total assets acquired 1,085,163
Current liabilities 46,620
Other liabilities 12,855

Total liabilities assumed 59,475
Net assets acquired $ 1,025,688

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation to the identifiable intangible assets of
the IMP business as of August 9, 2021, the date of acquisition (in thousands, except years):

Weighted-
Average Life
Customer relationships $ 309,000 10 years
Trademarks and trade name 45,000 10 years
Backlog 10,000 1 year

$ 364,000

The goodwill of $480.2 million is calculated as the excess of the purchase price over the fair values
of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and has been allocated to the steel products segment (see
Note 8). The goodwill is attributable to expected synergies within the steel products segment. Goodwiill
recognized for tax purposes was $480.2 million, all of which is deductible for tax purposes. Pro-forma
results of operations for the Company would not be materially different as a result of the acquisition of the
IMP business and, therefore, this information is not presented.

Acquisition of Hannibal

On August 20, 2021, Nucor used cash on hand to acquire Hannibal for a purchase price of $370.0
million. Nucor purchased 100% of Hannibal's outstanding shares from its Employee Stock Ownership
Plan. Hannibal is a leading national provider of steel racking solutions to warehouses. We expect that
Hannibal’s business, serving customers in the e-commerce, industrial, food storage and retail segments,
will also continue to grow in the coming years. Hannibal has manufacturing facilities in Los Angeles and
Houston, as well as three distribution centers. Hannibal’s financial results are included as part of the steel
products segment (see Note 22) beginning on August 20, 2021, the date Nucor acquired it.

We have allocated the purchase price for Hannibal to its individual assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.
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The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of
Hannibal as of August 20, 2021, the date of acquisition (in thousands):

Cash $ 124,655
Accounts receivable 115,728
Inventory 65,005
Other current assets 2,113
Property, plant and equipment 116,955
Goodwill 84,922
Other intangible assets 201,700
Other assets 8,776

Total assets acquired 719,854
Current liabilities 228,750
Finance lease obligations 80,124
Other liabilities 13,155

Total liabilities assumed 322,029
Net assets acquired $ 397,825

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation to the identifiable intangible assets of
Hannibal as of August 20, 2021, the date of acquisition (in thousands, except years):

Weighted-
__Average Life
Customer relationships $ 144,000 10 years
Trademarks and trade name 26,000 7 years
Backlog 31,700 1 year

$ 201,700

The goodwill of $84.9 million is calculated as the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and has been allocated to the steel products segment (see
Note 8). The goodwill is attributable to expected synergies within the steel products segment. Goodwiill
recognized for tax purposes was $84.9 million, all of which is deductible for tax purposes. Pro-forma
results of operations for the Company would not be materially different as a result of the acquisition of
Hannibal and, therefore, this information is not presented.

Other Acquisitions

Other smaller acquisitions, exclusive of purchase price adjustments made and net of cash acquired,
totaled approximately $70.8 million, $169.6 million and $134.8 million in 2023, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. Pro-forma results of operations for the Company would not be materially different if the
aggregate acquisitions made during 2023, 2022 and 2021 were included and, therefore, this information
is not presented.
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26. Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended December 31, 2023
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Net sales $ 8,709,980 $ 9523256 $ 8,775,734 $ 7,704,531
Gross margin 1,998,202 2,501,674 1,920,800 1,393,718
Net earnings before noncontrolling
interests 1,231,629 1,587,075 1,221,255 872,832
Net earnings attributable to Nucor
stockholders 1,136,542 1,461,354 1,141,506 785,399
Net earnings per share:
Basic $ 447 § 582 § 458 § 3.17
Diluted $ 445 § 581 § 457 § 3.16

(in thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended December 31, 2022
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Net sales $ 10,493,282 $ 11,794,474 $ 10,500,755 $ 8,723,956
Gross margin 3,458,139 4,104,263 2,843,391 2,097,487
Net earnings before noncontrolling
interests () 2,227,115 2,727,237 1,799,043 1,326,245
Net earnings attributable to Nucor
stockholders (1) 2,095,623 2,561,233 1,694,748 1,255,733
Net earnings per share:
Basic $ 769 $ 969 §$ 6.51 $ 4.90
Diluted $ 767 $ 967 $ 6.50 $ 4.89

(1) Fourth quarter of 2022 results include an after-tax net benefit of $60.4 million related to state tax credits, an after-
tax net benefit of $88.0 million related to a change in the valuation allowance of a state deferred tax asset, and a
pre-tax $96.0 million write-off of the remaining carrying value of our leasehold interest in unproved oil and gas
properties. This charge is included in the raw materials segment.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures — As of the end of the period covered by this
report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of
the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures.
Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the evaluation date.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting — There were no changes in our internal
control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2023 that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting — Management'’s report on internal control over
financial reporting required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the attestation report
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, on the effectiveness
of Nucor’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023 are included in “Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” and incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9B. Other Information.

Insider Trading Arrangements - During the quarter ended December 31, 2023, none of our directors
or officers (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) under the Exchange Act) adopted, modified or terminated a "Rule
10b5-1 trading arrangement” or a "non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement" (as such terms are defined in
Item 408 of Regulation S-K).

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections.

Not applicable.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this item with respect to Nucor’s executive officers appears in Part | of
this report under the heading Information About Our Executive Officers and is incorporated herein by
reference. The other information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from Nucor’s
definitive proxy statement for our 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we expect to file with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after December 31, 2023 (the “Proxy
Statement”), under the headings Election of Directors; Information Concerning Experience, Qualifications,
Attributes and Skills of the Nominees; and Corporate Governance and Board of Directors.

Nucor has adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Professionals (the “Code of Ethics”), which
is intended to qualify as a “code of ethics” within the meaning of Item 406 of Regulation S-K of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Code of Ethics applies to our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, and persons performing similar
functions. The Code of Ethics is available on our website, www.nucor.com.

We will disclose information pertaining to any amendment to, or waiver from, the provisions of the
Code of Ethics that apply to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions and that relate to any element of the Code of
Ethics enumerated in the SEC rules and regulations by posting this information on our website,
www.nucor.com. The information contained on our website or available by hyperlink from our website is
not a part of this report and is not incorporated into this report or any other documents we file with, or
furnish to, the SEC.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the Proxy Statement
under the headings Executive Officer Compensation; Director Compensation; Report of the
Compensation and Executive Development Committee; and Board’s Role in Risk Oversight.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the Proxy Statement
under the headings Security Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Owners and Equity
Compensation Plan Information.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the Proxy Statement
under the heading Corporate Governance and Board of Directors.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the Proxy Statement
under the heading Fees Paid to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
Financial Statements:

The following consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, management’s report on internal
control over financial reporting and the report of independent registered public accounting firm are
included in “ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”:

e Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

o Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

e Consolidated Balance Sheets—December 31, 2023 and 2022

o Consolidated Statements of Earnings—Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

e Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income—Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022
and 2021

o Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity—Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and
2021

e Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

¢ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Schedule Il is not presented as all applicable information is presented in the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto.

Exhibits:

3 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Nucor Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 14, 2010 (File No. 001-04119))

3(i) Bylaws of Nucor Corporation as amended and restated February 22, 2021 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 24, 2021 (File No.
001-04119))

4 Description of Securities of Nucor Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

4(i) Indenture, dated as of January 12, 1999, between Nucor Corporation and The Bank of New

York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed December 13, 2002 (File No.
333-101852))

4(ii) Indenture, dated as of August 19, 2014, between Nucor Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement
on Form S-3 filed August 20, 2014 (File No. 333-198263))

4(iii) Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 3, 2007, between Nucor Corporation
and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 4,
2007 (File No. 001-04119))

4(iv) Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 29, 2013, between Nucor Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association, as successor trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 29, 2013 (File No. 001-04119))

4(v) Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 10, 2014, among Nucor Corporation,
The Bank of New York Mellon, as prior trustee, and U.S. Bank National Association, as
successor trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed December 11, 2014 (File No. 001-04119))

4(vi) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 26, 2018, between Nucor Corporation and U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed April 26, 2018 (File No. 001-04119))
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4(vii)

4(viii)

4(ix)

4(xi)
4(xii)
4(xiii)
4(xiv)
4(xv)
4(xvi)
4(xvii)
4(xviii)
4(xix)
4(xx)
4(xxi)

10

10())

10(ii)

10(iii)

10(iv)

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 22, 2020, between Nucor Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 7, 2020, between Nucor Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 7, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 11, 2022, between Nucor Corporation and
U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 11, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 23, 2022, between Nucor Corporation and U.S.
Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 6.400% Notes due 2037 (included in Exhibit 4(iii) above) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 4, 2007 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 5.200% Notes due 2043 (included in Exhibit 4(v) above) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 29, 2013 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 3.950% Notes due 2028 (included in Exhibit 4(vii) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 26, 2018 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 4.400% Notes due 2048 (included in Exhibit 4(vii) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 26, 2018 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 2.000% Notes due 2025 (included in Exhibit 4(viii) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 2.700% Notes due 2030 (included in Exhibit 4(viii) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 2.979% Notes due 2055 (included in Exhibit 4(ix) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 7, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 3.125% Notes due 2032 (included in Exhibit 4(x) above) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 11, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 3.850% Notes due 2052 (included in Exhibit 4(x) above) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 11, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 3.950% Notes due 2025 (included in Exhibit 4(xi) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 4.300% Notes due 2027 (included in Exhibit 4(xi) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Fourth Amended and Restated Multi-Year Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of November
5, 2021, by and among Nucor Corporation and certain subsidiaries of Nucor Corporation, as
borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended October 2, 2021 (File No. 001-04119))

2005 Stock Option and Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed May 17, 2005 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Amendment No. 1 to 2005 Stock Option and Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 29, 2007 (File
No. 001-04119)) (#)

2010 Stock Option and Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 3, 2010 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

2014 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effective February 21,
2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)
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10(vii)

10(viii)

10(vix)

10(x)

10(xi)

10(xii)

10(xiii)

10(xiv)

10(xv)

10(xvi)

10(xvii)

10(xviii)

10(xix)

10(xx)

Amendment No.1, effective September 14, 2023, to 2014 Omnibus Incentive Compensation
Plan, as amended and restated effective February 21, 2022 (#)

Senior Officers Annual Incentive Plan (Supplement to 2014 Omnibus Incentive Compensation
Plan), as amended and restated effective February 21, 2022 (included in Exhibit 10(iv) above)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Senior Officers Long-Term Incentive Plan (Supplement to 2014 Omnibus Incentive
Compensation Plan), as amended and restated effective February 21, 2022 (included in
Exhibit 10(iv) above) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Senior Officers Annual Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective January 1, 2013, for
awards granted prior to January 1, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the
Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Senior Officers Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective January 1,
2013, for awards granted prior to January 1, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Appendix B to
the Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 001-04119))

(#)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement — time-vested awards (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(iv) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2005 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement — retirement-vested awards (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(v) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2005 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 1,
2006 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Award Agreement for Annual Stock Option Grants used for awards granted prior to
May 8, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2012 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Award Agreement for Annual Stock Option Grants used for awards granted after May
7, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended July 5, 2014 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement used for awards granted after February 21,
2022 — time-vested awards (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Award Agreement for Annual Stock Option Grants used for awards granted after
February 21, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Retirement, Separation, Waiver and Release Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2021, by and
between Nucor Corporation and Craig A. Feldman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 3, 2021 (File No. 001-04119))

(#)

Retirement, Separation, Waiver and Release Agreement, dated as of May 24, 2022, by and
between Nucor Corporation and James D. Frias (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed May 25, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Retirement, Separation, Waiver and Release Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2021, by and
between Nucor Corporation and Raymond S. Napolitan, Jr. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed June 3, 2021 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Retirement, Separation, Waiver and Release Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2022, by and
between Nucor Corporation and MaryEmily Slate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

(#)

95



10(xxi)
10(xxii)

10(xxiii)

10(xxiv)

10(xxv)

10(xxvi)

10(xxvii)

10(xxviii)

10(xxix)

10(xxx)

10(xxxi)

10(xxxii)
10(xxxiii)
21*
23*

24*
31*

31(i)*
32**
32(i)**

o7*

Executive Employment Agreement of Leon J. Topalian (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.9 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 19, 2020 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of D. Chad Utermark (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.10 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 19, 2020 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Allen C. Behr (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 4, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

#)

Executive Employment Agreement of David A. Sumoski (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed January 5, 2021 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Douglas J. Jellison (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(xxx) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (File No.
001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Gregory J. Murphy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(xxxi) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (File No.
001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Daniel R. Needham (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(xxxii) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020
(File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of K. Rex Query (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(xxxiii) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (File No.
001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Stephen D. Laxton (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed March 4, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of John Hollatz (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

(#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Noah Hanners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(xxxiii) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 (File No.
001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Brad Ford (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 3, 2023 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Nucor Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan for Executive Officers, as amended and
restated effective December 15, 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed December 15, 2023 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Subsidiaries
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Power of Attorney (included on signature page)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Nucor Corporation Executive Officer Incentive Compensation Recovery Policy
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101* Financial Statements from the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Nucor Corporation for the year
ended December 31, 2023, filed February 27, 2024, formatted in Inline XBRL: (i) the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Earnings, (iii) the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity, (v) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (vi) the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

104* Cover Page from the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Nucor Corporation for the year ended
December 31, 2023, filed February 27, 2024, formatted in Inline XBRL (included in Exhibit
101).

* Filed herewith.

** Furnished (and not filed) herewith pursuant to Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K.
(#) Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.

Registrants may voluntarily include a summary of information required by Form 10-K under this
Iltem16. We have elected not to include such summary information.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

NUCOR CORPORATION

By: /s/ Leon J. Topalian
Leon J. Topalian
Chair, President and Chief Executive
Officer

Dated: February 27, 2024
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Stephen D. Laxton and A. Rae Eagle, or either of them, his or her attorney-in-
fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution for such person in any and all capacities, to sign any
amendments to this report and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming
all that either of said attorney-in-fact, or substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

/s/ Leon J. Topalian /s/ Norma B. Clayton

Leon J. Topalian Norma B. Clayton
Chair, President, and Chief Executive Officer Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Stephen D. Laxton

/s/ Patrick J. Dempsey

Stephen D. Laxton
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and
Executive Vice President
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Michael D. Keller

Patrick J. Dempsey
Director

/s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad

Michael D. Keller
Vice President and Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Dated: February 27, 2024
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Nicholas C. Gangestad
Director

/s Christopher J. Kearney

Christopher J. Kearney
Lead Director

/sl Laurette T. Koellner

Laurette T. Koellner
Director

/s/ Michael W. Lamach

Michael W. Lamach
Director

s/ Joseph D. Rupp

Joseph D. Rupp
Director

/s/ Nadja Y. West

Nadja Y. West
Director
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WALTER M MARTINEZ JUAN JOSE MARTINEZ GOMEZ MARVIN MARTINEZ MULATO J REYES MARTINEZ ORTEGA LIAM MARTINEZ PANIAGUA MARLON MARTINEZ RAMOS MERLIN ROBERT MARTINEZ TURRIETTA JORGE ENRIQUE MARTINEZ VARONA JOSE A MARTINEZ-GUADIANA
MICHAEL R MARTINI  ROBERT LUIS MARTINI  JOSEPH SAMUEL MARTINO  ARACELI P MARTINON  ANTONIO MARTINS ~ KATHRYN MARTINS ~ PAUL MARTINS  ERIC L MARTINSON ROBERT DONALD MARTINSON ~ ALINA MARUNTELU  BRADY L MARUSKA  TODD M MARUSKA
ANDREW N MARVIN NATHAN JOSEPH MARVIN SHAWN DAVID MARVIN TRAVIS MARVIN CHRISTIAN R MARYOTT FRANCESCO MARZANO STEPHANIE LATISHA MARZETTE STEPHEN ANDREW MARZIALE SPENCER M MASAT JOSEPH A MASCARO RICHARD AUGUST MASCHKE
STEVEN DAVID MASCIARELLI  DOMINIC FRANKLIN MASCOLO  ABDULMEZAN | MASCORRO  JOHN BRITTO MASILAMANI  BRANDON SHAYNE MASON  CARRIE MASON  COREY MICHAEL MASON  DEAN MASON  JOSEPH D MASON  JOSHUA SCOTT MASON  KAMBON MASON
KENNETH LEE MASON  KIM M MASON LATASHA M MASON LIONEL ALAN MASON MARCEL A MASON REESE A MASON RYAN WILLIAM MASON SANTONIO M MASON STEPHEN W MASON THOMAS ALEXANDER MASON ZACHARY ALLEN DANIEL MASON ADAM TARIK MASOOD
ALFRED LEONARD MASSAAR ~ AMANDA LEEANN MASSEY ~ BRADLEY MASSEY  CHRISTOPHER A MASSEY ~ COREY S MASSEY  DERRICK RAY MASSEY ~ JOSH TYLER MASSEY  JUSTIN KYLE MASSEY  JUSTIN TYSON MASSEY ~ KATY MARIE MASSEY ~ MICKEY LYNN MASSEY
OLIVIA JEANETTE MASSEY TOMMY L MASSEY ANDREW NATHAN MASSIE ZACHARY DANIEL MASSIE MARK C MASSIER AARON JAY MAST CODY M MAST DAVID M MAST JESSE W MAST LELAND ANDREW MAST SHERRY MASTERS TODD A MASTERS ZACHARY TAYLOR MASTERS
NOLEN TRENT MASTERSON  BRIAN MASTON TERESA MARIE MASTOWSKI DAVID V MASTRANGELO MITCHELL R MASTRO ALFREDO MATA JR  ESTEFANIA MARICEL MATA JONATHAN NA MATA OSVALDO RICARDO MATA  PAUL ORIEL MATA  MA VERONICA MATA CONTRERAS
ZACHARY MICHAEL MATASCI  NEAL CORY MATCHETT ~ JUANA MATEO DIEGO  MENECIA MATEO PABLO  FERN MATERNO  RAMCHARAN MATHAI  RAJ MATHAIAH  SETH ALAN MATHENEY ~ GREGORY SCOTT MATHENY  YIORGO MATHEOS  BRANDON MICHAEL MATHERLY
ANDREW COLLIN MATHERNE ~ BRIAN R MATHERS ~ DARREN A MATHES ~ ARUNPRASATH MATHESWARAN  KEVIN HENRY MATHEWES ~ ANTHONY E MATHEWS ~ BRADY MATHEWS  SEBASTIEN MATHEWS ~ SHAWN ALLEN MATHEWS  CHRISTOPHER FREDERICK MATHEWSON
KEVIN MATHIAS  DAVID WAYNE MATHIS  GLEN ALLEN MATHIS GREGORY E MATHIS ~KADREN SHOMARI MATHIS ~ KENNETH J MATHIS KENNETH J MATHIS SR SAMUEL MATHIS  SAMUEL LIVINGSTON MATHIS Ill  MICHAEL D MATIOSCHAT  JUDD MATKIN ~ SCOTT L MATLOCK
SCOTTIE D MATLOCK JOEL C MATOS ADRIAN MATRAM KEITH WAYNE MATRY JASON LEWIS MATSON MATTHEW MATSON KEN MATSUOKA REYNA PABLO A MATTEI ADAM RUSSELL MATTEQ BRENTON L MATTEO MICHAEL A MATTEO WYATT A MATTESON JASON P MATTHES
JUSTIN MATTHES ADAM MATTHEWS  BILLY GENE MATTHEWS JR BOBBY N MATTHEWS BRANDON MATTHEWS BRANDON JOSEPH MATTHEWS BRIAN K MATTHEWS BRYCE G MATTHEWS CHRISTOPHER SCOTT MATTHEWS  CLINT MATTHEWS DAULTON DRAKE MATTHEWS
DAVID MATTHEWS EUGENE D MATTHEWS JASON DOUGLAS MATTHEWS JESSICA BROOKE MATTHEWS JOHN TREVER MATTHEWS JONATHAN H MATTHEWS JOSHUA KEITH MATTHEWS KENNETH E MATTHEWS MARK R MATTHEWS MICHAEL D MATTHEWS MICHAEL E MATTHEWS
RYAN S MATTHEWS STEPHANIE R MATTHEWS TERESA A MATTHEWS TRACY C MATTHEWS MITCHELL D MATTINGLY KYLE MATTINSON TUCKER NED MATTINSON RICHARD D MATTISON JAROD STEPHEN MATTOCKS NORMAN B MATTOX JOSHUA D MATTSON BASSIM MATUK
JAMES JOSEPH MATURA HOLLY S MATUSAS JOSEPH J MATUSKA TAMMY MATUSZAK JOHN JAIRO MATUTE JEREMY MATWYKO RANDY MATWYKO MARY BETH MAU ZACHARY SAMUEL MAU COLBY ALAN MAUGHAN DALTON DUSTIN MAUGHAN SAMUEL ANDERSON MAUNEY
RANDY K MAURER  RUSSELL PAUL MAURER  JEFFREY MAURICE TOBIAS MAURICE JOSE L MAURICIO ANTHONY P MAURITS ANNA E MAUSER ERIC JOEL MAVIS MARIO ANGELO MAX NATE M MAXEDON JAMES R MAXIM ANDREW S MAXWELL ANTHONY D MAXWELL
BRANDON J MAXWELL COLTON D MAXWELL DAVIS MAXWELL ERIC L MAXWELL JAMES TONY MAXWELL JASON HEATH MAXWELL JEFF M MAXWELL MICHAEL W MAXWELL STEPHEN AUSTIN MAXWELL AUSTIN EMAY CRAIG M MAY DEXTER MAY JEREMY M MAY
JOSEPH CHRISTOPHER MAY  JUSTIN MAY  KELVIN MAY ~ KENNETH D MAY LUCAS JAMES MAY ~MATTHEW ALAN MAY  NICOLE CHRISTINE MAY SCOTT A MAY ~ SEAN DAVID MAY ~AGUSTIN GRANADOS MAYA  CHRISTOFER RYAN MAYBERRY ~ JAMES WILLIAM LEE MAYBERRY
MARLON C MAYBERRY THOMAS C MAYBERRY MIGUEL N MAYE BLAKE FREDRICK MAYER  LAUREN J MAYER  JULIAN L MAYERS = YORNAY MAYETA ADAM JOSEPH MAYFIELD ~MICHAEL M MAYHALL CHRISTOPHER K MAYNARD ~ WILLIAM C MAYNARD  JOSHUA L MAYNE
ELIJAH P MAYO  JAKE MAYORCA HECTOR F MAYORGA  ALAN RAY MAYOTTE PAUL THOMAS MAYR  CALEB TUCKER MAYS CARSON DOWLING MAYS  CHRISTOPHER MAYS  DELROY LAMONT MAYS  GEORGE MICHAEL MAYS HERB MAYS  JAMES STEVEN-ANDREW MAYS
JOHN M MAYS ~ JOSEPH DALE MAYS  KENNETH L MAYS ~ ROBERT JOSEPH MAYS ~ WILLIAM TODD MAYS  CODY C MAYSE  JOHN C MAYTON  KEVIN B MAYTUM  DEBJYOTI MAZUMDAR DYLAN MAZUREN VANESSA D MAZZA LOIS M MAZZARESE ~MICHAEL PAUL MAZZILLO
JASON MCADAM  TYLER MCADAM  CONSTANCE LEE MCADAMS  TY ALDEN MCADAMS ~ KEEGAN MCADOO  ERIC D MCADORY  CORY LEE MCALISTER ~ JUSTIN ROBERT MCALISTER ~ DANIEL CODY MCALLISTER ~ DAVID LEE MCALLISTER ~ JAMES D MCALLISTER
JAMES PATRICK MCALLISTER IV JEREMY T MCALLISTER JUSTIN W MCALLISTER KAYLA MCALLISTER THOMAS BLAKE MCALLISTER TRACI MCALLISTER JAMES MCALPINE KYLE MCALPINE NOAH MCALPINE QUINN MCALPINE STEVEN MICHAEL MCALPINE KIM ELAINE MCANULTY
MICHAEL BRUCE MCARTHUR RAYFORD J MCATEER THOMAS M MCAULIFFE JR CHADWICK TYLER MCBAY DAMON MCBETH ANTHONY GEORGE MCBRAYER GREG B MCBRAYER JERRY K MCBRAYER BRADY MCBRIDE BRYAN MCBRIDE D BLAKE MCBRIDE JACOB N MCBRIDE
JASON DAVID MCBRIDE JEFFREY D MCBRIDE JOHN J MCBRIDE JON KENT MCBRIDE MATTHEW MCBRIDE ROGER BRENT MCBRIDE STEPHANIE MCBRIDE WESLEY LANE MCBRIDE TREVOR DALE MCBROOM PAMELA K MCBROOME JAMES J MCCABE LUKE KASON MCCAFFERTY
ELIZABETH CHRISTINA MCCAFFREY ~MATTHEW JOSHUA MCCAFFREY MORGAN MICHAEL MCCAIG  TYLER ANTHONY MCCAIG  BRADY R MCCAIN  JOHN L MCCAIN ~ SHANG JAMAR MCCAIN  WESLEY MCCAIN ~ KEVIN E MCCALEB  CHRISTOPHER MCCALL  DAMIN D MCCALL
JAMAAL ATIBA MCCALL JAMES TMCCALL SR JAMIEL ISAIAH MCCALL JORDAN MCCALL MARCUS MCCALL SHAWNTEZ SHAQUAIWN MCCALL EDWARD A MCCALLIE KEITH ALAN MCCALLISTER SALLY A MCCALLUM JOHN CHADWICK MCCALPIN ZACHERY BISHOP MCCAMEY
DONNIE W MCCAMMON JR  DARRIN J MCCANDLESS  LOGAN MICHAEL MCCANDLESS ~ TYLER J MCCANDLESS ~ WILLIAM R MCCANDLESS  DAVID JOSEPH MCCANN ~ STEPHEN A MCCANN  JAMES H MCCANTS ~ JOEY S MCCANTS  SETH A MCCANTS  TIFFANY B MCCANTS
CHRISTOPHER TONY MCCARDLE  LARRY B MCCARDLE ~ KYLE MCCARRON  MATTHEW C MCCART  JAMES WALKER MCCARTHY ~ KYLE MCCARTHY TRAVIS MCCARTHY ASHTON MCCARTNEY JAMES MCCARTNEY JOHN WILLIAM MCCARTY JR  MICHAEL THOMAS MCCARTY
ROBERT M MCCAULEY ~ TINA MCCAULEY  TIMOTHYJMCCAVIT ~ ROYAL PRINCE MCCHRISTIAN  AIRIKA MCCLAFFERTY ~ HUNTER MCCLAIN ~ JOSHUA PAUL MCCLAIN ~ ROBERTMCCLAIN ~ RYAN AMCCLAIN ~ GREGORY SCOTT MCCLAMROCH  GILBERT MCCLATCHIE
KYLE CHRISTOPHER MCCLEARY MATTHEW RAY MCCLEASE CASEY B MCCLELLAN CURTIS MCCLELLAN JASON L MCCLELLAN JEREMY C MCCLELLAN KALEB MCCLELLAN KEVIN R MCCLELLAN KOLBY LAYTON MCCLELLAN VERDARIUS CORDELL MCCLELLAN ADA MCCLELLAND
ANDREW MCCLELLAND  KELVIN D MCCLENDON ~ BLAKE ALLEN MCCLISH  JUSTIN DOUGLAS MCCLISH ~ MATTHEW MCCLOSKEY  ASHLEY MCCLOUD  JACK MCCLOUD  RANDALL J MCCLOUD  BLAKE CONNOR MCCLUNG ~ WILLIAM E MCCLUNG  CONNOR RAYNE MCCLURE
JACOB W MCCLURE JESSE R MCCLURE MARK L MCCLURE STACIE ANN MCCLURE TAYLOR PAIGE MCCLURE WILLIAM B MCCLURE BILLY M MCCOIN BESS MCCOLLESTER JOHN ANDREW MCCOLLEY CALVIN D MCCOLLOM GARY DARNELL MCCOLLUM JASON E MCCOLLUM
JUSTIN K MCCOLLUM MARK E MCCOLLUM HUGH R MCCOMAS JAMES P MCCOMB RILEY MCCOMB JOSHUA LEWIS MCCONNELL KYLE MCCONNELL MATTHEW THOMAS MCCONNELL MICHAEL JOSEPH MCCONNELL PATRICK MICHAEL MCCONNELL SHANNON FORTIS MCCONNELL
WILLIAM K MCCONNELL ~ STEVEN JAMES MCCONVILLE ~ KELSON DARYL MCCOOL RANDY CHRIS MCCOOL LYNN MCCORD MARK D MCCORD WESTIN RAYNE MCCORD CHARLES W MCCORKLE JASON R MCCORKLE LEAH R MCCORKLE ~MICHAEL SHAWN MCCORMACK
ERIC TERENCE MCCORMICK ~ JASON A MCCORMICK ~ JASON L MCCORMICK ~ RANDY R MCCORMICK  REECE TMCCORMICK ROBERT G MCCORMICK ROBERT K MCCORMICK GRANT MCCORRISTER  NINECA SHERREL MCCOWAN  BRIAN MCCOY CORBIN JACOB MCCOY
DARIUS DEANDRE MCCOY ETHAN MICHAEL MCCOY HENRY B MCCOY Il JAMES MCCOY JOEY MCCOY MARKN MCCOY MICHAEL GUY MCCOY MIRANDA FAITH MCCOY NATHANIEL J MCCOY RICHARD L MCCOY SHELDON MCCOY THOMAS RAY MCCOY WILLIAM B MCCOY
KENNETH C MCCRACKEN ~ MICHAEL JOHN MCCRACKEN Il MICHAEL ROBERT MCCRACKIN ~ STEVLEN JOSEPH MCCRANEY ~ BRANDON D MCCRARY ~ DANIEL B MCCRARY ~ JARED MCCRARY  JORDAN R MCCRARY ~ MICHAEL S MCCRAVEY ~ MICHAEL JUDSON MCCRAY
TIMOTHY LOGAN MCCRAY ~ LAUREN WINTER MCCREA  CHRISTOPHER JOSEPH MCCREARY  KERRY JASON MCCREE ~ MEGAN MARIE MCCREERY ~ ERNEST LEE MCCRELESS ~ ARTHUR JAMES MARK MCCRORY  SEAN MCCRORY  ERIC R MCCROSKEY ~KENNETH W MCCRUTER
JAMES C MCCUBBIN LLOYD L MCCUBBIN CHARLES ANDREW MCCUISTON COLTON MCCULLOCH JAMES MCCULLOCH KELLY MCCULLOCH MICHAEL DUANE MCCULLOCH MYRON A MCCULLOCH ALEX ALEXIS MCCULLOUGH ALICIA KRISTIN MCCULLOUGH
BRADFORD L MCCULLOUGH ~ DUANE CHRISTIAN MCCULLOUGH ~ EMMA JANE MCCULLOUGH ~ FRANKIE L MCCULLOUGH  JOSEPH TOBIAS MCCULLOUGH ~ KEITH L MCCULLOUGH  LILLIE FRANCES MCCULLOUGH ROBERTA MCCULLOUGH  SHATERRION JAMAR MCCULLOUGH
STEPHEN C MCCULLOUGH JENKINS DUANE MCCULLUM  LATISHA MARIE MCCULLUM CRAIG | MCCULLY BRANDON ALLEN RAY MCCUNE DANIEL ALEXANDER MCCURDY CHRISTOPHER J MCCURLEY BEN THOMAS MCCURRY JONATHAN MCCURRY CHRISTOPHER E MCCUTCHEN
ADAM J MCCUTCHEON JOHN ANDREW MCCUTCHEON JOHN W MCCUTCHEON ERIC EUGENE MCDADE MICHAEL JOHN MCDADE ALBERT D MCDANIEL ALBERT DEAN MCDANIEL JR CODY DEAN MCDANIEL MAIA MCDANIEL PETER MATTHEW MCDANIEL QUINCY L MCDANIEL
SETH WAYNE MCDANIEL TERI MCDANIEL THOMAS M MCDANIEL TYNA MCDANIEL GLENN ERIC MCDAY KELLY KIERRA MCDAY CODY M MCDERMOTT STEVEN T MCDERMOTT CHARLES THOMAS MCDILL TIMOTHY JAY MCDOLE ABBY MCDONALD ALEXANDER JAMES MCDONALD
BLAINE R MCDONALD ~ BRENTS MCDONALD  CAITLYN RAE MCDONALD ~ CODY MCDONALD ~ DASHAWN MCDONALD  EDWARD K MCDONALD ~ HUNTER MCDONALD IV JACOB ELLIOTT MCDONALD  JAMES K MCDONALD ~ JAMES P MCDONALD  JAMES R MCDONALD JR
JEFFREY ALLEN MCDONALD  JENNIFER LYNN MCDONALD JOSEPH LARRY MCDONALD JOSHUA MCDONALD MITCHELL MCDONALD NICHOLAS SCOTT MCDONALD RYAN MCDONALD SEAN M MCDONALD JR TIMOTHY MCDONALD ROBERT F MCDONNELL FRANK MCDOUGAL
RYAN EDWARD MCDOUGALD BRENDAN DEAN MCDOWELL KENNARD LEANDUS MCDOWELL JR BARKLEY WHEELER MCDUFF TRACY L MCDUFFY ROBERTC MCEACHERN JONATHAN L MCEACHIN SR JORDAN J MCEACHIN STEPHEN G MCELHANON MARK EARL MCELHINNEY
GARY MCELRATH BRIAN WMCELROY ~ MARTEZ ATREL MCELROY ~ RILEY MCELROY  STEVEN L MCELROY  DAWN C MCELVEEN WILLIAM R MCELVEEN JUSTICE TYLOR MCELWEE KRISTOFFER CARSON MCELWRATH JAMES J MCELYEA LUKUS BLAKE MCELYEA
MARTY DEWAYNE MCELYEA BRADLEY J MCENDRE ANNETTE M MCENERNEY ~ CLAUDE MCFADDEN JOHN J MCFADDEN IV KENNETH DION MCFADDEN STEPHANIE ANN MCFADDEN CAMERON R MCFALL SHANNA M MCFALL JOHNATHON WAYNE MCFARLAND
MALCOLM JOEL MCFARLAND ~ ROBIN BRADLEY MCFARLAND ~ RORY LAYNE MCFARLANE ~ NICHOLAS MCFATRIDGE JOSHUA MCGAHAN ~ MACKINLEY R MCGARRY  NATHAN G MCGAUGHEY RYAN D MCGAUGHEY GRANT MCGAUGHY ANDREW MCGEE COURTNEY J MCGEE
JAMES CASH MCGEE  JUSTIN B MCGEE LUCAS CAINE MCGEE MARK JACOB MCGEE STEPHEN C MCGEE TIMOTHY A MCGEE WALTERTMCGEE JOEL RYAN MCGEEHON MICHAEL E MCGEORGE AUSTIN R MCGHEE CASEY LYNN MCGHEE CHRISTOPHER JAMES MCGHEE
DANIEL RYAN MCGHEE ~ RICKY D MCGHEE ~ STACY MCGHEE  DARIK MICHAEL MCGILL ~ KATIE MICHELLE MCGILLEM ~ ZACHARY MCGILLIS JACOB KOLE MCGINLEY DACIA D MCGINNESS ~ALEC MCGINNIS ~ KENDERICK R MCGIRT  TYLER MCGOUGAN  COLTON H MCGOUGH
DANIEL L MCGOWAN JAMIE M MCGOWAN JARED MCGOWAN KYLE A MCGOWAN MICHAEL W MCGOWAN CLARENCE RUSSELL MCGRANAHAN CLAUDE E MCGRANAHAN DUSTIN EDWARD MCGRANAHAN SCOTT MICHAEL MCGRATH ANDREW T MCGRAW
ROBERT HOLLADAY MCGRAW ~ RONALD A MCGRAW ~ CHAD D MCGREGOR ~ HUNTER JOHN MCGREGOR ~ JENNIFER L MCGREGOR ~ RUSSEL LEE ANDREW MCGREGOR ~ TRENTIN SETH MCGREGOR ~ JOHNNY F MCGRIFF  SEAN EDWARD MCGUIGGAN ~ AMANDA N MCGUIRE
ANNE TMCGUIRE BRIAN A MCGUIRE BRUCE MCGUIRE DAIMIEN D P MCGUIRE JEFFERY S MCGUIRE JON MICHAEL MCGUIRE LATHAN ARISTOTLE MCGUIRE SHANE P MCGUIRE STEPHEN E MCGUIRE TYLER FORREST MCGUIRE MICHAEL BRANDON MCGUIRT JOHN H MCHALFFEY
CLINTON A MCHAN  LARRY MCHARGUE ROBERT B MCHARGUE ANTHONY MCHUGH KEVIN MCHUGH JOHN MCINALLY HART MCINERNEY CORY P MCINTOSH DAVID LEE MCINTOSH LINDSAY A MCINTOSH JAIME LEA MCINTYRE JANET L MCINTYRE LOGAN W MCINTYRE
BRANDON MCINVILLE ~ JOSEPH P MCINVILLE  JUSTIN R MCINVILLE ~ COREY J MCKAY  JAYDEN CONNICK MCKAY  JONATHAN DEAN MCKAY ~ MARK STEVEN MCKAY ~ RALPH E MCKAY  RANDIN MCKAY ~ SAMUEL LEVI MCKAY ~SCOTTTMCKEAN  HEIDI ELIZABETH MCKEE
JACOB ROSS MCKEE JEREMY R MCKEE ZACHERY DEAN MCKEE MICHAEL E MCKEEN EUGENE TOMS MCKEIVER CHRISTOPHER THOMAS MCKELLAR CHRISTOPHER O MCKELVEY OWEN GAGE MCKELVEY ELLEN J MCKENNA CAMERON SHAWN MCKENNEY KOREY DEAN MCKENNEY
ANTHONY DWAYNE MCKENZIE ~ DAVID JAMES MCKENZIE ~ GERALD R MCKENZIE ~ KERSHAN MCKENZIE ~ ORNIN L MCKENZIEJR  PAUL JMCKENZIE ROBERT GAGE MCKENZIE ~ WALKER LEVI MCKENZIE ~ ADAM CASH MCKEON  THOMAS MCKEON  JEREMY R MCKEOWN
JOSEPH T MCKERNAN  PATRICK D MCKERNAN JENNIFER R MCKIBBEN DAVID C MCKINLEY CHAD R MCKINNEY CURTIS CESTIS BRENT MCKINNEY JACOB LEE MCKINNEY JEREMY MCKINNEY JUDY MCKINNEY JULIE ANN MCKINNEY JUSTIN MCKINNEY STEPHEN MCKINNEY
THOMAS K MCKINNEY CRYSTAL LASHAWN MCKINNON  ROBERT BRIAN MCKINNON  CHRISTOPHER A MCKINSEY JOHN MCKINVEN KYLE MCKINVEN DANIEL LEE MCKITRICK ENNIS A MCKNIGHT JAMES V MCKNIGHT JODY B MCKNIGHT JOHNATHON THOMAS MCKNIGHT JR
LARRY ALAN MCKNIGHT JR MICKEL T MCKNIGHT PEGGY MCKNIGHT RICHARD MCKNIGHT STEVEN W MCKNIGHT TONY E MCKNIGHT TYLER MCKOWN TYLER MCKOWN SHAWN MCLACHLAN GAIL S MCLAIN TONY LEE MCLAIN TRACE CAMERON MCLAIN JAMES E MCLAMB
JEFFREY WARREN MCLAMB  DILLON J MCLANE  BETH A MCLAUGHLAN-SEAVER  BRANDON L MCLAUGHLIN ~ CHRISTOPHER J MCLAUGHLIN ~ CORY MCLAUGHLIN ~ DUSTIN K MCLAUGHLIN ~ MATTHEW SEAN MCLAUGHLIN ~ NATHANIEL R MCLAUGHLIN  PAUL A MCLAUGHLIN
WILLIE MCLAUGHLIN ALASDAIR R MCLEAN FLINT MCLEAN JOSEPH G MCLEAN JR LANCE CRABLE MCLEAN MELISSA S MCLEAN OTIS MCLEARY ANDREW ROBERT MCLEES MEGAN A MCLEES JOHN MCLELLAND ANTHONY CHASE MCLEMORE CARTER GAYNOM MCLEMORE
MATT RUSSELL MCLENON ~ ALAN BRANDON MCLEOD ~ JARRETT NELSON MCLEOD ~ JOHNNY L MCLEOD JR  MICHAEL EDWARD MCLEOD  STEPHEN G MCLEOD  NICHOLAS G MCLEROY  NICHOLAS TALON MCLEROY ~ AMBER JOYCE NICHOLS MCMAHAN  COREY A MCMAHAN
TYLER PATRICK MCMAHAN ~ JAMIE J MCMAHON ~ MICHAEL JACOB MCMAHON ~ SEAN THOMAS MCMAHON ~ JESSICA A MCMANIGAL ~ EUGENE MCMANUS ~ MITCHELL MCMANUS ~ ROBERT MCMANUS ~ SCOTT MCMANUS ~ TAMRON EUGENE MCMANUS  DAVID C MCMEANS
ADAM K MCMELLON BRANDON EARL MCMELLON SEAN LARRY MCMICHAEL WILLIAM JOHN MCMICHAEL JONAS J MCMILLAN JOSHUA FRANKLIN MCMILLAN JARRED R MCMILLEN NANCY LEE MCMILLEN COREY D MCMILLIN GRAYSON DEAN MCMILLIN ALLEN SCOTT MCMILLON
HALEY MCMINN ~ KEIWAUN J MCMORRIS ~ MARC JOSEPH MCMULLEN ~ CRYSTAL MCMURRAY ~ DALE A MCMURRY  DAVID W MCMURRY  PHILIP JUSTIN MCMURRY ~ MITCHELL MCNAB  JASON MCNABB  KELLY S MCNABB DELANO MCNAIR  JAMES CHRISTOPHER MCNAIR
MATTHEW PAUL MCNAIR ~ JOHN ADAMS MCNAIRY Ill  JAIME MCNALL ~ THERESA MCNALL  HARRY J MCNALLY ~ DAVID M MCNEAL THEODORE RMCNEAL Il  BRUCE MCNEELY  LISA C MCNEELY  ELIZABETH STURTZ MCNEESE ~ MARKW MCNEIL ~ SHATERRIA MCNEIL
ALYSSA MARIE MCNEILL ~ CADE BRANDON MCNEILL ~ ANTONIA D MCNEISH ~ BRENT ANDREW MCNUTT ~ JACKIE DEAN MCNUTT ~ JOSEPH H MCNUTT ~ MARISA LYNN MCNUTT ~ TIMOTHY TYLER MCNUTT  PATRICK J MCPEAK ~ BRET MCPHERSON ~ GRACIE LEA MCPHERSON
LANDON MCPHERSON ~ STEPHEN MCQUAIG ~ JACOB S MCQUAIN  STACEY LYNNE MCQUAY  GREGORY MCQUEEN  HEIDI UNDERHILL MCQUEEN  JAMES ROBERT MCQUEEN ~ MELVINA MONTRESE MCQUEEN ~ JOHN MCRAE  RODNEY P MCRAE  ZAKIYA MOROWA MCRAE
JEREMY L MCROBERTS ~ TYLER SCOTT MCROBERTS ~ RICHARD WALLACE MCROY GLEN MCSHANE JEFFREY S MCSWAIN JACOB ALDEN MCSWANE RUSSELL D MCSWANE COREY MCTIGRIT LOGAN CHASE MCVAY ANDREW MCVEY MICHAEL J MCVICKER  GUY MCWATT
MATTHEW D MCWHIRTER ~ TERRY J MCWHORTER ~ DEBRA KAY MCWILLIAMS ~ LARRY DEAN MCWILLIAMS JR  RAVEN NYCOLE MCZEAL  ANTHONY BRUCE MEAD JR  SHAWN M MEAD  DESIREE MICHELLE MEADE  KEVIN MEADE  MICHAEL K MEADE  PHILIP LEE MEADE
CAMERON JOSEPH MEADOR CHRIS ALLEN MEADOR COBY LEE MEADOR JAMES D MEADOR MICHAEL SHANE MEADOR PHILLIP G MEADOR ROBERT JOSEPH MEADOR CHRISTOPHER BLAKE MEADOWS CHRISTOPHER BRIAN MEADOWS JAMES MEADOWS JASON S MEADOWS
JOSHUA C MEADOWS  JOSHUA W MEADOWS  LAWRENCE RANDAL MEADOWS  SHANE DOUGLAS MEADOWS  ISRAEL | MEAGHER JOEL MEAGHER LINDA RINA MEAN BRANDON C MEANS CAMRON C MEANS TROY J MEANS STAN L MEARS  JESSICA YVETTE MECHAM
JOSEPH MECHAM  MITCHELL MEDAK DUSTIN DAKOTA MEDCKIE ANN M MEDDINGS JEFFREY N MEDDINGS MASON MEDEIROS RANDY MEDEIROS SIMON S MEDEL CAROLINA RUIZ MEDELLIN COURTNEY MEDFORD JEFFREY D MEDFORD CESAR MEDINA CHRIS MEDINA
CINDY MEDINA  ESTEBAN MEDINA  MARIA | MEDINA  MICHAEL L MEDINA  PATRICIO MEDINA  RAE JEAN MEDINA  RAYMOND RICHARD MEDINA  SALOMON CAMPOS MEDINA ~ SAYRA ESTEFANIA GONZALEZ MEDINA  JOSE A MEDINA GONZALEZ  LUIS MEDINA GONZALEZ
MARK MEDLER ADAM KEITH MEDLEY CORY JMEDLEY RACHEL LINDSEY MEDLEY JAMES CURTIS MEDLIN JAMES W MEDLIN JONATHAN MEDLIN LOGAN CHRISTOPHER MEDLIN SARAH MEDLIN SEAN MEDNIKOW HERIBERTO MEDRANO IVAN G MEDRANO IVAN G MEDRANO
OSCAR ALEXANDER MEDRANO BROCK W MEECE JERRAD LOUIS MEECE FRANCINE T MEEHAN TODD A MEEHAN JAMES COLTON MEEK NOAH JOHN MEEKER DUSTIN MEEKS MICHAEL J MEEKS NEHA NA MEENA MUTHUKUMAR MEENAKSHISUNDARAM JESSE DAKOTA MEFFORD
JOSHUA H MEFFORD ~ KERRY L MEFFORD LANDON M MEFFORD  LONNIE D MEFFORD  STEPHANIE D MEFFORD LEON M MEGGETT ~ LATONYA MEGGINSON  REECE CARLISLE MEGGINSON  JOHN AUSTIN MEGGS ~ STEVEN C MEGGS ~MATTHEW S MEGYESE TODD P MEHL
BRANDON MEHLENBACHER DANIEL J MEHLENBACHER BRAD MEHRHOFF EDDIE MEIER JOSHUA ALAN MEIER MATTHEW J MEIER JARED MEINECKE MARCUS A MEINER DAVID W MEINHARDT BARTEL J MEIS BRODY RAY MEIS TREY MICHAEL MEIS NICHOLAS MEISBERGER
JEFF AMEIXSELL  EDUARDO ORTEGA MEJIA  EVERARDO ABEL ZUNIGA MEJIA  TOBY N MEJIA  STEVEN ANDREW MELANCON  CHRISTOPHER MELCHER ~ KEEGAN R MELCHER ~ RILEY JOSEPH MELCHER ~ ASHLEY NICHOL MELCHOR  JORGE A MELENA  EMERSON MELENDEZ
JESUS DANIEL MELENDEZ ~ MANUEL GUALBERTO MELENDEZ ~ ISRAEL SANDOVAL MELENDREZ ~ KURT MELERO  DIANE M MELESIO  JOHN S MELITOS ~ MICHAEL A MELKUS ~ RAMON ALIGI MELLA ~ CHRISTOPHER L MELLER ~ QUENTIN MCCANN MELLETT  KENT A MELLO
JOSEPH M MELLODY ~ ROBERT CANON MELLOTT RONALD J MELLOTT ~ MARK J MELNICK CELERINO C MELO GABRIEL MELOCHE ANDREW MCCOQY MELSON ANTHONY W MELTON BILLY ANDREW MELTON JR GERAD ALLEN MELTON JAMES DAVID MELTON 11l
JAMISON GREGORY MELTON KYLE W MELTON MATTHEW MELTON MICHAEL M MELTON NICHOLAS MELTON CHRISTOPHER DALE MELVIN JUAN M MENA TRACEY LYNN MENA KRISTOPHER CHASE MENASCO MARK F MENASCO CHRISTOPHER MENDENHALL HEITOR MENDES
ALEJANDRO MANUEL MENDEZ ~ANDREW DAVID MENDEZ BENJAMIN MENDEZ DIEGO OSVALDO MENDEZ ~ELVIN R MENDEZ HUGO ANTONIO MENDEZ VAN MENDEZ JOSE UMENDEZ JUAN JOSE MENDEZ MAGDALENO MENDEZ NICOLE MENDEZ RAFAEL RUIZ MENDEZ
URIEL MENDEZ ~ VICTORIA JEANETTE MENDEZ ~ JUAN FRANCISCO MENDEZ CONTRERAS ~ JAVIER MENDEZ MARTIN JAVIER MENDEZ MARTIN HUGO SILVESTRE MACIAS MENDIETA ABEL VENTURA MENDOZA ~ ALMEIDAY MENDOZA  ANDREA DEL REFUGIO MENDOZA
CARLOS IGNACIO MENDOZA CECELIA D MENDOZA CRISTIAN ROLANDO MENDOZA DIONEL MENDOZA FRANCISCO JUNIOR MENDOZA GUSTAVO MENDOZA HARVING MENDOZA JOSE D MENDOZA JUAN DE JESUS CHAVEZ MENDOZA LEE JORDAN MENDOZA LUIS MENDOZA
MARCEL R MENDOZA  MICHAEL D MENDOZA NOLBERTO MENDOZA ORLANDO MENDOZA OSWALDO MENDOZA RICARDO MENDOZA RICARDO CHAVEZ MENDOZA  ALEJANDRO MENDOZA MENDOZA  JOSE IGNACIO MENDOZA MURILLO  RONALDO MENDOZA-ALCANTARA
AARON J MENEFEE LORA MENEGAZZO CHRIS J MENEZES RICARDO MENEZES ROBERTO MENEZES VICTOR MENEZES DEAN A MENIGOZ AARON C MENKE CORY B MENLOVE WILLIAM BLAKE MENNES MATTHEW D MENSCER TRAVIS JAMES MENTER MATTHEW P MENZENBERG
KEVIN J MENZER ~ JUSTIN MENZIES ~ ABEL DANIEL MERCADO  FRANCISCO JAVIER MERCADO  JESUS SALVADOR MERCADO  JOSE ANIBAL MERCADO LOUISSE MERCADO  SAUL ELIOBERTO MERCADO ~ SANDRA MERCADO BURGOS  RICARDO MERCADO RODRIGUEZ
KESHIA | MERCADO SAMUEL  LINDA MERCANTE ~ JOSHUA A MERCEDE  BRIAN D MERCER CHRISTOPHER M MERCER  JAMES MERCER  JUSTIN DAVID MERCER  RODNEY TY MERCER CHAD E MERCHANT CODYTMERCHANT DONALD E MERCHANT  RYAN PAUL MERCIER
MOLLY B MERCURIO ~ BRANDON L MEREDITH ~ DERREL J MEREDITH ~ JAMES THOMAS MEREDITH ~ JAYNE CAROL MEREDITH  LEVI JEFFREY MEREDITH ~ MATTHEW JAMES MEREDITH ~ SCOTT G MEREDITH ~ STACEY MEREDITH ~ TRACEY MEREDITH ~ MICHAEL W MERIDA
BENJAMIN JAMES MERJA  BRETT ALLEN MERKEL TYLER MERLIN GERD MERLING ~ DANIEL J MERONEY AMANDA MERRICK CURTIS MERRICK ~ CLAYTON PATRICK MERRIGAN ~ ANDREW LEE MERRILL CORYTMERRILL DONALD PAIGE MERRILL  JUSTIN ROBERT MERRILL
MATTHEW C MERRILL ~ RICKY LEE MERRILL  SAMANTHA MARIE MERRILL  JOHN W MERRIMAN  PHILLIP J MERRIMAN  AIDAN RIANE MERRITT ~ JOSEPH WILLIAM MERRITT ~ KANDEE M MERRITT  ROBERT DECLAN MERRITT  JEFFERY L MERRIWEATHER  FINLEY H MERRY
HUDSON H MERRY ~ BILLY L MERRYMAN ~ MATTHEW JAMES MERRYMAN  BOBBY JOE MERRYMAN I ROBERT ALLEN MERSHON  STEPHEN FRANCIS MERSMANN  ERIC M MERTES ~ JEREMY F MERTINK  BILLY RAY MERTZ Il 1l RYAN TESSIER MERZ ~ SCOTT P MESSENGER
JACOB EVAN MESSER  MATTHEW DAVID MESSER  MICHAEL A MESSER  ZACHARY MESSERSCHMIDT GABRIELE A MESSINA  ETHAN MEST STEVEN G MESZAROS FREDRICK CHARLES METCALF RACHAEL A METCALF DONALD METHVIN LARRY R METHVIN ALAN T METSKER
JESSICA ELAINE METTS DREW DANIEL METZ JOSHUA METZ JOSEPH M MEURET STEPHEN JAMES MEURET ANDREW RICHARD MEWBORN ZACHARY LEE MEWBOURN KODYW MEWIS ABRAHAM JMEYER ADAM MICHAEL MEYER BRADY MICHAEL MEYER CAMERON J MEYER
CEVYN JMEYER CLINTON G MEYER ERIC L MEYER KEITHTMEYER KENDALL MARIE MEYER KEVIN EUGENE MEYER LISALMEYER MATTHEW JMEYER MICHAEL O MEYER NATHAN HUNTER MEYER PATRICK KENNETH MEYER RICKY EUGENE MEYER WILLIAM J MEYER JR
BLAKE MEYERS DONALD G MEYERS JR  LINDSAY R MEYERS BENJAMIN M MEYETTE ISSAC MEZA MILTON MEZA OSCAR ALAN MACIAS MEZA  CALISTRO MEZA MEJIA  FERNANDO WILLIAMS MEZA QUIROZ FRANCISCO JAVIER MEZA-HERNANDEZ ~MIGUEL MEZA-HERRERA
FREDRICK R MEZENSKI ROBERT J MEZICK DAVID MICHAEL GEORGIA MICHAEL MARCUSTMICHAEL GWENDOLYN MAE MICHAELIS ELIZABETH ROSE MICHAELS JARED D MICHAELS ROBERT ALLAN MICHAELS AMBER MICHAELSON DEBORAH MICHAUD GARY R MICHELFELDER
LAURA MICHELI  NICHOLAS A MICHELIN ~ JAKOB ROBERT MICHL ~ AARON JOSEPH MICK ~ LORI K MICKELSON ~ BLAKE M MICKEY ~ CHRISTOPHER DEWAYNE MICKLE = WILLIAM W MICKLE ~ DANIEL SCOTT MIDDLESTETTER ~ AUSTIN SHAYNE MIDDLETON  BARRY L MIDDLETON
CHRISTOPHER MIDDLETON GREGORY MIDDLETON JAMIE LEE MIDDLETON JOE MIDDLETON PERRY MIDDLETON ROBERT LEE MIDDLETON IIl  STACY W MIDDLETON TRENT MIDDLETON KENNETH ARNOLD MIDKIFF TERRY MIDKIFF  RANDY L MIECZKOWSKI ANDREW MIELER
KORY GENE MIELITZ KORY GENE MIELITZ ANDREW WAYNE MIENTEK JOSE ALEJANDRO MIEREZ TORREALBA ANDREW EDWIN MIERS STEVEN ANDREW MIFFLIN STEVEN J MIGLIORE MARIA MIGUEL GASPAR CORY D MIHAVICS JUSTIN LEE MIHAVICS DIEGO PINEDA MIJANGOS
OSCAR J MIJARES  IAN BRET MIKELS  BRENT JOSEPH MIKELSON ~ LANDON DAVID MIKESELL ~ KEVIN L MIKETTA  SHAWN M MIKOLAITIS  JACOB D MIKOS BRADLEY TODD MILBURN ~ SEAN ADAM MILBURN ~ ALFONSO MILES BOYD B MILES GRANTMILES JAMES A MILES
JASONS MILES  JAYS MILES JOHN E MILES JONATHAN A MILES ~ JONATHAN MAX MILES ~ JOSHUA MILES ~ JOSHUA DWAYNE MILES ~ KYLE PRESLEY MILES LARRYTODD MILES LORNE MILES MARK D MILES ~MICHAEL E MILES MICHAEL R MILES ~ REX DEVIN MILES
SHANE O MILES SHAWN ISAAC MILES  SHELLEY RENEE MILES  STUART KEVIN MILES Il TALON CARROLL MILES TINA JMILES WILLIAM B MILES DANIELLE N MILES-SCHWABEROW  MICHAEL S MILFORD ~ RUSSELL LEE MILFORD SAMMY A MILHOAN  RICARDO J MILIAN
DYLAN MILISITS GEORGE P MILJUS ~ MARIA DE LOS ANGELES MILLAN ~ MOISES NA MILLAN  DEREK MILLAR ~ WAYNE J MILLAY ~AARON ANTHONY MILLER ADAM J MILLER ANDRA MILLER ANDREW CHARLES MILLER  ANTONIO MILLER  AUSTIN L MILLER BEAU MILLER
BENJAMIN ALAN MILLER  BRAD EMILLER  BRADFORD HOY MILLER  BRADLEY D MILLER  BRANDON MILLER  BRANDON J MILLER  BRENNAN Z MILLER  BRONSON WILLIAM MILLER  BRUCE L MILLER  CALEB AMILLER CHARLES MILLER JR  CHRISTOPHER E MILLER
CHRISTOPHER L MILLER CHRISTOPHER M MILLER COLLIER D MILLER COREY BRUCE MILLER COREY D MILLER COURTNEY RHIANNON MILLER CRAIG B MILLER DANIEL E MILLER DANIEL LEE MILLER DANNY A MILLER DANNYTMILLER DARRELL E MILLER DARRELL W MILLER
DAVID A MILLER DAVID EDWARD MILLER DAWN R MILLER DEANDRE ANDRE MILLER DEBORAH R MILLER DEBRA M MILLER DEMONTE MILLER DEREK W MILLER DEVEN TYLER MILLER DIANA LYNN MILLER DONALD E MILLER JR DONALD LANCE MILLER DOUGLAS A MILLER



DUSTIN EMILLER DUSTIN J MILLER ELVAH MILLER ERIC C MILLER ERIC JOHN MILLER GREGG DUANE MILLER GREGORY WILLIAM MILLER HARLEN EUGENE MILLER HEATHER M MILLER JACQUELYN RAE MILLER JAIMYEN OMAR MILLER JAMES MILLER JAMES A MILLER
JAMES L MILLER JAMES L MILLER JAMES MICHAEL MILLER JANEL MILLER JARED CONLEY MILLER JARED LEE MILLER JASON MATTHEW MILLER JAY RICHARD MILLER JEFF R MILLER JEFFERY MILLER JEFFREY MILLER JEFFREYL MILLER JEREMY JMILLER JESSEW MILLER
JIMMY MILLER JOEY J MILLER JOHN L MILLER JONATHAN A MILLER JORDAN R MILLER JOSEPH D MILLER JOSEPH D MILLER JOSH K MILLER JOSHUA L MILLER JOSHUA SHELTON MILLER JUSTIN MILLER JUSTIN ROBERT MILLER KADEN BRADLEY MILLER KARIV MILLER
KATHERINE MILLER KEITH E MILLER KEN M M MILLER KENNETH MILLER KEVIN PAUL MILLER KLAYTON ANDREW MILLER KRISTY ANN MILLER KYLE E MILLER LANCE W MILLER LESLIE JMILLER LISA MAY MILLER LOGAN ELLISON MILLER MACKENZIE ALEXANDRA MILLER
MARK J MILLER  MARSHALL DALE MILLER MERLE L MILLER MERVIN H MILLER MICHAEL A MILLER MICHAEL D MILLER MICHAEL DUANE MILLER MICHAEL JOSEPH MILLER MICHAEL L MILLER MICHAEL R MILLER MISTY D MILLER MITCHELL MILLER MOLLY MILLER
NATHAN C MILLER ~ NATHAN P MILLER ~ NATHAN R MILLER ~ NICHOLAS ALLEN MILLER ~ NOAH CHRISTOPHER MILLER ~ NOAH LEE MILLER ~ OLENRMILLER ~ OMERD MILLER ~ PATRICK DRAKE MILLER ~ PHILLIP L MILLER ~ RANDELL MILLER ~ RAYMON L MILLER
RENEE DESILVA KAMINSKY MILLER RICHARD C MILLER RICHARD JOHNSON MILLER Il ROBERT DALE MILLER ROBERT JAKE MILLER ROBERT LESTER MILLER RODNEY JAMES MILLER RYAN MILLER RYAN GEORGE MILLER SHARI MILLER SHAUN MILLER SHAWN M MILLER
SUSAN MILLER  TAMMY RENA MILLER  THOMAS C MILLER  TIMOTHY CRAIG MILLER ~ TIMOTHY ROBERT MILLER  TODD D MILLER  TOM MILLER TOMAS A MILLER  TOMMY RAY MILLER  TRAVIS W MILLER  TROY MILLER ~ TYLER MATTHEW MILLER ~ VINCENT D MILLER
VINCENT H HUNTER MILLER  WADE MILLER  WARREN A MILLER Il WAYNE P MILLER ~ WILLIAM MILLER ~ WILMA R MILLER ~ ZACHARYTMILLER ~ ZACKERY COLE MILLER ~ ZANE JOSH MILLER  CADEN CHRISTOPHER MILLICAN  CONNOR O NEIL MILLIGAN  JEFF MILLIGAN
MALLORY MILLIGAN MATTHEW JAON MILLIGAN PETER A MILLIGAN STEVEN ONEIL MILLIGAN JIMMY D MILLIKAN TREA DEWAYNE MILLIKAN ALEXANDER MILLIRON ALEXANDRA G MILLS AMY L MILLS BRIAN MILLS BRIAN D MILLS BRUCE A MILLS CHRISTOPHER LUKE MILLS
CHRISTOPHER MARTIN MILLS GLENN M MILLS JASON R MILLS NICHOLE D MILLS RONALD JONQUENDO MILLS BRETT MILLSAP JOHN D MILLSAP JOSHUA D MILLSAP JENNIFER MILNE DWANA NICOLE MILNER ELIJAH JOSHUA MILO MARCUS MILONS MELISSA MILTEER
JORDAN RILEY MIMS ~ NIRUPA MINASANDRAM  EDWARD R MINCE  CHRISTIAN A MINER  DEBORAH J MINER ~ MICHAEL S MINER  TROY L MINGLE ~ WILLIAM S MINICK  JAIME MINJARES  JOSHUA MINJAREZ MICHAEL MINK  BRIAN CHAD MINNICK  RICHARD J MINNITI Il
CHRISTY RMINOR  JACOB MINOR  JEFFREY MINOR JOSHUA AMINOR KENNETH R MINOR RANDALW MINOR ROBERTD MINOR STEVE MINOR WILLIAM MINT ~ RICKY LEE MINTER  DANA MARIE MINTON ~ STEPHEN C MINTON ROBERTW MINYARD JR  COLBY J MINZE
GARY DAVID MIRACLE  FERNANDO AGUSTIN QUEZADA MIRAMONTES  JUAN CARLOS QUEZADA MIRAMONTES ~ OSCAR DANIEL QUEZADA MIRAMONTES ~ CESAR MIRANDA  ELIZABETH MIRANDA  JORGE A MIRANDA  PEDRO MIRANDA  ROBERT G MIRANDA  ROBERT L MIRANDA
ROBERTO CARLOS CANCHOLA MIRANDA  JOHN G MIRE  KIMBERLEY MIREAULT NOE A MIRELES RAMON E MIRELES DOLA SHANE MIRICK  MITRA MISAGHIHESARI  ANNA MISAIL  DANIEL JOSEPH MISAIL  CRAIG S MISDOM  JOHN WAYNE MISHOE ~ BILLY WAYNE MISNER
MARK ALAN MISNER  DOUGLAS L MISRASI  NICHOLAS MISRASI ~ RYAN PETE MISRASI  CHRIS MISSION  JOSEPH GASPARE MISTRETTA  AUSTIN B MITCHELL  BOBBY WAYNE MITCHELL ~ CASSANDRA AGNES MITCHELL  CHARDRICK L MITCHELL ~ CHRISTOPHER MITCHELL
DENNIS RYLAND MITCHELL  DRAPER CALVIN MITCHELL  DUSTIN H MITCHELL  ERIC J MITCHELL  ERICA NICOLE MITCHELL  EVAN MITCHELL GREG MITCHELL GREGORY L MITCHELL JAMES MARK MITCHELL  JASON L MITCHELL  JEROME MITCHELL JESSICA F MITCHELL
JOHNATHAN ZACCHAEUS MITCHELL JR  JONATHAN D MITCHELL JOSHUA CAIN MITCHELL KEVIN MITCHELL KYLE BRADFORD MITCHELL MARK TWAIN MITCHELL MATTHEW D MITCHELL MATTHEW MCGHAY MITCHELL MICHAEL MERRIT MITCHELL IIl  MICHAEL SEAN MITCHELL
PAUL MICHAEL MITCHELL ~ RANDALL W MITCHELL ~ RANDLE LANE MITCHELL  ROGER D MITCHELL ~ RON A MITCHELL ~ RYAN E MITCHELL ~ RYAN G MITCHELL ~ SARAH MITCHELL ~ SHAUNA D MITCHELL ~ SOPHIA MITCHELL ~ THOMAS E MITCHELL ~ TIMOTHY D MITCHELL
TIMOTHY LAMONT MITCHELL TRENT ALLEN MITCHELL WALTER MITCHELL WALTER E MITCHELL WILLIAM ARTHUR MITCHELL DYLAN DAVID MITCHEM ALEXANDER CHARLES MITCHNER PETER MITSIKAS GREG MITTENDORF DONALD MITTER DONALD MITTER BRAYDN MITTON
DANIEL ALAN MITZLAFF KEVIN M MIXON DARRIN G MIZE MARILYN B MIZE RICHARD ERVIN MIZE JR DAVID B MIZELL BRIAN P MLNARIK AARON DON MOAD EVAN BOYD MOAK DALIA MOAWAD CHARLES MOBBS DANIEL A MOBLEY STEFAN S MOCANU LAWRENCE J MOCH JR
NICHOLAS ALEXANDER MODISETTE ~ JACK C MOEHRING ~ CASEYL MOELLER ~ MATTHEW L MOELLER ~ GREGORY EMOEN ~ APRILN MOERBE  JOSHUA M MOERBE ~ JOHN C MOESSNER ~ JENNIFER MOFFATT ~ BRIAN K MOFFETT  JIMMY RAY MOFFETTJR  DUSTE MOFFITT
JEREMIAH MOFFITT ~ JOSHUA MOFFITT ~ VICTORIA MOHAMED ~ MOHAMMED T MOHAMED MOHIDEEN A ABDUL JALIL NA MOHAMMED  AFRAZ MOHAMMED  AKEEF MOHAMMED  AZAM MOHAMMED  CHRYSAN MOHAMMED  IMRAN MOHAMMED  KEVIN MOHAMMED
TEVIN MOHAMMED ~ SHUJATH MOHAMMED KHAN ~ HARIHARN MOHAN ~ KAVIYADHARSHINI MOHAN ~ SELVAKUMAR MOHAN  SELVA RAJ MOHAN RAJ  KATELYN RENEE MOHLER  HILDA PATRICIA MOJICA  RICARDO P MOJICA  JOHN TATE MOLANDES RONALD P MOLANDES
DANIEL C MOLDOVAN  HUGO N MOLINA  JONATHAN ELIUD MOLINA  JUAN MOLINA  MARIEL ALEJANDRA MOLINA  THOMAS A MOLINA  VICTOR AGUSTO MOLINA ECHEVERRY  ALI RAFAEL MOLINA RAMIREZ ~ CHRISTA L MOLITOR  JONATHON M MOLITOR  JERRY W MOLL
TRACEY K MOLLNER DEREK E MOLNAR DAIRE FRANCIS MOLONEY ALAN WADE MOMAN JULIO P MONAGO ESPIRITU ALEJANDRO CALDERON MONARREZ CESAR ALONZO MONCADA GALVAN EXON A MONCADA GALVAN LEONEL MONDRAGON MARTINEZ STANLEY MONERVILLE
JOSE MONIZ NICHOLAS J MONK NICOLE LAUREN MONK ROBERT R MONK JOSHUA D MONKS ALAN C MONROE MARY E MONROE TYLER LANUET MONROE TREVOR MONTAGUE NICOLE MARIE MONTALTO HECTOR D MONTALVO JAVIER MONTALVO SUEMY HAYDEE REYES MONTALVO
SHAKIRA MONTAN ~ SANDRA MONTANEZ ~ JUAN MONTANO BALLESTEROS ~ JUAN MANUEL MONTANO BALLESTEROS ~ MATHEUS MONTARROYOS ~ NORBERTO BRACAMONTES MONTEALEGRE ~ FILADELFO MONTECINOS BARBOSA ~ KEVIN MONTEITH ~ SKYLAR M MONTEITH
JUAN FELIPE DE JESUS MONTELONGO DARWIN BRAYAN DIAZ MONTEMIRA ALEJANDRO MONTENEGRO ORTEGA DANIEL MONTERO ADAM A MONTES EMMANUEL GERARDO LUNA MONTES ERNESTO ALVAREZ MONTES GISELLE MONTES JONATHAN MONTES JOSE C MONTES
JUAN DE DIOS DELGADO MONTES LUIS MONTES MONICA ALEJANDRA CORONA MONTES RAFAEL LOPEZ MONTES ULISES DANIEL CORONA MONTES LAIZA F MONTES RAMOS ADOLFO MONTES RUIZ WILLIAM F MONTEZ Il AUSTIN LUCAS MONTGOMERY
BREANNE YVETTE MONTGOMERY BRUCE MONTGOMERY CADEN BLAKE MONTGOMERY CHRISTOPHER T MONTGOMERY COLTON JAKE MONTGOMERY CORY MONTGOMERY DEANNA R MONTGOMERY DUKE D MONTGOMERY EDGARDO MONTGOMERY EVERETTL MONTGOMERY III
FLOYD MONTGOMERY GREGORY MONTGOMERY HAYDON F MONTGOMERY JACK H MONTGOMERY KASEY EDWARD MONTGOMERY MATTHEW W MONTGOMERY MIKE A MONTGOMERY MITCHELL W MONTGOMERY NORMA L MONTGOMERY QUINCY LAMONT MONTGOMERY
RUSSELL L MONTGOMERY ~ SHAWN L MONTGOMERY ~ TRISTON DERRIAL MONTGOMERY ~ TROY C MONTGOMERY ~ WILLIAM W MONTGOMERY ~ ARNAUD MONTGRAND ~ ANTONIO ENRIQUE MONTOYA  JULIAN MONTOYA LEOPOLDO A MONTOYA  ROBERTO J MONTOYA
RODOLFO DAGOBERTO MONTOYA ROME MONTOYA ANTONIO MONTROND DE OLIVEIRA BONNIE G MONTS JAMES MOODIE ASHLY NICOLE MOODY BILL MOODY CHARLES NATHAN MOODY GEORGE A MOODY Il JACK SHERIDAN MOODY JANET L MOODY JAYMIE L MOODY
JIMMIE ROBERT MOODY  JOSEPH LONNIE MOODY ~ KIMBERLY | MOODY ~ MATTHEW D MOODY  SHANNON DALE MOODY  SKYLER ANDREW MOODY  TRAVIS ALLEN MOODY  VERNON MATTHEW MOODY ~ WILLIAM B MOODY Il ANTHONY WAYNE MOON  BRIAN MOON
JUSTIN AUBRY MOON NATHEN J MOON ZACH MOON CHRISTOPHER D MOONEY MARK MOONEY BRAYDEN MOONEYHAM ADAM MOORE ADAM KEEGAN MOORE ANDREW C MOORE ANJOLIE DOLLIMARIE MOORE ANNA MARIA MOORE ANTHONY MOORE ANTHONY F MOORE
ANTHONY S MOORE  ARTHUR J MOORE Il ASHLEY LYNN MOORE ~ AUSTIN MOORE B BRENTMOORE BARRY C MOORE BARRY LEE MOORE BILLY R MOORE Ill  BRANDON R MOORE  BRIAN LEE MOORE CAMERON JOSEPH MOORE CANDICE MOORE CHAD ALLEN MOORE
CHAD E MOORE CHRISTOPHER A MOORE COLTON D MOORE CONNOR LEE MOORE CURTIS MOORE CYNTHIA DIANN MOORE DARIEN PAUL MOORE DAVIS ALLEN MOORE DERRICK DEMOND MOORE DERRICK DEWAYNE MOORE SR DEVEN M MOORE DEXTER XAVIER MOORE
DON MOORE EDDRIA L MOORE ELWOOD S MOORE Il ERIC C MOORE GAIGE W MOORE GARRY A MOORE GAVIN C MOORE HAROLD M MOORE HARVEY E MOORE JAKEVUS RASHOD MOORE JAMES BROCK MOORE JAMES L MOORE JAMES L MOORE JAMES RICHARD MOORE
JAMIE D MOORE  JEFFREY A MOORE JR  JEFFREY D MOORE  JEFFREYTMOORE JR  JESSE D MOORE  JESSIE D MOORE  JOEL CHRISTIAN MOORE  JOHN MORGAN MOORE ~ JOHN R MOORE  JUANITAL MOORE JULIANA MOORE  KAREN L MOORE  KASEY LEE MOORE
KATELYN MARIE MOORE  KATIE A MOORE KEITH MOORE KURTEILLIOTT MOORE KYLE AMOORE LAWRENCE A MOORE MACKENZIE NICOLE MOORE MARCUS C MOORE MARCUS JONATHAN MOORE MASON MOORE MATTHEW SCOTT MOORE ~ MITCHELL HILLARY MOORE
PATRICK J MOORE  PERRY DEAN MOORE REGINA MOORE RICHARD D MOORE RICHARD WAGNER MOORE Il RILEY MOORE SHANE E MOORE SHANE TYLER MOORE STEPHEN M MOORE STEVEN MOORE TERRENCE BRIAN MOORE TIMOTHY L MOORE TOBIE CROSS MOORE
TRAVEZ MOORE TYRONE MOORE WESTON TAYLOR MOORE WILLIAM A MOORE WILLIAM G MOORE WILLIAM LAVERN MOORE WILLIAM MCCOY MOORE JR KELLY B MOOREFIELD MATHEW N MOOREHEAD LATONYA W MOORER RODNEY MOORER ROBERTWAYNE MOORING
MATTHEW THOMAS MOORMAN ~ BROCK C MOORS ~ ANTHONYTMOOSMAN  GABRIEL ALEJANDRO MEZA MORA  GABRIEL RAY PAYAN RAY MORA  JORGE PAUL ROSALES MORA  JOSUE NA MORA  OLEGARIO ANGUIANO MORA  UMBERTO NA MORA  ALEXIS JAIR MORALES
ANDRES DAVID MORALES ~ ANIBAL MORALES ~ ARTURO MORALES ~ CARLOS A MORALES  DANIEL ALLEN MORALES ~ ELMER MORALES  ENRIQUE R MORALES ~ FERNANDO MORALES  FRED A MORALES ~ FRENZEL MORALES ~ HECTOR N MORALES  HUGO MORALES
JENNIFER LISSETTE MORALES JESUS A MORALES JOAQUIN MORALES JONATHAN EDUARDO MORALES JOSE MORALES KATHELYN ELISHA MORALES MARCO ANTONIO MORALES MAYNOR A MORALES PAUL ARTHUR MORALES RICHARD MORALES ROBERTO CARLOS MORALES
SALVADOR MORALES ~ WALTER MEINARDO MORALES ~WENDY MORALES  YVETTE MORALES  ANDRES G MORALES ANDRADE ~ FRANCISCO G MORALES CASTILLO  JOBANY MANUEL MORALES MARTINEZ ~ JONATHAN MORALES MARTINEZ ~ MARCO ANTONIO MORALES ORTIZ
WILLIAM MORALES-COBA ~ ANDREW MATTHEW MORALEZ ~ ALAN R MORAN  BRITTANI ANNE MORAN  JARED PAUL MORAN  JULIO ANTONIO ISABELES MORAN  MARTIN PATRICK MORAN ~ ZACHARY MORAN ~ MARKHAM CHANCELOR MORDECAI ~ ANTHONY M MORDEN
COREY MORDEN THOMAS MORDEN FRANCOIS MOREAU PATRICK MATTHEW MOREDOCK AERYK D MOREE GERALD W MOREE MARK W MOREE BRUCE MOREFIELD GLENN CHARLES MOREHEAD JOSEPH HAROLD MOREHEAD ROBERT E MOREHEAD PATRICK N MOREHOUSE
ROBIN A MOREHOUSE FRANKLIN ADEMIR MOREIRA HUEZO DONALD G MORELAND MICHAEL MORELL BRYAN MORELLI RONALD SCOTT MORELLI ANTONIO MORENO EDWIN ALEJANDRO TORRES MORENO ESTHER MORENO FRANCISCO MORENO GABRIEL CONTRERAS MORENO
GERALD MORENO  JOSE LUIS RENTERIA MORENO  JOSE MANUEL RODRIGUEZ MORENO  JUAN ACOSTA MORENO  LUIS RAMON MARQUEZ MORENO  PEDRO ROBLES MORENO RAFAEL ROBLES MORENO RUBEN NA MORENO SR SEAN R MORENO  ELIEZER MORENO OROZCO
JUSTIN R MOREY ANDREA G MORGAN ANDREW DEAN MORGAN ANTHONY JAY MORGAN BRADLEY D MORGAN BRAMMER L MORGAN Il BRANDON M MORGAN  BRANDON RAY MORGAN CARLOS A MORGAN  CHARLES DANIEL MORGAN  CHRISTOPHER SHANE MORGAN
CORDERO PIRRIE MORGAN  DENNIS L MORGAN HEATH A MORGAN JACOB A MORGAN JAMES MORGAN JEFFREY STEVEN MORGAN JOEY MORGAN JOHN A MORGAN LEVAR MORGAN MARHARYTAV MORGAN MATTHEW COBY MORGAN ~MATTHEW TYNDALL MORGAN
MELINDA L MORGAN NICHOLAS PAUL MORGAN RICHARD HEATH MORGAN SEAN J MORGAN THOMAS MORGAN THOMAS W MORGAN TRAY W MORGAN WILLIAM JOE MORGAN MASASHI MORIEDA JAMIE MORIN MICHAEL P MORIN RENE JOSEPH MORIN JR  SHINJI MORITA
MARNIE J MORITZ ~ BRIAN CLAIR MORLEY ~HUNTER N MORLEY  JOHN MICHAEL MORLEY ~ STANLEY W MORLEY  DAVID A MORNINGSTAR  ARTURO GARCIA MORONES  GARRETT JOHNSON MORPHIS ~ BRYCE ALLEN MORRELL  BENJAMIN S MORRIS Il BILLY JOE MORRIS
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MONTEZ DEVON RICHARDSON NATHANIEL RICHARDSON JR NEDRA COLETTE RICHARDSON PATRICK R RICHARDSON ROBERT RICHARDSON ROBERT LAMAR RICHARDSON ROBERT WARREN RICHARDSON SCOTT A RICHARDSON SHAPHAN R RICHARDSON SHAWN D RICHARDSON
SLOAN STEPHEN RICHARDSON ~ STEPHEN W RICHARDSON  TAYLOR T RICHARDSON ~ TED L RICHARDSON THOMAS ALEXANDER RICHARDSON ~ TINA GAYE RICHARDSON ~ TROY RICHARDSON ~ TROY R RICHARDSON ~ WADE CLAYTON RICHARDSON ~ WILLIAM JOE RICHARDSON
WILLIE J RICHARDSON  ZACHARY LEE RICHARDSON STEVEN RICHAUR ASHLEY RENEE RICHBURG DANIEL PERRY RICHBURG MEAGAN RICHERZHAGEN WILLIAM L RICHERZHAGEN BRANDON COOPER RICHEY JOHNTYLER RICHEY LORNA K RICHEY RANDALL PATEN RICHEY
TYSON D RICHEY ~ MATTHEW PAUL RICHGELS ~ GERALD JRICHIE ~ BENJAMIN P RICHLING ~ JEREMY A RICHMAN  JOSHUA CLYDE RICHMAN ~ ALEXANDER AUSTIN RICHMOND  FREDRICK RICHMOND  JENNIFER RICHMOND  JUSTIN HERBERT RICHMOND  BRIAN L RICHTER
BRIAN M RICHTER Il JASON A RICHTER TIFFANY M RICHTER CARL ALLAN RICKARD TIMOTHY RICKARD JARED DANIEL RICKETT JUSTIN DURAN RICKETT PAUL EDWIN RICKETT MARCY A RICKETTS SHELBY SAVANNAH RICKETTS BRODIE SCOT RICKMAN KENNETH RICKMAN
KENNETH CRAIG RICKMAN  LESLIE BRIAN RICKMAN LONNIE J RICKMAN GRADY CHADWICK RICKS JOHN E RICKS MATTHEW RICKS ERIC RICO LUIS EDUARDO RIVERA RICO BRANDON W RIDDELL JOHN H RIDDELL LAURARIDDELL ROBERT RIDDELL BRIAN KEVIN RIDDICK
JAMES RRIDDICK  PATRICK L RIDDICK ~ WILLIAM C RIDDICK JR  JASON WRIDDLE LARRYDRIDDLE TIMERIDDLE RYAN STEPHENSON RIDENHOUR GEOFFREY RIDENOUR ADAMRRIDER JOSEPH M RIDER  KYLE LEE RIDER RANDALL DRIDER  KYLE BRADLEY RIDGE
CECIL NORWOOD RIDGILL IlI RAE RIDGWAY-SNYDER JOHN WESLEY RIDINGS ZACHARY RYAN RIECK JAYSON A RIEDEL DAVID TRIEGER MICHAEL R RIEGER COURTNEY FEINER RIEGLE BRAD RIEMENSCHNEIDER CHAD WILLIAM RIEMENSCHNEIDER ADAM RIES STUART W RIES
DOUGLAS P RIESBERG  JUSTIN LRIESE DOUGLAS DRIFE GARY KRIFFLEJR JAMES MATTHEW RIFFLE TYLER SRIGBY DEREKNRIGGS IAN MAUPIN RIGGS JACOB S RIGGS JAMES STERLING RIGGS JASON RIGGS JASON ARIGGS KEVIN LEERIGGS ~ KRISTY D RIGGS
LYLERIGGS MATTHEW LANCE RIGGS RANDALL JACKSON RIGGS ROGER D RIGGS ~MADISON ANN RIGSBY ~MICHAEL BRANDON RIGSBY = ZACHARY RIHM ~ SANAM RIJAL  FREEMAN E RIKARD ~ AIDEN RILEY ANTHONY JOSEPH RILEY ~ ASHLEY ANN RILEY CHAD C RILEY
CHRISTOPHER M RILEY DONALD L RILEY SCOTTJRILEY STEPHEN ARILEY SULAIMON RILWAN DARYL RIMMER RHETT RINACA ARTRINBOLT JESSE R RINCON JULIO CESAR PINTADO RINCON MIGUEL A RINCON-GONZALEZ TIMBER RINDERKNECHT JOSHUA RINDLISBACHER




BEAU L RINEHART  GLENN E RINEHART  JOSEPH BARRY RINEHART JR MEAGEN NICOLE RINEHART RUSS A RINEHART SAMUEL HUNTER RINEHART TIMOTHY JAMES RINEHART ~ ZACHARY WILLIAM RINEHART  JESSICA RINES PHILIP GREGORY RINEY STACEY CHARLES RINEY
DANIEL RYAN RING ~ FERJERALD RRINGER LAMONICA RINGER ~ TIFFANY MARIE RINGER ~ SHANE MATTHEW RINGLUND ~ CLAYTON RINGROSE ~ ADRIAN PAUL RINGUS  JONATHAN D RINKINES ~ NICHOLAS P RINKS ~ ALEXIS RIOS  CHRISTOPHER RRIOS ~HERMILO PENA RIOS
JESUS MANUEL ACEVES RIOS ~ MICHAEL ARIOS ~ VICTORRIOS  ADYANES RIOS ADORNO  EFRAIN RIOS ESTRADA  JOSE MIGUEL RIOS LOPEZ ~ ANTHONY RIOUX ~ KENNETH JAVARIS RIPPY  TRISTA NYCHOLE LEE RIPPY ~ FRANCISCO RISCAJCHE COTOC  JEFFREY RISDILL
JOHN ALLEN RISHER ROBERT EDWARD RISHER PAUL ARISING DANIEL J RISINGER MAURICETRISK HUNTER L RISKEN BRANDY D RISNER NICHOLAS B RISNER RICHARD TRISNER  KYLE JAMES RISOR RYANTRISTAU SHANNON E RISTAU CHRISTOPHER WADE RISTER
DANIEL THOMAS RISTON  CHASEN RITCH CODYARITCH GEORGEARITCH COLBYRITCHEY DANIEL MRITCHEY DEVONA JEAN RITCHIE-HAYSLIP  KENADIE RITSCO  SAMUEL RRITTENBERRY ~ CURTISRITTER  JACKSON RITTER  JUSTIN SCOTTRITTER  KHARY RITTER
ADAM R RITTERMEYER ~ CALEB KENNETH RITTSCHER ~ ARMANDO ARIVAS ~ CECILIORIVAS JR  JESSE ARIVAS ~ OSCARRIVAS ~ ADAN ROBLEDO RIVERA ~ BERTHA ALICIA HERNANDEZ RIVERA  BILLY JACK RIVERA  DANYELLE LEE RIVERA  ELSARIVERA  JASON P RIVERA
JEOVANNIRIVERA JORDAN ANTHONY RIVERA JOSE GERARDO RIVERA JOSEPH ANTONY RIVERA JUAN ANDRES SERVIN RIVERA  KAREN NICOLE RIVERA LENNY ANTHONY RIVERA LIVIO M RIVERA LUIGUI RIVERA LUIS E RIVERA MANUEL E RIVERA MARISA DENISE RIVERA
RAFAEL F RIVERA VICTOR RIVERA JOSE M RIVERA VASQUEZ OMAR RIVERA VAZQUEZ ANGEL D RIVERA-NEVAREZ ORLEYDIS RIVERON ALLEN RIVERS JOHN ARIVERS JOHN RRIVERS JUSTIN LERAND RIVERS SCOTTA RIVERS SERGIO ROMAN RIVOS JEFFREY KEITH RIZER
ANDY BELEN GONZALEZ RIZO  HECTOR DANIEL RIVERARIZO DEJANRIZVAN  JOHN FRIZZUTO DANIEL D ROACH JEREMYROACH SCOTTROACH JUNROALLOS LACYLEANNE ROARK DANIELLE ERIN ROATE ANDREW ROBAR EVAN ROBB  BRADLEY KEITH ROBBINS
DEREK ANTHONY ROBBINS  KENNETH J ROBBINS  PHILIP J ROBBINS RANDY ALAN ROBBINS ROBERT D ROBBINS SHAWLAN VROBBINS SHEPHERD THOMAS ROBBINS PIERRE-OLIVIER ROBERGE CLEVELAND ROBERSON DUSTIN WAYNE ROBERSON  ERNEST A ROBERSON
HERBERT A ROBERSON JEFFERY S ROBERSON JEREMY E ROBERSON JEREMY EUGENE ROBERSON JR LEONARD JASON ROBERSON ROBERT L ROBERSON SHELDON DEWITT ROBERSON WILLIAM C ROBERSON WILLIAM SILAS ROBERSON AUSTIN W ROBERT AMANDA ROBERTS
BRENDAN PAUL ROBERTS ~ BRIAN E ROBERTS ~ CHARLES A ROBERTS ~ CHARLES JOSEPH ROBERTS ~ CHRISTIAN ANTHONY ROBERTS ~ CHRISTINA KAY ROBERTS ~ CHRISTOPHER A ROBERTS ~ CLAYTON JARED ROBERTS ~ CODY BRYANTROBERTS ~ CRAIG THOMAS ROBERTS
DANIEL ROBERTS ~ DANIEL B ROBERTS ~ DAVID ROBERTS ~ DAVID ROBERTS DONOVAN RAY ROBERTS ~ DUSTIN LEIGH ROBERTS ~ GARY WAYNE ROBERTS  JACOB ROBERTS  JAMES ERWIN ROBERTS ~ JAMES M ROBERTS ~ JARED MARK ROBERTS  JEFFERY WINSTON ROBERTS
JEFFREY ROBERTS ~ JEFFREY LANDON ROBERTS ~ JESSE LLOYD ROBERTS ~ JOHN ALLAN ROBERTS ~ JONATHAN EARL ROBERTS ~ JOSH D ROBERTS ~ KADEN JUSTIN ROBERTS ~ KATHLEEN RIGNEY ROBERTS ~ KENARD LEON ROBERTS ~ KEVIN ALAN ROBERTS  LISA ROBERTS
MARK L ROBERTS MATTHEW D ROBERTS MELISSA JEANNE ROBERTS MICHAEL S ROBERTS PATRICIA ROBERTS REBECCA ANN ROBERTS ROY KEITH ROBERTS RUSSELL WAYNE ROBERTS SCOTT D ROBERTS SEAN M ROBERTS SUZANNE ALLEN ROBERTS TIMOTHY S ROBERTS
TRISTAN KYLE ROBERTS ~ WILLIAM HENRY ROBERTS ~ ZACHARY STEVEN ROBERTS ~ ANDREW ROBERTSON CHARLES D ROBERTSON COLLEN W ROBERTSON DANIEL KYLE ROBERTSON DARRELL JEFFERY ROBERTSON ETHYN M ROBERTSON JARRET ROBERTSON
JENNIFER LYNN ROBERTSON ~ JOHN MARCUS ROBERTSON ~ JULIAN A ROBERTSON  KATELYN ELIZABETH ROBERTSON ~ KENNETH A ROBERTSON ~ LEROY ROBERTSON ~ LOGAN ROBERTSON ~ LORENZO J ROBERTSON  LOUIS REED ROBERTSON ~ LUKAS BRADLEE ROBERTSON
MARTIN DARIAN ROBERTSON ~ NICHOLAS DAVID ROBERTSON ~ RICHARD LEE ROBERTSON ~ SEBASTIAN PAYTON ROBERTSON ~ SHIRLEY ANN ROBERTSON ~ TERRY ROBERTSON ~ THARON J ROBERTSON ~ TRACIL ROBERTSON ~ WARREN SCOTT ROBERTSON  KRISTINE G ROBEY
SONY ROBILLARD ~ TERRY ROBILLARD ~ KEVIN W ROBINETT ~ KURT M ROBINETTE ~ ANTONIO DETRE ROBINSON  BRIAN H ROBINSON ~ BROCK MARVIN ROBINSON ~ CASEY ALLEN ROBINSON ~ CHRISTIAN JORDAN ROBINSON ~ CODY RYAN ROBINSON ~ DEREK D ROBINSON
EARL ROBINSON FRED CURTIS ROBINSON ~ GARY LEE ROBINSON  GILLIAN ROBINSON GRAGORY ROBINSON GREGORY BERNARD ROBINSON  JAMES WILLIAM ROBINSON  JASON M ROBINSON  JAVEREAU SHERRON ROBINSON JEFFREY D ROBINSON  JEFFREY LEE ROBINSON
JESSE L ROBINSON JOHN C ROBINSON JOHN M ROBINSON Ill JONATHAN CALEB ROBINSON JOSHUA ERNEST ROBINSON JUSTIN CRAIG ROBINSON KENNETH B ROBINSON KENNETH D ROBINSON KIRSTEN ELIZABETH ROBINSON KYLE LANDON ROBINSON LARRY G ROBINSON
LEAH NICOLE ROBINSON  LISA MICHELE ROBINSON MARKEL ROBINSON MATTHEW CHANDLER ROBINSON MEAGHAN DUGUO ROBINSON MELVIN L ROBINSON MIKAYLA BROOKE ROBINSON MITCHELL D ROBINSON  NATHAN DANIEL ROBINSON  NICHOLAS AARON ROBINSON
PATRICK G ROBINSON  PATRICK S ROBINSON  PHILL R ROBINSON RANDY ERROLL ROBINSON RANDY LYLE ROBINSON ROBERT A ROBINSON RYAN W ROBINSON SHADD D ROBINSON SHAKERRA ROTHRESA ROBINSON SHANE DONOVAN ROBINSON ~ STANLEY J ROBINSON
STUART ROBINSON THOMAS ANDREW ROBINSON  TYKEL DUPREE ROBINSON SR TYLER AUSTIN ROBINSON CAMERON J ROBISON DAVID S ROBISON LAURA C ROBISON MILFORD D ROBISON DANIEL ALLEN ROBLEDO FERNANDO ROBLEDO GERARDO MANUEL ROBLEDO
ISAIAH PATRICK ROBLEDO ~ JORGE ROBLEDO ~ JOSE ROBLEDO ~ AGUSTIN GUTIERREZ ROBLES ~ GRECIA MARIELLA ROBLES ~ JUAN FRANCISCO ROJAS ROBLES ~ NESTOR GONZALEZ ROBLES ~ EDGARD ROBLETO CANTILLANO  DILLON R ROBOKOFF  ALEX JOSEPH ROCCHI
ALDO ANTONIO RIOS ROCHA  IVAN ROCHA  JESSICA GRISELDA ROCHA ~ MARY LOUISE ROCHA ~ KENNETH DEAN ROCHAT ~ BRIAN ROCHE ~ DARRIN M ROCHE DAVID ROCHE JAMES ROCHE RYAN DUTCH ROCHE  ANIL SAMUEL DAVIAN ROCHESTER ~ SHANNON ROCHON
CHRISTOPHER MARTIN ROCK ~ KOLTIN GABRIEL ROCKERT  JEFFREY L ROCKEY BRIAN M ROCKFORD LADORIS C ROCKMORE CRAIG S ROCKWELL DUSTIN GREGORY ROCKWELL LOGAN MATTHEW ROCKWELL JAMES K ROCOLE RONALD D ROCZNIAK  DAVID W RODDEN
LARRY B RODDEY DONALD WAYNE RODEN JEREMIAH T RODENBAUGH JAMES DAVID RODENBERG ALEXANDER F RODGERS DANIEL HAROLD RODGERS DEREK M RODGERS GREG A RODGERS JAMES C RODGERS MARSHALL JERMAINE RODGERS NATHANIEL L RODGERS
PERRY F RODGERS RACHELLE L RODGERS SCOTTIE RODGERS SHERRIE L RODGERS TAMIKA DANIELLE RODGERS STEVEN RODKEY PERIANN J RODMAN CARLOS A RODRIGUES JESSE RODRIGUES ABISMAEL RODRIGUEZ ADRIAN RODRIGUEZ AGUSTIN LOPEZ RODRIGUEZ
ANA RODRIGUEZ ANA ARACELI HERRERA RODRIGUEZ ANDREW ARTHUR RODRIGUEZ ANGEL RODRIGUEZ ANGEL ARTURO VENEGAS RODRIGUEZ ANGEL EDUARDO RODRIGUEZ ARACELI ROMERO RODRIGUEZ ARELI FERNANDA TORRES RODRIGUEZ AURELIA ELENA RODRIGUEZ
BARBARO LUIS RODRIGUEZ ~ BRANDON ALEXANDER RODRIGUEZ ~ CARLOS E RODRIGUEZ ~ CONSUELO RODRIGUEZ ~ CORY M RODRIGUEZ  DAISY C RODRIGUEZ ~ DAMIAN RODRIGUEZ ~ DANIEL L RODRIGUEZ ~ DOMINIC S RODRIGUEZ ~ EDUARDO GUTIERREZ RODRIGUEZ
ERICK REYES RODRIGUEZ  ERIK MICHAEL RODRIGUEZ ~ FABIOLA FLORES RODRIGUEZ ~ FERNANDO CARRILLO RODRIGUEZ ~ FILIBERTO RODRIGUEZ ~ FRANCISCO JAVIER ESCAMILLA RODRIGUEZ ~ FREDY RODRIGUEZ  GEOFFREY LEE RODRIGUEZ ~GERARDO RAMON RODRIGUEZ
HECTOR ANTONIO RODRIGUEZ ~ JAIME ORLANDO RODRIGUEZ ~ JENIFFER RODRIGUEZ JENIFFER RODRIGUEZ ~ JESUS RODRIGUEZ ~ JESUS ALFREDO BELTRAN RODRIGUEZ ~ JESUS M RODRIGUEZ JESUS TORRES RODRIGUEZ JILL ANN RODRIGUEZ JOEL RODRIGUEZ
JORGE ARMANDO RODRIGUEZ ~ JOSE RODRIGUEZ ~ JOSE A RODRIGUEZ ~ JOSE A RODRIGUEZ ~ JOSE ANTONIO RANGEL RODRIGUEZ ~ JOSE LUIS SOSA RODRIGUEZ ~ JOSE R RODRIGUEZ ~ JOSE R RODRIGUEZ Il JOSE RAMON LOPEZ RODRIGUEZ ~ JOSEPHINE RODRIGUEZ
JUAN CARLOS RODRIGUEZ ~ JUAN FERNANDO RODRIGUEZ ~ JUAN M RODRIGUEZ ~ JUAN MANUEL RODRIGUEZ ~ JUAN MARTIN RODRIGUEZ ~ JUAN PABLO LARA RODRIGUEZ ~ JULIA DEL CARMEN RODRIGUEZ ~ JUSTIN RODRIGUEZ ~ JUSTIN LEE RODRIGUEZ ~ KARLA RODRIGUEZ
KATELYNNE N RODRIGUEZ KEVIN RODRIGUEZ KRISTY STEPHANIE RODRIGUEZ LORENA RODRIGUEZ LUIS ALBERTO MILLAN RODRIGUEZ LUIS ANGEL RODRIGUEZ LUIS C RODRIGUEZ LUIS D RODRIGUEZ LUIS FERNANDO RODRIGUEZ MARCIA RODRIGUEZ MARCO A RODRIGUEZ
MARGARITA ORTIZ RODRIGUEZ ~ MARIANA RODRIGUEZ ~ MARIO ALBERTO GARCIA RODRIGUEZ ~ MARIO ALBERTO VELASCO RODRIGUEZ ~ MARTHA ALICIA RODRIGUEZ ~ MARTIN ALEJANDRO FACUNDO RODRIGUEZ ~ MARY LOU RODRIGUEZ ~ MOISES ABRAHAN RUIZ RODRIGUEZ
NICHOLE RODRIGUEZ ~ PEDRO RODRIGUEZ ~ RAUL RODRIGUEZ ~ REYNA LETICIA RODRIGUEZ ~ RICARDO RODRIGUEZ ~ ROBERTO RODRIGUEZ ~ ROBERTO RODRIGUEZ ~ SERGIO C RODRIGUEZ ~ TINA MARIE RODRIGUEZ ~ TONY RODRIGUEZ ~ RAMON RODRIGUEZ AGUIRRE JR
RAMIRO RODRIGUEZ AGUSTI  MIGUEL HERNAN RODRIGUEZ ALBARRAN  JORGE DANIEL RODRIGUEZ ALVAREZ  ERICK ARTURO RODRIGUEZ CARPIO  ROLANDO RODRIGUEZ CASTRO  NORMAN G RODRIGUEZ FUNEZ GENARO RODRIGUEZ GARZA  RANDY RODRIGUEZ GONZALEZ
SERGIO A RODRIGUEZ GONZALEZ ~ CAROLINE NICOLE RODRIGUEZ LOPEZ ~ YOEL RODRIGUEZ LOPEZ  LUIS RODRIGUEZ MARTINEZ ~ PEDRO IVAN RODRIGUEZ OLIVAS ~ JOSE LUIS RODRIGUEZ PADILLA  SALVADOR RODRIGUEZ PRECIADO  LUIS ORLANDO RODRIGUEZ SEEDERS
RONALD ROBERT RODRIGUEZ TOLENTINO ENRIQUE RODRIGUEZ UZCATEGUI DONALDO EMMANUEL RODRIGUEZ VALDEZ ~ JOAQUIN A RODRIGUEZ VEGA ~ ANDRES D RODRIGUEZ-MARTIN LUZ E RODRIGUEZ-ROLDAN ANTONETTE M RODRIQUEZ ~ CORNELIO RODRIQUEZ
KATIE ELIZABETH RODRIQUEZ ~ DAVID LROEDL ~ WILLIAM R ROENFELDT ~ NATHAN EROESCH ~ BRETTM ROESCHLEIN ~ CODYP ROEWERT ~ GEORGE EDGAR ROFE ~ JOSEPH HENRYROGAN JR  AMANDA BROOKE ROGERS ~ BRYAN L ROGERS ~ CARSON ALLEN ROGERS
CHARLES MICHAEL ROGERS ~ CHARLES P ROGERS ~ CHRISTOPHER ROGERS ~ CHRISTOPHER ROGERS  DANNY ROGERS DERIK C ROGERS DONNA A ROGERS DONNA HALEE ROGERS DONTATE L ROGERS DOUGLAS NROGERS DUSTIN B ROGERS GREGORY P ROGERS
JAMES EDWARD ROGERS JEFFERY A ROGERS JEFFREY S ROGERS JONATHAN P ROGERS LARRY STEPHEN ROGERS MICHAEL ROGERS MONICA ROGERS PAMELA GAYLE ROGERS PATRICK MICHAEL ROGERS REBECCA NICOLE ROGERS SAMUEL ERIC ROGERS SHARON G ROGERS
STEPHEN ROGERS THOMAS C ROGERS JR  TYLER ROGERS TYLER SCOTTROGERS TYLOR JAMES ROGERS VERNON RROGERS WILLIAM MICHAEL ROGERS SHANNON D ROGERSON EDWARD S ROHDE RYAN C ROHDE TYLERROHL JOHN W ROHR JOEL E ROHRBACHER
BRYAN JROHRER ~ STACIA DENISE ROHRER ~ OSCAR ENRIQUE ROJANO  ABEL ALEJANDRO ROJAS ~ ADAM ANGEL ROJAS ~ DANIEL JROJAS  EDDY MAURICIO ARELLANO ROJAS ~ JOSE AURELIO DIOSDADO ROJAS ~ MICHAEL ANTONIO ROJAS  NICHOLAS ROBERT ROJAS
RAMIRO BANDA ROJAS  RICHARD WILLIAM ROJAS  RIGOBERTO ROJAS  CIPRIANO ROJAS ALVAREZ  ADRIAN ROJAS GAYTAN  JESUS ALEJANDRO ROJAS ROSALES  CHRISTOPHER DAVID ROJO  TOORAJ ROKNI  JACOB K ROLAND ~ MATTHEW TROLAND  NOAH CARTER ROLF
MONTERRO DEONTE ROLFE  DEREK ALAN ROLLAND ~ WESLEY S ROLLINGS ~ BENJAMIN EDWARD DAVID ROLLINS ~ DAVID L ROLLINS EDWARD ROLLINS ~ PHILLIP M ROLLINS  KELLY P ROLOFSON  JAMES E ROLOSON  IRINEO A ROMAN  JOSE L ROMAN  OSVALDO ROMAN
WILLIAM AROMAN JR  WAYNE ROMANISHAN JR ~ STEVEN LAWRENCE GARY ROMANN  JAMES PETER ROMANO ~ TERRAH L ROMANO  DANIEL JOSEPH ROMANOS ~ JAYCEE NICOLE ROMANS ~ BRADLEY CALEB ROMEDY  ALFREDO CABALLERO ROMERO  CELSO ROMERO
DANIEL R ROMERO ERIC P ROMERO ISIDRO ROMERO JOSE EDUARDO ROMERO JUAN CARLOS ESCARENO ROMERO KARINA VROMERO KEVIN R ROMERO LEOPOLDO ROMERO LUIS ENRIQUE ROMERO LUIS M BALDERAS ROMERO MARIA ASUNCION ROMERO MIGUEL ROMERO
OMAR ROMERO RAFAEL ALBERIC ROMERO RICARDO ROMERO RICARDO JAVIER ROMERQO VICTOR M ROMERO SERGIO ROMERO SANCHEZ JAMEY BRANDON ROMHILT MICHAEL ROMICH CHRISTOPHER ROMINE DARRELL WADE ROMINE DEBORAH K ROMINE JUSTIN R ROMINE
REGINALD AUGUSTUS ROMINE ~ SCOTT DEAN ROMINE ~ TANNER JOSEPH ROMINE ~ ADOLFO ROMO JR  CARLOS JOEL ROMO  HERMINIO ROMO  JUANMROMO  ANTHONY ROMO CORTEZ EMMA RONDEAU  ROBERTRRONDEAU  FRANK RONDON  BRADEY A RONEY
SANDRA E RONNFELDT  PATRICK A RONSPIES  BRITTAROOK  MELISSA LYNN ROOKARD ~ RICHARD D ROOKER ~ RUSSELL JROOKER  RANDY SCOTTROOKS CAMERON O ROONEY  EMILY MARGARET ROONEY ~ STEPHEN ROONEY ~ SHAWN ROOPNARINE  ALIJAH J ROOT
ALDRIDGE DWIGHT ROPER DALLAS C ROPER GREGORY B ROPER GREGORY L ROPER TYREL ROPER SAMUEL ROQUEL HERMAN DOUGLAS RORICK BENAHCEO RORIE ANTHONY CARLOS P ROSA JR JAVIER ROSA ALEJANDRO ROSALES JOSEPH ROSALES JOSEPH M ROSALES
LUIS ANTONIO ROSALES MARCO A ROSALES NATHAN ROSALES OSCAR A ROSALES JR ROBERT ROSALES THOMAS J ROSALES JOSE ROSALES TEJEDA DAVID R ROSARIO JOSUE ROSARIO  JULIAN ROSARIO  JOSE LUIS ROSARIO MARIANO  JUAN MIGUEL ROSARIO ROSADO
GUILLERMO GUTIERREZ ROSAS JUAN ARMANDO GALAVIZ ROSAS LUIS MIGUEL ROSAS BRYAN ANDREW ROSASCO JENNA ROSE ROSBACH FRED ALEXANDER ROSCOE TODD A ROSCOE RICHARD ROSCOVICH CHAD TYLER ROSE CODY A ROSE COLTON ROSE CRAIG J ROSE
DILLON WAYNE ROSE ELDEN EROSE GERALD ROSE JASON M ROSE JAYDEN MYLES ROSE JAYME L ROSE JOHNATHON L ROSE MICHAEL W ROSE NATHAN M ROSE NATHANIEL CORDELL ROSE PAUL EROSE REX WILLIAM ROSE ROBIN ROSE RYKER ROSE TRAVIS L ROSE
ROWDY LEE ROSEBROCK ~ CHRISTOPHER R ROSEKRANS ~ LARRY ROSEN ~ KEVIN D ROSENAU  MICHAEL LEE ROSENBAUM  ROBERT D ROSENBAUM ~ ANDREA R ROSENBROCK ~ DAVID R ROSENE  ELIZABETH SOPHIA ROSENE  ROBERT WYATT ROSENE ~ ADAM L ROSENKRANS
DANIELLE L ROSENKRANS DAVID ROSEWARN ANISH A ROSHAN ASFANDIAR ROSHANGAH CARLOS ROSILLO FERNANDO ROSILLO RUDI J ROSINSKI TYSON RAY ROSKELLEY NATHAN ROSKI ZACHARY ROSKI JAMES ERIC ROSLEVICH ANDREW M ROSS BARBARA LATRICE ROSS
BRANDON ROSS BRIAN AROSS CHARLES AROSS CODYLEEROSS CRAIGROSS DARREN AROSS GARRETTLEON ROSS GILBERTROSS GREGG ALLEN ROSSJR JAMES ROSS JENNA GRAFF ROSS KEENAN AROSS MICHAEL L ROSS REBECCA ROSS SARAH ROSS
SARAH NICOLE ROSSETER KYLE ROSSI JENNIFER ROSSITER RYAN ROBERT ROSSITER ALEXANDER J ROSSMAN JARED L ROSSMAN DANIEL RYAN ROTENBERRY JOHN WESLEY ROTENBERRY BRIAN DANIEL ROTH DAVID LEE ROTH DEREK ROTH GRANTJROTH TYLERL ROTH
JOSEPH H ROTHENBURG IV ANTHONY L ROTHERHAM ~ GREGORY A ROTHERMICH  CHRISTOPHER M ROTHERT = RYAN JAMES ROTHROCK ~ ELYSHA HELENE ROTHSTEIN BRENTA ROTTE  SKYLER RICHARD ROTTGER TYLER FROTTGER MATTHEW J ROTTMAN  LARRY ROUNDS
LA'SHANTENA ROUNDS ROGER A ROUNDS JR DILLON REES ROUNDY HUNTER G ROUNSAVILLE RONNIE ROUNTREE ERICK S ROUSE JEREMY CALEB ROUSE KEVIN S ROUSE ELIZABETH A ROUSH GAETAN ROUSSEL ALAN ROUSSON JAMES C ROVITO LARRY EDWARD ROWAN
LAURA BETH ROWAN LYNDON TODD ROWBOTHAM ANDREW JAMES ROWE BRAYDEN NICHOLAS ROWE JASON L ROWE JASON M ROWE MICHAEL ROWE NICOLE ROWE DAVID EROWELL JR ALEC M ROWLAN JOHN A ROWLAN AARON ROWLAND BETHANIE HOPE ROWLAND
JARED TIMOTHY ROWLAND JEFFREY AROWLAND JENNIFER ROWLAND AARON EDWARD ROWLETT JAKE ANDREW ROWLETT JARED A ROWLETT BROCK THOMAS ROWLEY JON D ROWLEY SHAE B ROWLISON TYLER LYNN ROWLISON ALLISON ROWNTREE COLE ROWNTREE
AMBER NROWTON  BRIANROY BRIANROY FRANKROY JOSHUAROY ROBERTWROYJR SHANEMROY DANIELROYAL GORDROYAL TANYAMROYBAL RUBENJROYER CRAIGROYLE JAMIEROYS KEITHROZE JOSHUA D RUARK SAMUEL DAVID RUBADUE
MANUEL RUBALCAVA AARON JRUBIO ANTHONY RUBIO CHRISTOPHER ALFONSO RUBIO FRANCISCO DE JESUS CONTRERAS RUBIO JOSE LUIS RUBIO GREGORIO RUBIO VELAZQUEZ CHRISTOPHER RUCCO CARLOS J RUCKER JEFFREYVRUCKER KENNETH MICHAEL RUCKER
JILL SUZANNE RUCKLE ~ ANGELA M RUCKMAN  JAMES THOMAS RUCKMAN ~ KENNETH JAMES RUDD  PAUL RUDDICK ~ TIMOTHY JRUDDICK  BRENDEN DALE RUDE ~ BRYAN C RUDLOFF  JASON S RUDOLPH  ALYSSA MARIE RUEDA  ALEXANDRE RUEL  DENNIS K RUFF
JOHN RUFFENACH ~ ANTIONNE RYDELL RUFFIN ~ DEANDRE NAJEE RUFFIN  DEMADRE SHAKOR RUFFIN ~ KIM BRITTRUFFIN ~ RODNEY RUFFIN  BRETTARUGG  DANIEL OAKLEY RUGG ~ MICHAEL RUGGLES  JAIME RUIVO  ALBERTO NARUIZ ~ ALEJANDRO MARISCAL RUIZ
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LIHAR A BENJAMIN SARAGIH  EMILIANO SARAT SUNDAR SARAVANAN  SANTOS SARAVIA GONZALES RIGVED PRAVIN SARDEY LEONARDO SARELLANA-NEVAREZ THOMAS SARGEANT CHRISTOPHER SARGENT DANIEL E SARGENT  STEPHEN C SARINE  SWAPAN SARKAR
COREY WAYNE SARKISIAN  RICHARD SARKISIAN ~ PAVEL SARKISYAN ~ RODRIGO SARMIENTATORRES ~ PETER L SARNO  GIDEON SARPONG SR BUD E SARRACINO  JASON SCOTT SARRATT  BILLY SARTAIN ~ CODY BAILEY SARTAIN  CODY DON SARTIN  JAMES C SARTIN JR
DUSTIN L SARVER BOOPATHI SASIKUMAR TERENCE L SATCHELL LAUREN A SATCHWELL RODNEY S SATCHWELL CARLOS E SATIZABAL FRANKLIN KEITH SATTERFIELD KATELYN SATTERFIELD RANDALL JORDAN SATTERFIELD ROBERT E SATTERFIELD KEVIN RANDALL SATTERWHITE
KREIGHTON BROCK SATTERWHITE ~ CYNTHIA NUNEZ SAUCEDA  ARIEL ZAITH SAUCEDO SANCHEZ ~ HERMAN SAUCIER ~ TIMOTHY B SAUER ~ TERRY A SAULEY  ROLLY SAULS ~ RONNIE NO MIDDLE NAME SAULSBERRY ~ ADRIANA NICOLE SAUNDERS ~ JAYSEN ELLIS SAUNDERS
JOSEPH HOWARD SAUNDERS JOSHUA J SAUNDERS MAURICE L SAUNDERS NATHAN AVERY SAUNDERS NEAL R SAUNDERS ROGER SAUNDERS SAMANTHA JO SAUNDERS TREVOR SAUNDERS JOSEPH A SAUSER WILLIAM J SAUTER MICHAEL P SAVAGE WILLIAM W SAVAGE
ANTON SAVERIMUTHU  JEAN-GUY SAVOIE  MICHAEL SAVOY KEVIN SAWCHYN EMILLIO SAWH MICHAEL JOHN SAWRAN ADDISON B SAWYER ALAN SAWYER DAVID SAWYER DERRICK L SAWYER JACKIE LEE SAWYER JACOB ANDREW SAWYER  JOEL WAYNE SAWYER
JOSHUA JARED SAWYER  KEVIN JAMES SAWYER LARRY MATTHEW SAWYER LUTHER H SAWYER JR TRACYSAWYER NOELTSAXTON PAUL SAYER GAYLAND C SAYLES JOSHUA CALEB SAYLES MARY M SAYLOR MICHAEL SAYLOR ROB SAYLOR WILLIAM ELBERT SAYLOR
ZACHARY A SAYLOR  BRENDA SAYRE ~RYAN JAMES SAYRE ZACHARY TYLER SAYRE ~FAZAL MEHDI ASGAR MEHDI SAYYED  NICHOLLE A SAZAMA  DEREK J SCAFF  NATHAN JAMES SCAFF  BYRON JORDAN SCALES CAROL SCALES THOMAS P SCALES BRENDA L SCALETTA
JASON DAVID SCALF  PHILIP EFRAIN SCALF  JAMES S SCALISE TREVOR SCOTT SCALLION  JOHN E SCAMIHORN IIl  KATHERINE ANGELA SCANGA  JOSHUA SCARBOROUGH  JUSTIN SHAY SCARBOROUGH  SHIRLEY A SCARBOROUGH DAVID L SCARBROUGH DAVE SCARLETT
VINCENT MICHAEL SCATIGNA MATTHEW E SCERBAK DARLENE J M SCERRA DOUGLAS A SCHAAD JASON TODD SCHAAD JASON W SCHAAF JEREMY DONALD SCHABER ZACHARY M SCHABER ALEX JONATHAN RAY SCHACHER AUSTIN JAMES SCHAECHER PATRICK J SCHAECHER
TYLER M SCHAECHER ANDREA LEIGH SCHAEFER ASH SCHAEFER CHRISTIAN A SCHAEFER MARK SCHAEFER ROBERT J SCHAEFER JOSHUA DAVID SCHAFER MAGIE B SCHAFER DAVID SCHAFF DAVID SCHAFF GARETT M SCHAFFER CAROL A SCHALKEWITZ STEVEN A SCHAMP
RODNEY A SCHANEMAN JR ~ STACY L SCHANNEN ~ STEPHANIE NICOLE SCHAPER ~ TERRY CLAYTON SCHARCKLET ~BRANDON SCHARFETTER ~ DANIEL JOSEPH SCHARN ~ JAMES P SCHARNER  BERNARD H SCHARR ~ BRIANTSCHART ~ MICHAEL P SCHATT = WALTER B SCHATT
MATTHEW J SCHAUER MICHELLE SCHEDEL BRYSON WARD SCHEETZ ROBERT P SCHEIDERER LOGAN SCHELL SANDRA KAY SCHELL TERRENCE SCHELLENBERG LORA A SCHELLER NOAH L SCHELLER DANITA M SCHELLPEPER BRANDON W SCHEMBRA VICTOR SCHEMBRI
ERROL PAUL SCHENDELER ~ KIMBERLY M SCHENK ~ BRYAN S SCHENKEL ~ JASON K SCHERMERHORN ~ MICHAEL R SCHERMERHORN ~ MYLON JOSEPH SCHEXNIDER ~ CADELL A SCHICK  JENSON SCHIEBEL SCOTTASCHIEL  JUSTIN SCHIELKE =~ SAMANTHA MARIE SCHIESS
RONALD MATTHEW SCHIFFLI  DIANE M SCHILLAWSKI  SEAN C SCHILLER  JOSEPH A SCHILPP  ROY SCHIMMING DAYLEN B SCHINBECKLER DAYMON W SCHINBECKLER JEREMY K SCHINCK JASON R SCHINDLBECK ROBERT B SCHINDLEDECKER = MARKEE SUE SCHINDLER
RYAN P SCHIPPER ~ GARRETT PAUL SCHIRMACHER ~ DEVIN JSCHLAUCH  MICHAEL A SCHLAUCH  JASON P SCHLECHT ~ MARK K SCHLEIGER ~ JEFFREY SCHLEMMER ~ LYNETTE L SCHLEMMER ~ MATTHEW J SCHLERETH ~ PAULVSCHLERETH  ANDREW E SCHLESS
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FRANKIE JAMES RATLIFF ZAMORA JOSUE ALEJANDRO ZAMORA MAURICIO ZAMORANO ERINA ZANNONI ANDREW JOHN ZANONE AILANI AUREE ZAPATERO ANTHONY R ZAPPALA JOSE LUIS ZARAGOZA LUIS GONZALEZ ZARAGOZA BRYAN ZARATE
EDGAR GUADALUPE GUADALUPE GOMEZ ZARATE ~ ESTEVAN FRANK ZARATE ~ ABRAHAM ZARETSKI  EDWIN H ZARKA ~ JARED R ZARTMAN  JOSE ZATARAIN  KYLER BZAUGG  JORDAN DERIK ZAUTKE ~ KYLE JZAUTKE = SHERRIS ZAUTKE  CARLOS IGNACIO DIAZ ZAVALA
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TRAVIS CAZZ ZUFELT LUIS ZULETA DALLEN STEPHEN ZUNDEL JASON ZUNDEL JAY ZUNDEL NICHOLAS K ZUNDEL ARTURO NA ZUNIGA ROBERT T ZUNIGA FRANCISCO JAVIER GARCIA ZUNIGA KEVIN ADILSON VIRUETE ZUNIGA RICARDO DANIEL ZUNIGA
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FREDERICK LAMONT ACOFF  ADOLFO FACIO ACOSTA  ALEJANDRO ACOSTA  BRANDON JONATHAN ACOSTA  BRYAN ALFREDO ACOSTA  CHRISTINA ACOSTA  JESSICA ISABEL ACOSTA  JOEY ACOSTA  JORGE ACOSTA  JOSE M ACOSTAJR  MARCOS LENIN PEDRAZA ACOSTA
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DARRELL C AKINS ~ MASON C AKINS ~ MICHAEL DEAN AKINS ~ PAUL DANIEL AKINS  ROBERTR AKINS  ROBERTW AKINS TOBE W AKINS MOHANA R AKKALA  ODEYOVWI AKPOCHAFO ~ ALAGUMANNAN ALAGAPPAN ~ MALCOLM ALAIN  KHALID ESMAIL KALIL ALAKIL
ARMANDO ALANIS HECTOR A ALANIS NICANOR ALANIS VELAZQUEZ DANIEL ANTHONY ALARCON JOHN M ALARCON JUAN PABLO ALBA RAMON E ALBAN ROBERT ANDREW ALBERS MARTIR DANIEL ALBERTO COREY J ALBRECHT MICHAEL T ALBRECHT BRADEN ALBRECHTAS
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JOSHUA FRANKLIN ANDERS ~ JUSTINTANDERS TONY R ANDERS  ARNOLD GEORGE ANDERSEN ~ AUDREY A ANDERSEN  BAILEE DAWN ANDERSEN ~ BLAIR ANDERSEN ~ CARSEN CHAD ANDERSEN  CHRIS L ANDERSEN ~ COLTON KENNETH ANDERSEN ~ COREY M ANDERSEN
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SHAWN M ANDERSON SHEILA FAYE ANDERSON SIMS WHITE ANDERSON STEVEN W ANDERSON TAPANGA NOALIE ANDERSON TERRY D ANDERSON THOMAS COLEMAN ANDERSON THOMAS E ANDERSON JR TIFANEE M ANDERSON TIMOTHY J ANDERSON WILLIAM B ANDERSON
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TANNER BATEMAN  BRIAN K BATES CHRISTOPHER M BATES CORY A BATES DANIEL D BATES DUSTIN BATES GEORGE ALLEN BATES JASON BATES JEFFREY KYLE BATES JOSHUA M BATES KWESI BATES RONNIE L BATES RYLAND EDWARD BATES STACY LEVI BATES
TAMI BATES TOMMY BATES TONY WAYNE BATES TYLER L BATES WILLIAM ANDREW BATES MARTHA J BATISTA DARRELL WAYNE BATLEY JORGE A BATRES MARK A BATSON MELVIN J BATSON STEFANO MACARIO BATTAFARANO THOMAS J BATTERBEE TREVOR RILEY BATTERSHAW
LINDSAY BATTILANA TAWAN BATTLES EUGENE G BATTOCCHIO BRANDON WAYNE BATTON BRIAN K BATTON JASON C BATTON JOHN HOWARD BATTS SHELTON MITCHELL BATTS SHELTON MITCHELL BATTS Il TIMOTHY M BATTS JOHN F BATY CHAD MICHAEL BAUDENDISTEL
STEPHEN BAUDLER  ADAM J BAUER JOHN EDWIN BAUER JOSHUA BAUER KELCI B BAUER QUENTIN G BAUER REID CHRISTIAN BAUER TREVORTBAUER SETH E BAUERLE AUBREY BAUGH Il CALVIN CURTIS BAUGH DANIEL WARREN BAUGH  TYLER STEVEN BAUGHER
FRANKLIN A BAUGHMAN TYLER A BAUGHMAN BELLE R BAUGUS JODY W BAUGUS ADAM C BAUMANN RACHAEL L BAUMANN SARA J BAUMANN SETH M BAUMERT FRANK L BAUMGARDNER ANTHONY C BAUMGARTNER BRENDAN J BAUMGARTNER DANIEL C BAUMGARTNER
RICHARD MATTHEW BAUREIS TIMOTHY J BAUSMITH ABELINO BAUTISTA DANIEL ROBLES BAUTISTA JOHNNY BAUTISTA JOSEPHINE DEGUZMAN BAUTISTA JUAN CABRERA BAUTISTA LUIS MIGUEL BAUTISTA MOISES BAUTISTA RODRIGO QUIROZ BAUTISTA
CHRISTIAN DAVID BAUTISTA QUIROGA ~ ALLEN MICHAEL BAXLEY  DEVIN K BAXLEY ~ROBERTS BAXLEYJR SCOTTABAXLEY DAVID ERIC BAXTER ~ GERALD RBAXTER  JEREMY CHARLES BAXTER ~ MATTHEW BAXTER  ROBERT GRAY BAXTER ~ STEPHANIE RENEE BAXTER
TONIA J BAXTER MICHAEL JAMES BAYERQUE CHRISTIAN BAYLES ANDREW BAYLISS ANTONIO BAYLON YANKUBA BAYO JEWL BAYWONG JODIE L BAZEMORE CASEY MOZINGO BAZEN DANIEL WALKUP BAZEN JOHN D BAZEN KEVIN FIELDS BAZEN CONNOR THOMAS BAZHAW
JOHNNY R BAZZELL Il  LOUIS BAZZLE JR ADAM L BEACH BOSTON D BEACH CRAIGW BEACH PHILLIP ABEACH BRIAN L BEACHY AMMON BEAGLEY JESSE LEE BEAL STEPHEN BEALE RAY GORDON BEAMON JR DEVIN J BEAN ELIZABETH A BEAN LORETTA J BEAN
SONYAY BEAN TIMOTHY BEAN WILLIAM J BEAN WILLIAM J BEAN YANCYW BEAN JACKSON DRAKE NICOLAS BEANE BRANDON BEAN-ROBERTS DAVID BEAR THOMAS R BEAR CHAD BEARD DANNY R BEARD JEREMY R BEARD MACK ARTHUR BEARD Ill  SAMUEL T BEARD
SEAN M BEARD  THOMAS STEPHEN BEARD BENJAMIN DAVID BEARDEN GINA MICHELLE BEARDEN ~ JEFFREY A BEARDEN  JOSEPH BEARDEN  JOSEPH GENE BEARDEN MISTI QUEEN BEASLEY ~ NICHOLAS SCOTT BEASLEY ~ SHANE A BEASLEY ~ STEVE L BEASLEY
THOMAS ALEXANDER BEASLEY JR DUSTIN L BEASON BRITTNEY DANIELLE BEATTIE VICKEY LEE BEATY JOHN PETER BEAUCHAMP NICHOLAS BEAUCHAMP TRAVIS L BEAUDETTE ELIJAH STEPHON BEAULIEU FRANCOIS BEAULIEU KIMBERLY BEAULIEU JEFFREY D BEAUMONT
CHRISTOPHER BEAUPARLANT MICHEL BEAUPARLANT SHAWN A BEAUPRE DEREK EUGENE BEAUSOLEIL BRIAN SCOTT BEAVERS JON W BEAVERS KEVIN M BEAVERS LUCAS WADE BEAVERS MALIA NOELLE BEAVERSON MICHAEL WAYNE BECHERER DALTON BRYANT BECHTEL
JANET S BECHTEL MATTHEW BECHTOL LAWRENCE J BECIGNEUL JR  ALEXANDRIA MARIA BECK BRIAN AVERY BECK BRIAN S BECK CHRISTINA M BECK  GILLEM JONCOLT BECK JAMES W BECK JEFFERY WBECK JENNIFER L BECK JONATHAN BECK TAYLOR R BECK
GRANTH BECKER KADEN BECKER MATTHEW D BECKER RACHEL A BECKER ROBERT S BECKER SHAUN MICHAEL BECKER BRANTLEYTBECKHAM WILLIAM ALVA BECKHAM Ill DYLAN J BECKLEY ANDREW WILLIAM BECKMAN EMMA K BECKMAN JONATHAN EUGENE BECKMAN
NICHOLAS E BECKMAN  KEVIN R BECKMANN JAMES DARRELL BECKSTEAD MATTHEW DYLON BECKUM LORNA A BECKWITH ANITRABECNEL KEVIN BECNEL JAY L BEDDINGFIELD CHRISTOPHER JBEDELL KEVIN BEDELL NATALIE ANN-MARIE BEDNEY ANTHONY BEDOLLA
ANTONIO BEDOLLA MARCOS A BEDOLLA RAMON BEDOLLA RICKY BEDORE LARRY A BEDWELL JR ROBERT GLENN BEEBE DERRICK D BEECHAM TREVOR IVAN BEECHER TISHA BEECHING BRADLEY JBEED EMILY ANN BEED ROBERT LEE BEEKS MICHAEL DAVID BEEMSTERBOER
RODNEY A BEER NATHAN J BEERBOWER ANDREW BEERMAN ASHLEY E BEERS JUSTIN L BEERS THOMAS BEERS TREVOR J BEERS ELISSA NOELLE BEERY CHRISTOPHER M BEGAY ANDREW MICHAEL BEGGS JOSEPH M BEHIL DAVID J BEHILO TINARBEHLE NATHAN BEHM
ADAM L E BEHMER BAILEY JO BEHMER TREVER D BEHNE NATHANIEL W BEHNKIE ALLEN C BEHR DAVID J BEHRENDT KATHERINE BEHRENDT MARK N BEHRENS MATTHEW J BEHRENS STEVENTBEHRMAN WILET BEHRUE CHRISTOPHER J BEIL ROSANNE MARIE BEINLEIN
KERRI SHANNON BEIRNE  HENRY J BEISHLINE ~ KEVIN J BEISHLINE ROBERT LEE BEISHLINE HEATHER BEISHUIZEN ~DIANNE E BELAMARICH HERMAN BELANGIA CODY JEROME BELCHER HUDSON GRAHAM BELCHER MATTHEW HARRISON BELCHER ~ MICHAEL B BELCHER
CHARLES C BELEKIS GREGORY A BELEKIS BRETTE BELEW CLAYTON JBELEW CODYLBELEW COLTON GREGORY BELEW JENNIFER L BELEW TYLER AUSTIN BELEW BRYAN BELFORD ANTHONY KYLE BELK AARON CRAIG BELL ALLEN DOUGLAS BELL ALLEN KYLE BELL
ANTHONY CLYDE BELL BRIAN JBELL BRIAN KBELL CELESTE BELL CHRISTOPHER GERMAINE BELL CHRISTOPHER JOHN BELL CLINTABELL COURTNEY LEE BELL DAVID L BELL DAWSON LEE BELL EMILY ANN BELL JAMES MATTHEW BELL JASON G BELL JASON HENRY BELL
JASON K BELL JEANNIE MARIE BELL JERRY BELL JERRY LAYNE BELL JOSHUA ABELL JUSTIN WILLIAM BELL KALEB CARLISLE LEVI BELL NATHAN R BELL PATRICK LEFLOYD BELL REBEKAH MACKENZIE BELL SAMUEL G BELL STEVEN BELL TAMELA L BELL TAYLOR BELL
TILER DAMEON BELL  TREVONTE JAMAR BELL  WILLIEBELL JACQUELINE M BELLAH ~AMY BELLAMY  JUSTIN ALEXANDER BELLAMY  LORRIE J BELLAR JOSEPH J BELLEMORE EDYTH F BELLES ~PATRICK ERWIN BELLINGER ~JUSTIN WALKER BELLOMY MARK A BELLOMY
RYAN WESLEY BELLVILLE OMAR BELMONTE DEREK BELSHAM ANDREW A BELSVIK BRANDONTBELT ~ BUSTERBELT  DYLAN BELT ~ KEVIN DEWAYNE BELTON ALEJANDRO BELTRAN CARLOS Y BELTRAN ELIAS GAMALIEL ALVAREZ BELTRAN JOSE BELTRAN
MA. DEL CARMEN ZAMARRON BELTRAN ADAM R BELTZ EMILY RBELTZ JOSHUA D BELTZ MITCHELL WAYNE BELTZ NATHAN A BELTZ RYAN EBELTZ MATTHEW SCOTT BELUE ANDREW WILLIAM BENARD JOSHUA BENASSI ALVIS BENAVIDES ANDRES GABRIEL BENAVIDES
BRIAN ALEJANDRO GOMEZ BENAVIDES ~ JIMMY ABENCK JASON N BENDA RENE ANDRE BENDA  KEITH WILLIAM BENDER ~ SEAN MARTIN BENDER  SHANNON J BENDER AMBER D BENDLE JOHN BENEDEK DARDEN R BENEFIELD  DAVID BENEFIELD  STEVE B BENFIELD
GREGORY A BENGE JEREMY DONALD BENGE BRADFORD BENHAM IV CAMERON BENHAM DAVON JAYCE-CRUZ BENHAM DEREK GLENN BENHAM MADALYN MAKENZE BENHAM MARIA ADELA G BENHAM SNJEZANA BENIC DONNA BENIGNI CARLOS ALBERTO RODRIGUEZ BENITES
EDWARDO BENITEZ ALFONSO BENITEZ HERNANDEZ OMAR A BENITEZ-CABRERA DAQUAN MALIK BENJAMIN DAVID L BENJAMIN JR  JAMIE TOMEKO BENJAMIN NICHOLAS BENJAMIN MICHAEL JOHN BENJAMINS JEFFREY NEAL BENKEN AARON M BENNE CORY R BENNER
JOHN M BENNER DYLAN BENNEST ~ ARANDO SHIRELL BENNETT ~ AVEREEN C BENNETT ~ CHAD AUSTIN BENNETT ~ CHRISTOPHER B BENNETT ~ DARRIN TAQUAWN BENNETT ~ GREG BENNETT ~ JACOB BENNETT ~ JAMES BRANDON BENNETT  JAMIE GENISE BENNETT
JEFERSON REINIERY BENNETT ~ JEREMY W BENNETT ~ JOHN L BENNETTJR ~ JOSHUATBENNETT  KATIE L BENNETT =~ MATTHEW MARK BENNETT ~ MICHAEL BENNETT ~ MICHAEL L BENNETT ~ MICHAEL R BENNETT ~ MICHAEL THOMAS BENNETT ~ NOAH GABRIEL BENNETT
RALPH TYCEN BENNETT REGGIE GERMAINE BENNETT SHANE D BENNETT SHARRON L BENNETT SHAWN M BENNETT STEVEN S BENNETT CHARLES FREDRICK BENNETT-DEVAULT NICHOLAS TROY BENNIGAN RHONDA MARIE BENNIGAN ROBERT BENNING DIANA BENNINGTON
JOSEPH M BENO  CODY LEE BENOIT JAMES M BENOIT PAUL BENOIT NICHOLAS BRANDON BENSCOTER ANDREW R BENSON CHARLES L BENSON  CHRISTINE E BENSON  DARRELL JBENSON ERIC RBENSON JAMES FREDERICK BENSON  JAMES FREDERICK BENSON
KALEB KENNETH JERRY BENSON NICHOLAS GRANT BENSON SHEILA CATHERINE BENSON TYLER J BENSON ZACKERY CHASE BENSON MICHAEL MATTHEW BENT AMBER NICHOLE BENTLEY CHANTELL BENTLEY CHRISTOPHER W BENTLEY JOHN BENTLEY MATTHEW A BENTLEY
STEVE L BENTLEY  BRADLEY C BENTLIN  JUMAL RECEVOUS BENTON ~ KENDRICK DEE BENTON ~ MATTHEW R BENTON ~ RONNIE WAYNE BENTON ~ MICHELLE C BENTZ COREY BENWELL  DEL BENZENHAFER  JAMES BERARD  MICHAEL BERARD  CLAYTON W BERBAUM
CODY W BERBAUM  DANIEL J BERCHIELLI  PHILLIP MICHAEL BERCOT BRIAN L BEREZNAK DUSTIN BERG JENNIFERBERG RICKBERG CHRIS J BERGBOWER JOHNATHAN BERGERON ZACHARY BERGERON JEFFREY ROBERT BERGHOFF LORI ANNETTE BERG-KOLKMEYER
IAN P BERGQUIST  DEBI A BERGSMA  BROCK EDWARD BERKEY ~ NIELS RUNYON BERLEMANN ~ ADAN BERNAL  ALLEN ANGEL BERNAL  BENITO A BERNAL  DAVID NA BERNAL  RICHARD P BERNAL  SERGIO ALONZO BERNAL BETANCOURT  RICARDO L BERNARDES
WILFREDO J BERNARDINI  JAMES ROBERT BERNARDO ~ ALEXANDER J BERNAUER ~ THOMAS J BERNDSEN ~ RYAN A BERNHARD ~ JACK RICHARD BERNHARDT ~ TAMMY LEE BERNHARDT ~ JOSEPH BERNICKE ~ JOHN A BERNIER ~ TYLER EUGENE BERNINGER ~ JOHN BERNS
AUSTIN LEVI BERRETT ~ DUSTIN D BERRETT  KRISTINE BERRETT ~ ROBERTW BERRETT ~ ERIN M BERREY ~ANGEL L BERRIOS ~RONNY BERRIOS VANEGAS ~AMANDA L BERRY ~ AUSTIN JORDAN BERRY ~ BEVAN M BERRY  CHRISTOPHER MAURICE BERRY ~ DERON JOEL BERRY
ELIZABETH BERRY  ERIC ABERRY GERALD B BERRYSR JACOB RYAN BERRY JAMES ROBERT BERRY JOHN LUCUS BERRY  JOSEPH CARLE BERRY ~MICHAEL D BERRY PETERRBERRY THOMAS BERRYJR TRACYLBERRY TYREE DOUGLAS BERRY VASHON BERRY
VINCENT S BERRY TODD M BERRY ANN LOUIS BERRYHILL MICHAEL A BERRYHILL SHANNON JEWEL BERRYHILL KARL H BERSCHAUER JEFFREY JOSEPH BERTHELOT JACOB BERTHIAUME RALPH BERTRAM JONATAN SAMUEL PLACENCIA BERUMEN
KEVIN ALEJANDRO PLACENCIA BERUMEN VICTOR JASIEL PLACENCIA BERUMEN ANGELA BESAW TRACY L BESEKE WESLEY ARRON BESHERSE DONTAE R BESS SAMUEL GENE BESSENT DYLAN C BESSETTE ANGELA LYNN BECKY J JACOB D

MANDY J BESSMER ~ ALLISON M BEST ~ JAMES L BEST JASON BEST  JOSEPH A BEST  LUIS ALFREDO BETANCOURT LUGO  ROSALIO B BETANCUR ~ CHRISTOPHER A BETAR  JEFFERY BETHEA  AYLON BETHEL SHARON J BETHUNE DIAN S BETKOWSKI ~ TONY JOE BETTIN
CHARLES BETTS CHRISTIAN DOUGLAS BETTS BLAZE MCCAFFREY BETZ DREW ZACHARY BETZ GREGORY M BETZ KYLERBETZ LARRYEBETZ STEVEN JBETZ STEVEN JOHN FREDERICK BETZ JAKE JBETZEN BRYON E BEUTLER SHARA LANAY BEVAN JOSEPH DONALD BEVEL
JOSEPH E BEVEL EDWARD JAMES BEVENOUR SR TYLER MASON BEVILL DEVON ABEVIS  TREVOR A BEVIS WILLIAM D BEVIS GARY W BEWLEY RASHAAD BEYAH JACOB WESLEY BEYER MICHAEL A BEYER VANESSA S BEYER GEORGE R BEYERSDOFER
BENJAMIN SCOTT BEYERSDORF  DANIEL BEZLISYUK DIVYESH A BHAGAT RAJESH H BHAGNARI SUDARSHAN M BHALERAO ABHISHEK BHANSALI SAMIKSHA BHATIA  LOUISE SITA BHAVNANI  JAYKUMAR BHAVSAR  MARJA BIALACH EUGENE BIALEK JOHN T BIANCULLI
MARK C BIANCULLI  MORGAN LEIGH BIAR  KYLER JAMES BIBBEE MATTHEW S BIBBENS ~ CLAYTON BIBLE  JARED JOHN BIBLE ~ PATRICK BICHEL ~MATTHEW BICHON ~ JOHNATHAN M BICKEL ~ KYLE A BICKFORD ~ VIVIAN BIDAH  JAMES RAY BIDDIX ~ AMY GAIL BIDDLE
CHRISTOPHER S BIDDLE HAROLD R BIDDLE JERRY LEE BIDDLE JACOB LEE BIDDLECOM DAMION CRUZ BIDLACK MATTHEW E BIDLACK DIANA BIDZIOS EMANUEL L BIFFLE DAWN MICHELLE BIGBEE CHANCEY GREGORY ALLEN BIGGERS ZACHARY ALEXANDER BIGGERS
MICHAEL SHAUN BIGGS ~ RICHARD ALLEN BIGGS ~ JORGE N BIGUEUR ~ AUSTIN M BIHN  JOHN BILBERRY ~ MATTHEW RYAN BILBERRY ~ DONALD BILBY  JUSTIN EDWARD BILDERBACK DEREK C BILEEN ROBERTTBILGER JOSEPH MARK BILLEC ~ BRYON KEITH BILLINGS
EMMYLOU BILLINGS ~ FELICIA ANN BILLINGS ~ GEORGE C BILLINGS ~ SUZANNE RENEE BILLINGS ~ TAMAURIA CHAMBRIA BILLINGS ~ TAYLOR A BILLINGS ~ ADAM MCKENLEY BILLIOT ~ TERESA BILLS  DALE R BILLSBOROUGH  RICHARD LAWRENCE BILSTEIN  JUSTIN BINDER
BRANNON CODEY BINGHAM  BRETTV BINGHAM DEWAYNE BINGHAM  GARRICK GREGG BINGHAM WALTER E BINGHAM DONALD O BINGMAN DAWNA L BINION RYAN BINION HEATHER BINKLEY RYAN MICHAEL BINNEY TEVON BIRBAL BRIAN D BIRCH SONYA N BIRCH
JACKIE BIRD ~ SEAN JOSEPH BIRD  THOMAS WAYNE BIRD  DUSTIN M BIRDSALL  DANIEL JERARD BIRDWELL ~ SUE R BIRDWELL ~ WILLIAM TODD BIRDWELL ~ ALISON BIRKEDAHL ESPARZA  BEAU J BIRKENHOLTZ ~ JAMES NICHOLAS BIRKETT ~ PAUL BIRKETT ~ GREG BIRLEY
BRIAN C BIRR SHANERBIRR THERESE LYNN BIRT RYAN M BISAILLON CLAUDE BISE BO G BISHOP  BRIAN BISHOP  CARRIE BISHOP  CHANDLER BISHOP  CHARLES ANTHONY BISHOP  CODY ALLEN BISHOP ~ GABRIEL BISHOP  JARED LEE BISHOP ~ JASON C BISHOP
JOHN R BISHOP ~ MISTY ABISHOP  RICHARD C BISHOP Ill STEVEN D BISHOP IV WENDI M BISHOP ~ BEN BARTHOLOMEW BISNETT  REID C BISSELL ~ BLAIR BISSETT Il DARRIAN BISSON ROBERTBISSON ~ NATHAN PHILLIP BISSONNETTE ~ CHRISTINA BISTREK
COURTNEY NICOLE BISTREK BRANDON BITTNER NATHAN RBITTON MICHAEL D BITZKY ADAM D BIVENS EMILY ALEXIS BIVENS MARK A BIVENS ANTONIO BIVINS RILEY GAGE BIXLER JASON L BIZZLE DAVID ROBERT BJORK ANDREW JAMES BLACK ANDREW M BLACK
AUSTIN TBLACK CASEY J BLACK COLTON ZEKE BLACK EDDIE BLACK JASE TYLER BLACK JEREMY A BLACK LEONARD E BLACK MARIO L BLACK NICHOLAS RYAN CLAYTON BLACK RONALD KEITH BLACK TOIWARN CORNELL BLACK TREVOR W BLACK WILLIAM WAYNE BLACK
XAVIER DEVON BLACK  BOBBY E BLACKBURN  DEREK DIJUAN BLACKBURN ~ GARY R BLACKBURN ~ HUNTER BLAINE BLACKBURN  J MICAH BLACKBURN  DILLON R BLACKBURN-JONES ~ AUSTIN LEVI BLACKMAN ~ CHARLES JOHN BLACKMAN  COLBY MARTIN BLACKMAN
DANIEL L BLACKMAN ~ MICHAEL RAY BLACKMAN ~ ROBERT C BLACKMAN ~ STACY L BLACKMAN CHERYL L BLACKMARR BROOKS WESLEY BLACKMER CHADLER BLACKMON  ERIC S BLACKMON SAMUEL R BLACKMON TRENT MICHAEL BLACKSHARE ~ DUSTIN BLACKSTOCK
JOSEPH DEAN BLACKSTONE SETH CHRISTIAN BLACKSTONE THOMAS GREGORY BLACKSTONE BRYAN BLACKWELL GLENN J BLACKWELL GREGORY S BLACKWELL KENNETH DAKOTA BLACKWELL SCOTTY DEWAYNE BLACKWELL THOMAS BLACKWELL TRAVIS L BLACKWELL
HUNTER DALE BLACKWOOD VAN STEPHEN BLACKWOOD ~ SEAN BLAGDON ~ ANDREW KEITH BLAIR ~ CHRISTOPHER LAFEY BLAIR ~ JUSTINTBLAIR ~ KYLE BLAIR ~ RILEY MARSHALL BLAIR ~ DEVIN BLAIS ~ JON C BLAISDELL ~ SONNY D BLAISDELL ~ TYSON D BLAISDELL
ZACKARY K BLAISDELL DANIEL EDWARD BLAKE JEFFREY R BLAKE JOHN JOSEPH BLAKE MITCHELL JOHN BLAKE MITCHELL JOHN BLAKE NICHOLAS BLAKE RICHARD TBLAKE JACKSON HARRIS BLAKELEY CHRISTOPHER M BLAKELY JOHN H BLAKELY RONALD JASON BLAKELY
DARRELL E BLAKEMORE SHAWN BLAKENEY DOUGLAS S BLAKER TIMOTHY PHILLIP BLAKESLEE BRANDON AUSTIN BLAKLEY RODNEY L BLALOCK ROGER D BLALOCK JAIDEN S BLAMEY JESSE BLANCHARD KELLI BLANCHARD EMILY BLANCHETTE LUKE ALAN BLANCHETTE
BRAYDEN JOSEPH BLANCO ENRIQUE BLANCO ERASTO MANUEL BLANCO ERIC M BLANCO FRANK JBLANCO MICHAEL BLANCO CADEN DANIEL BLAND CONNER BLAND MICHAEL BLAND SHERILOUISE BLAND TYLER BLAND WALTER L BLAND WILLIAM DOUGLAS BLAND
JESSEBLANE  RON BLANE ~ GARRETT WAYNE BLANKENBECKLER ~ CARR E BLANKENSHIP  CHRIS LEE BLANKENSHIP  CHRISTOPHER LATHAN BLANKENSHIP ~ JASON D BLANKENSHIP  RAPHAEL L BLANKENSHIP ~ SAMMY L BLANKENSHIP  SCOTT ALAN BLANKENSHIP JR
SHANNON S BLANKENSHIP ~ WILLIAM LAWSON BLANKENSHIP  KENNETH A BLANKINSHIP ~ STEPHEN JOSEPH BLANKLEY  ERIC BLANSCETT JAMES T BLANSIT JAYDEN HENDERSON BLANSIT  JACKSON L BLANTON ~ JAMES SAMUEL BLANTON ~ MATTHEW THOMAS BLANTON
HORACE BLATON  ANDREW J BLATT DILLON BLATTER TODD A BLAUVELT JUSTIN BLAYDES MARONEE K BLAYER  BRIAN WILLIAM BLAYLOCK TIMOTHY S BLAYLOCK BRYCE JOHN BLAZEK JOSEPH RONALD BLECHSCHMIDT BRETT BLEDSOE JAMES MICHAEL BLEDSOE
MADISON BLEDSOE STEVEN BLEDSOE WALTER N BLEJDE KERNEIL BLENMAN CODY BLESSING AMBER LEE BLEVINS CARTER WILLIAM BLEVINS COLTON LANE BLEVINS ETHAN CRAIG BLEVINS JODY B BLEVINS MARC BLEVINS MATTHEW J BLEVINS TRAVIS DALTON BLEWER
NATHAN ROSS BLICKENSDERFER JUSTIN E BLISS PAUL ANDREW BLISS RYAN MICHAEL BLISS TIMMILEE BLISTAN MATTHEW BLITCH THOMAS A BLITCH JADE DALTON BLOCKER SCOTTW BLOMQUIST JERRY L BLONDELL JEREMY M BLOOM MICHELLE LYNN BLOOMER FREEMAN
JAMES W BLOSKIS JOHNATHON SCOTT BLOSSER RYAN J BLOSSER ADAM W BLOTTER DAVID LEE BLOUNT RUSSELL W BLOUNT ERIC RUSSELL BLUBAUGH BRYAR BLUE CHRIS EUGENE BLUE ERNEST WADE BLUE JAMES LAWRENCE BLUE TERRELL D BLUE TOMMY JASON BLUE
LYONEL BLUEEYES ~ ERIC D BLUM  MATTHEW L BLUME  ISAIAH KEITH BLUMENSHINE ~ DEAUNTIA EMARIO BLUNT ~ ZACHARY WAYNE BLUST ~ JASON E BLYSTONE ~ RYLEY QUINN BLYSTONE ~ DOMINICK REESE BLYTHE ~ AARON MICHAEL BOARD  EZEKIEL DICKENS BOARD
TODD B BOATMAN  BILLY A BOATWRIGHT IAN KRISTOPHER BOAZ TANIA BOBBI DONALD G BOBENMOYER JARED P BOCHENEK LAVERNE MITCHELL BOCHETTE ANTONIBOCHNIAK KRISTINE NICHOLE BOCK NICKOLAS DARLING BOCK TYLER JBOCK DONALD P BOCKELMAN
CRYSTAL BOCUS WAYNE BODDEN ~ EXAVIAN BODIFORD ~ KATIE BODILY ~ PATRICK ALLEN BODWELL ~ PAUL ALAN BOEHME ~ QUINN BOEHME ~ GARRETT KENNARD BOELTER ~ ROSS A BOELTER AMYBOER CAMERON BOERBOOM  TYLER K BOERSCHIG ~ DENISE B BOERST
BRITTANY N BOFENKAMP JB BOGA SCOTTJBOGAN TROYSBOGAN ROBERTEBOGER SHAWN M BOGGS WILLIAM ALEXANDER BOGGS BRIAN HBOGH ROLAND J BOGUSZEWSKI TREY ALLEN BOHANAN MICHAEL SPENCER BOHANNAN BRANDON THOMAS BOHANNON
CHRISTOPHER THOMAS BOHANNON EDWIN L BOHANNON SHANE M BOHATY BRIAN G BOHN KHAIBOI JESSE BOILEAU JONATHAN BOILEAU ALAIN BOILY PATRICK BOILY LUCKSON BOINE JOSE EDUARDO GUZMAN BOISO CARL BOISSONNEAULT FRANCISCO BOJORQUEZ
RAYLENE MARIE BOKATH JUSTIN SCOTT BOKEL JOSEPH H BOLAM JR TYLER H BOLAN RICARDO BOLANOS BLAKE BOLAR RONALD HOWARD BOLAR DANDRELLE MARVEZ BOLDEN JEREMY RAY BOLDEN KATRINA BOLDEN KEVIN LYNN BOLDEN WILLIAM LAMAR BOLDEN
BRODRICK HUNTER BOLDON BRANDON AUGUST BOLDT KARL BOLDUC MAXIME BOLDUC JONATHAN BOLE KEN MCNEIL BOLES JR ANDREW BOLIN CHARLES WESLEY BOLIN ERIK JON BOLIN SONNY L BOLIN BO A BOLINSKY LUIS G BOLIVAR TIM BOLL JOHN WILLIAM BOLLICH
TYLER DOUGLAS BOLLING ROGER W BOLLS DOUGLAS BOLLUYT DAVID E BOLT BRANDON JOSHUA BOLTE BOBBY J BOLTON BRANDON LEE BOLTON DEAN ETTIENE BOLTON GARY L BOLTON ISAAC JOHNUS BOLTON JORDAN KENT BOLTON ROBERT BOLTON RODNEY LANE BOLTON
CLEBER BOLZON STREAMER L BOMAN JAMES C BOMAR  JACOB THOMAS BOMKAMP  JONATHAN BONAISE BRYCE ROBERT BONANNO CHRISTOPHER BRADLEY BONAR ~ WILLIAM A BONCZYNSKI  BENJAMIN K BOND HANNAH ELIZABETH BOND  JOSEPH RICHARD BOND
STEPHEN A BOND TERRY EDWIN BOND ERIC R BONDS KYLEE CHRISTINE BONDS JORDAN R BONDURANT JORDAN R BONERTZ PAUL J BONERTZ REY JESUS BONET MARTIN ZACHARY BONETTE CAMERON L BONHAM DYLAN JOHNATHAN BONIFIELD ISAI NATANAEL BONILLA
JAMES L BONNER KELVIN A BONNER MARK J BONNER TWUN O BONNER BENJAMEN LEE BONNET BRANDON BONNETT LUCAS BONNOITT MELISSA BONNOITT JOSHUA ALLEN BONOMO JAMES R BONTE MINDY A BONTRAGER LESLIE P BONVILLAIN DEORAJ BOOCHOON
NICK BOODOO  RICHARD BOODRAM  FREDRIC DALE BOOE Il ROBERT CURTIS BOOE ~ SARAH ANN BOOE ~ DEVIN RILLEYBOOK  ASHLEY N BOOKER BRUCE L BOOKER  DARYL AARON BOOKER  JASON JERMAL BOOKER  JOHN ALLEN BOOKER JR  KEISHA D BOOKER
MAEGAN BRYNN BOOKER TRINITY LORRAINE BOOKER CHARLES A BOONE JASON LAVON BOONE REBECCA ANN BOONE ROY MICHAEL BOONE MANIKANDAN B BOOPATHIV ANTHONY BOOTH BRANDON BOOTH ISABEL FLORES BOOTH JESSICA A BOOTH JOSHUA RYAN BOOTH
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STEVEN HAROLD COWLES TRENTON CHASE COWLEY ALEXANDER JOE COWLING JOSHUA L COWLISHAW ALEXIS VICTORIA COX ASHLEY ELIZABETH COX AUSTIN D COX BARBARA LESHEA COX BRIAN ECOX CEDRIC NCOX CHRISTOPHER JASON COX CHRISTOPHER S COX
DANIEL M COX DANNYLCOX DAVIDWCOX DAWNM COX DEWAYNEKCOX DONALD GENECOX DONALDSCOX DOUGLASACOX DYLAN ANDREW COX DYLON DELANE COX GUY FRANKLIN COXJR JASON A COX JEANNE MARIECOX JERRYLCOX JESSICA NICOLE COX
JOHN PERRISH COX Il JOHNNY CARLTON COX Il JORDAN KEITH COX JOSEPHL COX JOSEPHMCOX JUSTINLCOX KEVINLCOX LANDONVCOX LEOCAMERON COX LOYAL FRANKLIN COX Il MECHELLE LYNN COX NATHANRCOX PATRICKACOX REBECCA COX
ROBERT COX RODNEY MICHEL COX RYAN WILLIAM DAVID COX SAMUEL R COX STACY DIANA COX VIRGILLCOX WILLIAMTCOX CALEBTHOMAS COY DARYLD COYLE LARKIN ALLEN COYLE LEWIS ELWOOD COYLE REMINGTON A COYLE DAVID R COZART GUY E COZINE
ROBERTK COZINE  GAGE ERIC CRABTREE  JENNIFER L CRABTREE ~ RICHARD L CRABTREE  LOLA M CRADDOCK  MICHAEL RAY CRADDOCK  COLLIN NEIL CRAFT ~ DANNY CRAFT  JASON LEE CRAFT  JORDAN D CRAFT  KYLE WAYNE CRAFT ~ MATTHEW ALFRED CRAFT
THOMAS GLENN CRAFT CHARLENE CRAGER COLTON LEE CRAGER JEREMY D CRAGER SABATHA CRAGER WARREN E CRAGO SHAYNE CRAGUN AUSTIN THOMAS CRAIG BRANDON ELLIS CRAIG DANIEL L CRAIG DONALD W CRAIG JONATHAN ROBERT CRAIG JOSHUA LEVI CRAIG
LEWIS DAMON CRAIG ~ MARIA C CRAIG  MICKEY WAYNE CRAIG  PAMELA JILL CRAIG  ROBERTK CRAIG ~ STEPHEN RAWLINGS CRAIG ~ TIMOTHYV CRAIG ~ WESLEYLCRAIG ~ WILLIAM JEFFREY CRAIG ~ J BARTON CRAIN ~ MICHAEL F CRAINE ~ NICOLE M CRAMBLETT
LOGAN ANDREW CRAMER BRENTW CRANDALL MARK CRANDALL RIC A CRANDELL CHRISTOPHER A CRANE JOAN M CRANE MARK THOMAS CRANE NICOLE DEIDRE CRANE KCJCRANER MARKW CRANSTOUN RODERICK CRATIC KOLTON CRAVALHO AUBREY DWAYNE CRAVEN
FORREST WORKMAN CRAVENS ROY B CRAVEY BRITTANY LEE CRAWFORD DAVID W CRAWFORD DUSTIN LOWELL CRAWFORD GARY CRAWFORD JACOB R CRAWFORD JAIRUS KHALI CRAWFORD JAMES RICHARD CRAWFORD JIMMY R CRAWFORD JORDAN MAXWELL CRAWFORD
JOSHUA MILLER CRAWFORD MARSHALL CRAWFORD MARTIN LOGAN CRAWFORD MITCHELL V CRAWFORD RICKIE D CRAWFORD CURTIS ROSCO CRAWLEY ERIN E CRAYCRAFT MELISSA CRAYTON ROBERT DEMONT CRAYTON TERRY J CREAGER MICHAEL DAVID CREAMER
LLOYD D CREASEY JAMES H CREASY RANDALL D CREASY CARL E CRECY TIMOTHY WILLIAM CREE AUSTIN J CREECH JOHN LOGAN CREECH LANDON M CREECH ROBERT HEATH CREECH JEROME CREEK JOSE CREEK META D CREEK HEATHER L CREELY HOWARD F CREGER
ZACHARY TAYLOR CREGER DANIEL B CREMER JAMES D CREMER MARK E CREMIEUX JAMES T CRENSHAW TIMOTHY RYAN CRENSHAW ANTHONY PAUL CRESPIN JEFFREY E CRESTO ORIANNE MARION CRETUAL MARC-OLIVIER CREVIER-MORIN MARK A CREW GAGE CREWS
LEWIS DIAL CREWS IV TED DOUGLAS CREWS DAVID BCRIBB JOHNW CRIBBJR  KYLIE ALTMAN CRIBB THOMAS R CRIBBJR  JEFFREY D CRICK HAZEN CRIDDLE CALEB HEATH CRIDER  COREY STUART CRIDER ~ KARAH-LYN MARIANA CRIHFIELD  HEATHER A CRILL
JORDAN CRILL  LESTERLCRIM NICHOLAS D CRIM REBECCA ANN CRIM  ERIC CRINER  KELLY CRIPPS TAMARA L CRISPIN RICHARD R CRIST ROBERTA CRIST RYANJCRIST JERRYW CRISWELL RONALD G CRITES HUNTER CRITTENDON KIMBERLY MARIE CROCE
GARY N CROFT MELISSA CROFT ROBERT G CROLL AUSTIN SCOTT CROMER JAMES HOYLE CROMWELL ADAM CHARLES WAYNE CRONIN SHANNON L CRONIN ROBERT M CRONK SCOTT CRONK CODY ERIC CROOK PAUL P CROOKE GREGORY A CROOKER LLOYD CROOKS
MATTHEW J CROOKS NORMAN D CROOKS JAMES MARK CROOM JAYDE CROOME SHERMAIN LABRANDON CROONE JOSHUA LEE CROSE BLAKE P CROSHAW ANTHONY RAY CROSS CHRISTOPHER C CROSS DANIEL JAMES CROSS DERRICK ONEAL CROSS ISABELLA LEE CROSS
JAMES E CROSS MICHAEL A CROSS  PHILLIP RCROSS STEPHEN E CROSS JENNIFER CROSSETT ERYKA N CROSSLEY JEREMY JOHN CROSSLEY DAKOTA CHEYENNE CROSSLIN BRIAN KEITH CROSSNO  CHAD ELLIS CROSSNO  DUSTIN M CROTHERS  TIMOTHY P CROTHERS
MARCUS G CROTTS JEFFERY L CROTTY CHRISTOPHER E CROUCH CHRISTOPHER R CROUCH COLBY D CROUCH GARYL CROUCH JONATHAN SHAWN CROUCH MARTIN LANDON CROUCH TAMMY CROUGH ANDREW LENZY MASON CROUSE TRAVIS CROUSON FREDRIC L CROW
HAROLD D CROW LEONARD CLARKSTON CROW WESLEY DYLAN CROW JAMIE D CROWDEN BENJAMIN CROWDER CARL A CROWDER JAMES DEAN CROWDER JAMES LARRY CROWDER JR CHRISTOPHER W CROWE JEFFERY CROWE LIDALE LIRONE CROWE RYAN A CROWE
CHAD W CROWELL CRAIG SCOTT CROWELL DAVID L CROWELL DAVID M CROWELL DEMETRIUS CROWELL JAMES CROWELL SHAWNITA TAMIKA CROWELL WILLIAM C CROWLEY KIMBERLY R CROWN KENNETH CHAD CROWSON CHAD A CROWTHER DANIELLE NICOLE CROWTHERS
ZACHARY WAYNE CROY CASSANDRA CROYLE MARSHALL CRUDUP RAYMOND CRUICKSHANK CHRISTOPHER MATTHEW CRUM JAMES A CRUMLEY JAMES CRUMM TERRANCE LAMAR CRUMMIE JACARRAN TICHI CRUMP MICHAEL A CRUMP  STEPHANIE RACHELLE CRUMP
JARRET CRUMPTON TANNER WILEY CRUMPTON TRACE CLINTON CRUMPTON  ZACHARY GLENN CRUMPTON  MICAH LYNN CRUNK MICHAEL SETH CRUNK NICHOLAS D CRUNK JADEN CHASE CRUTCHER MARIBETH CRUTCHER TRAVIS W CRUTCHER JORDON CRUTCHFIELD
ADRIAN CRUZ ALDO CRUZ ALONSO BENJAMIN CRUZ JR ANDRES CRUZ AQUILINO ESPINOZA CRUZ CARLOS JUAN CRUZ CHRISTIAN S CRUZ DAVIDTCRUZ DIANE CRUZ EDDIE CRUZ ERIC SAMMY CRUZ GONZALO CRUZ HECTOR JOSE CRUZ ISRAEL G CRUZ JESSICA CRUZ
JOSELUISCRUZ JUSTINRCRUZ KEVINCRUZ LEONARDO DANIEL GONZALEZ CRUZ MARCELO CRUZ MARISELA CRUZ  RICARDO VIEIRA CRUZ RUDYLCRUZ SIDNEY JOSEPH CRUZ TOMAS CRUZ ALAN CRUZLOPEZ CARLOS A CRUZPRADO JACOB CRUZ ZAVALA
JOSE LUIS CRUZ ZAVALA  ADAM WYATT CRYER GREGORY M CRYSLER ~ FELTON B CUCH MICHAEL CUDE TIMOTHY JERRAD CUDE  CARLOS CLEMENTE CUELLAR  JAVIER J CUERVO GARCIA ERWIN VAZQUEZ CUEVA  ALEJANDRO CUEVAS  CARLOS OMAR ROBLES CUEVAS




JAIME A CUEVAS KAREN FAYE CUEVAS DUSTIN EMMANUEL CULBERSON BRANDON JAMES CULBRETH ASHTON NEIL CULICK CHARLENE TOY CULLEN DANIEL WILLIAM CULLEN JAMES CHARLES CULLEN JASON M CULLEN JADY CULLINS DAVID GLENN CULP MICHAEL CULP
JAYDEN COLE CULPEPPER ERIC D CULPS MICHAEL ALLEN CULPS SHELDON CUMBERBATCH JOSEPH E CUMBERWORTH ROBERT R CUMBIE JR DONALD CUMINGS JR CLINTON KYLE CUMMING JERAMIAH LEE CUMMINGS JOHNATHAN DAVID CUMMINGS MARK CUMMINGS
CAMERON SCOTT CUMMINS MOSES TUAN CUNG VAN BIAK CUNG BLAKE FORREST CUNNINGHAM BRANDON W CUNNINGHAM BRIAN C AM BRIANEC AM CHON T CUNNINGHAM CHRIS C CL DUSTIN ERIK C! AM JACOBR CL M
JON JACOB CUNNINGHAM  JOSEPH R CUNNINGHAM  JUSTIN K CUNNINGHAM  KRISTEN DENISE CUNNINGHAM ~ MARK WILLIAM CL {AM  MATT W CL ! MICHAEL CL 1AM SEANR CL TIMOTHY J CL {AM  FRANKLIN DAVIES CUNUPP
BRAD LEE CURBOW  DUSTIN WAYNE CURCIO  KYLE TREVOR CURETON ~ JOSE ANTONIO CURIEL  BENJAMIN MICHEAL CURL  JUSTIN M CURL ~ STEPHANIE ILENE CURL WESLEY WILLIAM CURL  FRED CHANDLER CURLEY IRENE M CURLEY CAGE R CURLIN KYLE D CURLIN
STEPHANIE L CURLIN TROY D CURLIN ADAM LEELAN CURREY LISA ANN CURREY ANTHOL D CURRIE JOHN K CURRIE MATTHEW JOHN CURRIE RUSSELL ALLEN CURRIE TERRYN CURRIE TYLER CURRIE MICHAEL D CURRIN RICKY NELSON JR CURRIN JR ANDREW J CURRY
BRANDI J CURRY  BRYSON SYLVANDER CURRY JACOB S CURRY JAMES D CURRY JAMES M CURRY JEFFREYD CURRY JOHN M CURRY ROBERTHCURRYJR SETHECURRY TIMOTHY TERRELL CURRY TONYLEE CURRY CHRISTOPHER A CURTIS  JASON B CURTIS
NICHOLAS R CURTIS  PAUL DERRICK CURTIS ~ PEYTON CURTIS RONDARIUS ANTUAN CURTIS RYAN P CURTIS STEVEN W CURTIS ~ WILLIAM THOMAS CURTIS  JENNIFER LEANN CURTIS HYDE MORGAN TAYLOR CURTS  JESSIE RAY CURTSINGER  BRIAN KEITH CURTWRIGHT
DARRIN J CUSHMAN ~ ANTHONY D CUSSANO  JACOB D CUSTARD  BENJAMIN ELWYN CUSTER  WARREN E CUSTER  CARRIE MAHALIE CUTCHINS  ARMANDO CUTINO  LANE RUSSELL CUTLER  MARQUES DEMARRIUS CUTLER ~ ZAYDON PHILIP CUTLER  TIMOTHY L CUTTER
MATTHEW S CUTTILL JENNIFER M CUTTS JONATHAN CUVAR JOHNATHAN ANDREW CUZZORT BRANDON M CYBAK-VERTIN ANGEL CYR ERIC CYR JOHN STEVE CZARNIECKI IV AARON JOSEPH CZUBAK HERNANIDA CRUZ ANDRADE JENNIFER D DA SILVA JONATHAN DA SILVA
VITOR DASILVA RONNIE DABIDEEN KENNETH J DABNEY THEODORE R DAEFFLER ADRIEN DAFOE RYAN DAFOE ZACHARY A DAGGS MATHEW ARNOLD DAGNAN STEVEN A D'AGNESE RACHELLE ANN DAGOSTINO DAVID A DAGUE KRIS DAHL WAYNE DAHL DAX DAHLE
TRAVIS B DAHLE ANDREW J DAHLHEIM ADAM D DAHLIN CHAD F DAHLKOETTER HENRY EVANS DAIGLE LEAH DAIGLE MICHAEL DAIGLE RENE J DAIGLE TIMOTHY ADAM DAIL TONY DAIL JACEE MARIE DAILEY RICHARD KEITH DAILEY SCOTT DAILEY STEVEN R DAILEY
DOUGLAS DAINES  ALEX DAKE SIERRA DAKERS GERALD L DALBERG BRANDON DOUGLAS DALE CAREY ADALE THOMAS DALE BETHANY ANN DALEY CAGNEY DALEY CHARLES DALGLEISH JULIAN EDALIA THOMAS DALLON COLTEN Z DALTON GREGGORY A DALTON
KENDRA R DALTON  KEVIN DALTON  TIFFANY KING DALTON ~ DANIEL L DAMERON DAKODA EDWARD DAMGAR  JOSE JOAQUIN GUTIERREZ DAMIAN  REGULO GUTIERREZ DAMIAN  COLLIN JACOB DAMICO  JULIE L DAMICO  MICHAEL A DAMICO JR  ETHAN HUNTER D'AMICO
CHARLES P DAMPIER WYATT ANTHONY DAMPIER MATTHEW DAMRON KALEB JOE DANA FARRELL EDWARD DANCER JONATHAN EDWARD DANCER JORDAN B DANCER DARCY DANCHUK COURTNEY NAKIO DANCY BACH DINH DANG TC MICHAEL DANG JAMES DANGELO
MATTHEW D'ANGELO  BRADLEY DANGLER TYLER DANGLER ADAM CORNELIUS DANIEL CURTIS R DANIEL GUADALUPE DANIEL JASON C DANIEL JOSEPH GORDON DANIEL MARK A DANIEL ORRIN L DANIEL SAMUEL DANIEL SHAD EDWIN DANIEL TIMOTHY ALLEN DANIEL
TYLER BLAKE DANIEL  JOSHUA WAYNE DANIELL  BRIAN D DANIELS ~ BRITTANY LUCILLE DANIELS ~ BRITTNEE SUE DANIELS ~ BRYAN C DANIELS ~ CHARLES S DANIELS ~ CHEYANNE DAWN DANIELS ~ CHRISTIAN TREVOR DANIELS ~ CINDY RENNEE DANIELS ~ CRAIG DANIELS
DAVID E DANIELS GILBERT REESE DANIELS JACOB HUNTER DANIELS JAMES E DANIELS JAMES P DANIELS KEVIN LAMAR DANIELS LEE DANIELS MATTHEW R DANIELS MICHAEL LEE DANIELS PATRICIA A DANIELS ROBERT DANIELS RYAN S DANIELS SHELLEY D DANIELS
THADDEUS JEREMIAH DANIELS TYLER J DANIELS JEAN DANIS ROBERT R DANN JAIMIE LYNN DANNER RONNY DANNER THOMAS J DANNER MICHAEL RICHARD DANNHAUS LEON DANSBY BRANDEN A DANTIN LEROY W DANTIN STEVEN C DANTONELLO ANTHONY J DANTONIO II
MADHU DANTULURI  SAMMY H DAO KEVIN D'AQUST ADAM DAQUILA CHINNAVONG DAR ANNETTE R DARBY GARY S DARBY JOHN LEWIS DARBY KEVIN D DARBY REANNA JDARBY WILLIE R DARBY JUSTIN DEVON DARGAN MINODORA DARIE SETH AARON DARLINGTON
JOHN ROBERT DARNELL ~ KAREN ELAINE DARNELL ~ THOMAS BRYANT DARNELL ~ JONATHAN EDWARD DARON ~ JUDE DARRAHJR  THOMAS ROWAN DARRAH  TAKUMU DARRING ~ CURTIS SCOTT DARROW ~ LOGAN A DARROW  ANTHONY DARVIN  SHAKER G DARWISH
NATHANAEL DASENT ~ MICHAEL A DASGUPTA  JOSEPH D DASHER ~ MISTY RENEE DASHER ~ DINESH DASS TOMMY L DATES ~ NEIL DATTADEEN CHRISTOPHER TODD DATTI ROGER A J DATTILO  DUSTIN MICHAEL DAUGHERTY MATTHEW DAUGHERTY ~MONTE D DAUGHERTY
APRIL R DAUGHTRY ~ MICHAEL T DAUPHIN  JOEL STEPHEN DAURELLE ~ ARTHUR LEE DAVENPORTJR  AUSTIN TYLER DAVENPORT  CURTIS DAVENPORT  TY GLENN DAVENPORT  TYLER WAYNE DAVENPORT  JACOB ALEXANDER DAVES ~ ANITA LOUISE DAVID  DONALD DAVID
JAMES C DAVID JONATHAN L DAVID MIKAL DAVID RYAN L DAVID DAVID GLINDAN DAVID RAJ JENNA M DAVIDS CLAYTON LAKE DAVIDSON JACKIE DAVIDSON JASON S DAVIDSON JEREMY W DAVIDSON JOHN L DAVIDSON KLINT RUSSELL DAVIDSON
MATTHEW ROBERT HARLEY DAVIDSON ~ MICHAEL A DAVIDSON ~ PARKER DAVIDSON  PHILLIP DAVIDSON SR RANDOLPH S DAVIDSON ~ REBECCA ANNE DAVIDSON ~ ROBERT DAVIDSON ~ RODNEY DAVIDSON ~ RYAN DAVIDSON  BENJAMIN DAVIES ~ CHRISTOPHER L DAVIES
CORY WILLIAM DAVIES JATHAN LLOYD DAVIES SPENCER M DAVIES EDUARDO DAVILA GABRIELV DAVILA MARTIN DAVILA ALEX OMAR DAVILA RODRIGUEZ JAIME DAVILA-RAMOS PAUL DAVILO TIMOTHY DAVILO LEIGHTON ISAAC DAVINO MICHAEL DAVIO AARON D DAVIS JR
AARON P DAVIS ALEXANDER LEE DAVIS ALYSA SUZANNE DAVIS ANNETTE MAY DAVIS ANTHONY JEROME DAVIS APRIL DAVIS APRIL DAVIS ASHLEY MALYN DAVIS BARBARA A DAVIS BENJAMIN ALAN MICHAEL DAVIS BILLY RAY DAVIS BRANDON JO DAVIS BRANSON DAVIS
BRIAN KEITH DAVIS BRIAN L DAVIS BRIAN L DAVIS CALEB JOHN DAVIS CARL FLOYD DAVIS CARL JAMES DAVIS CASEY G DAVIS CHADWICK E DAVIS CHAS SCOTT DAVIS CHAZ LEE DAVIS CHRISTOPHER J DAVIS CHRISTOPHER W DAVIS CLARENCE DAVIS CLAY THOMAS DAVIS
CODY D DAVIS CODY JAMES DAVIS COREY RYAN DAVIS COY L DAVIS DANIELLE MARIE DAVIS DANTE REGIS DAVIS DAVID ADAM DAVIS DAVID E DAVIS JR DAWN M DAVIS DERRICK DELMAR DAVIS JR DEVIN D DAVIS DEXTER LEE DAVIS DONALD W DAVIS DYLAN MICHAEL DAVIS
EVIE N DAVIS GREGORY E DAVIS HARLEY DEWAYNE DAVIS HILEY R DAVIS JAIEVAN DAVIS JAMAAL DAVIS JAMECIA S DAVIS JAMES DOMINICK DAVIS JAMISON SCOTT DAVIS JAQUARIUS DEWAYNE DAVIS JARED TDAVIS JARED W DAVIS JASON MATTHEW DAVIS JC L DAVIS
JEFFERY DAVIS JEFFREY R DAVIS JEFFREY DAVIS JR JEREMY A DAVIS JIMMY LEE DAVIS JR JOHN MITCHELL DAVIS JOHNNY LEE DAVIS JR JORDAN DAVIS JOSEPH A DAVIS JOSEPH CHRISTIAN DAVIS JOSHUA L DAVIS JUSTIN DAVIS JUSTIN SCOTT DAVIS JUSTIN SKYLAR DAVIS
KEITH ADAVIS KEITH B DAVIS KEITH O DAVIS KELLY J DAVIS KENNETH WAYNE DAVIS JR  KIMBERLY DAWN DAVIS KOMARO MARION DAVIS LABAN ANTHONY DAVIS LANDON FORREST DAVIS LARON JERMAINE DAVIS LARRY D DAVIS LAYTON S DAVIS LENARDO DAVIS
MARCUS DAVIS MARCUS L DAVIS MARKADAVIS MARKW DAVIS MARK WAYNE DAVIS MARK DAVIS MATTHEW F DAVIS MCARTHUR DAVIS MICHAEL DEWAYNE DAVIS MICHAEL JASON DAVIS MICHAEL L DAVIS MORGAN TIFFANY LEE DAVIS MYISHA SHANEL DAVIS
NATHAN LLOYD DAVIS  NICHOLAS BDAVIS ~ NICHOLAS BRADY DAVIS ~ NICHOLAS JAMES DAVIS ~ PATRICK N DAVIS ~ PRISCILLA DAVIS RACHAEL L DAVIS RANDALL G DAVIS Il RANDOLPHRDAVIS Il RANDY H DAVIS RAYMOND JOHN DAVIS RHONDA MICHELLE DAVIS
RICHARD TDAVIS ROBERTA DAVIS ROBERT MITCHELLE DAVIS ROBERTO ARTURO DAVIS RODNEY L DAVIS RYAN L DAVIS SAMUEL HAWKINS DAVIS ~ SEAN BRADY DAVIS ~ SHELDON DAVIS ~ SKYLAR AUSTIN DAVIS ~ STACEY K DAVIS  STEVEN DAVIS  STEVEN W DAVIS
TADRICK DONTE DAVIS  TANETRA DAVIS  TANYA DAVIS  TARRENCE JAMAL DAVIS ~ TERRENCE L DAVIS THOMAS SCOTT DAVIS THOMAS W DAVIS JR  TIMMY DAVIS ~ TIMOTHY AARON DAVIS ~ TONY LYNN DAVIS ~ TREVIS JDAVIS  TRISTENTY DAVIS  TYLER JOHN DAVIS
ULYSSES G DAVIS VERNON E DAVIS JR WHITL DAVIS WILLIAM ANTHONY DAVIS ZACHARY ANDREW WYATT DAVIS ZACHARY D DAVIS ZARQUENTOS KENTEZ DAVIS CARL C DAVISON JR  STACY DAVISON DAVID A DAVOLTJR  MANISH DAWADI  DARRELL DALTON DAWKINS
ALEXANDER R DAWSON ~ AMYE M DAWSON  COREY D DAWSON ~ COURTENEY DAWSON  GERALD W DAWSON ~ HUNTER DEAN DAWSON ~ JACOB A DAWSON  JEREMY DAWSON ~ JORDAN DAVIS DAWSON  LORENZO C DAWSON  TYLER GARRETT DAWSON  ADAM S DAY
CLAUDE WAYNE DAY JR CLYDE AARON DAY CLYDE MICAH DAY DENNIS DAY JR DOUGLAS ERRIN DAY JAMES L DAY JODIL DAY STEPHEN P DAY TIMOTHY LEE DAY TRENTON MICHAEL DAY ZACKARY DAY WAYNE TAMONDONG DAYAG ARVIN DAYAHAN HIMCHAN AJAY DAYAL
OZIEL ALEJANDRO DE ANDA STACEY DE ANGELIS LEONARDO AGUILAR DE AQUINO HECTOR GUTIERREZ DE ARCOS CHRIS DE BARRAS SONMER DE CASTRO ZORRILLA TIECE DE GAZON JORGE ALEJANDRO ARELLANO DE HOYOS LEONARDO DE JESUS LINARES BRAYAN DE LA CRUZ
MIGUEL ANGEL DE LA CRUZTORRES ~ MICHAEL JONUEL DE LA CRUZ-VEGA  JOVITADE LA FUENTE ~ ANGEL M DE LA GARZA  VIDAL DELAMORA  CRISTIAN HUMBERTO MARES DE LAPAZ  ELEAZARDELAPAZ  LEONARDO DELAPAZ  LUIS ANTONIO VAZQUEZ DE LA PAZ
ALFREDO DE LAROSA JR  ROMULO DE LA ROSA CASTILLO  JASMIN DE LATORRE ~ OCIEL DE LATORRE ~ ARTURO DE LA VEGA CANO  LUIS F DE LA VEGA GONZALEZ ~ ERNESTO DELAPAZ NOEDELARAJR CHANELLEDELEON CLARIE ANNDELEON  LAURENT DE MEY
LEONARDO CAPUTO DE MOURA JOSUE DE PAZ OSCAR DE PAZ CALDERON ASHLEE DE ROOY JOE DESOUSA JEROME DEVERA DANIEL GLEN DEWITTE PATRICK J DEADY ADDISON PAIGE DEAL RONALD NICHOLAS DEAL RONI SHAW DEAL BRITNEY S DEAN CASEY A DEAN
CHARLESTYLER DEAN  CHRISTIAN B DEAN  CHRISTOPHER MICHAEL DEAN  DANIEL J DEAN  ERIC THOMAS DEAN  FRANCIS N DEAN JR  GEORGE TANARD DEAN  LARRY PATRICK DEAN  LEVIISAIAH DEAN  MICHAEL E DEAN  BRIAN ALEXANDER DEANDA  RIAH L DEANE
TONI DEANE KENNETH DEARBORNE GREGORY A DEARDORF RONALD R DEARDORFF AIMSLEY NICOLE DEAREN CRAWFORD DEARING DYLAN HUNTER DEARINGER BRIAN DEARMAN EVAN DEARMAN ROBERT B DEAS JAMES DEASON JAMES CODY DEASON LARRY P DEATON
MALLORIE LAUREN DEATON JASON S DEAVERS JONATHAN R DEBAUN KEVIN D DEBERRY RACHEL DEBOER MATTHEW DEBOIS MICHAEL CHRISTOPHER DEBOUSICNE-MARTINEZ TAMMY DARLENE DECARLO DAVID A DECAROLIS JACQUALENE ROXANNE DECK AHMAD R DECKARD
WILLIAM R DECKARD  LINDEN BRYCE DECKELMAN ~ EDWIN D DECKER ~ JAMES F DECKER ~ KURT JAMES DECKER ~ MELODIE HOPE DECKER ~ SHANNON LEE DECKER ~ STANLEY RUSSELL DECKER  TONYA NICOLE DECKER ~ ZACHARY DAVID DECKER  GILLIAN DECONTO
JOSHUA DYLAN DEDEAUX JAKE ANTHONY DEDERICH FREDERICK J DEDERMAN JEFFREY G DEEB LINN TDEEDRICK CHRISTOPHER A DEEDS ETHAN JOSEPH DEEL ROBERT ROCK DEENER MATTHEW D DEENIK JAMES A DEERE JR JEFFREY S DEERING BRYAN AUSTIN DEES
MELISSA DEES  DILLON EUGENE DEESE LEON H DEFENDORF  JEREMY M DEFILIPPO  MARK N DEFILIPPO  KEVIN J DEFOOR CODY ROBERT DEFORE  ALI MICHELLE DEFRIES BILLY JOHN DEGARMO DOUGLAS F DEGLER MARCO DEGOLLADO VELOZ CHRISTOPHER L DEGRAFF
MATTHEW KYLE DEGROOD ~ MICAH PHILIP DEGROOD  ZACHARY DEGUILIO  LARRY DEGUIRE ~ FLOYD O DEHART ~ WILLIAM DEHAVEN BRANDON L DEHEK ~ANDREW DEHKURDI ~MONTELL DEAN DEHNE ~SERENA L DEHONEY JOSCELYNE DEIBERT ~JOSE MANUEL DEJESUS
MICHAEL ANTHONY DEJESUS ~ RETYCE LEE DEJESUS  RUSSELL DEJONG  RYAN C DEJONG  TRAVOUS RUSSELL DEJONG  HUGO ANDRES DEL CASTILLO  JASON DEL ROSARIO  ROMEQ DEL ROSARIO  IVAN CANDELAS DELTORO  CARLOS C DELACRUZ  NICK J DELACRUZ
NIKO A DELACRUZ CLINTON J DELAGRANGE JEFFERY L DELAGRANGE JOSEPH A DELANCEY STEVEN W DELAND DAVID M DELANEY MICHAEL P DELANEY ANA GISSELL DELAPAZ RAYMOND J DELARIO MAURICIO S DELAROSA  DAVID DELATTRE JUSTIN ALAN DELAUDER
DANIEL L DELEON ~ JUSTIN C DELEON ~ NORMA XOCHITL DELEON ~ JASON DELFIN ~ ANDREA DELGADILLO  CRESCENCIO MEDINA DELGADILLO  FRANCISCO JAVIER COVARRUBIAS DELGADILLO  ESMERALDA NA DELGADO  JOSE LUIS DELGADO  LEONARDO ALI DELGADO
MARIO DELGADO  ORLANDO DELGADO  RAMON ORLANDO DELGADO ROBERTO SANTANA DELGADO  SALVADOR JR DELGADO  VINCENT J DELGADO  FRANK DELGATTO JOHNATHAN KARIDELK ~ TARA L DEL'ARMO ~ WILLIAM THOMAS DELLER  JOSHUA ALAN DELLINGER
KANDIE S DELLINGER ANDREA DELLOW CHELSEA MARIE DELOACH THOMAS JENNINGS DELONG RHODORA DELOS SANTOS ROMULO DELOS SANTOS SENEN P DELOSSANTOS ZACHARY DELOVELY BRANDON C DELPH ANDREW G DELPRINCIPE BONIFACIO DELROSARIO
ANGELO DELSORDO ALEXANDRO DELUNA JAVIER DELUNA LUIS ALONSO DELZAS SAMUEL J DEMAREE BRIAN DOUGLAS DEMARS RALPH DEMARTINO JOEL E DEMASKY JUSTIN AARON DEMASTUS KEVIN DEMATTOS JOHN A DEMAURO SHAHAR DEMAYO TERESA DEMCHUK
KYLE THOMAS DEMEL GREGORY DEMENT CHRISTOPHER C DEMLER BRADIE J DEMOTT BRIAN D DEMPSEY CLAY GIBSON DEMPSEY DAKOTA SHAWN DEMPSEY DUSTIN WAYNE DEMPSEY KATERYNA DEMPSEY PATRICK DEMPSEY WILLIAM R DEMPSEY CHRISTIAN ADAM DENARD
JEFFREY R DENARD ~ALEXANDER RAVEN DENDY BRIAN P DENEAU ROBERT T DENHAM JENNIFER DENHOLM ROBERT L DENISON ROBERT DENK CHRISTOPHER PAUL DENLY JANICE ELAINE DENMAN ABRAHAM DENMARK JR DOREEN M DENMARK ~SAMUEL T DENMARK
SAMUEL THERON DENMARK JR  CHRISTOPHER LEE DENNEY ~ KAITLYN M DENNEY DUDLEYTDENNING DONALD L DENNIS  ERIC EARL DENNIS ~ JAMES L DENNIS ~ KENNETH W DENNIS ~ LESLIE ADELE DENNIS ~ TRACY A DENNIS ~ WILLIAM R DENNIS ~ BARRY D DENNISON
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JOSHUA HOOD JOYCELYN NICHOLE HOOD MATTHEW HOOD RYAN C HOOD RYAN PATRICK HOOD SETH DOUGLAS HOOD STEVEN LEE HOOD TIM LHOOD TIMOTHY W HOOD BRYON HARTHOOK MICHAEL HOOK DELBERT HEATH HOOKER GWENDOLYN A F HOOKS ISAIAH D HOOKS
STEVEN LHOOKS ~ MICHAEL ROBERT HOOLIHAN ~ BLAKE M HOOPER ~ DYLAN CHRISTOPHER HOOPER ~ KADEN EDWARD HOOPER ~ KELVIN HOOSANIE ~ ALEXANDRA NICOLE HOOSE ~ DAVID EHOOSOCK  DAVID HOOTEN ~ BRYAN RHOOVER ~ JASON EHOOVER  MARK A HOOVER
OSCAR WAYNE HOOVER JR RAYMOND R HOOVER RICHARD LOY HOOVER SCOTTHOOVER TERRY LEE HOOVER RODNEY F HOPE KEVIN HOPF AARON JAMES HOPKINS ANTHONY N HOPKINS ASHLEE NIKOLE HOPKINS BARBARA HOPKINS BEAU BRADLEY HOPKINS BRUCE HOPKINS
CHASE J HOPKINS  CODY NICHOLAUS HOPKINS ~ DEANDRE TYRELL HOPKINS ~ DEKOTA J HOPKINS ~ DUSTIN R HOPKINS ~ EARL RAY HOPKINS ~ JAMES E HOPKINS ~ JAMIE HOWLE HOPKINS ~ LEO J HOPKINS Ill  MARCUS VANGOSS HOPKINS ~ MARY W HOPKINS ~ OLANDO HOPKINS
OLANDO R HOPKINS ~ PATRICK B HOPKINS ~ RICHARD A HOPKINS ~ SHAWN C HOPKINS ~ SHELBY BEARD HOPKINS ~ TASHAYNNA DEONNE HOPKINS ~ TIMOTHY J HOPKINS ~ AMANDA JEAN HOPP DUSTIN ROBERT HOPPER  JOHN CALEB HOPPER MICHAEL SCOTT HOPPER
MICHAEL TALYN HOPPER RANDALL M HOPPER WALTER L HOPPER JR ROBERTTHORAN JR MICHAEL J HORBEY SEAMUS M HORGAN KATSUAKI HORIKIRI NATHAN RANDALL HORINE DENNIS CARLILE HORN DUSTIN M HORN JACKIL HORN PATRICK M HORN TIMOTHY ERIC HORN
TRENTON HORN ~ GARRETT MORGAN HORNBACK ~ JOHNATHAN HORNBECK ~ VINCENT L HORNBOSTEL ~ BRETTTHOMAS HORNE ~ GARRETT ANDREW HORNE ~ MAXINE LOVE HORNE ~ MICHAEL R HORNE ~ TAURSUS ONEIL HORNE ~ JOHN WESLEY HORNE JR  KARA K HORNE ZEIMET
BENJAMIN ALAN HORNER ~ JAMIE N HORNER ~ KENTON D HORNER ~ LAWRENCE LEE HORNER ~ JAMES S HORNSBY ~ WILLIAM C HORNSBY ~ WILLIAM SHANE HORRELL ~ ADAM Z HORREX  DANIEL HORTA  AMY L HORTON BRYAN W HORTON CONSTANCE SHAUNTERRA HORTON
MATTHEW RYAN HORTON ~ MICHELLE ANNE HORTON  OMARU WILLIAM RUFUS HORTON ~ RAYQUAN TREVELLE HORTON ROBERT HORTON SHAWNEE D HORTON STEVE E HORTON TONEY HORTON TRAVIS C HORTON WILLIAM M HORTON  JOHN HORVATH  JOSEPH HORVATH JR
RONALD DWAYNE HOSCH DIRK HOSEIN IDREES F HOSEIN RANDY HOSEIN RASHEED TARIQ HOSEIN RONNIE HOSEIN KEVIN L HOSEY ANGELA MARIE HOSKINS AUSTIN ROSS HOSKINS DILLON THOSKINS  ERIC RASHAD HOSKINS MARCUS HOSKINS R S HOSKINS ALEX HOSTERS
JEFFERY HOSTETLER ~ TIMOTHY JHOSTY  GIEREK JOZEF HOSZKIEWICZ ~ JALLALUDDIN HOTAKI ~ SHAWN HOTALING ~ KYLEW HOTCHKIN  JUSTIND HOTH  JOHN VICTOR HOUARTJR  NICHOLAS SHEA HOUDE ADAM HOUSE ~ ALEXANDER JAMES HOUSE ~COREY DARNELL HOUSE
DREW A HOUSE ~ ERNEST BRANDON HOUSE ~ JACKSON RYAN HOUSE  JEFFREY R HOUSE JORDAN HOUSE LAUREN MELANE HOUSE RICKY D HOUSE THOMAS W HOUSE TONIRHOUSE AARON M HOUSEL MADISON SUANN HOUSEL ~ KEVIN DOYLE HOUSER  TOD N HOUSLEY
AUBREY D HOUSTON  BRIAN B HOUSTON ~ JAMES EDWARD HOUSTON ~ JASON W HOUSTON  JODI MELINDA HOUSTON ~ LYNWOOD SENTELL HOUSTON ~ NATHANIEL HOUSTON ~ PATRICK W HOUSTON ~ JONATHAN AHOVE KIMPHOVE EUGENEEHOVIS  ADAMTHOWARD
ARIEL NICOLE HOWARD BRIANNA NICHOLLE HOWARD BRYSON JAMES HOWARD CHRISTOPHER D HOWARD CHRISTOPHER W HOWARD JR CLIFFORD K HOWARD DANIEL HOWARD DWIGHT F HOWARD JR FREDERICK BERNARD HOWARD JASON LEE HOWARD KENNETH E HOWARD
MARTIN C HOWARD MASON EUGENE HOWARD MATTHEW L HOWARD ~MICHALE HOWARD ~NATHAN TEDDER HOWARD NEAL HOWARD NORMAN HOWARD JR  PATRICK LEE HOWARD PAUL HOWARD PAUL ANDREW HOWARD ~STEPHEN D HOWARD STEVEN GREGORY HOWARD
STEVEN MATTHEW HOWARD TERRY L HOWARD THOMAS E HOWARD TIMOTHY L HOWARD TYRONE E HOWARD VICKI JEAN HOWARD JEFFREY HOWARTH JAY HOWAT JESSICA HOWCROFT CARSON DRAKE HOWE DOUGLAS EHOWE MICHAEL ALAN HOWE MOLLY J HOWE
ADAM HOWELL BRADLEY HOWELL CARLTON WESLEY HOWELL DUSTIN WHOWELL JAMES HOWELL JAMES W HOWELL JAMIE C HOWELL JOSHUA JOSEPH HOWELL KENNETH L HOWELL MICHAEL LEE HOWELL  PHILIP K HOWELL ROBERT ERIK HOWELL ROY L HOWELL
SAMUEL LIDE HOWELL SETH D HOWELL TONICE LATABLIS HOWELL TRAVIS JHOWELL KENDALL HOWERTON DYLAN THOMAS HOWIE SAMUEL ANDREW HOWIESON DANNYRHOWLE THOMAS WILLIAM HOWLE Ill  CHARLES WAYNE HOWLE Il [l CHARLES WAYNE HOWLE JR JR
ZACHARY MICHAEL HOWLETT FRANKIE L HOWZE DAVID HOYE CHASE ROBERTHOYER CLIFTON GUNNAR HOYLE ROBERT L HOYLE LUCAS WILLIAM HRABANEK BRIAN HRABIK JOHNAH G HRABOWY NICHOLAS J HROMALIK GHASSAN HROUT MILAN HROVAT NESTOR HRYCUN
BRYAN WHUANG  ROBERTFHUBA  NATHAN K HUBARTT  ADEN RAY HUBBARD  ALLEN HUBBARD  JOEYHUBBARD  MICHAEL HUBBARD  RONDA KHUBBLE ~ SETHMHUBBLE ROBERTA HUBLER  KOLBY W HUBSTER  STEVEN RHUCK  JONATHAN KEVIN HUCKABONE
STEVEN DELMER HUCKABY JR  SAMUEL E HUCKS LEE A HUCKSTEP TYLER S HUDACH STEPHEN BRUCE HUDAK JESS N HUDDLESTON MARY JEWELL HUDDLESTON JD HUDGENS JOSHUA DYLAN HUDGENS JUSTIN DAVID HUDGENS TY ALLEN HUDGENS BRETT HARRISON HUDGINS
MICHAEL C HUDGINS NOAH JOSEPH HUDGINS SAMUEL JOSEPH HUDNALL KIMBERLY HUDNELL BRETT THOMAS HUDSON BRYAN HUDSON CHRISTIAN S HUDSON DUSTY L HUDSON JAMES HUDSON JAMES E HUDSON JEFFERY L HUDSON JEFFERYVHUDSON JOSHUA KYLE HUDSON
LAURA HUDSON ~ MICHAEL RHUDSON  ORENTHUDSON  PAUL SHAWN HUDSON ~ PAUL SHAWN HUDSON JR  ROBERTHUDSON ~ ROBERTHUDSON  SHAMIKA DANYELLE HUDSON ~ COREY ALLEN HUEBNER ~ KURTW HUELSMAN  ALEJANDRO HUERTA  MATEO HUERTA
MIGUEL ANGEL DOMINGUEZ HUERTA REYNALDO HUERTA DAVID R HUESMAN  VICTOR ALLEN HUESMAN ~ WILLIAM K HUESTESS COLE HUESTIS AARON J HUFF ANDREW JASON HUFF  ASHTON N HUFF  AUSTIN LEWIS HUFF  BRIAN R HUFF  BRYCE EVERETT HUFF  CONNOR HUFF
FRANK ELMER HUFF  MATTHEW J HUFF  PAIGE HUFF  PERRY LEWIS HUFF  PHILLIP KEITH HUFF JR SCOTTH HUFF STEVEN C HUFF STEVEN G HUFF TAYLOR R HUFF TRACY D HUFF STEVEN CORY HUFFINE ALYSSA NICOLE HUFFMAN BENJAMIN L HUFFMAN DERECK T HUFFMAN
GARY D HUFFMAN ~ GRANT HUFFMAN  KAYLIE MICHELLE HUFFMAN ~ MATTHEW HUFFMAN ~ MICHAEL A HUFFMAN ~ RYAN B HUFFMAN ~ ANDREW MICHAEL HUFFNER  CASEY MICHAEL HUFFSTETLER  PAUL ROBERT HUFFSTICKLER ~ JASON HUFFSTUTLER  RICK MERRILL HUFTEL
ZACHERY CLEO HUG ~ KIMBERLY AHUGG  ERIC JAMES HUGGARD ~ DAVID C HUGGINS ~ JOHN AUSTIN HUGGINS ~ KRISANNE HUGGINS ~ SANDRA ELLEN THUGGINS ~ SHAWN HUGGINS SR STEVEN C HUGGINS ~ TROY HUGGINS ~ TRAVIS J HUGHART ~ ANDREW STEPHEN HUGHES
ANGELA M HUGHES ~ CHRISTOPHER ROBERT HUGHES ~ DANIEL SETH HUGHES ~ ERIK HUGHES ~ GARYHUGHES  HAMILTON CHANCE HUGHES ~ HUNTER HUGHES  ISAAC EDWIN HUGHES ~ JACOB HENRY HUGHES ~ JAMES RHUGHES  JEFFREY TYLER HUGHES ~ JOHN C HUGHES
JOSHUA M HUGHES KADEN JAMES HUGHES KENNETH W HUGHES KIRK HUGHES KYLE J HUGHES LYNNE HUGHES NELSON T HUGHES NOAH T HUGHES PAYTON CHARLES HUGHES RILEY HAYWARD HUGHES STACY DYLAN HUGHES STEPHAN ALLAN HUGHES
STEVEN LEE BENNETTHUGHES ~ STEVEN R HUGHES  TAYTE HUGHES TERENCE ALAN HUGHES ~WILBUR LEWIS HUGHES IV NARANJUS JACOBI HUGHLEY RONALD C HUGHLEY BRADLEYTHUGO SHARONHUGO ANDYHUI MIGUEL A HUICHAPA AVILA  BLAKE ANDREW HUISMAN
TYLER JHUISMAN ~ ANTONIO HUIZAR ~ ANTHONY LEVI HULGAN ~ JAMES RHULL  JEREMYDHULL MICHAEL HULL  REBECCA ANN HULL ~ AMY LEA HULLINGER ~ STONE M HULLINGER ~ BRANDON MURRAY HULSE ~ MARK A HULSER ~ TRISTAN KYLE HULSEY ~ MARK A HUMMEL
KEITH A HUMPHRES  BILLY W HUMPHREY  CHRISTIAN ALEXANDER HUMPHREY DAVID HUMPHREY LATRYCE MICHELLE HUMPHREY NICHOLAS ROSS HUMPHREY NICKOLAS L HUMPHREY RYAN HUMPHREY TRAVIS E HUMPHREY BRANDON HUMPHRIES BRANDON D HUMPHRIES
SCOTT ALLEN HUMPHRIES ~ DONALD CLIFFTON HUNDLEY ~MICHAEL THUNNELL MASON REED HUNNICUTT JANTZEN REESE HUNSAKER TYLER HUNSBURGER ROBERT S HUNSICKER BRANDON CHRISTOPHER HUNSINGER ~ CALEB RYAN HUNSINGER  CHRISTOPHER M HUNSINGER
JASON W HUNSINGER  JOSHUA D HUNSINGER  BRIAN AHUNT  DYLAN RHUNT EARL MITCHELL HUNT HAROLD HUNT HEATH HUNT  JAMES DYLAN HUNT JARED HUNT  JONATHAN TODD HUNT ~ KENNETH HUNT  KYLE HUNT =~ NATHAN HUNT NATHAN B HUNT SEAN M HUNT
SETH MICHAEL HUNT ~ SHANNON WAYNE HUNT ~ WENDELL HUNTE ~ DARRELL KHUNTER ~ DUSTIN DUDLEY HUNTER ~ JAMARR HUNTER ~ JAMES DANIEL HUNTER JR ~ JERNEIL LEON HUNTER  JOHNATHAN JAMES HUNTER ~ JOSHUA MORGAN HUNTER  JULIUS ANDREW HUNTER
JUSTIN ANGELO HUNTER MARIAH HUNTER  OLIVER STEIN HUNTER RICHARD F HUNTER ROBERT ISSAC HUNTER ROBERT JHUNTER Il ROBERT O HUNTER SAUNDRA E HUNTER SCOTTHUNTER SEAN M HUNTER THOMAS N HUNTER ZACHARY HUNTINGTON CRAIG HUNTLEY JR
KYLE ALAN HUNTLEY ~ LUCAS A HUNTLEY ~ SUSAN KHUNTOON  JOSHUA A HUNTSMAN  RANDALL HUNTSMAN  RICK AHUOT  JOSHUA MICHAEL HUPP  KYLERHURD  MICHAEL GHURD TYSONJHURD ANDREW HURDLE  AUSTIN GREGORY HURDLE =~ MATTHEW HURDLE
JACOB CHARLES HURDSMAN  CODY L HURLBERT GARET L HURLBERT MARC HURLEY TERRYLYNN HURLEY TOM HURLEY JEFFREYLHURNI AL DARRIUS DEWAYNE HURST JASON DEMETRIUS HURST JOHN C HURST JOHNNIE E HURST JOSHUA KENTRELL HURST DANNY E HURT
TIMOTHY M HURT ~ ALEJANDRO HURTADO  EFRAIN A HURTADO  GASPAR HURTADO  SAIN HURTADO  SAIN HURTADO JR  DAVID EDUARDO HURTADO GONZALEZ ~ OWEN HURTIBESE ~ ANDREW S HURTIG ~ BRIAN HUSS ~ HOUSTON DANIEL HUSS ~ SYED HUSSAINYMOINUDEEN
FAWIZA SEIRA HUSSEINI  MEGAN LAUREN HUSSEY ~ CAIN HUSSEY-DERRER ~ MARK HUSSMAN  JOSEPH SCOTT HUSTED =~ ANTHONY J HUSTON  MADISON HUTCHERSON ~ CHANCELLOR HUTCHESON  JASON J HUTCHESON ~ MICHAEL D HUTCHESON ~ JERRALD BERT HUTCHINGS JR
TIMOTHY MICHAEL HUTCHINGS  ALVIN DELEONARD HUTCHINSON DALTON ELIJAH HUTCHINSON TAMMY LEE HUTCHINSON ERIC L HUTCHISON JONI HUTCHISON KENNETH F HUTCHISON RYAN JOSEPH HUTCHISON TERRY C HUTH MICHAEL J HUTNAK JOHNATHAN CODY HUTSELL
LEVITHOMAS HUTSELL ~ JEREMIAH JHUTSON ~ GREGORY SCOTTHUTTO  JESSICA CRIDER HUTTO  NEOMIE JEAN HUTTO  KENTM HUTTON  TURNER PHILIP HUTTON ~ WILLIAM M HUTTON ~ JONATHAN L HUX  BENJAMIN JAMES HUXTABLE NAM D HUYNH  GEUMHO HWANG
ANTHONY C HYATT CAMERON HYATT JOHN PAUL HYATT NICHOLAS AARON HYATT SETH ROBERT HYBARGER CHRIS JEFFREY HYDE JONATHAN HYDE JUSTIN EDWARD HYDE LARRY JHYDE LAURA M HYDEN TODD RANDLE HYDEN STEPHANIE P HYDRICK TIMOTHY MARK HYER
CHASE EDWARD HYLAND KEITH JHYLAND JAMES W HYMAN RANDAL S HYMAN ROWLAND G HYMAN TIMOTHY HYMAN JAMES C HYMAS CATHERINE M HYTEN ANTHONY IANNACITO ALFREDO IATONNA ISAAC JACOB IBANEZ IGNACIO IBANEZ BATRES ALEXANDRIA ORTIZ IBARRA
FERNANDO IBARRA FERNANDO IBARRA FRANCISCO J IBARRA HELENA PADILLA IBARRA JORGE ALEJANDRO CEJA IBARRA JOSE ANTONIO IBARRA  JOSE DAVID IBARRA  DIANA TERESA IBARRA-GOMEZ  KELLY LOUISE IBLE  BASILA BARVIN SYED IBRAHIM  GARRETT ALLEN IDLETT
RICHARD A IDLETTJR MARIA IDROVO DOUGLAS L IFFERT CHAD M IFLAND RAZEEN IFTHIKHAR JACOB I IGARTUA ROY M IGNACIO AGNIESZKA IGNACIUK TARAS ILCHUK JACKAILER DAVORILIC LENA MARIAELISE ILLE WENDY ILNICKI FARRELL IMLER MARK CHRISTOPHER IMLER
KIMBERLY CULLIS IMM  ANTHONY J IMPASTATO LEONARD IMPASTATO ELIJAH PAUL INABINET LOUIS RINCROCCI RYAN INCROCCI PATRICK W INDERWISH BANE LEE INFINGER RENITA'S INGAL JAMES VERNON INGLE REGAN MICHELLE INGLE GEORGE S INGLIS KIP S INGMANSON
CHRISTOPHER P INGRAHAM ~ ANDREW A INGRAM  BRANDON SCOTTINGRAM ~ BRI A INGRAM  DEREK J INGRAM  DOUGLAS A INGRAM  JACOB L INGRAM  JOHN COLDEN INGRAM  JORDAN TAYLOR INGRAM  KYLE RINGRAM  STEVEN S INGRAM  TRENTSTON SCOTT INGRAM
LUIS FERNANDO RODRIGUEZ INIESTA ELIAS MORA INIGUEZ FERNANDO NAVARRO INIGUEZ JOSE FRANCISCO MORA INIGUEZ JULIO OSCAR LEAL INIGUEZ TOMAS LEAL INIGUEZ DAVIDY INMAN ZACHARY D INMAN GARRETT R INNIS DAYRON INTERIAN HERRERA EDDY F INTERIANO
ANTHONY IRELAND  CHRISTOPHER IRELAND  JAMES M IRELAND  JOHN CHRISTOPHER IRELAND  JOSEPH IRELAND KEVIN IRISH NICOLE P IRISH JOSEPH JOHN IRMITER ALICIA IRONEAGLE BRIAN JIROZ CRISTOBAL IRRIBARRA CHAD IRSCHICK STEFANO REINALDO IRSCHITZ
MOHAMMAD IRSHAD BARRYK IRVIN FOSTERLIRVING SPENCER C IRVING CHRISTOPHER ISAAC DELONTA JAMES MARTEZ ISAAC  KEVIN B ISAAC  THOMAS E ISAACS  SHANE J ISAM  JAMES ROBERT ISBELL  JOEY YOUNG ISBELL LUCAS DANIEL ISBELL LUCAS WYATT ISBELL
MACADE A ISBELL RANDY R ISBELL ZACKERY A ISBELL GREGORY C ISELEY BLAKE TYLER ISENBERG MARK S ISENBERG JAMES C ISH KAYLEA JUNE ISHAM FLORISSA HILL ISHMAN SHYAKA ISINGIZWE JESUS A ISITA-BARRAGAN BEAU KENTRELL DAVID ISOM ELLA MIHELA ISOPESCU
RAFAEL ITZEP  MATTHEW IVANY ~ BRADLEY K IVERSON ~ JUSTAN KIVERSON  ZANYZIAH EUKARI IVERSON ~ DANIELIVES HOWARDRIVES KURTAIVES ANTHONY STONEWALL IVEY ~CONNIELYNNIVEY COREYDIVEY JAMIE DWAYNE IVEY  QUINTON IVEY  GAVIN IVIE
JEREMIE WAYNE IVIE LATOREY SHAVON IVORY TORNIKA IVORY DONNA MARIE IVY JESSICA IVY LEE ALLEN IWAN JOHN CHESTER IWANCIO MOHAMAN IYA SHAGUFTA JABEEN PATRICK L JABLONSKI RYAN D JABLONSKI CURTIS JABUSCH NICHOLAS JABUSCH ANDRZEJ JACEWICZ
BRUCE A JACHE ~ KYLE EDWARD JACKIMOWICZ ~ ANDREW M JACKMAN ~ ROY LEON JACKMAN  BRITTANY EILEEN JACKS ~ MARK A JACKS ~ ALEXANDER GABRIEL JACKSON  ALISHA NICHOLE JACKSON ~ ALLEN DEVON JACKSON ~ ANDREW C JACKSON ~ BRADEN ALAN JACKSON
BRADY ODELL JACKSON  BRANDON LANE JACKSON ~ BRENT ALAN JACKSON  BRETT M JACKSON  BRIAN G JACKSON  BRIANTJACKSON CAMREN MARK JACKSON  CARLYLE JACKSON CHAD D JACKSON CHAD M JACKSON  CHRISTOPHER PATRICK JACKSON  CODY JACKSON
CODY L JACKSON COYRJACKSON DAMIEN A JACKSON  DANIEL L JACKSON  DARIUS DESHAWN JACKSON  DAVID ANDREW JACKSON DEREK TODD JACKSON DERRIK C JACKSON  DEVIN DURAN JACKSON DEVON JACKSON DONALD KENT JACKSON  DUSTIN COLBY JACKSON
DUVAL D JACKSON  GARRETT ANDREW JACKSON  JARED JACKSON  JEFFERY A JACKSON  JEFFREY J JACKSON  JEFFREY L JACKSON  JEFFREY SCOTT JACKSON  JEREL DANTE JACKSON  JEREMY JACKSON  JEREMY A JACKSON  JOE NATHAN JACKSON  JUSTIN KEITH JACKSON
KAYLEE FAITH JACKSON ~ KELVIN TYRONE JACKSON ~ KENZEL DELANO JACKSON ~ KYLE L JACKSON ~ LEON THOMAS JACKSON JR  LINDA L JACKSON  LORENZA PHIL JACKSON ~ LUCAS CHARLES JACKSON ~ MARK COLBY JACKSON ~ MICHAEL JACKSON ~ MICHAEL CHASE JACKSON
MICHAEL JOE JACKSON ~ MICHAEL NA JACKSON ~ MICHEAL A JACKSON  OTIS GEORGE JACKSON JR  PAUL JACKSON  PRECIOUS M JACKSON ~ REGINALD D JACKSON  RICHARD E JACKSON  RODNEY GERMAIN JACKSON ~ SAMANTHA JOY JACKSON ~ SAMUEL JAY JACKSON
SCHLONDIA S JACKSON SHEREE L JACKSON STARLET M JACKSON STEVEN JACKSON JR STEVEN DEVON JACKSON THOMAS J JACKSON TIMOTHY WAYNE JACKSON TODD JACKSON WAYNE A JACKSON WILLIAM JACKSON WILLIAM MICHAEL JACKSON JAMES CHARLES JACKSON JR
ANIEFIOK JACOB  MARY GRACE JACOB  CHRISTOPHER R JACOBIK ~ ROBERT JACOBIK ~ JOSEPH A JACOBINJR  FERMIN JACOBO  JUAN ANTONIO JACOBO ~ RAMSES SALVADOR JACOBO  ELIDA JACOBO FLORES ~ BLAKE AARON JACOBS  BRIAN EJACOBS  CHAD JACOBS
CHRISTINA BETH JACOBS DAVID JACOBS ERIC M JACOBS JAMES R JACOBS JOHNNY E JACOBS JOSHUA W JACOBS KENTON M JACOBS MAXIE DEROCHIAN JACOBS MEGAN ASHLEY JACOBS NICHOLAS JACOBS RICKY GLENN JACOBS JR ROBERT JACOBS TRUMAN MARCUS JACOBS
WILLIAM P JACOBS BRIAN KEITH JACOBSEN MATTHEW JACOBSEN SEAN JACOBSEN COLE LANCE JACOBSON JAMES JACOBSON DAVID A JACOBUS JOSHUA D JACOT JOSEPH L JACQUART KENNETH JACQUAY KENNETH SHANE JACQUE CALEB G JACQUES WILLIAM BRODY JACQUEZ
FILIBERTO JACUINDE ~ JOSHUA JADOS  RICHARD A JAEGER ~ SHANE MICHAEL JAEGER ~ SHORON D JAEGER ~ ZACHARY K JAEGER ~ MICHAEL J JAEKE ~ DARLENE MARIE JAENA ~ ABHINASH JAGAI  VIGNESH HARIHARAN J JAGANATHANT  RICARDO JAGDEO  VISHAL JAGESSAR
IMRAN JAHIR HUSSAIN ~ WILLIAM E JAHN  LEIGHTON JAHNA AMBER L JAHNKE ~ALEX JAHOOR VASANTHA KUMAR JAI SHANKAR  CRISTIAN ABRAHAM GARCIA JAIME  ESTEBAN DANIEL JAIME VICTOR H JAIMEZ  ISHAN SANJAY JAIN  JAISURYA J JAISANKAR M  JOSE LUIS JALPA
SHABANA JAMAL ALLAN K JAMES ANDREW P JAMES ANDREW RYAN JAMES ANGELO JAMES AUTUMN MIST JAMES BILL JAMES BRYAN R JAMES CLYDE JERROD JAMES CODY S JAMES DENNIS JAMES ERNESTC JAMES ETHAN JAMES EVAN S JAMES GARRETT PRICE JAMES
GEORGE L JAMES JR  HALJAMES  KATHERINE G JAMES  KENRICK JAMES  KEVIN JAMES ~ MAGEN LESHAWN JAMES ~ MICHAEL ADAM JAMES  RICHARD KENNETH JAMES ~ SAM A JAMES ~ SAMANTHA L JAMES ~ TRISTON CLIENT JAMES ~ WAYNE J JAMES ~ DAVID A JAMESON
AUSTINTJAMISON BLAKE ANDREW JAMISON CAMRON J JAMISON JARRED D JAMISON RHONDA S JAMISON TERRANCE JAMISON LALEH JAMSHIDI FAR DAVID JANAS RANDY JANDA TIMOTHY J JANKOWSKI BRENDAN M JANSEN CHRISTOPHER M JANSEN PATRICK L JANSEN
RAYMOND JANSEN BARBARAV JANSON JEFFREY L JANSON ROBERT JANSSEN FORREST HALE JANUARY JOHNNIE E JANUARY BOYER JANVIER MATTHEW R JAPCHEN JARED J JAQUES FERNANDO JARAMILLO ISRAEL JARAMILLO MELISSA A JARECKI  BRYAN E JARECKY
ANISH JARIWALA ~ ANGEL RAUL VALADEZ JARQUIN ~ DALLAS NJARRED  JRJACK JARRELL  DALE LEE JARRETT ~ RICHARD E JARRETT ~ BRANDON LELAND JARVIS ~ JACOB RICHARD JARVIS ~ MATTHEW J JASKILKA ~ DAVID L JASPER  STEVEN WILLARD ISAIAH JASPER
MANUEL EDUARDO REYNAGA JASSO JAIVEER JATANA PRABJOT JATANA RAYSEAN DARRELL JAUNES FRANCISCO JAUREGUI MICHAEL R JAURIGUE KYLE CAINE JAVENS ALOYSIUS A JAWORSKI JEEVA JAYARAMAN ADAM MATTHEW JAYNE TRAVIS HUNTER JAYROE WILLIAM G JAYROE JR
DIEUSEUL JEAN-CHARLES ~ KRISTOFER NICHOLAS JEAN-LOUIS ~ BRANDON JEDRZEJEWICZ ~ SHIRANI JEEVANAYAGAM  ALVIN R JEFFCOAT  CARA JEAN JEFFCOAT  ELVIN LEE JEFFCOAT  KAYLA JEFFCOAT  MITCHELL R JEFFCOAT ~ CODY MICHAEL JEFFERS ~ PAUL E JEFFERSON
HAYDEN PAUL JEFFORDS MICHAEL D JEFFORDS ANGELA RENE JEFFREY BRANDON JEFFREY JOHNNY JJEFFREY KYLE JEFFREY MARVIN DEXTER JEFFRIES SATHISHKUMAR JEGANATHAN ASHLEY D JELLISON DOUGLAS J JELLISON ALEXANDER DAVID JOHN JENKINS ALVIN JENKINS JR
AMBER RENE JENKINS ~ AMY D JENKINS ANTHONY BRADFORD JENKINS ~ BILLY L JENKINS BRENT C JENKINS BRIAN E JENKINS  BRIGITTE S JENKINS  BRITTNI JENKINS ~ CADE LUCAS JENKINS ~CALEB MICHAEL JENKINS ~CARLOS JENKINS CODY JENKINS ~DAKOTATY JENKINS
DEREK H JENKINS DUSTIE DESSIRE JENKINS DWAYNE R JENKINS ERIC CHARLES JENKINS GASTON JENKINS HESTON LEIGH JENKINS JACOB MICHAEL JENKINS JASON H JENKINS JOSHUA ZACHARY JENKINS KIMBERLY A JENKINS KOLTEN MILES JENKINS LEVI MCKAY JENKINS
LILLIE MAE JENKINS ~ MICHAEL E JENKINS ~ NORMAN D JENKINS JR ~ RANDY P JENKINS ~ RICHARD JENKINS ~ ROBERT LEE JENKINS ~ SKYLER W JENKINS ~ STEVEN RYAN JENKINS ~ TOMIKI BERSHAW JENKINS ~ WILL THOMAS JENKINS ~ ZACKERY J JENKINS ~ JOEL A JENNINGS
JOHN MICHAEL JENNINGS ~ KENNETH M JENNINGS ~ LAWRENCE JOSEPH JENNINGS ~ ROBERT EVAN JENNINGS ~ ROBIN M JENNINGS ~ ADAM W JENSEN ~ AMBERLEE JENSEN ~ AUSTIN S JENSEN ~ CARTER DOUGLES LEE JENSEN ~ CHRISTOPHER JENSEN ~ COOPER CARL JENSEN
COOPER JOSEPH JENSEN COREY T JENSEN CRYSTAL JENSEN DREW S JENSEN GREGORY DELORE JENSEN HUNTERTJENSEN JACOB D JENSEN JADEN J JENSEN JAKE JENSEN JAMES RILEY JENSEN JAMES V JENSEN JOSHUA D JENSEN KAISEY LYNN JENSEN MATTHEW S JENSEN
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